AD636332

The Design

Methods of Construction

Welded Steel Merchant Vessels

REPORT OF AN INVESTIGATION

15 JULY 1946,



FINAL REPORT OF A BOARD OF INVESTIGATION

Convened by Order of THE SECRETARY OF THE NAVY

To Inquire Into

THE DESIGN AND METHODS OF CONSTRUCTION OF WELDED STEEL MERCHANT VESSELS

15 JULY 1946

GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE WASHINGTON: 1947

Table of Contents

Page

Forewor	D	1
Introduc	TTION	2
A—Hist	ORICAL STUDY OF Hull Fractures	3
B-Desi	GN:	
1.	General	4
2.	Detail	4
3.	Full Scale Ship Tests	5
СМат	ERIALS:	
1.	Structural Steel	5
2.	Welding Electrodes	6
D-Cons	STRUCTION.	6
E-Oper	rating Conditions:	
1.	Loading and Ballasting	8
	Weather, Course, Speed and Sea Routes	8

	Page
F—Specific Investigations	8
G-International Exchange of Information	9
H—Findings	9
I-Conclusions	10
J-Opinions	10
K—Recommendations	10
Appendix "A"—Composition of Board, Sub- Board and Committees	12
Exhibit I-Statistical Report of Structural Failures on Welded Steel Merchant Vessels	15
Exhibit II—Summary of Research Investiga- tions	
Exhibit III—Survey of Shipyard Welding Prac- tices	
Bibliography	159



Foreword

Early in the war, welded merchant vessels experienced difficulties in the form of fractures which could not be explained. The fractures, in many cases, manifested themselves with explosive suddenness and exhibited α quality of brittleness which was not ordinarily associated with the behavior of a normally ductile material such as ship steel. It was evident that the implications of these failures on welded ships might be far-reaching and have a signal effect upon the war effort. Steps were taken immediately by Government and private maritime agencies, individually, to cope with this problem.

In April 1943, the Secretary of the Navy, pursuant to his responsibility through the Coast Guard for certificating vessels in accordance with the Marine Inspection Laws of the United States, established a Board of Investigation to Inquire into the Design and Methods of Construction of Welded Steel Merchant Vessels. This Board was composed of the Engineer-in-Chief, United States Coast Guard; the Chief of the Bureau of Ships, United States Navy; the Vice Chairman of the United States Maritime Commission; and the Chief Surveyor of the American Bureau of Shipping. The Secretary's directive to the Board read in part as follows: "* * * make a complete investigation of the matter hereby submitted and upon the conclusion of its investigation will report the facts established thereby. If the facts establish the existence of defects in the designs of, or in the methods being followed in the construction of s ich merchant vessels which in the opinion of the board adversely affect the seaworthiness thereof, the board will also submit its recommendations as to the measures which should be taken to correct such defects."

The Board appointed a Sub-Board which was ultimately composed of representatives of the four member agencies and of the War Metallurgy Committee of the National Academy of Sciences. The Sub-Board was directed to formulate in detail, and supervise the execution of, all phases of the investigation as outlined by the Board.

The Board immediately took steps to coordinate the efforts of the member agencies and embarked upon an extensive program of investigation. Technical and statistical analyses of all casualties were initiated; strength studies were undertaken of each type of vessel involved; loading and ballasting conditions were checked and analyzed; convoy routes with accompanying sea and weather conditions were examined; many specific investigations and extensive laboratory research projects were initiated, aimed at studying design, fabrication and materials used in the construction of welded ships. In addition, close liaison was maintained with private shipyards and with the British, who were also conducting studies of phases of the same problem.

In the course of the investigation a Research Advisory Committee and a Welding Advisory Committee were appointed by the Board to take cognizance of pertinent research and to survey shipyard welding practices, respectively.

The investigation has been in progress for more than three years. During that time two interim reports have been made to the Secretary of the Navy, the first dated 3 June 1944, and the second dated 1 May 1945.

This is the third and final report of this Board. It is intended to cover all phases of the Board's activity during the entire period of its existence. This report follows the outline established in the interim reports. All salient results are discussed, findings listed and conclusions drawn. At the end of the report recommendations are made for future work which appears to be necessary or desirable in the solution of unfinished phases of the problem.

Appended to the report are three exhibits:

- ENHIBIT I —Statistical Analysis of Structural Failures on Welded Steel Merchant Vessels.
- EXHIBIT II -- Summary of Research Investigations.
- EXHIBIT III-Survey of Shipyard Welding Practices.

1

References made to the exhibits and sources not appended to this report are annotated and a complete bibliography will be found appended.

Introduction

Welding is a relatively new process in the building of ships. From a meager beginning during World War I, when it was used only as an auxiliary method of fabrication and erection, welding has become a major process in the construction of steel ships, and has largely replaced riveting.

The advantages of welding in ship construction are numerous. There is a direct saving of weight in the elimination of plate laps, flanged attachments and rivet heads, which may be utilized in carrying additional useful load. In addition, the difficulties associated with riveting in making and keeping structures oil and water tight are obviated. Particularly pertinent to the establishment of new yards in connection with the accelerated program of shipbuilding prior to and during the war was the saving in time, manpower and tool manufacturing capacity effected through the use of welding in lieu of riveting. This saving was brought about by the shorter time needed in welded construction for training operators, and the availability and smaller amount of equipment required, making it possible for a new welding yard to be outfitted and in production in a fraction of the time which would have been required if the yard had been equipped for riveting.

It is safe to say that without welding it would have been impossible to build, in such a short time, the enormous fleet of ships which played such a vital part in winning the war.

There are, however, certain disadvantages connected with welding which were not fully realized at the outset of the expedited building program. Although the technique of depositing weld metal and the application of welding sequences to minimize shrinkage, distortion, and cracking were fairly well understood, relatively little was known of other, deleterious, conditions accompanying the welding process on large ship structures. Consequently, when fractures in all welded steel merchant vessels first began to manifest themselves (as in the Schenectad yo, et, 61 and Esso Manhattan⁶²), conditions were found which did not conform to previous experience. There was a general feeling that the accelerated shipbuilding program and the concomitant quantity production of all-welded ships had resulted in a general disregard for proper construction practices and workmanship.

"Reference number listed in Bibliography.

It was particularly felt that insufficient care was being devoted to welding sequences, with the result that locked-in stresses were present in many ships to a higher degree than would be expected. The presence of these high stresses was considered to be an important factor in the incidence of the observed fractures.

However, it must be recognized that structural failures are not confined entirely to welded ships. A few cases of serious fractures in riveted ships are well known, such as the Leviathan⁶⁴ and the Majestic,⁶³ both of which suffered fractures across the strength deck. The chronic occurrence of fractures in riveted ships would have appeared in a different light if the fractures had been generally more spectacular or if the results of research of the last three years had been known at the time of their occurrence. When a crack starts in a riveted structure, it generally progresses only to the first break in the continuity of the metal, e.g., a seam. There it awaits reloading to a stress which will give it a fresh start. In a welded structure, however, the crack will continue to propagate as long as sufficient energy is available.

Particularly bewildering phenomena in the welded ship casualties were the appearance and nature of the fracture itself. It was generally believed that medium ship steel incorporated in ship structure would deform elastically when loaded within the elastic limit, and that if it were loaded beyond that point plastic flow would take place and a permanent deformation would result, evidenced by a reduction in thickness or area. If the load were increased sufficiently it was believed that the material would fail only after considerable elongation, as this is the behavior which would ordinarily be expected from a ductile material.

In the observed ship fractures, however, the fractured surface appeared crystalline rather than silky as would be the case in a ductile failure. The break was square and the line of separation normal to the surface of plate, rather than at 45 degrees as would be the case in a failure on the plane of maximum shear. Very little ductility was evidenced, as indicated by practically zero reduction in the thickness of the plate at the fractured edge. This type of fracture is termed cleavage, denoting a separation of the surfaces of the crystal lattice rather than sliding action along slip planes.



The factors which might cause a normally ductile material to seem brittle were not understood. There was evidently a great need for fundamental study of the mechanism of fracture. As an index of the state of knowledge at the outset of the study, as well as to indicate the experimental difficulties which were encountered, it is considered noteworthy that brittle fractures in medium ship plate of 3/4 inch thickness, comparable to those found in ships, were not reproduced in the laboratory until early in 194440,41,47

The findings of the research program served to correlate the circumstances observed to accompany the fractures which occurred in ships. As soon as the factors contributing to failure were recognized, corrective measures were taken wherever possible.^b Modifications of square cargo hatch corners were designed and incorporated into vessels, both under construction and already completed. Cut-outs in the sheer strake were closed and sharp structural discontinuities and changes in section were eased wherever possible. As a means of preventing the propagation of cracks which might originate in spite of other precautions, "crack arrestors" were installed in personnelcarrying vessels and in a great many others. In addition, vessels assigned to operate in low temperature areas were selected from those in which modifications had been incorporated. The beneficial effects of these remedial measures are demonstrated by the reduction in the number of casualties from about 140 per month in March 1944 to less than 20 per month during January 1946.

A. Historical Study of Hull Fractures

The collection and correlation of information relative to fractures has been a task of considerable magnitude, involving the detailed description of each case of fracture by an observer on the scene, a classification of each case, tabulation of data, and finally detailed analyses which attempt to derive some measure of correlation between the types of fractures and their frequency, and factors which have appeared to contribute to their occurrence. The tabulation^d presented below indicates the scope of the fracture problem with respect to major merchant vessels constructed under the Maritime Commission program and remaining in merchant service.

^bExhibit I, Part IV. ^cExhibit I, fig. 24. ^d Data taken from Exhibit I

		1 **-il 1946
Total number of ship);	4,694
Total number of these		
Total number of th		
casualties		
Total number of case		
Total number of frac	tures	4,720
Total cases of serious	casualties (Class	1)
Total ships sustaini		
strength deck		
Total ships sustainin,	g a complete fra	cture of the
Eight vessels ha	ve been lost, as	follows:
Name	Date of Casualty	Remarks
THOMAS HOOKER	5 Mar. 1943	Abandoned.
J. L. M. CURRY.	7 Mar. 1943	Abandoned.
JOHN P. GAINES	24 Nov. 1943	Broke in two; aban- doned.
JOSEPH SMITH	9 Jan. 1944	Abandoned.
SAMUEL DEXTER	21 Jan. 1944	Abandoned.
IOEL R. POINSETT	4 Mar. 1944	Broke in two; stern por-
		tion salvaged.
SACKETT'S HARBOR.	1 Mar. 1946	Broke in two; stern por-
		tion salvaged.
FORT SUMTER ¹	10 May 1946	Broke in two; both por-
	-	tions scuttled.

¹ This vessel fractured after the terminal date for statistical accounting used in Exhibit I.

Four other ships broke in two but were not lost.

Name		Date of Casualty					
Schenectady Esso Manhattan Valeri Chkalov		15 Jan. 1943.					
Esso Manhattan	· · · · ·	29 Mar. 1943.					
VALERI CHKALOV		11 Dec. 1943.					
DONBASS III	 .	17 Feb. 1946.					

In connection with these casualties, 26 lives have been lost; 11 men from the John P. Gaines, missing after successfully embarking in a lifeboat, and 15 from the American-built Russian-operated vessel, Donbass III.

The results of the efforts to control and eliminate the occurrence of hull fractures are graphically shown in figure 24 of Exhibit I, which depicts the number of casualties for each month from February 1942 through January 1946, as well as the number of ships in operation during the same period. It will be seen that after reaching a maximum in March 1944, the number of fractures per month decreased sharply and has shown a decreasing trend ever since. The beneficial effects have been due to remedial measures in the form of improvements in workmanship, design and operation, such as the installation of crack

arrestors, modifications of cargo hatch corners, elimination of square sheer-strake cut-outs for accommodation ladders, general elimination or modification of structural discontinuities, careful attention to loading and ballasting, and judicious selection of ship types for rigorous duty, especially on cold weather routes.

Photographs and data sheets pertaining to the 12 most serious casualties, which are listed above, are included in Exhibit I.

B. Design

1. GENERAL

One of the first steps taken in the investigation was to recalculate the longitudinal strength of all types of vessels involved in structural failures. These calculations showed that the scantlings were ample and that there was a margin of strength in every case over that required by existing standards.

Static structural tests made on riveted ships prior to the advent of welding in shipbuilding had confirmed the general validity of the basic analytical methods used in calculating the stresses in the main hull girder. However, several factors involved were considered sufficiently significant to justify making similar experiments on welded ships. These factors included: the possibility of a difference in the overall behavior between riveted and welded construction as affected particularly by the differences in rigidity and geometry of riveted and welded joints; the fact that photoelastic studies showed appreciable stress concentration at hatch corners where so many cracks occurred on Liberty ships; the development of new strain gages which permitted the measurement of highly localized strains and the determination of unusual stress distributions that might not have been discovered in previous experiments.

The desirability of subjecting welded ships to the static structural test received further impetus from the large number of hull structural failures recorded, particularly during the winters of 1942-43 and 1943-44. Those failures were not limited to any one type of vessel, but occurred in ore carriers and tankers, as well as dry cargo vessels, particularly Liberty ships.

Outstanding examples of the earlier static structural tests carried out on riveted ships were those on the Wolf,¹ Cuyama,² Preston and Bruce.³ These ships were all of the destroyer type with the exception of the Cuyama, which was a Navy tanker. None of these $\overline{Exhibit I-figs. 30, 31}$ and 32. vessels had a structure comparable to that of the usual merchant cargo vessel, and all except the *Cuyama* were of relatively light scantlings with thin plating. No similar data appeared to be available for vessels of the merchant type.

In the investigation to determine the structural behavior of welded ships, at least a dozen vessels of several types were subjected to the static structural test. As a result of these studies^{4,5,6} the theoretical principles by which hull girder strength is computed have been found to be equally applicable to welded and riveted construction.

2. DETAIL

For operational reasons, it is necessary to introduce into the ship's hull, numerous openings, erections, foundations and so on. At every point where such a structural discontinuity is introduced, uniform straining of the material under a bending load is interrupted and concentrations result.

Until the short base length (less than 1 inch) strain gage became available, experimental measurements of strain concentrations in ships were not possible. The need for accurate determinations of concentrations was not as great in the riveted ship as in the welded ship. The monolithic character of the welded ship resulting from the method of fabrication can produce joints, particularly at structural discontinuities, that have high stress concentrations and severe restraint, thereby tending to inhibit plastic flow. This condition did not exist generally in the riveted ship. The danger of high concentration at points of structural discontinuities in the welded ship is further aggravated by welding usually present at such points. Welding produces a complex metallurgical condition which is frequently aggravated by discontinuities in the form of defects in the weld.

That stress concentrations of dangerous magnitudes actually exist at structural discontinuities in welded ships has been amply demonstrated by the numerous fractures which started at such points, e.g., hatch corners, sheer strake cut outs, defective welds, etc. In the Liberty ships, 25 percent of all fractures reported originated at hatch corners.^e 18 percent of all fractures were found to occur in the vicinity of No. 3 cargo hatch.^e In addition, an analysis of serious fractures showed that 24 percent started in the sheer strake cut-out for the accommodation ladder and 52 percent started at hatch corners.^e

Investigations conducted on welded ships revealed that stress concentration factors at the inside radius of the rounded hatch corners of a Liberty ship at deck level were of the order of 2.0. (A stress concentration of 3.4 was found in a similar corner at sea under dynamic conditions.)^f

Accordingly, one of the first remedial steps which was taken in an effort to eliminate fractures was the modification of cargo hatch corners in the Liberty ships. Ultimately 2,047 vessels out of a total of 2,212° were fitted with one of several types of hatch corner reinforcements.^h Table IX of Exhibit I shows that a substantial decrease in the incidence of fractures followed.

In an immediate attempt to stop fractures which might otherwise cause possible loss of the vessel a number of "crack arrestors" were installed in various types of vessels. These, in general, consisted of two types, one in which the deck just outboard of the cargo hatch was slotted and a riveted seam strap fitted over the slot, and a second in which either a similar slot and strap were placed in the sheer strake just below the deck line or, in lieu thereof, the deck and sheer strake were connected by a riveted gunwale angle. Altogether, crack arrestors of one or both types were installed in more than 1,400 vessels of all types. The gunwale crack arrestors functioned effectively and stopped cracks which had started in 26 cases in vessels on which they were fitted. No crack has been known to pass an arrestor.

The investigation pertaining to structural details has strongly emphasized that too much attention cannot be paid to the elimination of discontinuities (notches), whether they be small or large, and that the effect of discontinuities is aggravated by welding.

3. FULL SCALE SHIP TESTS

A great many tests on complete ships have been conducted in the course of this investigation. Various types of vessels involved in structural failures have been included in the testing program. Among them are:

> Four L-6 Great Lakes ore carriers⁴ Twenty Liberty ships^{5,10,25,24,27,25,30,50} Six T-2 tankers^{6,9,9,25,26} I'hree C-4 troop carriers²⁶ Twenty-one Victory ships^{22b,27,28} One C-2 refrigerated cargo ship²⁷

Among these investigations were: full scale hull *I*Exhibit II-(1cii).

eExhibit I-table VIII.

AExhibit I-figs. 44, 45 and 46.

bending studies in still water^{4,5,6,8,9,25,26}; an exploration of stress concentrations at structural discontinuitics^{5,25,50}; an investigation of the strains experienced by the hull girder of a Liberty ship when loaded in torsion;⁵ tests to determine locked-in stresses including those caused by temperature variations during assembly^{23 to 31}, tests to determine thermal stresses in service,²⁷ tests to determine locked-in stresses caused by a controlled temperature differential in the insertion of a large closing deck section;²⁹ and the low temperature relief of residual welding stresses.¹⁰

C. Materials

1. STRUCTURAL STEEL

The incidence of serious failures of large welded steel structures both in construction and during service indicated the need for a better understanding of the fundamental factors affecting steel performance. Lack of reliable information in this field has led designers to over-design in the interest of safety, a procedure which may in some cases enhance the possibility of failure.

At the present time the mechanism of metal fracture is not well understood^{32,33}. Since some plastic deformation, even though highly localized, usually precedes fractures even in the case of cleavage or socalled "brittle" fractures of structures, an understanding of the phenomenon of flow is essential in considering the fracture problem. Perhaps the best theory yet formulated involves the concepts of resistance to flow and resistance to fracture;³⁴ the theory postulates that if the stress required for fracture is greater than that required for flow, plastic deformation will occur; conversely, if the stress required for flow is greater than that required for fracture, rupture will take place. Flow may teminate in either shear or cleavage separation. The former is characterized by high ductility, a fibrous or silky appearing fracture generally at 45° to the direction of applied load, and high energy absorption. The latter shows relatively low ductility, a granular or crystalline appearing fracture generally normal to the direction of applied load, and in most cases, lower energy absorption. Cleavage fracture often occurs after appreciable flow. The term cleavage fracture refers to a mode of separation and is not intended to apply only to completely brittle fracture without measurable deformation, although this case is included.

Resistance to flow and resistance to fracture are

extremely complex quantities influenced by a number of factors, the interrelationship of which is at present unknown. These factors' are: State of Stress (Constraint); Temperature; Velocity (Strain Rate); Metallurgy.

During the course of the investigation many research projects were initiated to investigate the behavior of ship steel^{35 to 59}. In addition, extensive material surveys by sampling methods were made, designed to determine the adequacy of steel used in welded ship construction as judged by present physical requirements^{57,58,59}. These studies indicated that steel as furnished to shipyards complies in every respect with physical requirements as they exist at the present time. In spite of this, impact tests of steel samples taken from vessels which suffered fractures indicated that in many cases the steel was notch sensitive, i.e., that its ability to absorb energy in the notched condition, and especially at low temperature, was low. In addition, it was found that some samples of the steel furnished to shipyards under existing physical requirements were also notch sensitive.

The research in estigations explored the behavior of ship steel in the welded and unwelded condition under the influence of multi-axial stress in the presence of discontinuities, such as notches, especially at low temperatures. These studies indicated that notch sensitivity is an important factor in the occurrence of "brittle" failures; i.e., failures which exhibit a low degree of ductility.

In further studies to investigate the factors contributing to the cleavage failure of ship steel, tests were made on unwelded flat plates in widths varying from 12 inches to 72 inches and on large welded structural specimens⁴⁷ to ⁵¹. These tests indicated that, in the presence of notches which are comparable to those found on board ship, ordinary ship steel may fail at nominal stresses which are considered extremely low by accepted engineering standards. It should be noted that nominal failure stresses decrease from about 45,000 p. s. i. in the 12-inch plates to stresses approximating the yield point in 72-inch plates, and in the welded structural hatch corner tests failures occurred at nominal stresses as low as 23,000 p.s.i. In connection with the latter tests it was found that two specimens welded with a 400° Fahrenheit preheat treatment showed a significant increase in ulti-Exhibit II-sec. 3a. Æxhibit III.

*Exhibit I-table VI

mate strength (about one-third) over comparable specimens not preheated. However, the 400 Fahren heit preheat had no effect upon the magnitude or distribution of residua' welding stresses.

MPR M

1 1000 00

Studies of the speed with which fractures of the cleavage type propagate have disclosed that it is extremely high (about 5,000 feet per second⁴⁸). This finding substantiates reports which have been received from the masters of vessels which have broken in two in regard to the suddenness with which such casual ties have occurred.

There is a real necessity for the establishment of new specifications to include a practical test for the evaluation of the notch sensitivity of commercial steels.

2. WELDING ELECTRODES

There is no indication that inferior quality or misapplication of welding electrodes was responsible for welded ship fractures. This does not mean, however, that an improvement in electrodes and covering materials might not be beneficial. In fact, considerable variation within the applicable specification has been found in the cracking tendency of welds made with commercial E-6010 electrodes, deposited under high restraint.²⁰

Specifications for welding electrodes are in the process of revision at the present time. Pilot tests ^{41,45,46,54} have indicated that when an estimate or measurement of service performance is desired, it is futile to make tests of weld metal, except in conjunction with the parent metal in a welded joint.

D. Construction

Construction methods and workmanship were believed to be responsible to a large degree for the difficulties being experienced by welded ships. It is interesting to note, in this connection, that the Welding Advisory Committee which made a survey j of representative shipyards, both government and private, on the Atlantic, Gulf and Pacific Coasts, found varying degrees of quality in workmanship and in methods of construction, but the analysis of structural failures failed to indicate a marked correlation between the incidence of fractures in welded ships and the shipyards' construction practices. However, with due allowance for difference in design, the ships constructed in yards utilizing sub-average shipyard construction practices showed a higher-thanaverage incidence of fracture.k

The findings of the Welding Advisory Committee show the need for improvement in almost every phase of welded shipbuilding, and in particular, the need for standardization in operator training and upgrading. The identification of welding operators by degrees of skill and by individuals was found to be unsatisfactory. In most cases there was no means of tracing detective work to the operator who was responsible. Close inspection, including subsurface inspection of welds, was made in only about onethird of the yards. It was found that the piece work system which was in use by a great many yards did not serve as an incentive for good work. The supervisory organization varied between yards. The number of workmen and junior supervisors under each senior supervisor varied widely from yard to yard. The preparation of welding sequences and design of joint details was, in general, found to be satisfactory, but in many yards the sequences and edge preparations were not carried out satisfactorily. In most instances the welding engineer had been relegated to an advisory status. The result of these circumstances was inferior workmanship. High quality workmanship is still an important need in the building of welded ships.

An educational program was established by the member agencies of the Board. Instruction pamphlets were circulated by the American Bureau of Shipping^{66,67}, the Maritime Commission,⁶⁵ the Navy Departments^{17,72}, and the Coast Guard⁶⁸ for the use of their surveyors and inspectors. The Maritime Commission, Navy Department and other government agencies instigated shipyard training programs to promote better construction practices. This concerted effort markedly improved shipyard workmanship. The member agencies are jointly preparing comprehensive booklets incorporating the findings of this Board. They deal with the various phases of construction, workmanship, and shipyard organization. The first of these booklets, entitled "Shipyard Welding Workmanship",69 already has been completed and distributed. The second, entitled "Shipvard Management for Welding"70 is being printed. In addition, it is anticipated that two booklets will be prepared, dealing with welding supervision and inspection, and the design of ship details for welding.

The feeling that workmanship had suffered due to the pressure of wartime production programs was substantiated in the findings of the Welding Advisory Committee. The importance of maintaining adequate standards of workmanship has been clearly established by the analysis of structural failures in the past 3 years. Poor workmanship engenders fracture, since a fracture may originate at a small notch, such as is occasioned by peened-over cracks, by undercut welds, by porosity and inclusions in the weld, or by "saddle" welds resulting from incomplete penetration, which leave voids at the center of the joint.

The early importance attached to residual welding stresses and locked-in stresses directed the first research efforts to an investigation of those factors. While there had been much dicussion of these stresses, little was known of their magnitude, distribution, or their effect on the performance of welded structures. The existence of residual and of locked-in stresses was usually associated with the procedures and sequences followed in the course of welding a structure. Inasmuch as the two terms have aroused much comment in the past few years it is considered advisable here to define them in order to clarify the sense in which they have been considered by the Board.

- (a) Residual Welding Stresses:
 - Residual welding stresses are those resulting from the welding of unrestrained members.
- (b) Locked-in Stresses:
 - Locked-in stresses include residual welding stresses, and stresses resulting from other fabrication and assembly processes.

The results of the several research investigations bearing on residual and on locked-in stresses have been conclusive¹² to ¹³, ²³ to ³¹. It has been determined that residual stresses in the welds approximate the yield point of the weld metal in a direction parallel to the weld and are less than 25 percent of this value in a transverse direction¹² to ²². In way of the weld metal these stresses are both tensile. The magnitude of these stresses it was found, was generally unaffected by variation in the welding procedure or assembly sequence¹² to ¹⁵.

The failure of welding sequences to show any influence on the magnitude of residual stresses should not be misconstrued to mean that the sequence is unimportant. Experience demonstrates the importance of the effect of welding sequence in the control of shrinkage, distortion and cracking during construction.

A number of means have been found for reducing residual welding stresses. Among these are mechanical stretching of the weld,¹³ thermal stretching as in low temperature stress relief^{11,15}, peening of the last pass of the weld^{13,15}, and heat treatment^{14,15}. It was also determined that locked-in stresses are not reduced appreciably in service^{23a,23b,23c,24}.

Locked-in stresses in plate areas away from welds have been found to be of low magnitude and generally compressive.

Although a large amount of work has been accomplished in the investigation of residual and of locked-in stresses, resulting in a considerable extension of knowledge in this respect, no evidence has been found to indicate that these stresses are important in causing the fractures in welded ships.

E. Operating Conditions

1. LOADING AND BALLASTING!

Early in the investigation it was suspected that the loading and ballasting methods employed in both cargo ships and tankers during the war emergency might have resulted in excessive bending moments, which when aggravated by heavy weather conditions, might be important factors in causing structural failures.

The relaxation of load line regulations, permitting the deeper loading of vessels in wartime, and the fact that most vessels made the return trip in ballast, gave additional weight to this suspicion. Accordingly, all methods of loading employed and all types of ballasting systems in use were carefully checked in each type of vessel involved and the corresponding bending moments were computed. The net result of this study was the finding that the loading and ballasting conditions did not create abnormal bending moments. This conclusion is presented graphically in figure 29 of Exhibit I.

In the case of Liberty ships, little change could be made in the loading plan, but some latitude was possible in arranging the ballasting system. Accordingly, the Maritime Commission "London Glasgow" ballasting system was eliminated in favor of the Maritime Commission 1500-ton ballasting schedule, which is now in use. This resulted in a reduction of bending moment stresses of about 4,000 p. s. i

A much wider range of loading was found possible in the case of tankers, where, with an abnormal loading system, a still-water bending moment stress of 14,540 p. . i. was found possible, although stresses resulting from uniform loading in tankers were less than those found in Liberty ships. ⁷Exhibit I-part IIC.

2. WEATHER, COURSE, SPEED AND SEA ROUTES

The wartime operation of cargo ships in convoys and over sea routes which are only infrequently used in normal times imposed unusual hardships on the vessels. Especially during the early part of the war, convoys were being routed through exter mely cold waters where heavy seas prevail during the winter months. The risks involved were accepted as far as heavy seas were concerned, but at the start the adverse effects of low temperature were not fully appreciated. When these facts were recognized, vessels modified to increase their resistance to fracture were assigned to the most rigorous trade routes.

F. Specific Investigations

Many research investigations were undertaken in government and university laboratories.

Most of the research studies which were conducted in connection with the investigation were carried out under the supervision of the Welding Division of the War Metallurgy Committee. This organization operated under a contract with the Office of Scientific Research and Development and was part of the National Academy of Sciences. In utilizing the facilities of this organization the Board was able to bring to bear on its problems some of the best scientific minds in the country. Many of the research investigations were carried out in the finest engineering laboratories available in the United States. Through the supervision of the War Metallurgy Committee, a complete coordination of effort in research was achieved and results were obtained in a minimum of time. One of the outstanding contributions of the War Metallurgy Committee of the National Academy of Sciences was the stimulation of interest among steel manufacturers, ship builders and other industrial organizations concerned with the fabrication of welded structures, and the obtaining of the active participation of these industries in the solution of the problems which confronted the Board. Without the assistance of the National Academy of Sciences the questions which were raised pertaining to metallurgy, physics and the mechanism of metal fracture would not be as near to a solution as they are today.

At the present time much unfinished research work pertaining to the subject of this investigation remains to be done. It is hoped that it will be possible to con-

8

tinue the efforts of the research investigators, and add further to the knowledge and experience they have gained in the past three years. The fine spirit of cooperation and coordination which has been engendered in that same period is the best assurance that a solution of the unfinished phases of the problem can be found.

For specific research investigations which came under the cognizance of the Board, refer to the Bibliography appended.

G. International Exchange of Information

Close liaison has been maintained throughout the investigation with the British, and with other Allied nations, who are concerned with the operation of welded merchant vessels. There has been a free and complete exchange of information between the Board and the British agencies involved, notably the Admiralty Ship Welding Committee. Inasmuch as the British are operating all-welded merchant vessels, some of which were constructed in the United States, they have shown great interest in the problem of determining the causes of structural failures in welded ships. Consequently, numerous investigations, both experimental and analytical, have been initiated and conducted in Great Britain^{11,73}, many of them paralleling investigations conducted in this country. It is interesting to note that the endeavors of these two separate groups have been directed along the same lines in approaching the solution of the problem, and it is gratifying that the results obtained on both sides of the Atlantic have agreed in almost every respect.

The British are at present engaged in a long range, full scale study of the loads imposed upon vessels at sea, together with the strains experienced in service. The need for such a study was also recognized in this country and the findings of the Board's investigation have served to accentuate this need.

A number of American observers, including representatives of the member agencies of this Board, have been afforded access to these studies and have, in several cases, made voyages in the experimental vessels.

It is hoped that the United States may also find it possible to initiate long range instrumental studies of loads and strains experienced in ships at sea.

H. Findings

The Board finds that:

(a) 4,694 welded steel merchant vessels were built by the Maritime Commission in the United States and considered in this investigation.

(b) 970 of these vessels suffered casualties involving fractures.

(c) 24 vessels sustained a complete fracture of the strength deck.

(d) 1 vessel sustained a complete fracture of the bottom.

(e) 8 vessels were lost; of these, 4 broke in two and 4 were abandoned after fracture occurred; 4 additional vessels broke in two, but were not lost.

(f) 26 lives were lost incident to structural failures of welded steel merchant vessels.

(g) The highest incidence of fracture occurs under the combination of low temperatures and heavy seas.

(h) The age of the vessel has no appreciable influence on the tendency to fracture.

(i) The loading and ballasting systems employed in vessels under study by the Board did not create abnormal bending moments.

(j) No marked correlation between the incidence of fracture on the ships and the construction practices of parent shipyards could be found. However, with due allowance for design, the ships constructed in yards utilizing subaverage shipyard construction practices showed a higher-than-average incidence of fractures.

(k) Only 33 casualties were reported in Victory ships. None of these was serious.

(1) The steel currently supplied for ship construction complies with applicable specifications for ship steel.

(m) Locked-in stresses in the decks of completed vessels are not appreciably reduced in service.

(n) Welding sequence in general has no effect upon the magnitude of residual welding stresses in free subassemblies.

(o) Every fracture examined started in a geometrical discontinuity or notch resulting from unsuitable design or poor workmanship.

(p) There is a large variation in the notch sensitivity of steel used in welded ship construction. Steel removed from fractured vessels showed high notch sensitivity.

I. Conclusions

The Board concludes that:

(a) The fractures in welded ships were caused by notches and by steel which was notch sensitive at operating temperatures. When an adverse combination of these occurs the ship may be unable to resist the bending moments of normal service.^m

(b) The serious epidemic of fractures in the steel structure of welded merchant vessels has been curbed through the combined effect of the corrective measures taken on the structure of the ships during construction and after completion, improvements in new design, and improved construction practices in the shipyards.

(c) Locked-in stresses do not contribute materially to the failure of welded ships.

(d) Existing specifications are not sufficiently selective to exclude steel which is notch sensitive at ship operating temperatures.

(e) A tendency for certain ships to incur repeated casualties can be measured but the trend is not great and the effect is not significant.

(f) The basic analytical method used in calculating nominal stresses in the main hull girder under a known bending moment is valid.

(g) The overall strength of the Maritime Commission ships is satisfactory.

J. Opinions

(a) The results of the investigation have vindicated the all-welded ship. The statistics show that the percentage of vessels sustaining serious fractures is small. With proper detail design, high quality workmanship, and a steel which has low notch sensitivity at operating temperatures, a satisfactory allwelded ship structure may be obtained.

The mechanism of fracture is still not clearly $\overline{\ }$ mA notch may be defined as any discontinuity. As used in this report, a notch means a structural discontinuity, such as is occasioned by hatch openings, sheer strake cut-outs, foundations, vent openings, bilge keels, the abrupt termination of structural members, etc., and imperfections in the structure resulting from fabrication, such as peened-over cracks, undercut welds, porosity and inclusions in welds, and incomplete penetration which leaves voids at the center of the joint.

Jotch sensitivity may be defined as the property of a material which reflects its reluctance to absorb energy in the presence of notches and other strain inhibitors, such as low temperature and high rates of strain.

understood, but the investigation has yielded much new information and has contributed to a partial solution of the problem of why welded ships have failed.

Until experience can be had with vessels constructed under normal conditions, of improved design, with carefully checked, high quality workmanship, and employing steel of low notch sensitivity, some form of crack arrestor, such as a riveted gunwale angle, should be incorporated in the huli girder of all large welded vessels.

(b) Notwithstanding the above opinion, the Board considers it imperative to reaffirm the statement that if welded construction in the building of both merchant and naval vessels had not been adopted at the outset of the program, the extraordinary results in speed and volume of construction would have been impossible of accomplishment.

K. Recommendations

As the investigation is brought to a close, the existence of several unfinished studies which were initiated by the Board, as well as a list of desirable items for future investigation, impels the Board to make certain recommendations.

The Research program conducted in connection with the investigation has produced at least partial answers to most of the more urgent questions and has given an adequate solution for the purposes of the present Board. It now appears that some of the specific investigations already laid out must be carried beyond the termination of the Board. It thus becomes necessary to assure the continuance and extension of this work. These projects have opened up new fields of investigation; they point out paths along which real improvement can be made in structural design, material and fabrication methods.

It is beyond the scope of this Board to follow these leads. However, it is important that we maintain our present position in maritime affairs and protect our standing in world wide competition by continuing fundamental research work on design and methods of construction of steel ships. Accordingly, the recommendations of the Research Advisory Committee, as contained in part 5 of Exhibit II, for continued and extended experiments, are endorsed.

It is also recommended that the compilation of data on structural failures be continued z l that these data be analyzed together with those already collected, using valid statistical methods. In particular,

it is recommended that service-time data be tabulated by temperature and state of the sea, vessel by vessel, from the logs of the individual ships.

Finally, it is hereby recommended that an organi-

Rear Admiral U. S. C. G. Engineer-in-Chief, United States Coast Guard. Chairman

zation be established to formulate and coordinate research in matters pertaining to ship structure in the same manner as has been the practice during the tenure of the Boar l.

Captain, U. S. N. Technical Assistant to the Chairman, United States Maritime Commission. Member

E.L.Col

Vice Adr. iral, U. S. N. Chief, Bureau of Ships, United States Navy. Member

D. anott.

Vice President and Chi.f Surveyor, American Bureau of Shipping. Member

Approved:

mes Tonestal

Secretary of the Navy.

Appendix ' A'

Composition of Board, Sub-Board and Committees functioning thereunder.

BOARD

(Established 20 April 1943)

Chairman:

Rear Admiral HARVEY F. JOHNSON, U. S. C. G., Engineer-in-Chief, United States Coast Guard.

Vice Admiral E. L. COCHRANE, U. S. N., Chief, Bureau of Ships, United States Navy Department.

Vice Admiral HOWARD L. VICKERY, U. S. N. Vice Chairman, United States Maritime Commission. (To 25 January 1946).

Captain. T. L. SCHUMACHER, U. S. N. Technical Assistant to the Chairman, United States Maritime Commission. (From 25 January 1946).

MR. DAVID ARNOTT, Vice President and Chief Surveyor, American Bureau of Shipping.

Secretary:

- Captain R. B. LANK, JR., U. S. C. G. Assistant Chief, Naval Engineering Division, United States Coast Guard. (19 May 1943 to 28 March 1946).
- Commander R. D. SCHMIDTMAN, U. S. C. G. (From 28 March 1946).

SUB-BOARD

(Appointed 19 May 1943)

Capt. CHARLES D. WHEELOCK, U. S. N., (Chairman to 17 June 1944).

- Capt. L. A. KNISKERN, U. S. N. (Chairman from 17 June 1944 to 28 March 1946).
- Capt. R. B. LANK, JR., U. S. C. G. (Secretary to 28 March 1946). (Chairman from 28 March 1946).

Capt. WENDELL P. ROOP, U. S. N. (To 23 August 1944, and from 18 March 1946).

Capt. P. W. SNYDER, U. S. N. (From 27 March 1945 to 7 September 1945).

Capt. JESSE ORMONDROYD, U. S. N. R. (From 23 August 1944 to 18 March 1946).

Capt. L. V. HONSINGER, U. S. N. (From 7 March 1946).

Comdr. C. R. WATTS, U. S. N. (To 27 March '945)

Comdr. E. G. TOUCEDA, U. S. N. R. (From 7 Septen: ber 1945).

Comdr. R. S. MANDELKORN, U. S. N. (From 27 March 1945)

Comdr. P. A. OVENDEN, U S. C. G. R. Comdr. R. D. SCHMIDTMAN, U. S. C. G. (From 14 August 1944) (Secretary from 28 March 1946).

Lt. Comdr. (T) E. M. MACCUTCHECN, U. S. C. G. R. Lt. (jg) R. C. MADDEN, U. S. N. R. (From 17 May 1946)

- MR. JAMES L. BATES, United States Maritime Commission
- MR. A. G. BISSELL, United States Navy Department
- MR. D. P. BROWN, American Bureau of Shipping.
- MR. HUGO HIEMKE, War Metallurgy Committee. (From 14 August 1944 to 1 August 1945)

DR. FINN JONASSEN, War Metallurgy Committee. (From 14 August 1944)

MR. S. W. LANK, United States Coast Guard.

- MR. E. E. MARTINSKY, United States Maritime Commission. (From 19 May 1945)
- MR. G. S. MIKHALAPOV, War Metallurgy Committee. (From 14 August 1944)

DR. ALBERT MULLER, War Metallurgy Committee. (From 1 August 1945)

MR. JOHN VASTA, United States Maritime Commission.

MR. J. LYELL WILSON, American Bureau of Shipping.

-

RESEARCH ADVISORY COMMITTEE (Appointed 14 August 1944)

- MR. G. S. MIKHALAPOV, War Metallurgy Committee, Chairman
- Capt. JESSE ORMONDROYD, U. S. N. R. (From 23 August 1944 to 18 March 1946)
- Capt. W. P. ROOP, U. S. N. (To 23 August 1944, and from 18 March 1946)
- Capt. L. V. Honsinger, U. S. N. (From 7 May 1946)
- Comdr. E. G. TOUCEDA, U. S. N. R. (From 7 May 1946)
- Comdr. R. D. SCHMIDTMAN, U. S. C. G.
- Lt. Comdr. (T) E. M. MACCUTCHEON, U. S. C. G. R.
- MR. JAMES L. BATES, United States Maritime Commission.
- MR. HUGO HIEMKE, War Metallurgy Committee. (To 20 July 1945)
- DR. FINN JONASSEN, War Metallurgy Committee.
- DR. ALBERT MULLER, War Metallurgy Committee. (From 20 July 1945)
- MR. JOHN VASTA, United States Maritime Commission. (From 13 July 1945)
- MR. J. LYELI. WILSON, American Bureau of Shipping. 701292-47-2

WELDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE (Appointed 26 July 1944)

- Capt. D. R. SIMONSON, U. S. C. G., Chairman.
- MR. T. J. GRIFFIN, United States Navy Department
- The Following Members Served Temporarily in the Areas Indicated:
- American Bureau of Shipping:
 - MR. BASIL A. MACLEAN, Portland, Oregon
 - MR. WILLIAM B. MURRAY, Northern California
 - MR. CHARLES J. L. SCHOEFER, Southern California
 - MR. SIDNEY K. SMITH, Seattle, Washington
 - MR. SYDNEY SWAN, Gulf Coast
- MR. R. T. YOUNG, East Coast
- United States Maritime Commission: MR. GEORGE DARSAM, Gulf Coast MR. E. E. MARTINSKY, New Jersey
 - MR. H. L. MORRIS, Pennsylvania
 - MR. ANTHONY SIMATOVICH, Pacific Coast
 - MR. ARNIM A. SMITH, South Atlantic and Gulf Coast
- MR. J. W. WILSON, New England

WELDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE LIAISON GROUP

(Appointed 12 September 1944)

- MR. J. LYELL WILSON, American Bureau of Shipping, Chairman.
- MR. A. G. BISSELL, United States Navy Department.
- Lt. Comdr. (T) E. M. MACCUTCHEON, U. S. C. G. R.

MR. E. E. MARTINSKY, United States Maritime Commission. FINAL REPORT

Board to Investigate the Design and Methods of Construction of Welded Steel Merchant Vessels.

EXHIBIT I

Statistical Report of Structural Failures on Welded Steel Merchant Vessels

1 April 1946

-

A A A A A

_



Statistical Report

Structural Failures on Welded Steel Merchant Vessels

1 April 1946

Table of Contents

Part	I
------	---

Structural Failure History	
A-Scope and Description of Report	19
B-Definitions	19
C-Sources of Structural Failure Data	20
D-Numbers of Structural Failures and	
Ships Involved	20
E-Summary of Casualties by Classes	20
F-Ships Which Broke in Two or Were Lost	21
G-Lives Lost Due to Structural Failure	21
H-Casualties Occurring Each Month	21
PART II	
Analysis of Factors Contributing to Structural	
Failures	
A-Sea and Weather Conditions	39
B—Age of Vessel	42
C-Loading of Vessel	44
D-Repeated Casualties	46
PART III	
Susceptibility to Fracture of Different Ship	
Designs and Structural Details	
A-Shipbuilder and Type of Vessel	47
B—Liberty Ships	48
C-T2 Tankers	57
D-Victory Ships	61
E-Relative Contribution of Design and	
Workmanship	64
F-Discussion	64

PART IV							
Effectiveness of Certain Structural Alterations							
A-Summary c. Alterations Performed on							
Liberty Ships	65						
B-Hatch Corner Reinforcements Lib-							
erty Ships	65						
C-Crack Arrestors on Liberty Ships	69						
D-Gunwale Cuts on Liberty Ships	76						
E-Serrated Bilge Kcels.	76						
F-Underdeck Girders on T2 Tankers	76						
G-Bulkhead Intersections on T2 Tankers.	76						
PART V							
Steel Quality							
A-Routine Tests	79						
B-Notched Bar Tests	79						

CONCLUSIONS.				,												8	5

C—Chemical Analyses 81 D—Temperature and Notch Sensitivity 81

AF PENDIX

A-Merchant Marine Instructions 4-1-1	87
B-Tabulation of Data on Serious Casualties	88
C-Casualties Reported from 1 August 1945 to 1 April 1946	104
D-Casualties Reported up to 1 August 1945	106

PART I

Structural Failure History

A. Scope and Description of Report

In preparing this analysis, structural failure reports have been assimilated in accordance with a schedule designed to achieve the greatest possible accuracy in the trends indicated by the comparisons. The analysis concerns itself with American-built ships only and in some cases where probability comparisons are drawn, only American-built and American-operated ships are used. In all cases where a numerical analysis has been made, the failures enumerated have been the result of natural causes which might be anticipated as certain to occur in the normal life of any ship. War casualties, collisions, groundings and other abnormal casualties are not included in this analysis unless a particularly interesting structural failure resulted indirectly from the other damaging influence. On all such particular descriptions, a notation has been made to indicate that the failure was precipitated by unusual circumstances.

Data used in the analysis include everything pertaining to structural failures which has been submitted since the beginning of the Maritime Commission construction program. The totals are brought up to 1 April 1946, but it will be noted that the dates of individual parts of the report are independently specified.

Every effort has been made to see that percentages and relations are drawn between quantities that are comporable. In indicating the effects of various factors, an attempt has been made to keep other influences constant where possible. Where additional factors are suspected as influencing the results, such factors are mentioned. It is easy to make misleading comparisons with these data. As an example, attention has been drawn to the large number of casualties on ships with the name of William. Up to 1 August 1945, 73 or 5.3 percent of all reported casualties occurred on such ships. A more careful check shows that all of the 73 casualties were on Liberty ships and the list of Liberty ships shows 195 Williams in 2,710 ships or 7.2 percent. There were 978 casualtics reported on the Liberties, the name William is present in 7.5 percent of the cases and the percentage is quite reasonable.

The basic postulate that the predicted number of casualties will be proportional to length of service time and number of ships in service is accepted, other things being equal. For this reason, whenever a comparison is made between the service records of different groups of ships, the accumulated data are referred to the corresponding length of service time over which the particular group of vessels operated in accumulating the failures.

B. Definitions

Structural failure.—A structural failure may consist of either a fracture or a buckle. (Buckles were involved in very few of the casualties and in no case were they responsible for endangering the vessel. They have not been analyzed in this report.)

Casualty.—A casualty consists of one or more structural failures which have occurred on the same occasion, on a vessel which is afloat. Unless otherwise stated, the casualty occurred under normal operating conditions.

Class 1 fractures.—A Class 1 fracture is a fracture which has weakened the main hull structure so that the vessel is lost or is in a dangerous condition.

Class 2 fractures.—A Class 2 fracture is a fracture which does not endanger the ship but which involves the main hull structure at a location which experience has indicated is a potential source of a dangerous failure. Such locations include the strength deck, inner bottom, side and bottom shell and attachments thereto such as bilge keels and bulwarks.

Class 3 fractures.-Class 3 fractures include reported fractures which do not fail in Class 1 or 2.

Class 1 casualty.—A Class 1 casualty is a casualty involving at least one Class 1 fracture.

Class 2 casualty.—A Class 2 casualty is a casualty involving at least one Class 2 fracture and no Class 1 fractures.

Class 3 casualty.-A Class 3 casualty is a casualty involving Class 3 fractures only.

Ship month.—A ship month is a measuring unit for ship service experienced. It is equal to the service of 1 ship for 1 month.

or-Ten ship months=10 ships operating for 1 month.

C. Sources of Structural Failure Data

The structural failure data used to assemble this report came from several sources and were crosschecked and combined to obtain the greatest possible accuracy in the structural failure records. Reports of the Merchant Marine Inspectors of the United States Coast Guard were supplemented with data from the following agencies:

United States Maritime Commission

United States Navy Department

American Bureau of Shipping

British Admiraltv (Admiralty Ship Welding Committee)

War Shipping Administration

The technical divisions of the Coast Guard systematically examined, assembled, and reduced the reports to uniform terms for purposes of analysis. The Naval Engineering Division prepared previous statistical reports and this report was prepared oy the Merchant Marine Technical Division. The individual casualty reports are available for examination at Coast Guard Headquarters, Washington, D. C.

D. Numbers of Structural Failures and Ships Involved

To date (1 April 1946) there have been reported 1442 casualties which occurred on Maritime Commission-built ships, including ships on loan to foreign governments.

Casualties of all classes (1, 2, and 3) are included in the following:

Maritime Commission-built ships in United States operation only		Number of ships report- ed suffering casualty	Number of Casualtics
United States operation only916138'Vessels which suffered no casualty372'Vessels which suffered 1 casualty66'Vessels which suffered 2 casualties21'Vessels which suffered 3 casualties55'Vessels which suffered 4 casualties20'Vessels which suffered 5 casualties20'Vessels which suffered 5 casualties20'Vessels which suffered 6 casualties20'Vessels which suffered 7 casualties20'	(table I)	970	1442
Vessels which suffered 1 casualty660Vessels which suffered 2 casualties21Vessels which suffered 3 casualties52Vessels which suffered 4 casualties20Vessels which suffered 5 casualties20Vessels which suffered 6 casualties20Vessels which suffered 7 casualties20		916	1387
Vessels which suffered 1 casualty660Vessels which suffered 2 casualties21Vessels which suffered 3 casualties52Vessels which suffered 4 casualties20Vessels which suffered 5 casualties20Vessels which suffered 6 casualties20Vessels which suffered 7 casualties20	Vessels which suffered no casualty		3724
Vessels which suffered 3 casualties 55 Vessels which suffered 4 casualties 26 Vessels which suffered 5 casualties 26 Vessels which suffered 6 casualties 26 Vessels which suffered 7 casualties 26 Vessels which suffered 7 casualties 26			666
Vessels which suffered 4 casualties	Vessels which suffered 2 casualties		211
Vessels which suffered 5 casualties	Vessels which suffered 3 casualties		52
Vessels which suffered 6 casualties	Vessels which suffered 4 casualties		26
Vessels which suffered 7 casualties	Vessels which suffered 5 casualties.		6
	Vessels which suffered 6 casualties		2
Vessels which suffered 8 casualties	Vessels which suffered 7 casualties	. •	4
	Vessels which suffered 8 casualties		3
Total vessels	The last last		4694

Various parts of the study refer to different types of vessels. The numbers of merchant vessels of each type launched under the Maritime Commission program and remaining in merchant service are listed (table I).

Forty-seven casualties occurred on 36 United States-built vessels not constructed under the Maritime Commission program. Since there are no corresponding service data for these vessels, they have not been included in the analysis in parts II through V of this report.

E. Summary of Casualties by Classes

The 1,442 casualties on the Maritime Commissionbuilt ships have been classified according to the damage resulting and the extent to which the vessel was endangered.

Class 1	127
Class 2	739
Class 3	571
Unknown	· 5
Total	1,442

Fortunately, greater care is generally taken in preparing the reports on the more serious failures and so it has been possible to arrange a fairly complete summary of the Class 1 casualties, which appears in the appendix. This is followed by an alphabetical list of all casualties reported as occurring before 1 August 1945, and another alphabetical list of the casualties occurring from 1 August 1945 to 1 April 1946.

TAE	LE I
Accumulated Number of Vesse	els Launched Under Maritime
Commission Program and Res	maining in Merchant Service

Z-ET1-S-C3 62 62 62 Z-EC2-S-C2. 8 8 8 Z-EC2-S-C5. 28 36 EC2-S-AW1 22 24 Z.700 $2,710$ TANKERS: 11 81 54 T2 498 523 Tanker. 25 Reclassified to T2 or T3 T3 42 35 646 612 523 STANDARD CARGO: 646 612 C1A & C1B 160 160 C2 & C2 Refrig 251 243 C3 143 108 C4 1 16 R1-M-AV1 17 17		to 1 August 1945	to 1 February 19461
Z-ET1-S-C3 62 62 Z-EC2-S-C2. 8 8 Z-EC2-S-C5. 28 36 EC2-S-AW1 22 24 2,700 2,710 2,710 TANKERS: 1 54 T1 81 54 T2 498 523 Tanker. 25 Reclassified to T3 42 35 646 612 STANDARD CARGO: 160 C1A & C1B 160 C3 143 C3 1 C4 1 C5 595 595 558 COMBINATION: 595 Pass. & Cargo 6 C3 F $\hat{\alpha}$ C 18 14 27 MISCELLANEOUS: 16 C1-M-AV1 199 C1-M-AV1 199 24 16 N3 95 95 95 V4 49 49 49 94 36	EMERGENCY:		
Z-ET1-S-C3 62 62 62 Z-EC2-S-C5. 28 36 EC2-S-AW1 22 24 2,700 2,710 TANKERS: 1 22 T1 81 54 T2.C.S-AW1 22 24 2,700 2,710 2,710 TANKERS: 1 498 523 Tanker. 25 Reclassified to T2 or T3 T3 42 35 646 612 STANDARD CARGO: 160 160 160 160 C2 & C2 Refrig. 251 243 108 24 C3 143 108 64 612 STANDARD CARGO: 1 1 16 160 C2 & C2 Refrig. 251 243 1 1 C5 1 1 1 1 1 C5 1 1 1 1 1 1 C4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 C5 555	EC2-S-C1	2.580	2,580
Z-EC2-S-C2. 8 8 Z-EC2-S-C5. 28 36 EC2-S-AW1 22 24 2,700 2,710 TANKERS: 81 54 T2 498 523 Tanker. 25 Reclassified to T3 42 35 646 612 STANDARD CARGO: 160 C1A & C1B 160 C2 & C2 Refrig. 251 C3 143 C3 11 2 595 595 558 COMBINATION: 3 Pass. & Cargo. 6 C3 F & C 18 143 104 27 18 MISCELLANEOUS: 199 C1-M-AV1. 199 C1-M-AV1. 199 24 2 46 361 361 382 VICTORY: 248 VICTORY: 248 VICTORY: 248 361 383	Z-ET1-S-C3	1	f
Z-EC2-S-C5. 28 36 EC2-S-AW1 22 24 2,700 2,710 TANKERS: 81 54 T1 81 54 T2 498 523 Tanker. 25 Reclassified to T3 42 35 646 612 STANDARD CARGO: 646 C1A & C1B 160 C2 & C2 Refrig 251 243 23 C3 1 C4 1 C4 1 C5 1 C2 & C2 Refrig 251 243 26 C3 1 C4 1 C4 1 7 18 MISCELLANEOUS: 3 C1-M-AV1 199 C1-M-AV1 199 218 14 MISCELLANEOUS: 16 C1-M-AV1 199 24 49 49 49	Z-EC2-S-C2.	-	
EC2-S-AW1 22 24 $2,700$ $2,710$ TANKERS: 81 54 T2 498 523 Tanker. 25 Reclassified to T3 42 35 646 612 STANDARD CARGO: 160 160 C1A & C1B 160 160 C2 & C2 Refrig. 251 243 C3 143 108 C4 1 16 C5 1 2 R1-M-AV1 17 17 R2 1 12 595 558 558 COMBINATION: 595 558 Pass. & Cargo. 6 3 C1-M-AV1 17 17 R1 18 14 27 18 MISCELLANEOUS: 199 218 C1-M-AV1 2 4 L6 16 16 N3 95 95 V4 49 49 V1 1			-
TANKERS: 81 54 T1 25 Reclassified to Tanker. 25 Reclassified to T3 42 35 646 612 STANDARD CARGO: 160 160 C1A & C1B 160 160 C2 & C2 Refrig. 251 243 C3 143 108 C4 1 16 C5 1 2 R1-M-AV1 17 17 R2 11 12 Soft 595 558 COMBINATION: 595 558 Pass. & Cargo. 6 3 C2 P & C. 3 1 C3 F & C. 3 1 C1-M-AV1 199 218 C1-MT-BU1 2 4 L6 16 16 N3 95 95 V4 49 49 361 382 VICTORY: 248 272 VC2-S-AP4 1 1 383 </td <td>EC2-S-AW1</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td>	EC2-S-AW1	-	-
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		2,700	2,710
T2 498 523 Tanker. 25 Reclassified to T3 42 35 646 612 STANDARD CARGO: 160 160 C1A & C1B 160 160 C2 & C2 Refrig 251 243 C3 143 108 C4 1 16 C5 1 2 R1-M-AV1 17 17 R2 11 12 595 558 COMBINATION: 6 3 Pass. & Cargo. 6 3 C2 P & C 3 1 C3 F & C 18 14 27 18 MISCELLANEOUS: 199 218 C1-M-AV1 2 4 L6 16 16 N3 95 95 V4 49 49 361 382 414 ViCTORY: 248 272 V2-S-AP4 1 1 383 <td>TANKERS:</td> <td></td> <td> </td>	TANKERS:		
Tanker. 25 Reclassified to T2 or T3 T3 42 35 646 612 STANDARD CARGO: 160 C1A & C1B 160 C2 & C2 Refrig. 251 C3 143 C3 143 C4 1 R1-M-AV1 17 R2 31 C2 P & C. 3 C3 F & C. 18 MISCELLANEOUS: 16 C1-M-AV1. 17 18 14 27 18 MISCELLANEOUS: 16 C1-M-AV1. 2 49 49 49 49 49 49 361 382 VICTORY: 248 VC2-S-AP2 248 272-S-AP4 1 383 414		81	54
T3 T2 or T3 T3 42 35 646 612 STANDARD CARGO: 160 C1A & C1B 160 C2 & C2 Refrig. 251 C3 143 C3 1 C5 1 R1-M-AV1 17 R2 11 COMBINATION: 595 Pass. & Cargo. 6 C2 P & C. 3 C1-M-AV1 17 R1-M-AV1 17 R1 12 Stance 3 C2 P & C. 3 C1-M-AV1 18 143 14 27 18 MISCELLANEOUS: 199 C1-M-AV1 2 4 49 49 49 49 49 361 382 VICTORY: 248 VC2-S-AP4 1 383 414	T2	498	523
T3 42 35 646 612 STANDARD CARGO: CIA & CIB 160 C2 & C2 Refrig. 251 C3 143 C3 143 C3 1 C3 1 R1-M-AV1 17 Pass. & Cargo. 6 3 COMBINATION: Pass. & Cargo. 6 3 C1-M-AV1. 1 2"A L6 16 16 N3 1 C1-M-AV1. 2 4	Tanker.	25	(
STANDARD CARGO: 160 160 C1A & C1B 160 160 C2 & C2 Refrig 251 243 C3 143 108 C4 1 160 C5 1 2 R1-M-AV1 17 17 R2 11 12 S95 558 COMBINATION: 595 558 Pass. & Cargo 6 3 C2 P & C 3 1 C3 F $\hat{\alpha}$ C 18 14 27 18 MISCELLANEOUS: 199 218 C1-M-AV1 2 4 L6 16 16 N3 95 95 V4 49 49 49 49 49 VICTORY: 248 272 VC2-S-AP4 1 1 383 414 141	ТЗ	42	35
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		646	612
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			
C3 143 108 C4 1 16 C5 1 2 R1-M-AV1 17 17 R2 11 12 S95 558 COMBINATION: 595 Pass. & Cargo 6 C2 P & C 3 C3 F & C 18 MISCELLANEOUS: 199 C1-M-AV1 199 C1-M-AV1 2 L6 16 N3 95 V4 49 49 49 361 382 VICTORY: 248 VC2-S-AF3 134 134 141 VC2-S-AF4 1 383 414		160	160
C4 1 16 C5 1 2 R1-M-AV1 17 17 R2 11 12 595 558 COMBINATION: 6 3 Pass. & Cargo 6 3 C2 P & C. 3 1 C3 F & C. 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 16 N1SCELLANEOUS: 199 218 C1-M-AV1. 2 4 L6 16 16 N3. 95 95 V4 49 49 361 382 VICTORY: 248 272 VC2-S-AP4 1 1 383		251	243
C5 1 2 R1-M-AV1 17 17 R2 11 12 595 558 COMBINATION: 595 Pass. & Cargo. 6 C2 P & C 3 C3 F $\hat{\alpha}$ C 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 MISCELLANEOUS: 199 C1-M-AV1 199 C1-MT-BU1 2 4 49 49 49 49 49 49 49 49 49 41 383		143	108
R1-M-AV1 17 17 17 R2 11 12 595 558 COMBINATION: 6 3 Pass. & Cargo. 6 3 C2 P & C. 3 1 C3 F $\hat{\alpha}$ C. 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 16 16 N3 95 95 V4 49 49 361 382 272 VICTORY: 248 272 VC2-S-AF3. 134 141 383 414	C4	1	16
R2 11 12 595 558 COMBINATION: 595 Pass. & Cargo. 6 C2 P & C 3 C3 F $\hat{\alpha}$ C 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 MISCELLANEOUS: 199 C1-M-AV1 2 4 2 4 49 49 49 49 49 361 382 VICTORY: 248 VC2-S-AP2 248 VICTORY: 248 VC2-S-AP3 134 1 1 383 414	C5	1	2
11 12 595 558 COMBINATION: 6 Pass. & Cargo. 6 $C2 P & C$	R1-M-AV1	17	17
COMBINATION: 6 3 Pass. & Cargo. 6 3 C2 P & C. 3 1 C3 Γ $\tilde{\alpha}$ C. 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 MISCELLANEOUS: C1-M-AV1. 199 C1-MT-BU1. 2 4 46 N3. 95 V4 49 49 49 49 49 VICTORY: 248 VC2-S-AP2 248 VC2-S-AP3 134 14 1 383 414	R2	11	12
Pass. & Cargo. 6 3 C2 P & C. 3 1 C3 Γ $\tilde{\alpha}$ C. 18 14 27 18 14 27 18 14 MISCELLANEOUS: 199 218 C1-M-AV1. 2 4 L6. 16 16 N3. 95 95 V4 49 49 VICTORY: 248 272 VC2-S-AP2. 248 272 VC2-S-AP3. 134 141 VC2-S-AP4. 1 1 383 414		595	558
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			
C3 $\hat{\Gamma} \hat{\alpha} C$ 18 14 27 18 MISCELLANEOUS: 199 218 C1-MT-BU1 2 4 L6 16 16 N3 95 95 V4 49 49 VICTORY: 248 272 VC2-S-AF2 248 272 V2-S-AF4 1 1 383 414		1	
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		1 -	
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$C3 \Gamma \& C \dots$	18	14
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		27	18
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			_
N3		1	
V4 49 49 361 382 VICTORY: 248 VC2-S-AP2 248 VC2-S-AF3 134 VC2-S-AP4 1 383 414			
361 382 VICTORY: 248 VC2-S-AP2 248 VC2-S-AF3 134 VC2-S-AP4 1 383 414			
VICTORY: 248 272 VC2-S-AF3 134 141 VC2-S-AF4 1 1 383 414	V4 .	49	49
VC2-S-AP2 248 272 VC2-S-AΓ3 134 141 VC2-S-AF4 1 1 383 414		361	382
VC2-S-AΓ3 VC2-S-AF4			
VC2-S-AP4 1 1 383 414			
383 414		1	
	VC2-S-AP4	1	1
Total 4,712 4,6941		383	414
	Total	4,712	4,6941

¹ Between 1 August 1945 and 1 February 1946, 279 vessels were removed from merchant service to be permanently operated by the armed forces. These were excluded from the figures.

F. Ships Which Broke in Two or Were Lost

Seven vessels have been lost:

Name	Date of casualty	Remarks		
THOMAS HOOKER	5 Mar. 1943	Abandoned.		
J. L. M. CURRY.	7 Mar. 1943	Abandoned.		
JOHN P. GAINES	24 Nov. 1943	Broke in two; aban- doned.		
JOSEPH SMITH	9 Jan. 1944	Abandoned.		
SAMUEL DEXTER	21 Jan. 1944	Abandoned.		
JOEL R. POINSETT	4 Mar. 1944	Broke in two; stern por- tion salvaged.		
SACKETT'S HARBOR	1 Mar. 1946	Breke in two; stern por- tion salvaged.		

Four other ships broke in two but were not lost:

Name	Date of casualty
Schenectady	15 Jan. 1943.
Esso Manhattan.	29 Mar, 1943.
VALERI CHKALOV	11 Dec. 1943.
DONBASS III	17 Feb. 1946.

Details of the above casualties will be found in figures 1 through 23.

In 14 additional cases, the entire strength deck w.s fractured and in one other case, the entire bottom.

G. Lives Lost Due to Structural Failure

A total of 26 lives have been lost as a result of the structural failures. In the case of the *Donbass III*, fifteen persons lost their lives. In the case of the *John P. Gaines*, 11 people are missing after successfully embarking in a lifeboat.

H. Casualties Occurring Each Month

Figure 24 shows the casualties reported each month and indicates the peaks which occur during the winter months of each year. The dotted line indicates the corresponding number of Maritime Commissionbuilt ships which were afloat and in operation. The steady increase shows the growth of our merchant marine and the slight drop at the end is the result of transferring many ships from the merchant service to permanent military operation. The curves indicate clearly that the measures adopted have been successful in suppressing the serious epidemic of structural failures reflected in the first peak.

REPORT OF STRUCTURAL FAILURE OF INSPECTED VESSEL UNITED STATES COAST GUARD BAYCG-2752

		DESCRIPTION	OF VESSEL	This report includes all available information up to: 1 Octo 1944 (Date)
THOMAS HOOKER		0FFICIAL NG. 242094	TYPE (Dry Cargo, Passenger, etc.) Dry Cargo Vessel	H.C. DESIGN BC2-S-C1
NEW England Ship	building Corpo	ration	BUILDER'S HULL NO.	DATE COMPLETED
War Shipping Adm	inistration		American-West Afric	oan Line
		EXTENT OF	WELDING	
YOS SIDE SHELL SEANS				YOB DECK SEAMS
YOB SIDE SHELL BUTTS	Yes COTTON SEAMS	i	YOS INNER BOTTON SEANS	Yes DECK BUTTS
NO FRAMES TO SIDE SHELL	Yes BOTTON BUTTS	\$	YOS LANER BOTTOM BUTTS	YOU BEAKS TO DECK
Y43 BULKHEADS	Yes FLOORS TO SH	(ELL	Yes FLOORS TO IRMER BOTTOM	YO3 DECK TO SHELL
			DUNDING FAILURE 1(s of ship's loading)	
DATE OF FAILURE	TINE COOF OW	SHIP'S LOCAT	Tare of Net Tol	
5 March, 1943 SHIP'S SPEED	2025 GMT		Westbound in Nor	ORAFT EVO. ORIFT AFT
About 9 knots				141 221
SEA CONDITION Rough	WEATHER		DIRECTION OF WAVES WITH RESPECT TO SH	
with heavy swells	Heavy		n starboard bei	AM VATER TEMPERATURE
7	WST		About 22°	6949 69
(Include sketch of fr		ESCRIPTION C		er structural features)
APPARENT STARTING POINT				
		Uakno	X D	
GENERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF	FAILURE, INCLUDING ENOWN	CONTRIBUTORY FACT	ORS	
side abreast of and from the bul A crack from the the bulwark and	#3 hold were o wark to the ha after starboa down to tween hold. These ng. n still water	cracked fr toh coami rd side o deck abre cracks we 2 55,800	pper deck and shell p om the bulwark down to ng, including the lon f the hatch coaming en ast of the dry store of re in the center of the Ft. x Tons Hog av ² Tension.	o tween deck, gitudinal members. xtended out to room about thirty
				CLASSIFICATION OF FAILURE Cracked deak
			DN OF VESSEL	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
		AIT on 6 M	arch, 1943, and when	last seen
she had a list c signed (Jace and Pitte)			DISTRICT	
2		Figu	are 1.	(*)

the the the second stranger

-inclusion .

٩

E.

REPORT OF STRUCTURAL FAILURE OF INSPECTED VESSEL UNITED STATES COAST GUARD

	DE	SCRIPTION C	DF VESSEL	This report includes all available information up to: 1 03t., 1944 (Date)
NAME T T DE OTTODEE		07FICIAL NO. 241520	TYP. (Dry Cargo, Passenger, etc.)	H.C. DESIGN
J. L. M. CURRY		241020	Dry Cargo Vessel	BC2-S-C1
Alabama DD & SB C	ompany	······	231	15 May, 1942
War Shipping Admi	nistration		Lykes Brothers SS Co.	, Ino.
		EXTENT OF	WELDING	
Y68 SIDE SHELL SEANS				Yes DECK SEAMS
YOB SIDE SHELL BUTTS	Yes BOTTON SEARS		YOS INNER BOTTOM SEAMS	YOB DECK BUTTS
NO FRAMES TO SIDE UNCLL	YOS BUTTON BUTTS		YOB INKER GOTTOM BUTTS	YOR JEANS TO DECK
YOB BULKHEADS	YOB FLOORS TO SHEL	L	Yes FLOORS TO LANER BOTTOM	TOS DECK TO SHELL
			UNDING FAILURE ls of ship's loading)	
DATE OF FAILURE	TINE	SHIP'S LOCATI	ON CON	
7 March, 1943	1320	Lat. 70°	-44' N., Long. 00°-24'	BGreenland Sea
SHIP'S SPEED	COURSE	L		DRAFT FWD. DRAFT AFT
5 knots	210 ⁰			121-0" 191-0"
SEA CONDITION	WEATHER		DIRCCTION OF WAYES WITH RESPECT TO SHIP	
Very high seas	Heavy	1		
WIND FORCE	WIND DIRECTION		LIR TEMPERATURE	WATER TEMPERATURE
10 knots North and West 14°-30°				
		SCRIPTION OF		<u> </u>
(Include sketch of fr			lative location of welds and other	structural features)
APPARENT STARTING POINT				
The fracture in the upper		gan from	the corners of #3 and	#4 hatches
GENERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF	FAILURE, INCLUDING KNOWN LON	THIBUTONY FA. TO	PS,	
upper deck p side from th at the after the shell pl	lating, bulwark o forward ends of ends of the sam ating to below f	and side of #3 and ne hatche t • freen	sea and split in four shell fractured on the #4 hatches and on the s. The cracks extended decks. The cracks di is in the plating, which	e starboard port side d down through d not occur
	the working of			· · · ·
	ont in still wate own of dock = 50			at #3 Hold
				CLASSIFICATION OF FAILURE Crackod dock
C		DISPOSITIO	N OF VESSEL	
		(Pepaired,	lost, etc.]	
The vessel w	as abandoned by	1115 on	8 March, 1943, and sur	ık by

shells from an allied vessel.

Figure 2.

**

and the second states and the

under -- al "date attende

23

- -

~ ~

REPORT OF STRUCTURAL FAILURE OF INSPECTED VESSEL UNITED STATES COAST GUARD #AVCG-2752

								rt includes a Information	
			DE	SCRIPTION C	F VESSE	L		, 1944	(Date)
AME				OFFICIAL BO	TYPE (De	y Cargo, Passenger, etc.)	}	N.C. DESIGN	
the second s	P. GAINES			243861		Cargo Vessel		BC2-S-C1	
NUILDER		•			BUILDER'S	725	DATE COMPLETED		
Orego	on Shipbuildi	ng cor	poration		OPERATOR			8 July,	40
	Shipping Admi	nistra	tion		ł	kland Transports	tion Co)., Inc.	
				EXTENT OF	WELDING				
Yes	SIGE SWELL SEAMS						Үея	DECH SEAMS	
Yes	SIDE SHELL BUTTS	Үев	BOTTOM SEAMS		Yes	IPHER BOTTOM SEAMS	Yes	DECK BUTTS	
N)	FRAMES TO STOE SHELL	Yes	SOTTON BUTTS		Yes	INNEP BOTTOM BUTTS	Yes	BEANS TO DECK	
Yes	BULKHEADS	Yes	FLOORS TO SHEL	•	Yes	FLOORS TO INNER BOTTOM	Yes	DECK TO SHELL	
			CIRCUMSTA Attach all av	NCES SURROL aslable detas					
DATE OF FAILU	RE	TINE	0241	SHIP'S LOCATI	°" 55.	-07 N. 155-30 1	<u>.</u>		
24 NOV	. 1943	#10 ti COURSE	me zone	40 miles	B bear	-07 N. 155-30 M ing 175° true fro	Om Chirl	COLL DRAFT AF	
9 knots					181-0	0* 100	חיך 🔤		
SEA CONDITION WEATHER DIRECTION OF WAVES WITH RESPECT TO SHIP									
Long ground swell Fairly clear 15° - 20° off port bow									
5-6 Beaufort ENB 40° - 45° F About 40° F									
DESCRIPTION OF FAILURE (Include sketch of fracture showing starting point and relative location of welds and other structural features)									
APPARENT STAR									
									1
N	ear Fwd. corr	ers #3	hatch be	tween Fra	ames #	74 and 75			
	-								1
	DRY AND DESCRIPTION OF	P.11.000							
¥.	t about 2200	on 23	November,	1943, 10	oud not	ises were heard l	out the		
8	ource could r	ot be	located i	n the day	rk. At	t about 0241 on a	24 Nov.	,	
1:	945, an excer	tional	sea stru	ok the po	ort bor	and boarded nee	ir the	_	
11	orwara gun.	The Ir	acture in	mediatel	y prope	agated. It append	irs that	t	
	mejje sug tha No vosadi Dro	Follo	wing gwol	i i passi	80 0111 Folo Fo	ner over or between or between off the form	en .	د	
A.	ll orear and r	9 10110 1986010	ALE MOLT	on the e	fter e	nd. Survivors w	rara en		
11	p by U. S. A	my Tra	neporte e	ant for	·]] m/	en, including si:	* avj44 1.6 bj01	694 87	
1	n one lifebos	t, whi	oh was lo	3t.			. OVIUL	~~ 2	
	ending moment	-) Ft. :	x Tons Hogat 7	43 Hold		
	tress in orm						CLASSIFIC	tion of failur	
				DISPOSITIO	N OF VES	SEL		160 144 OW	
				Repaired					

The bow is believed to have sunk. The stern is aground on Big Koniuji Island. SIGNED (Some and fitle) DISTRICT (*)

Figure 3.

20

THE A DESIGNATION OF

24

Ş.

.



;

FIGURE 4.—Stern portion of N. N. John P. Games.

REPORT OF STRUCTURA'L FAILURE OF INSPECTED VESSEL UNITED STATES COAST GUARD

1

ŵ, .

10.30

	D	ESCRIPTION ()F VESSE	L		ote information up	to Dates
IAME	•	OFFICIAL NO.	TYPE (Dr	y Cargo, Passenger etc.)		H.C. DESIGN	-
JOSEPH SMITH		243593	Dry	Cargo Vessel		EC2-S-C1	
Permanente Metals	Corporation :	#2	BU.LDER'	; HULL HO. 119		DATE COMPLETED 4 June, 1	43
KNER		<u>,, -</u>	OPERATOR				
War Shipping Admin	nistration			ka Packers Asso	<u>iatio</u>	a	
		EXTENT OF	WELDING				
Yes SIDE SHELL SEAMS					Yes	DECK SEAMS	
YOB SIDE SHELL BUTTS	COS BOTTON SEAKS		Yes	NNER BOTTOM SEAMS	Yes	DECK BUTTS	
NO FRAMES TO STOE SHELL Y	COB SOTTON BUTTS		Yes	HNER BOTTOM BUTTS	Yes	BEANS TO DECK	
YOB BULKHEADS	TOS FLOORS TO SHEE	u	Yes	FLOCRS TO INNER BOTTOM	Yes	DECK TO SHELL	
	CIRCUMST (Atsach all av	ANCES SURRO					
ATE OF FAILURE TIN		SHIP'S LOCATE		out lat. 44° -3)' N-		
9 January, 1944	1415	1		W in North		ic	
NIP'S SPEED COUL	RSE				DRAFT	departure	
7-2 knots	THER		018667108	OF WAVES WITH RESPECT TO SHI	71-	0" 21'-0"	
Heavy	Very heavy					-11	
	D DIRECTION		AIR TENPER			TEMPERATURE	
6-9	STA to W					50 ⁰	
deck. At 1400 GCT on 9 Ja down heavily with 1 plating at the after occurred in the giv 0730 GGT on 11 Jan the starboard insider alleyway extending port side, through turned forward. La deck. Tween deck 1 developed across to welding. Loading (anuary, the v her fore foot er starboard rder and plat uary the thir de after corn to forward s bulwarks, do ongitudinal g plating orack he center of	essel was causing corner #2 ing at th d fractur er of mid tarboard wn side p irders fr ed simila a plate c	pound a frac hatch e form coccu ship d corner blating cacture r to t pr stif	ture in the gird At 1600 GCT and port corner ared in upper d lookhouse to ent of #4 hatch, a to light load d in line with that on main dec fener and not i	ler an anothe of #3 eck pl rance cross line a break k. Al	d deck r fracture hatch. At ating at of starboard the deck to nd then on upper	
		DISPOSITIO					
		(Repaired,			11 - 2 -		
The yessel was aba sinking condition	ndoned at 140 by escort yes		anuary	, 1944, and sne		• 	
		Figure	5.			((+)

This report includes all

•

SAMUEL DEXTER (2) 243200 ILOUR Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc. Mar Shipping Administration 0" EXTENT OF WELL War Shipping Administration 0" EXTENT OF WELL Yes SIGE SHELL SEAMS Yes SIGE SHELL Yes Yes SIGE SHELL Yes Yes SIGE SHELL SEAMS Yes SHELE SUBSCIES SUBROUNDING ACCES SUBROUNDING (Attach all av., liable details of the of failuate Yes SUBROUNDING (Attach all av., liable details of the of failuate Yes SUBROUNDING (Attach all av., liable details of the of failuate Yes SUBROUNDING (Attach all av., liable details of the of failuate Yes SUBROUNDING (Attach all av., liable details of the of failuate Yes SUBROUNDING (Attach all av., liable details of the of failuate Yes SUBROUNDI	Dry Cargo, Passenger, etc.) Pry Crargo Vessel R'S HULL NO. 42 98 eterman Steamshi IG (HNEE BOTTON SEAMS ILLORS TO INNER BOTTOM FAILURE hof waves with respect to se	Y08 DECK SEALIS Y08 DECK SEALIS Y08 DECK BUTTS Y08 DECK TO DECK Y08 DECK TO SHELL P - 451 W DRAFT FND. DRAFT FND. DRAFT AFT St-8h 21 *		
SAMUEL DEXTER (2) 243200 ILOUR Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc. War Shipping Administration Or EXTENT OF WELL War Shipping Administration EXTENT OF WELL Yes Slot SHILL SCANS Woldod Yes Slot SHILL SCANS Yes SUTTON SCANS Y Yes Suttreads Yes Suttreads Y Yes Suttreads Yes Suttreads Y Yes Suttreads Suttreads Suttreads Y <	Y CArgo Vessel a's HULL NO. 42 00 0 terman Steamshi 16 - ***(F POTTON SEAMS - ***(F POTTON SEAMS - ***(F POTTON BUTTS - FLOORS TO INNER BOTTON FAILURE http's Looding) 8* N.; Long. 225 * OF WAYES VITH RESPECT TO SEA	EC2-S-C1 DATE COMPLETED 15 Apr., 142 P Agency, Ltd. Yes Deck stans Yes De		
Notes Notes Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc. Notes Mar Shipping Administration Or EXTENT OF WELL Yes Stot SHILL STANS Yes Stot SHILL STANS <td>A'S HUIL NO. 42 58 eterman Steamshi IG (***EF SOTTON SEAMS (***EF SOTTON BUTTS FLOORS TO INNER BOTTOM FAILURE http:/s. Long. 225 * No; Long. 225 * OF WAYES VITH RESPECT TO SU</td> <td>DATE COMPLETED 15 Apr., '43 .p Agency, Ltd. Yes Ves Ves</td>	A'S HUIL NO. 42 58 eterman Steamshi IG (***EF SOTTON SEAMS (***EF SOTTON BUTTS FLOORS TO INNER BOTTOM FAILURE http:/s. Long. 225 * No; Long. 225 * OF WAYES VITH RESPECT TO SU	DATE COMPLETED 15 Apr., '43 .p Agency, Ltd. Yes Ves		
Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc. or Mar Shipping Administration EXTENT OF WELL EXTENT OF WELL Yes SLOT SHILL SCANS Yes SLOT SHILL SCANS Woldod Yes SLOT SHILL SCANS Woldod Yes SLOT SHILL SCANS Yes SLOT SHILL SCANS Yes Yes SLOT SHILL SCANS Yes SLOT SKILL Yes Yes FRAMES TO SLOT SHELL Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes SULVELADS Yes FLOOPS TO SKILL Yes CIRCUMSTANCES SUBROUNDI Interfallow Interfallow Yes CIRCUMSTANCES SUBROUNDI Interfallow SULVELADS Yes Yes SULVELADS Yes FLOOPS TO SKILL Yes Yes SULVELADS SULVELADS SULVELADS Yes If of fallowet SULVELADS SULVELADS </td <td>42 DR Determan Steamshi IG '***EF POTTON SEANS '***EF POTTON BUTTS FLOORS TO INNER BOTTOM FAILURE http:/s Long. 225 No; Long. 225 * No; Long. 225</td> <td>15 Apr., *4: .p Agency, Ltd. Yes Ves Ves</td>	42 DR Determan Steamshi IG '***EF POTTON SEANS '***EF POTTON BUTTS FLOORS TO INNER BOTTOM FAILURE http:/s Long. 225 No; Long. 225 * No; Long. 225	15 Apr., *4: .p Agency, Ltd. Yes Ves		
War Shipping Administration or EXTENT OF WEL Yes SIDE SHELL SEARS Yes SIDE SHELL Yes Yes SIDE SHELL Yes Yes SUBE SUBROUNDI (Attack all available details of the colspan="2">CIRCUNSTANCES SUBROUNDI (Attack all available details of the colspan="2">SUBROUNDI (Attack all available details of the colspan="2">SUBROUNDI (Attack all available details of the colspan="2">CIRCUNSTANCES SUBROUNDI (Attack all available details of the colspan="2">SUBROUNDI (Attack all available details of the colspan="2">CIRCUNSTANCES SUBROUNDI (Attack all available details of the colspan="2">CIRCUNSTANCES SUBROUNDI (Attack all available details of the colspan="2">CIRCUNSTANCES SUBROUNDI (Attack all available d	eterman Steamshi IG '***EF SOTTON SEANS I***EF BOTTON BUTTS FLOORS TO INNER BOTTOM FAILURE http:s loading! 8' N.; Long. 22 ^C * OF WAYES VITH RESPECT TO S	Y08 DECK SEALIS Y08 DECK TO SHELL Y08 DECK TO SHELL P - 451 W DRAFT FND. DRAFT FND. DRAFT AFT St-8h 21 *		
EXTENT OF WEL Hull all Woldod Yes stot smill stans Yes stot smill stans Yes famils to stot smill Yes bottow stans Yes famils to stot smill Yes for stans Yes famils to stot smill Yes for smill Yes CIRCUMSTANCES SURROUNDI (Attach all available details o CIRCUMSTANCES SURROUNDI (Attach all available details o CIRCUMSTANCES SURROUNDI (Attach all available details o The of failuot 21 Jan., 1944 COURSE High seas No force Bouther and the stand of the output of the of failuot (Include shetch of fracture should claring found and relation The of failuot for the of fracture should claring found and relation The of failuot for the of fracture should claring for and relation The of stand of failure, including to one of the or ack starting exactly in corner. Aft port corner point uncertain. At 2100 cn 21 January, deck or acked opposit with storn to sea. At 2116 deck cracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deok deck port and starboard. The orack acrose corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was for ecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24	IG 'NHEF BOTTOH SEAMS INHER BOTTOH BUTTS FLOORS TO INNER BOTTOM FAILURE http:s.Long. 225 N OF WAYES VITH RESPECT TO SU	Y08 DECK SEALIS Y08 DECK SEALIS Y08 DECK SEALIS Y08 DECK SEALIS Y08 DECK TO SHELL Y08 DECK TO SHELL P - 451 W DRAFT FND. DRAFT FND. DRAFT AFT St-8h 21 *		
Yes SIDE SHELL SEARS Wolded Yes SIDE SHELL BUTTS Yes BOTTOM SEARS Y Yes SIDE SHELL BUTTS Yes BOTTOM SEARS Y Yes FRAMES TO SIDE SHELL Yes Yes FOTTOM SEARS Y Yes BULKMEADS Yes FOTTOM SEARS Y CORDITION FAILURE TIME SMEPT'S CORTION FAILURE 21 Jan., 1944 COURSE COURSE Bad weather OTHE High seas Bad weather OTHE ATHON OF FAILURE OTHE High seas Bad weather MINE OTHE ATHON OF FAILURE NEW Include sketch of fracture showing starting found and relating DESCRIPTION OF FAILURE NEW DESCRIPTION OF FAILURE Include sketch of fracture showing starting fount and relating DESCRIPTION OF FAILURE<	INNER BOTTON BUTTS FLOORS TO INNER BOTTON FAILURE http:s loading! 8' N.; Long. 225 N of waves vith respect to so	Yes DECK BUTTS Yes DECK BUTTS Yes DECK TO DECK Yes DECK TO SHELL P - 45! W DRAFT FND. DRAFT FND. DRAFT AFT St-8h 21 *		
Yes SIDE SHELL SEARS Wolded Yes SIDE SHELL BUTTS Yes BOTTOM SEARS Y Yes SIDE SHELL BUTTS Yes BOTTOM SEARS Y Yes FRAMES TO SIDE SHELL Yes Yes FOTTOM SEARS Y Yes BULKMEADS Yes FOTTOM SEARS Y CORDITION FAILURE TIME SMEPT'S CORTION FAILURE 21 Jan., 1944 COURSE COURSE Bad weather OTHE High seas Bad weather OTHE ATHON OF FAILURE OTHE High seas Bad weather MINE OTHE ATHON OF FAILURE NEW Include sketch of fracture showing starting found and relating DESCRIPTION OF FAILURE NEW DESCRIPTION OF FAILURE Include sketch of fracture showing starting fount and relating DESCRIPTION OF FAILURE<	INNER BOTTON BUTTS FLOORS TO INNER BOTTON FAILURE http:s loading! 8' N.; Long. 225 N of waves vith respect to so	Yes DECK BUTTS Yes DECK BUTTS Yes DECK TO DECK Yes DECK TO SHELL P - 45! W DRAFT FND. DRAFT FND. DRAFT AFT St-8h 21 *		
Yes FRAMES TO SIDE SHELL Yes FOTTON BUTTS Y Yes BULKHEADS Yes FLOOPS TO SHELL Y CIRCUMSTANCES SURROUNDI (Attach all ownitable details o Iff of FAILURE TIME SHIP'S LOCATION 21 Jan., 1944 2100 Lat. 54° - Iff's state Course Course Hove to 47 RPM United Kingdom to New Yor A condition WEATHER Disc High seas Bad weather Oilet No Forward or fracture showing starting point and relation Include shetch of fracture showing starting point and relation Point uncertain. DESCRIPTION OF FA Include shetch of fullet. Include show (Ontention of relation of fullet. Include show (Ontention of fullet. Include. Include show (Ontentinot of fullet. Include. Incl	INNER BOTTON BUTTS FLOORS TO INNER BOTTON FAILURE http:s loading! 8' N.; Long. 225 N of waves vith respect to so	Yes BEAMS TO DECK Yes DECK TO SHELL		
Yes Hon Yes FLOOPS TO SMELL Yes Yes BULKPEADS Yes FLOOPS TO SMELL Yes CIRCUNSTANCES SURROUNDI (Attach all awailable details of (Attach all awailable details of (Include soft) TIME SHIP'S LOCATION (Attach all awailable details of (Attach all awailable details of (Attach all awailable details of (Attach all awailable details of (Attach all awailable details) High seas Bad weather Dist (Attach all awailable details) Nore Vino Distance Wiss Bad weather Dist (Attach all awailable details) Dist (Attach all awailable details) Nore Bad weather Dist (Attach all awailable details) Nore Bad weather Dist (Attach all available details) Nore Bad weather Dist (Attach all available details) Nore Bad weather Dist (Attach all available details) Nore Bad weather Attach all available details) Nore Bad weather Starting available details) Nore Bad weather Bad weather Nore Bad weather Starting available d	FLOORS TO INNER BOTTON FAILURE http:s.loading/ 8* N.; Long. 22 ⁴ N OF WAYES VITH RESPECT TO ST	Y 08 DECK TO SHELL P - 45' W DRAFT FXD. DRAFT AFT S'-8h 21'		
CIRCUMSTANCES SURROUNDI (Attach all avestable details of (Attach all avestable details of (Attach all avestable details of (Attach all avestable details of 21 Jan., 1944 21 Jan., 1944 TIME 21 Jan., 1944 2100 Lat. 54° IP'S SPEED Eove to 47 RPM United Kingdom to New Yor A condition WEATHYR High seas Bad weather No force VIND DIRECTION B WSW DESCRIPTION OF FA (Include sketch of fracture showing starting foint and relating Presenting exactly in corner. Aft port corner point uncertain. MEAT HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF FAILURE. INCLUDES HOW CONTRIBUTORY FATORY At 2100 on 21 January, deck oracked opposite with stern to sea. At 2116 deck oracked at WAS made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the weathy in oreasing and opened and closed was foreoast co botween 1530 and 1630 on 24	FAILURE TIP'S loading! 8' No; Long. 22 N OF WAYES VITH RESPECT TO SI	2 - 455 W DRAFT FWD. St-8t 210		
(Attach all aveilable details of	81 No; Long. 224	DRAFT FWD. DRAFT AFT 9+-8h 21+		
If of FAILURE TIME SHIP'S LOCATION 21 Jan., 1944 2100 Lat. 54° - IP'S SPEED COURSE Lat. 54° - Howe to 47 RPM United Kingdom to New Yor A CONDITION WEATHER DIRECTION High seas Bad weather DIRECTION NO FORCE WIND DIRECTION AIR Bad weather DESCRIPTION OF FA (Include sketch of fracture showing starting point and relation Point uncertain. DESCRIPTION OF FA Point uncertain. Discurre showing starting point and relation Point uncertain. Discurre showing starting found of failure. At 2100 on 21 January, deck cracked opposit with stern to sea. At 2116 deck cracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the two during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24	8 No; Long. 224	DRAFT FWD. DRAFT AFT 9+-8h 21+		
Interference Course Hove to 47 RPM United Kingdom to New Yor A condition MEATHER High seas Bad weather No force Wind Direction B WSW DESCRIPTION OF FA (Include sketch of fracture showing starting fount and relation TARKAT STAPTING POINT Forward corners of #3 and #4 hatches port a starting exactly in corner. Aft port corner point uncertain. INTERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION of failure. Including theory contained the two cracked at was made on 22 January, deck oracked opposit with stern to sea. At 2116 deck cracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast co botween 1530 and 1630 on 24	N OF WAVES VITH RESPECT TO S	DRAFT FWD. DRAFT AFT 9+-8h 21+		
Howe to 47 RPM United Kingdom to New Yor A CONDITION VEATHING Disc High seas Bad weather Disc High seas Bad weather Disc No force VIND DIRECTION AIR B DESCRIPTION OF FA OTHER CONST DESCRIPTION OF fracture showing starting point and relating TAKENT STAPTING POINT Forward corners of #3 and #4 hatches port a starting exactly in corner. Aft port corner point undertains INTERCENT AND DISCRIPTION OF FAILURE. INCLUDING ENDER CONTRIBUTORY FAILORS At 2100 on 21 January, deck oracked opposite with stern to sea. At 2116 deck cracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast co botween 1530 and 1630 on 24		91-8h 211		
A CONDITION VEATHER Diff High seas Bad weather Diff No force VIED DIFFECTION AIR B WSW DESCRIPTION OF FA DESCRIPTION OF FA (Include sketch of fracture showing starting fount and relating formed and relating oxactly in corner. Aft port corner Forward corners of #3 and #4 hatches port a starting exactly in corner. Aft port corner point uncertain. WEATHER FORM OF FAILURE. INCLUDING KNOWN CONTRIBUTORY FAILURE MERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF FAILURE. INCLUDING KNOWN CONTRIBUTORY FAILURE At 2100 on 21 January, deck oracked opposite with stern to sea. At 2116 deck oracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast co botween 1530 and 1630 on 24				
No force NIND DIRECTION AIR B WSW DESCRIPTION OF FA Office sketch of fracture skowing starting fount and relating Include sketch of fracture skowing starting fount and relating Forward corners of #3 and #4 hatches port a starting exactly in corner. Aft port corner point uncertaine. INTERAL MISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF FAILURE. INCLUDING KNOWN CONTENDUTORY FAILURE FOR CONTENDUTORY FAILURE. At 2100 on 21 January, deck oracked opposite with stern to sea. At 2116 deck oracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast co botween 1530 and 1630 on 24	7 matures are atom	board bow		
B B B B B B B CESCRIPTION OF FA (Include sketch of fracture showing starting found and relating Forward corners of #3 and #4 hatches port a starting exactly in corner. Aft port corner point uncertain. EXEAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF FAILURE. INCLUDING KNOWN CONTRIBUTORY FAILURE At 2100 on 21 January, deck oracked opposite with stern to sea. At 2116 deck oracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24	3 points on star			
DESCRIPTION OF FA (Include sketch of fracture showing starting found and relating Forward corners of #3 and #4 hatches port a starting exactly in corner. Aft port corner point uncertain. MERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF FAILURE. INCLUDING KNOWN CONTRIBUTORY FAILORS At 2100 on 21 January, deck oracked opposite with stern to sea. At 2116 deck oracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24	CE WIND DIRECTION AIR TEMPERATURE WATER TEMPERAT RE			
(Include sketch of fracture showing starting fount and relating Forward corners of #3 and #4 hatches port a starting exactly in corner. Aft port corner point uncertains interfal mistors and description of failure, including shows contained to prosite with stern to sea. At 2116 deck cracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast co botween 1530 and 1630 on 24	400	<u> </u>		
Forward corners of #3 and #4 hatches port a starting exactly in corner. Aft port corner point uncertain. Intral mistorr and piscemption of failure. Including the containation of failure. Including the containation failure. At 2100 cn 21 January, deck oracked opposit with stern to sea. At 2116 deck cracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24		er structures)		
starting exactly in corner. Aft port corner point uncertain. At 2100 on 21 January, deck oracked opposit with stern to sea. At 2116 deck oracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24				
starting exactly in corner. Aft port corner point uncertain. At 2100 on 21 January, deck oracked opposit with stern to sea. At 2116 deck oracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24				
starting exactly in corner. Aft port corner point uncertain. At 2100 on 21 January, deck oracked opposit with stern to sea. At 2116 deck oracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24	starboard, all	four cracks		
At 2100 on 21 January, deck oracked opposite with stern to sea. At 2116 deck oracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24				
At 2100 on 21 January, deck oracked opposite with stern to sea. At 2116 deck oracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	₩ ₩		
with stern to sea. At 2116 deck oracked at was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24	Ha b b b b b b b b b b	. .		
was made on 22 January, and the two cracks hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24	#3 hatch and ver	sel was turned		
hatch were found to extend across the deck deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24				
deck port and starboard. The crack across corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24				
corner of #4 ran down the side below the we during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24				
during the 22 to 24 January but a watch was gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast so botween 1530 and 1630 on 24	rline. The weat	ther moderated		
gradually increasing and opened and closed was forecast to botween 1530 and 1630 on 24				
was forecast co botween 1530 and 1630 on 24	op on and drag	Bad weather		
	in the seaway.	sel was abandoned.		
Bending moment in still water = 43,200 Ft.	in the seaway. anuary, the ves			
Stress in crown of dack = 5,000 Lbs./in. 1	in the seaway. anuary, the ves Tons Hog at	#3 hold.		
	in the seaway. anuary, the ves Tons Hog at	CLASSIFICATION OF FAILURE		
DISPOSITION OF Refaired, Inst	in the seaway. anuary, the ves fons Hog at sion.			
Vessel drifted ashore on Barra Island of th	in the seaway. anuary, the vest fons Hog at sion.	CLASSIFICATION OF FAILURE		
CHED (Jame and John)	in the seaway. anuary, the vest fons Hog at sion.	CLASSIFICATION OF FAILUPE Cracked dock		
Figure 6.	in the seaway. anuary, the vest fons Hog at sion.	CLASSIFICATION OF FAILUPE CRACKEd dock		
rigure o.	in the seaway. anuary, the vest fons Hog at sion.	CLASSIFICATION OF FAILUPE CRACKEd dock		
	in the seaway. anuary, the vest fons Hog at sion.	classification of failupe Cracked dock		

REPORT OF STRUCTURAL FAILURE OF INSPECTED VESSEL UNITED STATES COAST GUARD

3 3 1 340 PS

.

.

	DESCRIP	TION OF VESSEL	available information up to: 1 Oct., 1944 (Dute)	
£			·····	
JOFL R. POINSET	T 2428		H.C. DESIGN EC2-S-C1	
BUILDER	1 10100	BUILDER'S HULL NO.	DATE COMPLETED	
	lding Corporation	43	28 Feb., '43	
OWNER	• • • • •	OPERATOR		
Wer Shipping Ad		<u> </u>	Steamenic Company	
YOB SIDE SHELL SEAMS			Yea DECK SEAMS	
YOB SIDE SHELL BUT".	YOB BOTTOM SEAMS	YOB INNER BOTTOM SEAMS	YOR DECK BUTTS	
NO FRAMES TO SIDE SHELL	Yes BOTTON BUTTS	Yes INNER BOTTON BUTTS	YOB BECHS TO DECK	
Yes BULKHEADS	YOS FLOORS TO SHELL	YOS FLOORS TO INNER BOTTOM	Yes DECK TO SHELL	
		SURROUNDING FAILURE details of ship's loading)		
DATE OF FAILURE				
4 March, 1944	0340 Lat	53 [°] -30' N., Long.56 [°] -30	W., in N. Atlantio	
	West by Sout	h	13'-0" 21'-5"	
Approx. 5 knots SEA CONDITION	VEATHER	DIRECTION OF WAYES WITH RESPECT TO S	HIP	
Rough	Heavy	<u>3 points on starbo</u>		
WIND FORCE	WIND DIRECTION	AIR TEMPERATURE	WATER TEMPERATURE	
8 - 12 EXCLOSE ADDRESS				
(Include sketch of fr		and relative location of welds and ot	her structura. leatures)	
Include sketch of fr		and relative location of welds and ot	her structura. features)	
	acture snowing starting point		her structura. features)	
	acture snowing starting point	and relative location of welds and ot known	her structura, features)	
APPARENT STARTING POINT	octure snowing starting point	known	her structura, features)	
APPARENT STARTING POINT	Deture snowing starting point [Jz] FAILUPE, INCLUVING KNOW- CONTRIBUTO	known Y factors		
GENERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF A loud report, fol	octure snowing starting point [Jn FAILURE, INCLUDING KNOWS CONTRIENTOR lowed by two smaller	known * factors • ones, was heard, the en	gines were stopped,	
GENERAL MISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF A loud report, fol and a general alar	Line snowing starting point Un fulure, including anove confriented lowed by two smaller m was given. Immedi	known v factors v ones, was heard, the en ately afterward, the for	gines were stopped, ward end of the	
GENERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF A loud report, fol and a general alar ship separated fro	Lin FAILURE, INCLUCING KNOW, CONTRIENTOR lowed by two smaller m was given. Immedi m the after end and	known v factors v ones, was heard, the en ately afterward, the for floated away. The vesse	gines were stopped, ward end of the l parted between	
GENERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF A loud report, fol and a general alar ship separated fro frames 82 and 83 o	Un failure showing starting point failure, including those confriented lowed by two smaller m was given. Immedi m the after end and n the starboard side	known v factors v ones, was heard, the en ately afterward, the for	gines were stopped, ward end of the 1 parted between nd 79 on the port	
GENERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF A loud report, fol and a general alar ship separated fro Frames 82 and 83 o side. The deok fr end of deck house	Un FAILURE, INCLUCING KNOW CONTRIBUTOR Iowed by two amaller m was given. Immedi m the after end and n the starbcard side acture passed betwee from starbcard side	known ones, was heard, the en ately afterward, the for floated away. The vesse and between frames 78 a on the after end of #3 ha to inboard side of strak	gines were stopped, ward end of the 1 parted between nd 79 on the port tch and the forward e C-10 where the	
APPARENT STARTING POINT GENERAL MISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF A loud report, fol and a general alar ship separated fro Frames 82 and 83 o side. The deok fr end of deck house fracture ran longi	Un FAILURE, INCLUCING KNOW CONTRIBUTOR Iowed by two amaller m was given. Immedi m the after end and n the starbcard side acture passed betwee from starbcard side	known ones, was heard, the en ately afterward, the for floated away. The vesse and between frames 78 a on the after end of #3 ha	gines were stopped, ward end of the 1 parted between nd 79 on the port tch and the forward e C-10 where the	
GENERAL MISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF A loud report, fol and a general alar ship separated fro Frames 82 and 83 o side. The deok fr end of deck house fracture ran longi side.	Lynn FAILURE, INCLUCING ENDY. CONTRIBUTION I owed by two smaller m was given. Immedi m the after end and n the starboard side acture passed betwee from starboard side tudinally forward to	known or factors ones, was heard, the en ately afterward, the for floated away. The vesse and between frames 78 a on the after end of #3 ha to inboard side of strak frames 78-79 and went o	gines were stopped, ward end of the 1 parted between nd 79 on the port tch and the forward e C-10 where the utboard on the port	
GENERAL MISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF A loud report, fol and a general alar ship separated fro Frames 82 and 83 o side. The deok fr end of deck house fracture ran longi side. Bending moment in	Un FAILUPE. INCLUCING KNOW. CONTRIBUTOR I owed by two smaller m was given. Immedi m the after end and n the starboard side acture passed betwee from starboard side tudinally forward to still water = 58,900	known or factors ones, was heard, the en ately afterward, the for floated away. The vesse and between frames 78 a on the after end of #3 ha to inboard side of strak frames 78-79 and went o Ft. x Tons Hog at #3 Ho	gines were stopped, ward end of the 1 parted between nd 79 on the port tch and the forward e C-10 where the utboard on the port	
GENERAL MISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF A loud report, fol and a general alar ship separated fro Frames 82 and 83 o side. The deok fr end of deck house fracture ran longi side. Bending moment in	Lynn FAILURE, INCLUCING ENDY. CONTRIBUTION I owed by two smaller m was given. Immedi m the after end and n the starboard side acture passed betwee from starboard side tudinally forward to	known or factors ones, was heard, the en ately afterward, the for floated away. The vesse and between frames 78 a on the after end of #3 ha to inboard side of strak frames 78-79 and went o Ft. x Tons Hog at #3 Ho	gines were stopped, ward end of the 1 parted between nd 79 on the port tch and the forward e C-10 where the utboard on the port	
GENERAL MISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF A loud report, fol and a general alar ship separated fro Frames 82 and 83 o side. The deok fr end of deck house fracture ran longi side. Bending moment in	Un FAILURE, INCLUCING KNOW CONTRIBUTED lowed by two smaller m was given. Immedi m the after end and n the starboard side acture passed betwee from starboard side tudinally forward to still water = 58,900 deck = 6,900 Lbs./i	known ones, was heard, the en ately afterward, the for floated away. The vesse and between frames 78 a on the after end of #3 ha to inboard side of strak frames 78-79 and went o Ft. x Tons Hog at #3 Ho m. ² Tension.	gines were stopped, ward end of the 1 parted between nd 79 on the port tch and the forward e C-10 where the utboard on the port 1d.	
GENERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF A loud report, fol and a general alar ship separated fro frames 82 and 83 o side. The deok fr end of deck house fracture ran longi side. Bending moment in Stress in crown of	Un FAILURE, INCLULING KNOW CONTRIBUTED lowed by two smaller m was given. Immedi m the after end and n the starboard side acture passed betwee from starboard side tudinelly forward to still water = 58,900 deck = 6,900 Lbs./i	known ones, was heard, the en ately afterward, the for floated away. The vesse and between frames 78 a on the after end of #3 ha to inboard side of strak of frames 78-79 and went o 0 Ft. x Tons Hog at #3 Ho m. ² Tension. SITION OF VESSEL hered, lost, etc.)	gines were stopped, ward end of the l parted between nd 79 on the port tch and the forward e C-10 where the utboard on the port ld.	
GENERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF A loud report, fol and a general alar ship separated fro frames 82 and 83 o side. The deok fr end of deck house fracture ran longi side. Bending moment in Stress in crown of Vessel was abandon	Un FAILUPE, INCLUCING ENONE CONTRIBUTED TOWED by two smaller m was given. Immedi m the after end and n the starboard side acture passed betwee from starboard side tudinelly forward to still water = 58,900 deck = 6,900 Lbs./i OISPO (Rep.) Ed at 1500 on 5 Marc	known or factors ones, was heard, the en ately afterward, the for floated away. The vesse and between frames 78 a on the after end of #3 ha to inboard side of strak of frames 78-79 and went o OFt. x Tons Hog at #3 Ho m. ² Tension. SITION OF VESSEL hred, lost, etc.) Th, 1944, with no loss of	gines were stopped, ward end of the 1 parted between nd 79 on the port tch and the forward e C-10 where the utboard on the port ld. CLASSIFICATION OF FAILURE Broke in two	
GENERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF A loud report, fol and a general alar ship separated fro Frames 82 and 83 o side. The deok fr end of deck house fracture ran longi side. Bending moment in Stress in crown of Vessel was abandon end sank. The aft	Un FAILUPE, INCLUCING ENONE CONTRIBUTED TOWED by two smaller m was given. Immedi m the after end and n the starboard side acture passed betwee from starboard side tudinelly forward to still water = 58,900 deck = 6,900 Lbs./i OISPO (Rep.) Ed at 1500 on 5 Marc	known or factors ones, was heard, the en ately afterward, the for floated away. The vesse and between frames 78 a on the after end of #3 ha to inboard side of strak of frames 78-79 and went o 0 Ft. x Tons Hog at #3 Ho n. ² Tension. SITION OF VESSEL hered, lost, etc.) th, 1944, with no loss of fax, N.S., at O200, on 22	gines were stopped, ward end of the 1 parted between nd 79 on the port tch and the forward e C-10 where the utboard on the port ld. CLASSIFICATION OF FAILURE Broke in two	
GENERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF A loud report, fol and a general alar ship separated fro frames 82 and 83 o side. The deok fr end of deck house fracture ran longi side. Bending moment in Stress in crown of Vessel was abandon	Un FAILUPE, INCLUCING ENONE CONTRIBUTED TOWED by two smaller m was given. Immedi m the after end and n the starboard side acture passed betwee from starboard side tudinelly forward to still water = 58,900 deck = 6,900 Lbs./i OISPO (Rep.) Ed at 1500 on 5 Marc	known or factors ones, was heard, the en ately afterward, the for floated away. The vesse and between frames 78 a on the after end of #3 ha to inboard side of strak of frames 78-79 and went o OFt. x Tons Hog at #3 Ho m. ² Tension. SITION OF VESSEL hred, lost, etc.) Th, 1944, with no loss of	gines were stopped, ward end of the 1 parted between nd 79 on the port tch and the forward e C-10 where the utboard on the port ld. CLASSIFICATION OF FAILURE Broke in two	

Figure 7.

1110

and the second second

27

· ---

This report includes all available information up to:

• •		
l June,	IUAG	
T DUND.	1340	(Date)
		("

	DI	ESCRIPTION	OF VESSEL	1 June, 1946 (Date)		
NAME		OFFICIAL NO.	TYPE (Dry Cargo, Passenger, etc.)		. DESIGN	
SACKETT'S HARBOR		243882	Tanker	T	2-se-a1	
BUILDER		/	BUILDER'S HULL NO.	DAT	E CONPLETED	
Kaiser Co., Inc.	, Swan Island		20	JI	uly, 1943	
OWNER			OPERATOR	·····		
War Shipping Adm	inistration		Pacific Tankers			
		EXTENT OF	WELDING			
	Hull , I welded	<u> </u>			فتباد ويزيا تحديق الكعن	
Yes SIDE SHELL SEANS	No inter bottom			Yes DECK	\$E.4M3	
Yes SIDE SHELL BUTTS	YEB BOTTOM SEAMS		- INNER-B-TTON SEAMS	Yes DECK	BUTTS	
YOB FRAMES TO SIDE SHELL	Yes BETTON BUTTS		- INRER BOTTON BUTTS	YOS SEAN	S TO DECK	
Yes BULKHEADS Yes FLOORS TO SHELL - FLOORS TO INNER BOTTOM				Yes DECK	TO SHELL	
			UNDING FAILURE ils of ship's loading)			
DATE OF FAILURE 3-1-46	TIME 2220	Long. 1	69° - 13' E.; Lat. 43°	- 10' N.		
SHIP'S SPEED	075° true	- <u> </u>	·	DRAFT FWD.	DRAFT AFT	
80 RPM				19*-6*	24'-0"	
SEA CONDITION WEATHER DIRECTION OF WAYES WITH RESPECT TO SHIP						
Small to moderate Mild 30° to port bow						
WIND FORCE WIND DIRECTION AIR TEMPERATURE WATER TEMPERATURE						
4 N.E. 37 38						
lInclude sketch of fr		SCRIPTION O	F FAILURE lative location of welds and other	structural fe	aturesl	
APPARENT STARTING POINT						
		Unknown				
GENERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF						
The starboard	side cracked at	Frame 60	and vessel opened to	port.		
Stern section h	neaded for Adak	under ow	n power. Was subsequen	ntly		
towed into this	s port. Bow see	ction was	capsized when located	and		
sunk by gunfire	e as menace to r	navigatio	n.			
Photographs and	d Maritime Commi	ission re	cords show that this ve	essel		
was not fitted	with longitudir	nal deck	connected I-beam strong	then-		
ing under the n	main deck transv	verses wh	ich was fitted on later	- -		
T28.						
Bending moment Stress in crown	in still water 1 of deck = 3315	= 41,100 Lbs./in	Ft. x Tons Hog at Fr. . ² Tensior.	#60		
				Broke i		
			N OF VESSEL los: etc.)			
Stern section	awaiting tow; bo	ow sectio	n sunk by gunfire.	<u> </u>		

28

SIGNED (Same and fitle)

. . -

Ņ

•

•

Figure 8.

The second stranger

DISTRICT

- -

,



FIGURE 9.--- Forward portion of N. N. Nackets Horbor.





-

B & A Country of Party of

we the there are





¥

REPORT OF STRUCTURAL FAILURE OF INSPECTED VESSFI UNITED STATES COAST GUARD

4

y sume

.

	DESCRIPTION	OF VESSEL	This report includes all available information up to: 1 Apr., 1944 (Date)
SCHENECTADY	0FFICIAL NO. 242620	TYPE (Dry Cargo, Passenger, etc.) Tank Vessel	H.C. DESIGN T2-SE-A1
Kaiser Co., Inc., Portland, O	regon	SUILDER'S MULL NO.	31 Dec., \$43
War Shipping Administration		Deconhill Shippin	g Company
	EXTENT O	FWELDING	
Hull all weld Yes side shell seams No inner both			YOB DECK SEANS
Yes SIDE SHELL BUTTS YOS BOTTOM SEAN	15	- INVER BOTTOM SEAMS	Yes DECK BUTTS
Yeb FRAMES TO SIDE SHELL YEB BOTTOM BUTT	5	- INFER BOTTOM BUTTS	Yes DEANS TO DECK
Yes BULANEADS Yes FLOOPS TO S	HCLL	FLOORS TO INNER BOTTOM	Yes DECK TO SHELL
		DUNDING FAILURE sils of ship's leading)	
ATE OF FAILURE	SHIP'S LOCA		
16 Jan., 1943 2230 PNT	Tied u	p at fitting out pier,	SWAN ISLAND
0 -			<u>61-4n 171-0n</u>
EA CONDITION WEATHER		DIRECTION OF WAVES WITH RESPECT TO SH	19
Still Water Clear		NO WAVES	WATER TEMPERATURE
Light Rast wind	l	26° F	40 ⁰ F
(Include sketch of fracture showing start)	DESCRIPTION	OF FAILURE	er etructural facturael
The fracture started at the j starboard corner of the bridg Without warning and with a re the deck and sides of the ves structure. The fracture extent the bilge port and starboard and bottom girders fractured jack-knifed and the center po The bow and stern settled int taken around the vessel elimit having grounded amidships to Bending moment in still water Stress in grown of deck = 990	contributory fac port which seel fract anded almo The dec Only th ortion ros to the sil inated the a drop in - 184,00	ructure and the sheer Totas. h was heard for at lea ured just aft of the b st instantaneously to k side shell, longitudi e bottom plating held. e so that no water ent t of the river bottom. alleged possibility o water level. O_Ft: = Tone Hog a	strake. st a mile, ridge super- the turn of nal bulkheads The vessel ered the hull. Sounding
		ON OF VESSEL , lost, etc.)	
Vessel repaired and put in se	ervice.		ar den sin den
signio itane and titlet		DISTRICT	
701292473	Figu	re 14.	(9)

an a confiderate a migginitian and a

• ,

...

-- --

.

.

•

	DESCRIPTION OF VESSEL						This report includes all available information up to: 1 Apr., 1944 (Date)	
NAME	OFFICIAL NO.	YYPE (Dr)	YYPE (Dry Cargo, Passenger, etc.)		N.C. DESIGN			
ESSO MANHATTAN		242157	Tank Vessel				T2-SE-A1	
BUILDER			BUILDER'S HULL NO.			1	TE COMPLETED	
Sun Shipbuilding & Drydock Company			267			2	2 Aug., 142	
OWNEP			OPERATOS					
Standard Oil Co. of New Jersey			Standard Oil Co. of New Jersey					
EXTENT OF WELDING								
	Hull all welde	d						
Yes SIDE SHELL SEAMS No inner bottom						Yes DEC	K SEANS	
Yes SHOE SHELL BUTTS	Yes BOTTOM SEAMS	-	INNER BOTTOM S	EAHS	Yes	K BUTTS		
Yes FRAMES TO SIDE SWELL	Yes BOTTON BUTTS	•	INNER BOTTOM B	טזדג [Yes DEA	45 TO DECH		
YOS BULKHEADS	Yes FLOORS TO SHE		-	FLOORS TO INKE	R BOTTOM	Yes	K TO SHELL	
CIRCUNSTANCES SURROUNDING FAILURE nttach all available details of ship's loading/								
DATE OF & LURE SWIP'S LOCATION 40 fathoms of water								
29 March, 1943	1205 ENT	3/4 mil	e ins	ore buoy	3. Ambro	se Chann	el,N.Y.	
SHIP'S SPEED	COURSE					DRAFT FWD.	DRAFT AFT	
14 knots	121° true						18*-7"	
SEA CONDITION	WEATHER DIRECTION OF WAVES WITH RESPECT TO SHI							
Slight ground swell	Clear On port boy				rt bow			
WIND FORCE	WIND DIRECTION	AIR TEMPERATURE			WATER TEMPERATURE			
Force 2	Northeast		30° to 40°			Not known		
DESCRIPTION OF FAILURE (Include sketch of fracture showing starting point and relative location of welds and other structural features)								
The fracture st		t weld bei	tween p	lates A-9	and A-1	10		
at the crown of GENERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF		ONTRIBUTORY FACT	ORS					
dug under an or up by the USCG	n across the de bilge port and coming wave. 7 KIMBALL. The b The built weld	eck in way i starboar The crew a bottom fra	y of #6 rd. Th abandon actured	tank, and evessel ed in the later an	down bo jack-kni boats a d the tr	oth sides ifed and and were wo portic	s, pro- the bow picked ons	
Bending moment in still water = 225,800 Ft. x Tons. Hog amidships. Stress in crown of deck = 12,200 Lbs./in. ² Tension.								
							or of failure in two	
DISPOSITION OF VESSEL (Repaired lost etc.)								
Repaired on dry	dock-at Todd B	rie Basin	and re	turned to	servic	8•		
signed and first								
30		Figu	re 15.				())	

.

-

A REAL PROPERTY OF

matting

٠

2

|


FIGURE 16.---Acrial view of failure of S. S. Bsso Manhattan taken from one of two blimps convoying vessel.



2 8 2





FIGURE 18.--- Forward portion of S. S. Valeri Chkaloe.



FIGURE 19.—Stern portion of S. S. Valeri Chkalov.



F

F

. .

.

....

This report includes all available information up to:

D	ESCRIPTION	OF VESSE	L	<u>1 Apr</u>	r., 1944 (Date)
AME	OFFICIAL NO	1	y Cargo Passenger etc.)		H.C. DESIGN
VALERI CHKALOV	None		Cargo Vessel		EC2-S-C1
Richmond Shipyard No. 2		BUILDER'S	481		DATE COMPLETED 17 Apr . , 145
RIGHIONA SITIPYATA NO. C	<u></u>	OPERATOR			11 Apr • 30
War Shipping Administration		Union	of Soviet Socia	list F	tepublics
	EXTENT OF	WELDING			
YOB SIDE SHELL SEAMS				Yes	DECK SEAMS
Yes SIDE SHELL BUTTS YOS BOTTOM SEAMS		Yes	INNER BOTTOM SEAMS	Yes	DECK BUTTS
NO FRAMES TO SIDE SHELL YEB BOTTOM BUTTS		Yes	THRER BOTTOM BUTTS	Yes	BEANS TO DECK
Yes BULKHEADS Yes FLOORS TO SHEE	LL	Yes	FLOORS TO INNER BOTTON	Yes	DECK TO SHELL
CIRCUMST Attach all as	ANCES SURRO				
ATE OF FAILURE TIME	SHIP'S LOCATI				
11 Dec., 1943 1210	Latitud	le 35 ⁰	N, Longitude 168	° - 25	51 स
HIP S SPEEC COURSE Cut by storm Sovetskeya Ga EA CONDITION WEATHER		eria to	Akutari, Alaska	Unkno	TWD. DRAFT AFT
Heavy Heavy storm, v	is. 0	Appar	ently a head sea		
IND FORCE VIND DIRECTION				1	TENPERATURE
6 to 8 Unknown	SCRIPTION O				Iinknown
Include sketch of fracture showing starting				structur	al featuresj
The cracks which finally brok forward corners of #3 hatch, EXERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF FAILURE INCLUDING ENDOWN CON The vessal departed from Sove and heavy seas were encounter 1943, a loud report was heard port side at Fr. #74, one on side at Fr. #76. The port si across the deck and down the #74 was in the side shell from stbd. crack at Fr. #76 ran do halfway down the tween decks. "Joseph Stalin" but at 2206 of Both portions were taken in t anchorage. The crews did not details will be made available	port and talsuropy factor takaya on ed after and three stbd. sid de orack shell to m the she wn the sid The ves n 13 Dec. ow by U. abandon <u>e by the</u> DISPOSITION	starbon n 1 Dec depart te crac. ie at F extend the bi er stru- lde she ssel wa , she S. Nav ship. <u>USSR ii</u> N OF VESS	ard. , 1943, in ball ure. At noon on ks were found, or r. #74; and one ed from the hatco lge. The stbd. ake to the tween ll from the sheet s taken in tow bo broke completely y tugs and broug Ballasting n the near futur SEL	ast. 11 De ne on on the h corn oraok deck. r stra y the in tw ht to	the stbd. ler at Fr. The lke tug
	(Repaired	lost etc.			
Both portions at anchor in Sa		Freat S	itkin Island. H	uture	undetermined.
	Figur	c 20.			(7)

.

and the second second

.

ь Ак - ---

- -

! .

REPORT OF STRUCTURAL FAILURE OF INSPECTED VESSEL UNITED STATES COAST GUARD #AYCG-2752

This report includes all available information up to: 1 June 1046

	DI	ESCRIPTION	OF VESSEL	1 June, 1	946 (Date)
DONBASS III (GX	BEACON ROCK	0FFICIAL NO. 246377	Type (Dry Cargo, Passenger, etc.) Tanker	M.C.	DESISE T2
BUILDER		*	BUILDER'S HULL NO.	1	COMPLETED
Kaiser Co., Inc.	, Swen Island		84		ot., 1944
owner	Junata		OPERATOR RUSSia - "Nary		
Lend-leased to R	(U8 518		(U.S. agents - Moor	a-Mocorma c	<u></u>
		EXTENT OF	WELDING		
[]	Hull all welde	d			
Yes SIDE SHELL SEAMS	No inner botto		,	Yes Deck	SEAMS
Yes SIDE SHELL BUTTS	Yes BOTTOM SEAMS		- INNER BOTTON SEAMS	Yes DECK	BUTTS
Yes FRAMES TO SIDE SMELL	Yes BOTTON BUTTS		ENNER BOYTON BUTTS	Үев всань	TO DECK
Yes BULXHEADS	Yes FLOORS TO SHEL		FLOORS TO INVER SOTTOM	Yes DECK	TO SHELL
			UNDING FAILURE sls of shif's loading)		
DATE OF FAILURE	TIME	SHIP'S LOCATI			
17 Feb., 1946	1.425	Long	. 176° -11'; Lat. 46° -	55' N	
SHIP'S SPEED	COLRSE	•		DRAFT FWD.	DRAFT AFT
7 knots SEA CONDITION		5° South		291-8"	31 * - 8*
		1	orrection of waves with respect to ship the 60° on port bow		(dep.at
WIND FORCE	for four days j	ust Delo	AIR TEMPERATURE	WATER TERPERAT	San Pedro)
9-10 Beaufort	From SSM		37 ⁰ F		43 ⁰ F
[Include sketch of fr		SCRIPTION O	F FAILURE lative location of welds and other	structural fea	tures) f
APPARENT STARTING POINT					
The herringbone p of fracture to be	attern on the f below the wate	ractured rline.	plate eage indicates t	he origin	
GENERAL HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION OF	FAILURE, INCLUDING ANUNH CO.	- ALBUTORY FACTO	PR5:		
			above-water portion of	fra atuma	
Detween Frs. 51 a	nd 62). Vessel	broke in	two. Stern portion of	f worsel +	12
LO PORT ANGELES.	Washington: For	'd portic	m towed to Butch Herboy	n: 17ha 18	4h
CG District has i	nspected after a	above-wat	er portion of hull. R	enort nho	+
etc., nave been r	eccived at CGHQ	 Projection 	t undergay to produce	eimilar in	-
formation relativ	e to underwater	portion	of fracture. According	to photo	•
and records, this	VOSSEL WES IIT	ted with	deep I-beam longituding	al strengt	hen-
crack prevention	or in limiting	ses, The	se were apparently of 1	10 Value i	n
were lost.	"" ""	A OLACK O	f bottom origin. Fift	en lives	
-	still water = 1	55 200 5	t. x Tons Sag at Fr.#61		
Stress in bottom	of keel = 7,800	Lbs./in.	² Tension.	Broke 1	
			N OF VESSEL	1 0. 00 1	
			lost, etc.]		
SIGHED (Fame and Sible)		0	ISTRICT		
		<u>1</u>			(P)
•		Figur	e 21.		• •

32

•

and the second second

-

-

.

William and

-

. ...

. . .

. .

.



FIGURE 22.-Forward portion of S. S. Donbass 111.



	1946	OPER. IN SHIPS	4500			3600	3,300	3000	2700	0076	2100 2100		1500	0061	006	009		
		RAM											[1	X
		.831									1				[A A
		JAN.								[7	1
	Ŧ	DEC			<u> </u>							<u> </u>				<	14	5
		YON		1	<u> </u>						<u> </u>	<u> </u>				~~~		5
		700		<u> </u>								 						5
		1d36			+				┣			<u> </u>					<u> </u>	
		•9∩¥		4			- W		<u> </u>								17	
	1945	1014		$\overline{)}$			F.				<u> </u>				<u> </u>			5
	- 19	JUNE			<u> </u>		10.1							- <u></u>				10
		YAM			4		ESSELS BUILT									P	1 ×	
		าเยง∀			1		<u></u> .					<u> </u>	i					
		.RAtu					A S						<u> </u>				K -	6
		.831	·,			5						~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~			<u>}</u>			
		.NAU		<u> </u>	<u>+</u>		0 -2 -2 -2					с. 19 -		<u> </u>		×.		
-	+	DEC		<u> </u>	+		2/		t	<u> </u>		10 F.	<u> ></u>			- <u>``</u> ```	*	<u>+-></u>
ISE		NON			<u>† </u>		∀ −			<u>}</u>	<u>†</u>	Ž <u>Š</u>	<u> </u>				<u> </u>	
LEASE)		100			1	 			<u>↓</u> ,		<u> </u>	CLASS NO. 1. A	 		9		1	14 4
		SEPT										13T	I		- L			1
C. LEN		,euA						6				- -				R		*
EACH MUNIN NG M.C. LEN SUBTRACTED)	1944	100		i	†			1		j				· · · ·			ļ	*
1 1 A A	5	JUNE									+	+						
EACH ING M Surte		YAM			1			<u>`</u>	4								[1
S N C		าเชงง		<u> </u>	1				50			1				5		
S C S		.Siam							xm2			1	<u> </u>		<u>;</u>			-
VESSELS EACH MONIH (INCLUDING M.C. LEND LOSSES SUBTRAGTED)		.831			m				>	2		122	=×		cl.ÅSS	NO3	5	₽ <u>₩</u>
	_1	.NAL			S.a			~		<u>\</u>	1	1				y y		
UN ELS (ALL	Ī	DEC			CLASS NO. 4 2 8 CLASS NO. 4 2 8												0	
LITES UN VESSELS (AL		YON			ġğ						كم					*		2
		100		l	SA SS							<u>N_</u>			\leq	1.	L	4
CASUALITES BUILT VESSI		1938														[*
1		DUA	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	L					 		2				×.	
BUILT	1943	100			ļ												K	Į
	6	JUNE			ļ									<u>`</u>			<u>×</u>	
ರ ೫		YAM			ļ							ļ		2	•	$\leq \ll$	L	19
		JIR9A			ļ									<u> </u>		2	\geq	$ \rangle$
		.RAM			ļ								 		5	_*		4
		FEB.) Vil	- the		<u> </u>
	ŧ	DEC.		 -		!											17	1_2
		NON				├										<u> </u>	AK.	
		100			 						 -	<u> </u>	i		 .	<u> </u>		
		1938											İ				h	
	 ស	.0UA T932				İ											\sim	- ! .
	1942	1011									<u> </u>						2	
	Ī	JUNE															<u>├</u> \	1
		YAM							 _								'	<u>k</u>
		JIRAA																K
		MAR.																
		1834																15-7
	1_	.0M			<u></u>			 ^									{	
		EACH CAS'LTY	150	140	1 051	120	011	001	06	80	70	G	50	40	30	20	<u> </u>	0

· ·

•

Ī

•

the second second

.

х х м

l'able II

ULADD I ANU 2 LADUALIED UN MARITIME COMMISSION-BUILT SHIPS (INCLUDING SHIPS ON LOAN) Number of Casualties (c) by Age and Calender Month at Time of Casualty, and Number of Ships (s) Afloat of the Same Age in the Month of Casualty CLASS 1 AND 2 CASUALTIES ON MARITIME COMMISSION-BUILT SHIPS (INCLUDING SHIPS ON LOAN)

| Apr. May June July Aug. | | 52 73 | : | : | : | 23 | 21 | 14 | 17 |
 | :
 | :

 | :
 | : | | <u>-</u> - | | | | | |
 | | <u>.</u>
 | : |
 | : |
: | ; | | | |
|--|---|-------|----------------------------|--------------------|---|--|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|---
--
--
--
--
--
--
--
--|---|---|---|---|---|---------|---|---
--
--
--|--
--|--|---|---|---------------|----------|----------|
| May June July | ••
·· ·
·· 52 | : | : | : | 23 | 21 | 14 | 17 | 6
 | :
 | :
 | :

 | | | | | | • | • | - | •
 | |
 | | | | | | | | | | |
 | | | | | |
| May June | U
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10 | 52 | : | : | : | 6 3 | 17 | | |
 | 8
 | 0

 | 3
 | | -
- | :
0 | :
~ | 9 | : | .:
 | - |
 | | 4
 | :
 |
 | +
+ | <u>:</u> | | <u>:</u>
0 | 5 | 4 |
| May | | | 56 | 40 | 0 | | | | |
 |
 |

 | . .
 | | | :- | | | | | |
 | |
 | |
 | -, | | | | | |
| May | U
• | | . 26 | 40 | 9 | | | : | : |
 |
 |

 | :
 | : | : | : | | : | : | | | <u>:</u>
 | | •
 | |
 | | : | | ; | | : |
| May | • | | : | | ~ | 24 | 4 | 18 | 2 | <u></u>
 | 2
 | ŝ

 | 4
 | ~ | ~ | <u>.</u> | ° | | <u></u> | | <u> </u> |
 | <u> </u> | <u> </u>
 | <u>ო</u> | 4
 | <u> </u> | س - | 0 | ~ | T | 0 |
| | | | <u>:</u> | | : | : | : | : | | :
 | •
 | :

 | :
 | | : | : | : | | : | : | <u> </u> | •
 | : | •
 | : | :
 | : | : | : | : | | : |
| | | 56 | 41 | 27 | 55 | 14 | 18 | 10 | 8 | 2
 | ŝ
 | 4

 | 2
 | ~ | ŝ | ~ | | ŝ | ~ | <u>د</u> | ~ | 4
 | 5 | ŝ
 | 4 | 0
 | ŝ | - | ~ | 4 | \$ | 1 |
| ы.
Н | <u> </u> | : | : | : | : | : | : | : | : | :
 | :
 | :

 | :
 | : | ; | : | | : | : | : | : | :
 | | :
 | • | •
 | : | ; | | • | | : |
| | - | 41 | 28 | 25 | 15 | 18 | 10 | 80 | 10 | ŝ
 | Ś
 | ~

 | 2
 | ŝ | 1 | | 4 | 1 | 9 | 2 | 4 | 0
 | ŝ | **
 | c | ŝ
 | | C1 | 4 | 9 | 2 | ŝ |
| ₹ | " | : | : | : | : | : | : | : | : | ·
 | .
:
 | :

 | :
 | | | | | : | : | : | |
:
 | : |
 | , | ÷
 | : | : | | : | : | : |
| Ì | | 28 | 25 | 15 | 18 | 10 | 8 | 10 | ŝ | S
 | 7
 | ~

 | ŝ
 | 7 | | 4 | 7 | 6 | 2 | 4 | 6 | ŝ
 | 4 | 0
 | ~ |
 | 2 | ** | 0 | 2 | ŝ | Ś |
| Mar. |
 | : | : | : | : | : | : | : | : | :
 | :
 | :

 | :
 | : | | : | : | : | : | : | ÷ | ÷
 | | :
 | : | :
 |
: | | ÷ | | | : |
| <u></u> | | 25 | 15 | 18 - | 10 | ∞ | 10 | | S | 7
 | 7
 | რ

 | ~
 | | 4 | ~ | <u>ہ</u> | 2. | 4 | 6 | | 4
 | 0 |
 | | ~
 | 4 | 0 | N | ŝ | :
و | |
| Fcb. | 0 | : | | : | : | | | | : | :
 |
 | :

 | :
 | : | : | : | : | : | -: | : | : |
 | | :
 | : | :
 | | | : | | : | : |
| | | 2 | 8 | | :
∞ | :
0 | | :
5 | 7 . | -
-
 | 3
 | <u> </u>

 | :
 | * | 7 : | 6 | 7 | 4 | :
: | ი | 4 | :
0
 | | :
 | ~ | :
+
 | | ~ | ر،
م | 9 | :
 | 4
: |
| Jan. | | | | | | | | | | <u>-</u>
 | :
 |

 |
 | | <u> </u> | | | : | | | | <u>:</u>
 | - <u>-</u> - | <u>.</u>
 | <u> </u> |
 | • | | | _ | | <u> </u> |
|

 | <u>ہ</u> | : | : |
 | : | | | | | <u>ب</u>
 |
 |

 | 4
 | | : | | 4 | | | 4 | :
0 |
 | <u>.</u> | 5
 | +
+ | :
 | : : | <u>ي</u> | :
• | | - | 5 |
| Dec. | _ | | | <u> </u> | =
 | | | | |
 |
 |

 |
 | | | | | | | | |
 | |
 | |
 | | | | | | |
| _ | <u>،</u> | : | : | | : | <u>.</u> | : | <u>.</u> | : |
 | •
 |

 | :
 | | : | | : | : | | | : |
 | |
 | | :
 | : | : | : | • | | : |
| lov. | • | 10 | ∞ | 5 | | ى
 | ~ | _ | ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | ~
 |
 | 4

 | ~
 | 2 | ~ | 4 | <u> </u> | (°) | 4 | _ | <u></u> |
 | ~ | 4
 | ~ | ~
 | <u>~</u> | 9 | - | 4 | 2 | ŝ |
| 2 | v | | : | | :
 | | | : | | :
 | :
 | _:

 | :
 | : | : | | : | | | : | • | :
 | : | :
 | : | :
 | • | | • | : | : | : |
| | | 8 | 10 | б | ŝ | 2 | 7 | ŝ | 7 | ***
 | 4
 | 2

 | 10
 | 7 | 4 | 6 | ŝ | 4 | 0 | ŝ | | 2
 | | 7
 | 0 | ŝ
 | હ | • | 4 | 2 | ŝ | 4 |
| Ĉ | v | | | : | : | - | | : | | :
 | :
 | :

 | ÷
 | : | : | : | : | : | : | | • | •
 | : |
 | ; |
 | • | | | : | : | : |
| _
ب | • | 10 | ŝ | Ś | 7 | ~ | ŝ | 7 | 1 | 4
 | 7
 | 10

 | 2
 | 4 | 6 | ŝ | 4 | 0 | ŝ | | 2 | 4
 | ~ | 0
 | ŝ | 9
 | | 4 | 2 | ŝ | 4 | 2 |
| Sep | v | | : | | : | : | : | : | : | :
 | •
 | :

 | :
 | : | : | | : | : | : | • | : | :
 | : | :
 | : | :
 | : | : | : | : | : | : |
| ري
ا | | | : | - <u>-</u> - | : | | | : | |
 |
 |

 | :
 | | | | | | | <u>.</u> | <u>.</u> |
 | : | :
 | | <u>;</u>
 | : | | : | | : | |
| aunchir | | | : | : | | : | | | |
 |
 | :

 | :
 | : | : | : | | | : | : | : | :
 | | :
 | • |
 | | : | : | : | : | : |
| after li | | | | | : | : | : | : | : | :
 |
 |

 | :
 | : | : | : | : | : | : | | : | ÷
 | ÷ | :
 | : |
 | : | : | : | | : | : |
| - | | . | | | : | | | | : | :
 |
 | :

 |
 | | | | | : | : | : | : | :
 | ÷ | :
 | |
 | : | | : | : | : | : |
| ontra | 1 | 0 | - | 5. | ы.
С | + | 5. | <u>ہ</u> . | 7. | 80.
 | و
 | 10.

 | 11.
 | 12. | 13. | 14. | 15. | 16. | 17. | 18. | 19. | 20.
 | 21. | 52
 | 23 | 24
 | 25. | 26. | 27. | 28. | 29. | 30. |
| Age. (Mont.1s after launching) Sept. Oct. Nov. | | | 10
10
10
10
10 | 10
3
10
3 | 2
2
2
2
2
3
3
3
3
2
4
4
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5 | 2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2 | → → → → → → → → → → → → → → → → → → → | 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 | v → → 2 × 3 × 3 × 4 × 4 × 4 × 4 × 4 × 4 × 4 × 4 | v v v <td>v v v<td>• • •<td>0 0 0<td>0 0 1 0</td><td>* * * * 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0</td><td>0 0</td><td>0 0</td><td>α α • 0</td><td>α </td><td>0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1</td><td>0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0
 0 1 1 0 0 0</td><td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>α α • Οωανννων - 4νον40ω+04νσωδ-4 • Ξ •</td><td>α </td><td>α </td><td>α </td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | v v v <td>• • •<td>0 0 0<td>0 0 1 0</td><td>* * * * 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0</td><td>0 0
 0 0</td><td>0 0</td><td>α α • 0</td><td>α </td><td>0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1</td><td>0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0</td><td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>α α • Οωανννων - 4νον40ω+04νσωδ-4 • Ξ •</td><td>α </td><td>α </td><td>α </td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | • • •
 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • <td>0 0 0<td>0 0 1 0</td><td>* * * * 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0</td><td>0 0</td><td>0 0</td><td>α α • 0</td><td>α </td><td>0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1</td><td>0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0</td><td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0
0<td>0 0<td>α α • Οωανννων - 4νον40ω+04νσωδ-4 • Ξ •</td><td>α </td><td>α </td><td>α </td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | 0 0 0 <td>0 0 1 0</td> <td>* * * * 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0</td> <td>0 0</td> <td>0 0</td> <td>α α • 0</td> <td>α </td> <td>0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1</td> <td>0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0</td> <td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>α α • Οωανννων - 4νον40ω+04νσωδ-4 • Ξ •</td><td>α </td><td>α </td><td>α </td></td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | 0 0 1 0 | * * * * 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | 0 0 | 0 0 | α α • 0 | α | 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 | 0 0 <td>0 0<td>0 0
 0 0 0 0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>α α • Οωανννων - 4νον40ω+04νσωδ-4 • Ξ •</td><td>α </td><td>α </td><td>α </td></td></td></td></td></td></td> | 0 0 <td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>α α • Οωανννων - 4νον40ω+04νσωδ-4 • Ξ •</td><td>α </td><td>α </td><td>α </td></td></td></td></td></td> | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 0 0 <td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>α α • Οωανννων - 4νον40ω+04νσωδ-4 • Ξ •</td><td>α </td><td>α </td><td>α </td></td></td></td></td> | 0 0 <td>0 0<td>0 0<td>0 0<td>α α • Οωανννων - 4νον40ω+04νσωδ-4 • Ξ •</td><td>α </td><td>α </td><td>α </td></td></td></td> | 0 0 <td>0 0
 0 0<td>0 0<td>α α • Οωανννων - 4νον40ω+04νσωδ-4 • Ξ •</td><td>α </td><td>α </td><td>α </td></td></td> | 0 0 <td>0 0<td>α α • Οωανννων - 4νον40ω+04νσωδ-4 • Ξ •</td><td>α </td><td>α </td><td>α </td></td> | 0 0 <td>α α • Οωανννων - 4νον40ω+04νσωδ-4 • Ξ •</td> <td>α </td> <td>α </td> <td>α </td> | α α • Οωανννων - 4νον40ω+04νσωδ-4 • Ξ • | α | α | α |

NOTE:-Data relating to ships exceeding 30 months age are omitted.

ed
ntinu
ပို
Η
TABLE

Number of Casualties (c) by Age and Calendar Month at Time of Casualty, and Number of Ships (s) Afloat of the Same Age in the Month of Casualty CLASS 1 AND 2 CASUALTIES ON MARITIME COMMISSION-BUILT SHIPS (INCLUDING SHIPS ON LOAN)

											Date o	Date of casualty	Ly .										
				19	1942		† 									1943							
Age (Months after launching)	Scpt.		Ö Ö		Nov		Dec.		Jan.	ا ا	Feb.		Mar.	_	Apr.		May	_	June		July		Aug.
	0	-	U		υ	-			0	-						د د	-	。 	-	<u>ہ</u>	•	<u>،</u>	•
0		85		91		106		117		105		06	1	: 83		45	1 164	5 4	: 140		140	- 3	143
	:	84	7=4	85	:	91		106	6	116		05	1 1	04		28	1 145	: 	. 163	~	140	:	138
2		73	-	84	2	84	ŝ	91	S	105	3 1	116	4 1(Ξ	2	101	1 128		145		161		140
3	:	50		72	7	82		84	4	89 .		04	1 1	116		00	101		128		144		161
4		55		50	0	7.2	_	82	:	83	2	88	¥ 	33	4 11	115		- 6	10		127		143
	;	38		54	:	48	4	72	7	81		83	3	22	1 1 1		2 113	دا 	5		66	;	127
6		23		38		52		48	7	11		81	~	31	4	87	103		11(96	0	96
7		21		23		38	-	52	1	48	ŝ	70		õ	8	80		7 2		:	108	1	96
8		14		21		21	:	38	2	50		47	3	38		80	ř.		86	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	103		108
9		16		14	7	21	:	21	:	38	-	50	`.	47		<u>(68</u>	. 80		7		85		103
10		6	:	16		14.		21	:	21 .		38	, ,	t9 [.	;	47	. 68		80		78	;	85
11		8	:	6	:	16		14	:	21	2	21		38	-	49	 4	7 1	3 		79		78
12	:	6		8		<u>ہ</u>	:	16	0	14		21		21		37 .	. 4		47	~	i 68	:	79
13		ŝ		6	Ì	2.	:	ہ	:	16		13 .		2			37		49		47	0	68
14	:	ŝ		ĉ		<u>،</u>	:	7	:	6	-	15	61		· · ·	0	. 51		37		49		47
15	:	7	:	ŝ			:	8	1	7		6		15 .			. 20		20	:	37		49
16		ŝ	-	7		ŝ		ش		7		7		6		15			19	::	. 19		37
17		ŝ	:	S		2	:	ر				7	:	S	+=4	8	2 15		= 		19		19
18		9		3		4	:	7	:	ŝ	3	ŝ		7	 :	5		: .	. 15	,			19
19	:	H	i	9	:	«	:	4	:		:	3 7	:		1	7.		5 1				:	11
20		ŝ		1		9	:		:	4		7		ŝ		3			 		~~~~	~	15
21	:	7		3	:	-	:	v	:		:	4	:	- -	:	რ		:	•••		·.		ø
22	:	6	:	7	:	ന	:		:	9			5	4	:	7				~	~ 		ŝ
23	:	0		8		~	:	۳	:		:	: 0		: 77	:	4	<u> </u>	7 1		~	<u> </u>	:	2
24	:	4	:	9		2	:	7	:	ŝ			:	: 0	:	:		:		:	<u> </u>		ŝ
25	:	6	:	4		ς, ·		7.	:	7	:			•	:	<u>،</u> و		5	• 	4	-	•	ŝ
26	:	ŝ	:	6		4	:	د	:	-	:	2		3				: 0		7	¥ 	:	-
27	:	4		ŝ	:	<u>.</u>	:	4	:			2	:	-		3 3		.: 			- 2		4
28		0	:	4	:	ŝ	-	<u>ہ</u>	:	ო		5 : :	:	2.	:	7							61
29	:	2	:	0	:	4	:		:	6	:		<u> </u>	ŝ		7		7		<u>ب</u>			6
30	:	0	:	3		0	:	4	:	 	:	<u>;</u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	5				<u></u>			
	1]																	-		

Norz :-- Data relating to ships exceeding 30 months age are omitted.

											Date of	Date of casualty	Y										
				1943	53										19	1944							
Age (Months after launching)	Sept.		ö Ö		Nov.		Dcc.		Jan.		Feb.		Mar.	<	Apr.	×	May	June	2	5 	July	¥ 	Aug.
				-	 0	- -			0		*	U U	•	v	•	υ	•	U	•	U	•	•	-
0	-	143	-	163 .		160	3 14			50	1 11		21 125		123		117		110		8		
1	ы Т	43		143		163				41	4 129	9 1			125	-	123	~	117		110		
2	3	138	2	143	2	143		162	4	158	1 141		129		116		125	1	123	<u>.</u>	117		86
3		140		138	3 1	143	2 14	142	1	51	1 158	6	141		128		115		101	<u>.</u>	12		55
4		159	10	140	7	34				141	2 161	, w	158		141		128		116		12	:	1 5
5		140	5	159	**	140	2 13		3 12	[43	5 140		. 160	~~~	158		141		128	<u> </u>	115	7	125
		127		139	4	59				34	5 143			6	160		158		140		128		115
7		57	10	127	ω 1	38		8	7 1.	38	4 13.	4			140		160		157		140		128
	-	35		97	3	26		8	6 1:		3 137			7	141		140		160		157		
9		108		95	-	97	5 12	S	3					**	133	:	141		140		160		157
10.	2	103		108	4	95		2	7 1		2 138				136	6	133		140		139		160
1		85	 	103	-	08		4		_		3 4	137	~	156	e	136		128	~	139		139
12.		78	:	85	6 1	03			<u>~</u>			5		~	137	S	155	:	136		128		139
13	:		:	78	:	85		2	7 1 1(2 4	95	-	121	2	137	1	154		136		12
14			:	79	5	78	3	<u>.</u>	5 10			2	92	3	95		121	:	137	1	154		
		47	 1	67	ო	79						1	107	ŝ	92	ر	95	:	121	-	137	:	15
10		49 :	;	47	1	67	3 7	<u></u>		-	7 8	2	66	ŝ	107	:	92		94	-	121		13
1/		37		49	:	47		-	·``	8	3 7.	2	84		66	4	107		92		94	-	12
18		19	:	36	:	<u>.</u>		~			6 78	~	17	10	83		66	:	107	:	92	:	5
19	:	19	:	19			2 49		4	47	1 67	 	78		1	:	83	:	97		107		<u>~</u>
	:		:	19	:			- 9	4	-			67	2	78	:	17	:	83	1	97	:	10
21		15	:			19	4 	- - - - -	~~~ ~~~		2 49	~ ~	46		67		78	:	77	2	82	:	76
	:	: x					 :			<u>:</u>		:	64	:	46	:	67	1	78	:	77	:	ŝ
	<u> </u>			: ∞	:	15	1	;	_		2 19	-	35	:	49		46	+	67	:	78	:	5
24	:		:	: 	:	: ∞					15		. 19	2	35		49		44	-	66	:	~
····· ································	:	: :	:	-	:	: :				5	= 		11	•	19		35	:	49	:	44	:	6 6
	:	: m	:	: :				2		8	15				17		19	:	35		49	:	44
			:	<u>~</u>	:		 		<u>.</u> -	5	8		. 15		11		17	:	19		35	:	49
28			:			ς. Γ		:		2 	<u>.</u>		8	:	15	:	11	:	17	:	19	:	ŝ
	:	:	:	4	:	2		3 3			- -		<u>.</u>	:	8	:	15	:	11		17	:	1
30		6 	:	- - -		4		7 2	_	~	"	-	-		Ľ	-	¢		ţ		;		٣

State State

TABLE II-Continued

CLASS 1 AND 2 CASUALTIES ON MARITIME COMMISSION-BUILT SHIPS (INCLUDING SHIPS ON LOAN)

36

. .

.

τı
. v
_
_
•
0
$(\bar{)}$
<u> </u>
Т
· · · ·
H
щ
1
8
- 2
T .

•

CLASS 1 AND 2 CASUALTIES ON MARITIME COMMISSION-BUILT SHIPS (INCLUDING SHIPS ON LOAN)

	hips (s) Aftoat of the Same Age in the Month of Casucity	
	r of Shij	
	I Number	
	s, and 1	
	of Casualty	
	5	
	th at Time	
	Month	
	Calendar	
	and	
	Age	
	r) by	-
	isualties (i	
•	ರ ನ	
	Number	

1300 32

										Date of	Date of casualty	×										
		ļ	¥	1944											1945							
Age (Months after launching)	Scpt.		Oct.	Ž	Nov.	Dec.		Jan.		Feb.		Mar.		Apr.		May	5	June		July	< 	Aug.1
	" 0	" 	•	v	-		5				о •	•	о 	•	0	•	v		0	-	0	•
0	78	8	89		88		133	5	24	1	:	118		11		8		102		5	<u> </u>	
	% 	:	. 78	:	89	:	88 .		33	<u></u>	24	. 110		118		111		100		201		
2	80	:	. 89	:	78	, 1 1	89	**	88		132	. 124		110		118		111		100		
3	109	9 1	80	:	89	1	78 .	:	89		38	131		122		110	-	118		111		
4	116	:	. 109	:	80	:	89 .		77	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	<u>39 </u>	87		13]		122		110		118	<u> </u>	:
5	121	:	. 116	:	109	:	80	 :	89			. 89		87	:	131		122		110	<u>:</u>	:
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	125	2	. 121	:	115	1	109 .	:	80	1 8	89	. 77		89		87		131		122		
	115		. 125	:	121	:	115 .		109		80 1	89		17		89		87		131		
	127	7 1	115	:	124		121 .		115		109	. 80		89		17		89		87		
9	1 139		126	:	115		123 .		121		115	. 109		80		89		17		5 6	: 	
10	156		. 139		126	:	114		123	2 12	120	. 115		109		80		89		1		
	160	::-	. 155	:	139	:	126		114		123	. 119	***	115		109		80		89		
12	139	:	. 160	:	154		139		26	11	14	. 123	, ,	119		115		109		808		
13	138		. 139	:	160		152	-	37	1 12	26	. 112		122		119		115		109		
14	127		. 138	:	139	-	159		50	1 13	7 1	126		112		122		118		115		
15	135		126		137	-	138	2 1	58	1 15	50	. 137		126		112	•	122		118		
16	154		134	:	126	_	136		138	1 15		. 150		137		126	-	112		122		
1/	1 137	:	. 154	÷	133		126	1	36	1 13	38 1	157	:	150		137	:	126		112		
18	121	2	137	:	154		133	:	126	1 13	35 1	137		157	:	150		137		126		
19			120	:	137 .		53	1	133	. 12	26	. 135		136	:	157	:	150	-	137		
20	1 92		94	:	119		36	1	153	133	3	126	:	135		136	:	157		150		
Z1	1 106	:	32	:	93	- 	18		35	153	3	133	7	126		135		136		157		
		:	106		92 .	:	92		18 .	135	5	. 152	-	133	-	126	:	135	:	136		
23	2 82	<u>:</u>	6	:	106	~~ 1	91		16	1 118	:	. 135		151	:	133	:	126		135		
Z4		<u>:</u>	82	:	97 .		05	~	10	1 9	0 1	118	94	135	***	151	:	133		126		
			7		82	7	97	3	<u>.</u>	<u>ہ</u> :	0	16	г О	.118	:	135	7	151		133		
20	99	:	76	2	77	61	82	.	07	10	4		:	8		118		135		151		
27	44		66	:	76 .	:	77		32	1 9	<u>و</u> :	. 104		g	:	90	:	117		135		
	49	<u> </u>	44	:	66	,	76		17	1 8	:	- 96 -	2	104	0	90		20		117		
29		:	69	:	44	:	66	N	76 .	77	7 1	80	1	8	:	104		8		89		
			35	:	6		44	:	26		: 0	. 77	:	79	:	96		104		89		
Nore	shine avr		20 000				-			.		{										
which was reasing to surps exceeding of months age are omitted.	יאט כיקנוונ	linnoo	יווו יי צ	ה צוחםי	igc arc	omitte	.u.			<u>'</u>	-Study	1	inatco	l 1 Au	gust 1	945						

PART II

Analysis of Factors Contributing to Structural Failures

A. Sea and Weather Conditions

In determining the effects of sea and weather, it was necessary to use extra care to avoid misleading results. Ships of different designs might tend toward exclusive use of specific trade routes. For this reason and because there were so many identical subjects, the Liberty ship was used as the specimen for analysis. Existing orders to modify the hatch corners of vessels headed for regions of severe weather conditions tended to segregate the Liberties on a sea and weather condition scale. For this reason, vessels were eliminated from the study when the hatch corners were modified. For the same reason, the newer vessels with design and workmanship improvements were preferred for the more severe services, and this factor had to be considered. The selection finally narrowed down to the 667 EC2 vessels launched before February 1943. These vessels were completed before any structural design details were altered.

The service life of each vessel was included from date of launching to the present or to the date it was lost, loaned abroad or modified at the hatch corners. The modified vessels were then studied separately.

Each vessel of the group was located from the log entry on 1 February 1943; 1 August 1913; 1 February 1944; 1 August 1944; 1 February 1945; and 1 August 1945. The locations of the ships for each of the six dates were plotted together on one chart, figure 25. Vessels in port were kept separate. The combined picture is representative of the condition over the operating period.

To obtain the data regarding the proportion of service time experienced at various temperatures, the world chart of ship locations was applied to twelve charts of the world including isotherms for the monthly average temperatures. The ship occasions chart, Fig. 25, was considered to represent the distribution of Liberty ships over the world at any instant during the period under study, as it shows the integrating positions based upon six occasions spread over the period of study. The 3,413 ship occasions indicated on the chart were divided between the 10° temperature ranges described by the isotherms on the world charts. The occasions within each temperature range were then summed for the twelve monthly charts. Thus a relative distribution was obtained indicating the experience of the ships in each temperature range based upon monthly isothermal charts.

The isothermal charts show the average monthly temperature. Instantaneous temperatures are above and below the average for a cutain percentage of time. Data regarding the average spread distribution corresponding to each average monthly temperature and for various different climates were obtained from the Weather Bureau and the Hydrographic Office. A correction was applied to the accumulated occasions within each temperature range and they were redistributed to represent instantaneous values. This correction was generally not great. The resulting figures indicated the proportionate amount of service time for each temperature range as established with the aid of the ship occasions chart. These relative figures were changed to actual ship months of service by a straight multiplication because the total number of months of service time on the particular group of ships was known.

A similar procedure was followed in the case of both the sea and swell charts but the Hydrographic Office furnished charts which were on a percentage of time per month rather than an average monthly basis. It was therefore not necessary to make the correction for average monthly values.

The number of fractures for the corresponding period of operation were plotted opposite the temperature which was reported with each. When the temperature at time of fracture was not reported, the fracture was not enumerated in this study.

From the assembled data based on the 667 Liberty ships launched before 1 February 1943, an attempt













Figure 26.

was made to ascertain the risk of casualty under varying conditions of air temperature and state of the sea. Various plots were made but it was found that the data were not sufficient to establish casualty risks under known combinations of air temperature and state of sea in such a manner that they would withstand a rigorous statistical appraisal. It was possible, however, to eliminate entirely the effect of sea in a study which was made on ships in port only. The results of this study are presented in figure 26

TABLE III

CLASS 1 AND 2 CASUALTIES ON 667 LIBERTIES LAUNCHED BEFORE 1 FEBRUARY 1943 Number of Casualties (c) by Age and Calendar Month at Time of Casualty, and Number of Ships Afloat (s) of the Same Age in the Month of Casualty

Age (Months after lauuching)	F4 19			nter 1-42		ring 942		nmer 942		all 942		inter 2-43		ring 943		nmer 943		all 943	Wir 194	ster 3-44
	с 	:	c	:	c	:	c	:	c		c		c		c		c	j .	6	
1, 2, 3,		10		58		163		324	2	507	23	692	9	250						
4, 5, 6,				10		57		144	1	307	10	494	18	669	5	241				
7, 8, 9						10		54	1	136	5	297	10	476	8	650	1	233		l
10, 11, 12								9		52	1	135	4	288	2	471	10	646	10	22
13, 14, 15										7		48	3	125		286	5	468	21	59
16, 17, 18											[6	2	40	1	121		282	19	44
19, 20, 21								<i>.</i>				1		6	1	39	1	119	11	26
22, 23, 24															1	6	1	39	2	11
07 07 07					1 I						•	(I		1	3
28, 29, 30	• • • •																			

Ann () (- all a class lourshing)	Sp 19	ring 944		mmer 944		all 944		inter 4–45		ring 945		mmer 945		Fall 945		nter 5-46
Age (Months after launching)	с		c	1	с	8	с	5	с		c		c		c	
13, 14, 15	15	184														
16, 17, 18	22	484	1	135						[Į			1		
19, 20, 21	10	355	2	349	1	104										
22, 23, 24	5	203	1	251		239		69								
25, 26, 27	1	90	1	139		175	[<i>.</i>	167		59]				
28, 29, 30		27	1	65		97	1	92		129		52				
31, 32, 33		3		18		46		58		80		121		46		
34, 35, 36				2		13		37		33		72	[101		3
37, 38, 39						2]	12		31		28		56		9
40, 41, 42	1		• • • •			• • • • •		2		12		29		14		4
43. 44, 45						••••				2		12		21		
46 , 47, 48		• • • • •										2		12		1
49, 50, 51	1		• • •											2		
52, 53, 54	1											1	 			

TABLE III—Continued

and show the distribution of service time and fractures for various air temperature ranges. This plot includes Class 1, 2 and 3 fractures for the above water line portion of the hull as well as an indication of the risk of casualty in terms of casualty per ship months of service time; all curves are plotted against air temperature ranges.

Although the number of fractures did not permit a complete subdivision on the basis of both sea and weather, it was possible to get a rough idea of what the combined effect of these two items would be. From the approximations made, it would appear that the risk of casualty at the lower operating temperatures and rough seas is many times the risk of fracture in very warm weather and in port. These are extremes of operation, however, and it is fortunate that there are few ships operating in cold weather and heavy seas. Although it was not possible to obtain the actual risk under any given condition, it is possible to make a comparison of the overall contribution of the two variables on the fracture problem and with respect to the 667 Liberty ships. For this purpose, the operating time of these ships was divided into four equal parts and it has been possible to separate the 620 fractures (Class 1, 2 and 3) into corresponding groups.

	Fractures	Ratio
Temperature high in port	11	1
Temperature low in port	37	3
Temperature high at sea 1		5
Temperature low at sea 1		47

¹ It must be realized that two-thirds of the operating time was spent in port, consequently the service time in the two "at sea" quadrants includes not only the data in heavy seas, and in normal and calm seas, but also a certain amount of time in port. All reported air and sea temperatures and sea conditions are tabulated in the alphabetical index of casualties in the appendix of this report.

B. Age of Vessel

The date and age data, table II, permit study in many different ways. A sample plotting of winter casualties, figure 27, shows that casualty rate is not appreciably affected by age. Summer casualties are very few and show no anomalies. Other divisions by season may be plotted ad lib but most of the casualties were in winter.

The effects of structural alterations on the "667 Liberties" are eliminated by deleting each ship from the list at the time the alterations were made, table III. Thus greater homogeneity of the date and age data on these ships permits further analysis. Although the curves, figure 28, show risk diminishing as age increases, such a conclusion would be hasty. This trend might be explained in several different ways; as by decreasing quality in ship construction practices, increasing notch sensitivity in the steel, or the selective assignment of missions to different categories of ships, there is no way of disentangling these influences. In any case, it is not to be regarded as an effect of climination from the category of ships especially subject to casualty (lemons).

One conclusion which might be drawn from the curves for winters 1942-43 and 1943-44 is that the conditions to which the ships were exposed in the second of these were notably more severe than in the first.

The upper and lower dispersion limits are shown on figures 27 and 28. These limits are established on the basis of probability so that 99 out of 100 sir r findings could be expected to fall between them.



.

C. Loading of Vessel

It was early suspected that poorly distributed cargo loading, under the pressure of wartime necessity, had been responsible for many of the structural failures. It was therefore decided to mbark upon a study of the effect of cargo loading and in this regard, information was solicited from Merchant Marine inspectors and supplemented by data from the logs of many merchant vessels. The information on the dry cargo Liberty ships presented a great variety of loadings and no rational method for reducing this mass of data was evolved. It was noted from a rough survey that the details of the loading were considerably different, but the fore and aft distribution varied within relatively narrow limits insofar as bending moment on the hull was concerned.

In order to obtain a base line to which comparisons could be made, calculations were made on the Liberty ships at several different drafts with a loading which was uniformly distributed so that the trim was representative of typical operating conditions. Typical trim conditions at various drafts were obtained by recording the fore and aft drafts of 216 ships from the log books. The trim used in the calculation was the average of the scattered plots. From these bending moment calculations, the maximum tensile stress in the crown of the deck amidships was determined and is indicated in figure 29 by triangles and a solid line. The maximum nominal stress value in the deck with this type of loading was about 7,600 pounds per square inch tension at 24 feet mean draft. Comparison between the uniform loading used for this calulation and the numerous loading charts forwarded to Coast Guard Headquarters indicates that the uniform loading was practically typical and can be considered so.

For further comparison, stresses from bending moment calculations performed by the University of California on two Liberties have been plotted as hollow circles. It will be noted that the scatter of points follows the general trend of the line of uniform load distributions. In addition, a calculation was made on a condition representative of the most severe hogging load likely to occur in normal service and the deck stress was found to be 13,750 pounds per square inch tension under this abnormal bending load. Finally, calculations were made on several vessels which had cracked. The nominal stress at the point of fracture is plotted with solid circles. The scatter again centers around the line of uniform loading. This indicates that the loading on the vessels which fractured was apparently not abnormal even though the stress from loading is appreciable.

Although a wide range of cargo distributions can be produced, it can be seen that the actual difference in bending moment between typical normal distributions is not great and little would be gained by attempting to prescribe cargo loading distributions. On the other hand, ballasting presents a possibility for a wider range of variations without interference with good operating conditions. Prescriptions were therefore made up for standard ballasting distributions and are now in use on Liberty ships in the North Atlantic. The nominal deck stresses with the various standard ballasting plans are indicated by boxes on the illustration, figure 29. The box indicated as London and Glasgow ballasting represents the ballasting system used before the longitudinal bending moment was a consideration and failures became a problem. The Maritime Commission 1,500-ton ballasting schedule is now in use. The weight distributions in the standard ballasting conditions is shown on Table IV.

A similar but less extensive study was done on the cargo loading on the T2 Tankers. It was found that a much wider possible range existed for the cargo loading conditions with nominal deck stresses reaching 14,540 pounds per square inch tension under an abnormal load condition. Stresses from uniform loading, however, were even lower than those in the Liberty. They varied in a smooth curve from 6,000 pounds per square inch tension in the light condition to 600 pounds per ruare inch compression with a uniform full load, the deck stress in lightship condition being the maximum value for a uniformly distributed loading. Loading calculations have been made on two T2 casualties and the nominal stresses at the points of fracture in the sheer strake in one case and in the deck in another was found to be 9,900 pounds per square inch tension for the SS Schenectady and 12,150 pounds per square inch tension for the SS Esso Manhattan. It is clear that in the case of tankers, abnorred loading can contribute to the failures but that i. can be avoided with greater ease than on the Liberties.



45

1

.

ارجا سرم

1. Star 2 . . V

TABLE IV

Summary Sheet-Loading Conditions (Liberty E(?-::--C1)

	M. C. ballast of 1500 tons; return from United Kingdom	M. ^e C. ballast from London, Leith, and BUR Glasgow		
Lightship	3,670	3,670		
Crew and stores	30	0		
Potable water	56	54		
Inner bottom No. 1	144	144		
Inner bottom No. 2	340	346		
Inner bo ⁺ tom No. 3	234	254		
Inner bottom No. 4	132	134		
Inner bottom No. 5	236	256		
Inner bottom No. 6	110	120		
Forepeak	145	138		
Deep tank No. 1	0	228		
Deep tank No. 2	420	424		
Settling tanks	100	100		
Deep tank No. 3	760	0		
Aftpeak	155	152		
Cargo space No. 1	0	0		
Cargo space No. 2	360	300		
Cargo space No. 3	615	300		
Cargo space No. 4	525	450		
Cargo space No. 5	0	450		
Lazarette	0	0		
Tons displacement	8,032	7,520		
Per cent of full load	57	53		
Ft. tons still water moment	22,485	53,290		
P. s. i. stress in deck	2,292	5,900		

D. Repeated Casualties

Certain vessels have incurred more than one casualty. When a ship suffers two or more failures, there is a tendency to dub her "a lemon". This frequent reaction to repeated failures implies that certain ships by virtue of inherent characteristics are more liable to suffer structural failures. It would be practically impossible to separate the causes of such additional casualties and point to workmanship, fabrication practices, material or to some mysterious unknown factor as the coeprit. An attempt was made, however, to get some idea as to whether such "lemons" actually exist.

A probability calculation has been made to determine the number of repeated failures which would result from a random scattering of 922 casualties among a corresponding group of 2,580 ships on the assumption that all units are equally likely to attract trouble.

TABLE V

Theoretical Versus Actual Distribution, Repeated Casualties EC2-S-C1 Casualties Up to 1 August 1945 Based on 922 Class 1, 2 and 3 Casualties

	According to theory of probability ¹	Actually reported
EC?'s which suffered no casualties	1,806	1,932
CO2's which suffered 1 casualty only	644	454
EC2's which suffered 2 casualties only	115	140
EC2's which suffered 3 casualties only	14	33
EC2's which suffered 4 casualties only	1	17
EC2's which suffered 5 casualties only	0	3
EC2's which suffered 6 casualties only	0	1
To:al ships involved	2,580	2,580

The indication is that after a ship has had a casualty, it is somewhat more liable to a casualty than before the first.

¹The Poisson distribution formula was used in this computation:

$$(\mathbf{x}) = \frac{\mathbf{e}^{-\mathbf{m}} \mathbf{m}^{\mathbf{x}}}{! \mathbf{x}}$$

where e is the base of natural logarithms.

p

- x is the order, or the integral number of repetitions considered.
- p(x) is the fraction of the whole number of casualties for each order "x".
- m is the average value of casualties per ship, i.e., 922+2580.

PART III

Susceptibility to Fracture of Different Ship Designs and Structural Details

A. Shipbuilder and Type of Vessel

The various Maritime Commission designs have been divided to show the susceptibility of each design to structural casualties. In addition, the EC2s and T2 Tankers have been listed by shipyard because the number of vessels built by each yard was sufficient to permit a picture of their relative performance. The figures in Table VI show the number of ships launched in each group, the ship months of service time up to 1 April 1946, the number of casualties of all classes which were reported up to that time, and the Class 1 casualties.

A study of the figures shows that no real conclusion can be drawn. Considering only those groups which accumulated more than 3,000 ship months of service, it will be seen that the best record with the Liberty ships was in Permanente Yards 1 and 2, and second best was Bethlehem-Fairfield, which was the only yard where shell seams were riveted. Considering the Class 1 casualties only. however, it will be noted that the best yard is Bethlehem-Fairfield and second best is New England.

It is difficult to rationalize these results on the basis of workmanship because Bethlehem-Fairfield did not exhibit remarkably good appearance in the Welding Advisory Committee's workmanship report and other reliable reports indicate that the quality of hull structure produced by Permanente varied from fair to good as systematic controls were introduced. At the other extreme, Oregon received a poor report from the Welding Advisory Committee and has a correspondingly poor casualty record. Calship is intermediate with a moderately poor casualty record and a good report by the Welding Advisory Committee.

A feeling of confidence in the vessels with riveted shell scams resulted in their assignment to routes where severe weather conditions were anticipated. In light of this and the good performance record under such adverse circumstances, the beneficial influences of riveted seams cannot be denied.

In connection with the Class 1 casualties, the good record of New England is difficult to explain but it should be noted that this yard riveted the bulwark to the top of the sheer strake, thereby eliminating many serious fractures which might have emanated from the bulwark. A similar lack of alignment between serious class and all class casualty results exists in almost the entire table and cannot be explained.

The casualty result on the T2 Tankers is even more difficult to rationalize but it is interesting to note that Marinship, where great care was taken in the structural details and where gamma ray inspection was used, has a measurably superior record to the other three shipyards. This yard received about the most favorable report of any yard visited by the Welding Advisory Committee.

Sixteen of the 78 Marinship tankers were delivered directly to the Navy. This is a somewhat higher proportion than for the other yards, but the good record of Marinship cannot be greatly affected by this factor because reports of major difficulties on Navy operated vessels did not include any Class 1 casualties for Marinship.

It is gratifying to see the record of the Victory ships as compared to the others. Their record indicates quite clearly that it is possible to eliminate most of the fractures by improving design details including riveted gunwales and using more careful workmanship.

Previous reports have mentioned the high casualty rate of the C2 refrigerated ships. These casualties were invariably in the tween decks inside of the insulated holds. The numerous repairs have included rounded corners for the hatches and in several cases, the introduction of riveted seams around the margins of the tween decks. In recent months, the number of failures reported for these ships has dropped markedly indicating that the alterations have been effective. (For other designs see Table VII.)

Тлыг. Ул

Shipbuilder and Type of Level

Comparison of Casualty Incidence Based on Casualties Replaced In our 1 North 2016.

Type of vessel and shipbuilder	Number ships launched	Ship months of service	X^{0} C^{0} .	An else stran files () Cros one		
			Nu	(uslues pa sinp rionth	Numbra	Cosuplues per scip noath
EC2-S-C1			1			
Alabama	20	704	21	0.0293	2 .	0.6028
Bethlehem-Fairfield.	130	10,821	00	0.0683	2 (0.0002
Calship	306	10.619	164	0.0154	15	0.0018
Delta	132	549	57	0.0161	12	0.0001
Jones Brunswick	65	1 /15	27	0.0111	1.1	0.0005
Jones Panama	66	1 95	14	0.6094	1	0.0007
Kaiser Vancouver	10	3.9	8	0.0217	t,	0.0027
Marinship	15	542	7	9.0129	0	0
New England	236	5,70	72	0.0126	2	0.0004
North Carolina	126	4,085	60	0.0147	5 '	0.0012
Oregon	322	11,011	2י5	0.0195	20 (0.0018
Permanente	489	15.557	100	0.0064	14	0.0009
Rhcem	1	41	0	0	Ŭ j	0
St. Johns	82	1,908	26	0.0136	1	0.0005
Southeastern	88	2,196	23	0.0105	1	00.005
Todd-Houston	208	5,542	74	0.0134	18	0.0032
Walsh-Kaiser	10	309	7	0.0227	0	0
Total EC2-S-C1	2,530	76,396	964	0.0126	99	0.0013
T2 TANKERS						
Alabama	102	2,147	22	0.0125	6	0.0027
Kaiser Swan	147	3,283	66	0.0201	6	0.0018
Marinship	78	1,611	4	0.0025	0	0
Sun	203	4,991	101	0.0202	•	0.0008
Total T2 tankers	530	12,032	193	0.0160	16	0.0013
TOTAL VICTORIES	414	5,940	33	0.0056	0	0
All Maritime Convission Ships.	4,687	125,985	1,441	0.0114	127	0.0010

B. Liberty Ships

A plot, figure 30, has been prepared showing the longitudinal and vertical location of all classes of fractures on the Liberty ships. This chart indicates that the fractures peak up near amidships in the upper deck and in the bottom with few fractures in the tween decks, indicating that longitudinal bending stresses play an important part in their distribution. The tabulation also shows the magnifying effect of certain design features such as the hatch corners which were responsible for 612 fractures or 24.4 percent. The sketch of the EC2-S-C1 vessel indicates the effect quite clearly, figure 31.

The distribution of the fractures in the 89 serious casualtics occurring up to 1 August 1045, is some-

what different, figure 32. In many cases, the damage was so extensive that the starting point was not located. For this reason, it is only possible to identify positively the starting point of 31 casualties involving 42 fractures. Ten of these fractures or 24 percent started in the sheer strake cut for the gangway ladder. 22 or 52 percent started in the hatch corner including 48 percent at No. 3 hatch.

Figure 33 shows the original design of the hatch corner and indicates the three most important sources of fractures. The greatest number of hatch corner fractures occurred in the manner indicated as A, second greatest as B, and there were several of type C. In the case of the type B fractures, there was involved a combination of design and workmanship. The abrupt end of the 51-pound doubler beneath the

1 SOTE VII

B tore 1 Aug 1945 1 Aug 45-1 Apr 1 -16 Letore LADE 1946 En ige. PG2 CL 922 965 7-11:4-03 2 53 42 21,2-573 7.FC2.SC5 3 1 4 IC2-S-AW3 Tank 11 1 0 1 12 193 178 15 **T**3 18 9 18 C1A & C1B. ... 2 Storrland Cargo 38 11 C.2 31 2 33 C2 Ref.ig. 10 1 41 C3 ... 8 3 11 C,4 2 i 3 Corbeoa P & C ... C2 P & C . . 4 0 C3 P & C . Miscel'annous C1-M-AVI ð 4 4 L6. 13 ĉ 13 N3.... 13 1 1: V4 ... 0 Į 1 Victory . VC2-S-AP2, 3, & 4... 19 33 14 - = ----Total .. 1,342 99 1.441

Cosmoltion Occurring on Various Designs

deck was probably sufficient in itself to start a fracture at so critical a location but in many cases, this was supplemented by a saddle weld in the butt of the deck plating at this point. It was common practice in some shipyards to weld with a Unionmelt machine to within a few inches of the hatch coaming where the automatic equipment had to be stopped. The remainder of the seam was completed by hand welding without further preparation and a saddle weld resulted because of failure of the welding to penetrate the square edged butt.

Many fractures occur at the sheer strake cut for the gangway ladder and the square onding of the boat deck plate stanchions, figures 34 and 35.

It has been noted that the fractures at the centerline stanchion of the second deck almost always occurred as a result of rough weather. The second deck at the edge of the hatch is under high tension whenever there is cargo loaded in the tween decks because the heavy supporting H stanchion is just beneath. Most of these fractures have occurred in the forward end of No. 2 hold and the aft end of No. 1 hold. This is just about where maximum pounding would be expected. The thrust of the bottom force overcoming the inertia of the tween deck cargo produces high stresses in the deck over the H column. In addition, notches around the sole plate of the tween deck stanchion and the ends of brow plates magnify the stress, figure 36.

Bending tests on the Liberties indicate that the bending stresses in the hull are only slightly reduced by the presence of the deck house. The number of amidship bulwark fractures and shell fractures at the gangway support this. It is curious to note that up to 1 August 1915, the corners of the machinery casings which are similar in design to the other hatch corners suffered less than 13 fractures. Hatch No. 3 suffered 377 fractures and No. 4 110 fractures and the beneficial influence of the warmth in the casing is hard to contest.

It has frequently been held that the hatch corners were not the serious offenders but that many of the fractures emanated at the bulwark or gunwale and ran inboard to the hatch corner. A fracture running



<u>NJTC</u>, RUMBER IN THE UFFER LETT COMMER OF EACH SOUME INDICATES THE RUMBER OF FRACTURS THAT MAVE OCCURATO IN THAT PARTICULAR BECTION OF VESSEL. THE RUBERAL IN THE UPPER RIGHT CORMER INDICATES THE FER CENT OF THE TOTAL FRACTURES OF ALL SECTIONS (ESO4) DI THE TOTAL FRACTURES OF ALL SECTIONS (ESO4)

••

• .

۰.



DETAILS WITH ABNORMAL FREQUENCY OF FRACTURES

THESE DATA INCLUDE 2504 FRACTURES OF KNOWN ORIGIN, OCCURING BEFORG 1AUG.45. 158 OTHER FRACTURES OF INDEFINITE ORIGIN WERE REPORTED





52

LIBERTY SHIP EC2-S-CI

١,

4

DETAILS WITH ABNORMAL FREQUENCY OF FRACTURES THESE DATA INCLUDE, 4.2 FRACTURES OF KNOWN ORIGIN, OCCURING BEFORE I AUG.45, AND WHICH RESULTED IN CLASS 1 CASUALTIES



Figure 52



from hatch corner to gunwale would warrant grading the casualty Class 1. The Class 1 EC2 casualties include 67 fractures involving the hatch corner vicinity. Thirty-nine of these fractures are known to have originated in the hatch corner. A simple proportion indicates that 5 or 6 of the 28 fractures of indefinite origin probably can be attributed to the details of the gunwale or bulwark. The reported 612 hatch corner fractures do not include these 5 or 6, nor do they include the remaining 22 or 23 which probably originated in the hatch corners. - . . .





THE REAL PROPERTY AND INCOMENTS

1.2



FRACTURES LOCATED FROM PHOTOGRAPHS OR FIELD SKETCHES

Figure 35.

55

-

LIBERTY VESSEL CENTERLINE STANCHION, SECOND DECK

.

uther a substitution



FRACTURES LOCATED FROM PHOTOGRAPHS OR FIELD SKETCHES Figure 86.

Æ

51

- •



C. 12 Tankers

The longitudinal distribution of the fractures on the T2 Tankers also shows a peak amidships indicating that bending of the hull is partly responsible for their occurrence, figure 37. All of the nine serious casualties occurred in Nos. 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 tanks.

The source of the failure has been located on two of the ships which broke in two. In the case of the SS Esso Manhattan, a defective butt weld was the source and in the case of the SS Schenectady, it was a notch resulting from the combined effect of a design detail and a defective weld. The source of trouble on the two recent T2 Tanker catastrophes is not yet known.

Most of the Class 3 fractures occurred in a detail at the juncture of the transverse and longitudinal bulkheads, figure 39. Three hundred twenty-five fractures reported before 1 August 1945, at these intersections have been traced to design details which cause a stress concentration under the influence of both hull bending and local hydrostatic loads. It would appear from the longitudinal distribution of these fractures that the hull bending stresses have considerably more to do with the failures than local hydrostatic loading, either static or dynamic.

The sources of these fractures have been located by calculation and test and a satisfactory measure has been devised to ease the offending detail.

One hundred and seventy fractures occurred at the toe of a bracket on the transverse bulkheads, figure 40. This is a design detail which can easily be cured and improved arrangements have been fitted in several vessels. A check on the longitudinal distribu-

÷



58

يەس د

١

The second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second s

- - -

•••

٠.



,

59



T2-SE-AL TYPE Composite Sketch of Fractures FRIPPING BRACKETS OF BULKHEAD STIPFENERS ON TRANSVERSE BULKI

.

NOTE.

FRACTURES LOCATED FROM PHOTOGRAPHS OR FIELD SXETCHES

۱,

60

Figure 40.



Figure 41.

indicated in figure 37 have involved many detai the internal structure. They are local in nature.

D. Victory Ships

Practically all of the casualties on the Victory ships have been Class 3. The fractures reported before 1 August 1945, indicate two principal sources of trouble: the bulwark cap rail and plating and 701292-47-5 the bulwark braces. The casualties occurring before 1 August 1945, included 53 fractures. Eighteen, or 30 percent, occurred in butts of the bulwark and 27, or 51 percent, occurred at the toes of the bulwark braces.


· · · · · · · · · · ·

-



SHOWING FRACTURE OF MIZZEN MAST OF MAHANOY CITY VICTORY

WHICH OCCURRED ON 24, JAN. 1946. FRACTURE EXTENDED COMPLETELY AROUND MAST EXCEPT FOR 8-1/2" ON THE FORE SIDE.





Most of the bulwark failures occur at the forward and aft end of the deck house where the bulwark is flanged to land perpendicular to the rounded house front, figure 41. This is a poor design detail but is not a dangerous feature because experience with the Liberties led to constructing the Victory bulwarks free of the top of the sheer strake. This freedom prevents the cracks from propagating into the hull.

Most of the bulwark brace failures occurred on the forecastle, figure 42. It appears that the load of water resulting from plowing into a wave bends the widely flared bulwarks outward and causes the braces to fail. Sometimes the weld between the brace and deck plating cracks but frequently the deck itself is torn or cracked. This is not serious on the forecastle but it sometimes occurs nearer amidships. Most of the Class 2 Victory ship casualties involve this type of fracture.

Since 1 August 1945, there have been reported five new and curious failures, figure 43. The masts have broken on five new ships as follows:

Antioch Victory MahanoyCityVictory Brown Victory	Mainmast	Bethlehem-Fairfield. Oregon.
WAYCROSS VICTORY ST.LAWRENCEVICTORY.	Mainmast	Bethlehem-Fairfield.

The cause of these failures has not been determined but the sources of the steel are being checked.

E. Relative Contribution of Design and Workmanship

The fractures occurring on the EC2-S-C1 design have been grouped to determine the proportionate contribution of design and workmanship to the number of fractures which occurred. It is impossible to make a breakdown with a clear line of demarkation between the groups because in many cases, poor design details and poor workmanship went hand in hand in their contribution to the fracture. In other cases awkward design resulted in defective welds because of the difficulty in performing the welding.

Using reported casualty data supplemented by the findings of the research projects for guidance, it has

been possible to make a reasonably reliable judgment regarding the part played by workmanship in 1,800 of the 2,504 fractures reported occurring on the *EC2-S-C1* vessels before 1 August 1945. It was found that in 25 percent of these cases, no fracture would have resulted had good workmanship been used. In 20 percent of the cases, there was some question but it was believed that the failure might have been avoided had the workmanship been good. In the remaining 55 percent, the design conditions created such severe notches that perfect workmanship could have done little to prevent the failures.

The 25 percent fractures which could have been avoided by good workmanship include welded butts in the bulb bars in the bulwark and bilge keel. These defective butt welds might have been avoided in the design stage by the use of some other member instead of the bulb bar. The 20 percent which might have been avoided by good workmanship were practically all a. the end of the hatch corner doubler where the participation of perfect workmanship is questionable. It can be seen from this that design contributed to a large proportion of the casualties, far greater than did workmanship.

This should not be taken as an excuse for relaxing the standards of workmanship because many serious failures including the *Esso Manhattan* which broke in two were traced to defective butt welds where poor design played no part whatsoever.

F. Discussion

Almost all of the fractures could be traced to a notch of some sort. This notch might be a design geometry or a defective weld but in practically every case, a real notch could be found. There were a few cases, however, where geometry did not participate. In most of these, the fracture commenced at a longitudinal welded seam and spread to port and starboard. In the five Victory ship mast failures, the fractures have occurred near but not in geometrical configurations. In each case, however, they were near welds. The welds in some cases appear to affect the structure apart from creating geometrical discontinuities.

PART IV

Effectiveness of Certain Structural Alterations

A. Summary of Alterations Performed on Liberty Ships

Table IX shows the numbers of vessels of various types which have been altered in accordance with requirements which have been issued. It will be seen that hatch corner reinforcements have been fitted on practically all of the vessels and that riveted crack arrestors have been fitted on a great many. Compliance with current requirements involves immediate addition of hatch corner reinforcements, deck and gunwale crack arrestors on all passengercarrying Liberties. Cargo ships must have hatch corner reinforcements and gunwale crack arrestors before issuance of the annual inspection certificate beginning 30 June 1946. All alterations will therefore be completed by 30 June 1947.

Type of Liberty Ship

SHIPS CONVERTED TO CARRY TROOPS

- AP -Dry cargo ship completely converted for troops operated by Navy.
- APK -Dry cargo ship partially converted for troops operated by Navy.
- XAP -Dry cargo ship completely converted for troops operated by WSA.
- XAPK -Dry cargo ship partially converted for troops.
- XAH -Dry cargo ship converted to hospital ship.
- DRY CARGO SHIPS
 - XAK-1 -General cargo not converted EC2-S-C1 (except Navy operated).
 - XAK-2 -General cargo converted to cable ship.
 - XAK-3 -- General cargo converted to mule carrier.
 - XAK-4 Tank (motorized equipment) carrier Z-EC2-S-C2.
 - XAK-5 Tank and airplane carrier Z-EC2-S-C5.

AK —General cargo not converted EC2-S-C1 operated by Navy.

- XAC -Colliers, EC2-S-AW1.
- LIQUID CARGO SHIPS
 - XAO Tank vessels Z-ET1-S-C3 (except Navy operated).
 - AO —Tank vessels Z-ET1-S-C3 operated by Navy.
- MISC. VESSELS OPERATED BY ARMY AND NAVY Army: MA-MA repair ships, etc. Navy: MN-M, AG, AK, AKN, AKS, ARG, ARV, and IX (unclassified).

B. Hatch Corner Reinforcements on Liberty Ships

Figures have been prepared to show the relative effectiveness of the various types of hatch corner reinforcements prescribed for the Liberty ships. The results up to 1 August 1945, are tabulated below:

Type of hatch corner reinforcement	Ship months of service	Casualties involving hatch corners	Casualties per ship month
Unreinforced Reinforced in service, Codes 5,	22,146	210	0.0095
6, and 7	17,115	37	.0022
Reinforced during construction, Codes 1 and 2	7,722	0	0
Hatch codes 3, 4, and 8, (not approved)	5,403	8	.0015

TABLE VIII

The above table should not be considered a true statistical presentation of the relative merits of the hatch corner reinforcement designs because it is impossible to determine the weather and sea service conditions to which the various groups of ships were subjected. The comparison of casualty rates used above is a sound method of approach provided the

ì

24,993

37

Approved codes 1, 2, 5, 6, 7....

.0015

2	
1	3
ן ב	
E	LABLE

۰.

,,,

SUMMARY OF STRUCTURAL ALTERATIONS ON LIBERTY SHIPS I, FEBRUARY 1946

IPS IN OPERATION .	2212					77	TYPE OF	VESSEL								
LOST WAR - 193 LOST - MARINE - 42		<u> </u>	TROOPSHIPS	Ø	CARRIERS			DRY CI	CARGO SHI	SHIPS			LIQUID CARGO SHIF	SHIPS	MISC:	GRAND
DANED - 264 Dîal Launched 27	2005	A P	XAP	H	XAH	XAK-1	XAK-2	XAK-3	XAK-4	XAK-5	AK		XAO	AO	IX	TOTAL
NUMBER OF SHIP			17	261	ł	1704			-	36	35	64	6 E	ō	52	2123 -
 1, d N	-	 		n		494				98	•	-		1	23	202
	~												~	•		=
	m					165										5
	4		_		_	\$						Í				•
	5		91	264		870					2				2	117
	9												8			82
	~										-		T			
	8			õ	_	50			-		•		2	<u>0</u>	ļ	
TOTAL.	AL.		16	277		1597			-	35	<u>9</u>	-	2	•	ş	= 2047
				21		363					•		~	-	ñ	435
	0	-	21	P.	-	•						ļ				% %
	M		•		n										•	5
	-											52				24
	TOTAL		2	24	•	366				~	9	24	7	1	31	E 484
	-					376				35		24			13	454
	•		 	건		•					•		٤		7	
] •1		•	•	•	2									1	41
	4		•	•		2							3			83
	5			•		163					•					170
	0					12										*
	^			<u>ല</u>		862			1	-	13		83	8 2	ĩ	767
	••		-	182		159										345
	6		-	<u>લ</u>						-			1			•0
TOTAL' 5,C & 7 .			0	\$ 0	0	827			1	-	22	0	28	61	50	- 939
TOTAL ARRESTORS -	RS=		15	203	•	591			0	36	e	24	2	0	26	= 916
TOTAL .	AL =		15	223	4	1418			-	37	88	2	39	2	\$8	= 1864
15 1	-		5	•	4	=					-		8			н 36
			-	2		366			-	36	2	**	39	61	33	1803
	~	-		86		20					•				63	62
	ຄ		=	n	4	72										90
TOTAL	ALT		2	140	*	1151			1	36	17	24	39	19	35	= 1478
	-		=	126	•	586				36	8	24	10		32	5
	01		8	115		162									5	283
C TOTAL=			4	241	*	748				36	•	*3	ō		33 .	e::: =

2.5

1922

٠,

66



.

Figure 44.

.

.

HATCH REINFORCEMENT CODE NUMBER 5, 6 8 7



FORE & AFT

'³⁵E1 A 4 Trace mare

HATCH LCEVER LOOKING OUTBOARD

CODE NUMBER 5 --- HATCHES 2, 3 8 4 IN UPPER DK

*U S. MARITIME COMMISSION MG PLAN CC2 -S-UI-SIG-2-3 DETAILS I & 3 U.S. COAST GUARD PLAN EMM 17 -SII-17-1 ALTERATION "A"

U. S. COAST GUARD PLAN MI IS-SII-IT-I DETAIL A

(NOTE: THE US GO PLANE, DETAIL & DO NOT INCLUDE DIAGONALS AT THE LOWER FLANGES OF THE BEAMS & GIRDERS)

MOORE DRYDOCK CO. -LAN 9997 DETAILS I & 3

*BETHLEHEM STEEL CO. S & DIV, SETH ST BXLYN PLAN T-398 DETAIL I & DIAGONALS *ARTHUR & BLAIR INC, PLAN DGA-95 DETAIL A & 3

LA. JONES CONST CO. INC., FANANA CITY (SK-SH-S- 40 DETAILS I & 3 & 2-SK-SH-N-48 DETAILS I & 3

L JOHES CONST OU HOL, SAMAR DIST (AN SHI CHE O CENTER OF CONTENT OF DETAILS THE S L JOHES PLAN SHOWS STODUBLER PLACED ADAVE INSERT PL) CODE NUMBER 6--- NO DIAGONALS, APPLIES TO "PUNKS 3, 4, 5, 6 & 7 IN UPPER DK (HATCHES 2, 3 & 4) U S. MARITIME COMMISSION MC PLAN 2-ETI-S-C3-SIG-2-3 DETAIL I CODE NUMBER 7---SIMILAR BUT NO DIAGONALS HURLEY MARINE WORKS ING. PLAN EC2-30 DOTS NOT STATE COMMENT TO SE REINFORCED

NAVY DEPT. BU. OF SHIPS FLAN OITESS • •

NORFOLK HAVY YARD PLAN AK14-SI-06-297825, UPPER DK. HATCHES I TO S INC. NOTES

- . SOME LIBERTY SHIPS HAVE NO INSERT PLATES AT THE HATCH CORNER.
- SOME LIBERTY SHIPS HAVE THE SI DOUBLER ABOVE DK.

* CODE NO. 5 EXACTLY AS SHOWN

Figure 45.



۱,





service conditions are identical and the number of cases are sufficient for sampling purposes. Failing this, the traditional method of judging the benefit of alterations by impressions gained in service and as recorded in making up this table must be used. In this connection, we know that the service conditions to which the ships with reinforced hatch corners were subject were more severe than those to which the ships with unreinforced hatch corners were subjected. The comparisons set forth above are therefore conservative. The effective performance of the prescribed hatch corner reinforcements is both gratifying and reassuring. It is reassuring because it demonstrates that reasonable care and practicable designs are capable of easing points in the structure which are known to be sources of trouble.

C. Crack Arrestors on Liberty Ships

The crack arrestors fitted on various designs have proved very effective. They were found to have stopped cracks in 17 instances on 15 vessels which suffered normal structural casualties. In addition there have been reports on four other ships subjected to war and marine casualties where fractures occurred indirectly from grounding or torpedo and mine damage. The crack arrestors stopped eight cracks on these four vessels and the influence of the crack arrestors was questionable in the case of two other cracks. In the case of one other vessel, which ran aground off the coast of California, it is claimed that the crack arrestors were responsible for delaying the complete failure of the vessel and permitting



CODE 3 SHOWN



CODE 3 SHOWN

NOTE: FRACTURES LOCATED FROM PHOTOGRAPHS OR FIELD SKETCHES

Figure 47.





Figure 49.

TOTAL

۰,





.....





.



CODE NUMBER I



CODE NUMBER 4 - (EXTENDS FROM FR 28 TO 145)

the second secon

U.S. MARITIME COMMISSION MCE PLAN SIL-6-48 CODE NUMBER 9 -- (EXTENDS FROM FR. 38 TO 135)

U.S. COAST GUARD PLAN EMM. 17-SII-17-1 ALTERATION "B" Figure 51.

- *

. .





sufficient time to remove the personnel aboard. The details of each case are included in table X.

In no case is any crack known to have crossed an arrestor.

Figure 19 was originally prepared to weigh the

effects of reducing the length of the gunwale crack arrestor and shows the percent of the fractures in way of arrestors of various lengths.

Figures 53, 54 and 55 describe a typical case of an effective crack arrestor. The photographs were taken

ingen analigen inge gelaktive gelingen. I an de





PLAN VIEW OF UPPER DECK.

S.S. COLIN P. KELLY JR. Figure 53.

from the location inclicated by an arrow on the sketch. The fractured specimen shown was removed from the ship by the British Admiralty and is available for examination at Coast Guard Headquarters.

Many cases have been reported where riveted seams and chain intermittent welding have been responsible for limiting the extent of fracture but such cases have not been tabulated.

D. Gunwale Cuts on Liberty Ships

Thirty-two fractures occurred at the gunwale cut. Of these, eighteen were Class 1 and fourteen Class 2. Three of the Class 1's had "alterations" No. 5, a rounded gunwale cut. The rest were unaltered.

E. Serrated Bilge Keels

There have been seventeen bilge keel fractures. Sixteen of these involved bilge keels which had not been altered. Fifteen of these failures were Class 2 and one was Class 1. Only one altered bilge keel failed. This was a Class 2 failure and the bilge keel was altered with Code 1 (serrated).

F. Underdeck Girders on T2 Tankers

Underdeck girders were fitted on the T2 Tankers. These girders were not welded to the deck and it was expected that they would remain intact in the event of a major deck fracture. So far all of the major structural failures occurring since these girders were fitted started in the bottom. For this reason, there has never been an opportunity to evaluate fully their effectiveness. In one case of a fire on board one of the vessels, the deck fractured and the girders held. Full details of this casualty are not yet available.

G. Bulkhead Intersections on T2 Tankers

Various alterations have been made at the bulkhead intersections of the T2 Tankers. Test data indicate that the change. made should relieve the trouble but actual casualty data are not yet available for this report.

The second second



FIGURE 54. - Termination of fracture at gunwale, starboard side, S. S. Colin P. Kelly Jr. (see arrow fig. 53.)



FIGURE 55 Termination of fracture at gunwale, starboard side, S. S. Colin P. Kelly Jr_{c} (Note horizontal torch cut below deck, see fig. 52.)

×	
TABLE	

.

701292—4		TAB	TABLE X				
\$7—6	Casualties Whi	icb Tosted the B	Casualties Which Tested the Effectiveness of the Crack Arrestor	restor			
Name of ship	Type	Date of casualty	Type of crack arrestor	EC2 erde	Distance from starting point to arr stor	Length of longest leg cf crack	Did crack stop at arrestor?
1 ANOTIS MCDONALD	EC2-5-C1	8 Aug 1945	Gunwale angle	-	2	3' 0"	Yes
2. RELATAN AMITY	EC2-S-C1	ນ ບິ	Gunwale angle	1	1' 6"		Yes
3. Costa Rica Victory	VC2	26 Dec 1945	Gunwale angle		۰.		Yes
4. George Gipp	EC2-S-C1	Dec 1	Sheer strake strap	80	01	2 10	Yes
5. HALL I. KELLEY.	EC2-S-C1	1 Jan 1946	Sheer strake strap	8	م .		Yes
6. I. D. YEAGER	EC2-S-C1	19 Feb 1945	Gunwale angle	+	c.		Yes
			Gunwale angle	1	c.		Yes
7. TEAN RIBAUT	EC2-S-C1	8 Nov 1945	Sheer strake strap	8	4 2	21 9	Yes
			Sheer strake strap	8	c. ,	0	Yes
8. LAURANCE J. GALLAGHER	EC2-S-C1	Dec 1945	Gunwale angle	1	16		Yes
9. LEBANG	CI-M-AV1	9 Jan 1945	Gunwale angle		n.		Yes
10 PETERSNURGH VICTORY	VC2	26 Dec 1945	Gunwale angle		1 6	2	Yes
	L6-S-B1	17 Oct 1943	Gunwale angle and strap		11 0		Yes
	L6-S-B1	10 Nov 1943	Gunwale angle and strap		11 0		Ycs
	EC2-S-C1	Feb 1946	Sheer strake strap	80	م .		Yes
	EC2-S-C1	3 Feb 1946	Sheer strake strap	8	c.	5 4	Yes
	EC2-S-C1	29 Jan 1945	Sheer striake strap	8	۹.	2 4	Ycs
•							
WAR AND MARINE CASUALTI S:		4 T 1045	Channel attorn	α	A K	56 11	۳.
1. COLIN F. KELLY, JR		CHAT DING 4	Choos strate stran			56 11	Yes
			Sheer strabe stran) a			Yes
	FC3-S-C1	21 Ian 1945	Gunwale angle)	20 0	21 6	Yes
2. GEORGE MAWLET	EC2-S-C1	~	Gunwale angle	7	Port 4 0	4	Delayed failure
			Deck strap.	1		2	and changed
			Deck strap	1	Stbd 2 4	2	cleavage to
			•				shcar.
4. JAMES EOAN LAYNE	EC2-S-C1	8 Dec 1944	Gunwale angle		۹.		Ycs
5			Gunwale angle		۰.		Ycs
5. LUCIEN B. MAXWELL	EC2-S-C1	6 Aug 1945	Sheer strake stap	8	6. (Yes
			Sheer strake strap	8	n. (11 +	Yes
			Sheer strake strap	8	. مع	~. ,	.
			Sheer strake strap	8	¢.	~ -	~

-

æ

-

.... ÷ -

Lutt weld in sheer strake

GUNWALE ALTERATION





CODE NUMBER S



CODE NUMBER 6



AND THE THE PARTY AND THE PART



and the second sec

PART V Steel Quality

Defective material might offer an easy explanation of the fractures but such an explanation would be conditional and incomplete.

Samples of steel were removed from several of the ships which fractured, and forwarded to the Metallurgy Division of the National Bureau of Standards, where tests were made to determine their properties. It was usually impossible to test the steel removed from the starting point of the fracture because this usually occurred in a defective weld or a design detail and not in the plating itself. Most of the plates submitted and described in part V are the first plates through which the fractures progressed as they spread from the starting point.

A. Routine Tests

The material in which the fractures started was tested in the case of many ships, from which samples were taken near the point of origin. Thus 25 specimens from the ships showed agreement with applicable standards of yield strength, ultimate strength, and elongation. In addition, the material had passed the usual inspection tests with requirements for sampling and physical properties.

Complete certainty is not assured by these tests, with respect to every part of every piece of steel, but we can be sure that the fractures, which are numerous and widespread in occurrence, do not result from failure of steel to meet specifications.

B, Notched Bar Tests

There are indications that the steel is deficient in a property not covered by the specifications. In the report of the Research Advisory Committee, data are given on this property in relation to notch sensitiv.'y, and the significance of this property for fractures like those seen in the ships has been studied in the laboratory.

Thirty one steel samples from the ships were given

the standard V-notch Charpy test for evaluation of energy absorption in a notched bar. They are designated Group A.

In all cases, the bar was located with notch perpendicular to the surface of the plate, and in such a manner that the notch orientation corresponded to that of the crack as it progressed through the plate. This resulted in placing the bar parallel to the direction of rolling in all cases except on the SS Sea Bass where the deck plating is transverse. Four bars were tested at each of eight or nine temperatures or about 30 bars per plate.

Data for the 31 plates have been averaged with respect to temperature: the averages are shown in the lower portion of figure 57, along with the best and the worst curves. The energy absorption values at 70° F are also indicated for each of the plates tested (upper left) with dotted lines to indicate the spread of the energy absorption values covered by the four specimens tested at that temperature.

Since the specifications for hull steel do not include notch bar tests, there was no standard value for comparison. For this reason, the Coast Guard Merchant Marine inspectors obtained from the shipyards' stock and scrap piles numerous samples of $\frac{1}{2}$ inch hull steel plate which were forwarded to the United States Naval Shipyard, New York. These are Group B samples. In addition, the Navy had requested the steel mills to submit samples of plate complying with both their own and the American Bureau of Shipping hull steel specifications. These are Group C samples. On Groups B and C a series of Charpy tests was also run, but only at 70°F. The results are indicated on the plots, figure 57 (upper center and right). The spread of values was similar to that in Group A and has not been indicated.

Data from Groups B and C have been entered in the temperature diagram on figure 57 and comparison suggests that specimens of steel in Group A (from fractured plates) were more notch sensitive than





Figure 58.

the samples from the steel mills (Group C) and these in turn more so than samples from yards (Group B). These comparisons are based on averages, however, and in view of wide dispersions, stand in need of a quantitive estimate of their significance.

Even if a significant difference in notch sensitivity existed, it might be partially caused by a difference in thickness, since Groups B and C were $\frac{1}{2}$ inch and Group A averaged $\frac{3}{4}$ inch thick. To test this, similar tests were made to compare two plates rolled to these two thicknesses from the same heat of steel. The results are shown in figure 58. They suggest that if Groups B and C had been $\frac{3}{4}$ inch thick, the values would have been about 5 foot pounds less, and the spread between Groups A, B and C reduced.

The fractured plates are thus not notably more notch sensitive than other plates which might have been used, though more precise work might establish a moderate difference.

C. Chemical Analyses

Chemical analyses were made on the fractured plates from the ships to determine if there was any specific trend which might be indicated on surveying the chemical constituents of the plates involved in the fractures. The detailed analysis of each plate so tested is included in Table XI.

These tests were conducted by the United States Naval Shipyard, Philadelphia, and the National Bureau of Standards.

D. Temperature and Notch Sensitivity

Figure 57 shows that the steel in fractured plates loses the ability to absorb energy in the notched condition as temperature goes down. Low temperature is said to increase the notch sensitivity of the steel. Experience also shows that fractures in service gain in frequency at lower temperatures. It would be



TABLE XI

.

۱

Chemical Constituents-Ship Plates Fractured in Service

		C A 61	nical Constituents-	11211110 men		L.1 22101.1								
Vessel's name	Fracture tempera- ture degrees F.	Charpy Ft. Lbs.	U	Ma.	۵.	v	ü	Ū	Ni	ඊ	>	Mo	र	Miscel- lancout
CHAMPLAIN (port plate)	11-29	3.5-4.5	0.23	0.32	0.013	0.035	0.04	0.03	0.02	0.03	0.003	0.002	0.017	Ti 0.002
VALERI CHKALOV	29-36	10-12	.19	.39	.011	.035	60.	.04	.11	.03	.003	.025	.013	H004
Eso Prinsburgh	42	8.5	.23	.42	.016	.025	8.	.17	.15	8.	.003	.030	.005	Ti .003
HARRY L. GLUCKSMAN			.37	39	.011	.035	8	.05	.03	.03	.003	.007	.017	11. 90
HARRY L. GLUCKSMAN	40	7.2	.28	.40	.003	.030	8	.05	.03	.03	.003	900.	.022	Ti .002
FERDINANDO GORGES.	39-47	8-9.5	.25	.42	.010	.030	.03	.02	.05	.03	•003	.019	.042	
ROGER GRISWOLD.	:		.20	.40	.010	.042	.02	10.	.02	.02	.003	.002	.022	
ROGER GRISWOLD.			.29	.32	.015	.035	.02	.03	.05	.03	.003	. 006	.052	
MEACHAM	53	10	.30	.46	.007	.035	10.	.03	.02	.02	.003	.003	.008	Ti .002
TERACHAM			.23	.40	.010	.035	.05	.01	• 0	.02	-003	8	.041	
MAN RIBAUT.	37	3.5	.30	20	.010	.020	3.	.01	.02	.03	.003	.004	.053	
HENRY C. WALLACE	50	4	.37	.38	.011	.042	.02	6	.06	.03	.003	.030	600.	
WARMOR.	32	7	2.	.39	.015	.030	8	.05	.03	\$.003	.023	900.	
WILLIAN BLACK YATES.			.24	.51	.017	.035	8	·0.	10.	.02	.003	.002	.013	
WILLIAM BLACK YATES			.25	.37	.008	.030	.01	.05	.02	.03	.003	.030	.015	
STEPHEN S. AUSTIN.			23	.47	.016	.027	.03	.	.01	.01	.00	.004	:	
SIMON WILLARD	51	3.5	90.	.29	.014	.029	.02	.03	.02	.02	.00	.004		••••
SEA BASS	55	5.5	.26	.46	.041	.064	10.	.17	8.	.03	.00	.050	:	
U. S. C. G. C. NORTHLAND	32	4.5	.23	.50	.013	.041	10;	:	Trace					
U. S. C. G. C. MOHAWK	32	5	.32	.40	.014	.045	.03 03	60.	03	.03	5. V '	 010 010 	.002	As023
Esso WILMINGTON (deck)	42	19	.20	.46	.005	.027	.06	.05	.05	.04	₽	< .010	:	A1,O1.003
Esso WILMINGTON (E strake bottom)	56	15.8	.27	.59	.025	.031	.01	.21	.07	.10		900.		•
JOHN P. ALTGELD.	45	11.4	.21	.46	.022	.019	.04	.01	.02	1 0.		.004		•
GEORGE CROCKER	:	:	.25	.44	.031	.041	.04	.10	.04	-02	×	.010		•
ENOS A. MILLS.	113	10	.18	.34	.010	.025	05	Ξ.	રું	.05	v ,	.020		
CONTRERAS	145	011	.23	.41	.007	.039	.02	.04	5	.03		.006		
SCHENECTADY (sheer strake)	23	6	.20	.39	.010	.032	.056	.02					:	A1-0.034
SCHENECTADY (stringer plate)	23	10.5	.24	.47	.019	.029	.044	.07						A1,0.003
WILLIAM FLOYD	168	110	.23	.37	.014	.034	.03	.03	Ş.	.02		.004		
WARRIOR (deck K-9, starboard)	:		.25	44.	.013	.041	.02	.05	.05	.03			.007	Sn .011
WARIOR	:		.26	.43	610.	.030	.02	:	Trace	.05		010.	.005	
WARRIOR	:		.25	.38	.010	.032	8	:					•••••	• • • • • • • • •
ESSO MANHATTAN	:		.24	.45	.007	.027	.02	.03	.10	.02	.05	.010		• • • •
ESSO MANHATTAN			.21	.44	.012	.035	.04	.04	.10	2.	, .05	.010		••••••
QUEREC	90	7.3	.21	.41	.006	.02.8	.05	.25	.02	.02	√	< .010	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	••••••

tin

.

đ

					•									
Vessel's name	Fracture tempera- ture degrees F.	Charpy Fi. Lbr.	υ	Wn.	e.	s	Si	õ	ï	ರೆ	>	Mo	7	Miscel- lancous
OUEBEC			0.22	0.42	0.034	0.038	0.04	0.03	0.03	0.06	< 0.001	0.002		
CLEVELAND.	24	10.5	.20	.44	.019	.034	.03	.01	.02	.05	18/1	.006		•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••
RICHARD I. CLEVELAND	. 24-34	7.5-10	.24	.48	.014	.035	.05	.02	.02	.03	1 <u>8</u> >	.00		• • • • • •
CHRISTOPHER GREENUP.	30	80	.27	.42	.008	.031	.04	.03	.01	.03	100.	.002		
	130	10	.26	.36	.007	.036	.02	.05	.03	.02	- 18 2	<u>8</u>		
	160	110	.27	.54	.053	.028	.01	.28	.12	H.	v 18	.012		
	154	10	.29	.47	.014	.042	.01	.24	.10	.05	×	800.		• • • • • • •
MARKAY (D strake bottom)	153	10	.24	.43	.013	.035	.05	.02	.05	.03	18	.002		•
MARKAY (C strake bottom)	:	:	.24	.43	.011	.028	.05	.05	.02	.05	6 <u>.</u> V	 20. /ul>	.015	
Average of above plates.			.27	.42	.015	.034	.027	.065	.047	.036	< .005	.011	.021	
Ranse of chemical advices														
Maximum values from above plates			.37 .18	.59 .20	.053	.064 .019	60 [.]	.28 .01	.15 .01	.11. 10.	< .001	.050 .002	.053 .002	Ti .004

Chemical Constituents-Ship Plates Practured in Service (Cont.)

TABLE XI

¹ The specific temperature of fracture was not known for these vessels. However, since Charpy values are available the temperature corresponding to 10 foot-pounds energy absorption has been set down. The value 10 foot-pounds was chosen as it represents a figure close to the average Charpy value obtained for the ship plates fracturing at known temperatures. Most of the (¹) fractures were in spring and winter.

Norz: (1) Charpy values in table are for longitudinal V notch specimens, with notch perpendicular to plate auface.

plate surface. (2) The SS Maria Sanford not included in the above table sustained a fracture at 75°F and at this temperature the plate had a 5.5 foot-pounds Charpy value.

8**S**



natural to explain this as a result of increased notch sensitivity.

This similarity is shown in figure 59 where the average curve for Group A from figure 57 is superimposed on another curve drawn from the data on service fractures. This second curve was obtained by plotting ship months per fracture, the simple reciprocal of the quotient "fractures per ship month" in figure 26. When these two curves are brought together, it appears that the ships lose heavily their resistance to fracture and the notched bars become highly notch sensitive at a temperature which is the same for both, roughly from 40° to 80° F.

It has been found that many fractures emanate from minor discontinuities which cannot be economically eliminated from ships under construction and from pads and clips welded on for various purposes after the vessel is in service. Protection against trouble resulting from such minor transgressions can best be provided by improved steel characteristics.

SL'AR M

Conclusions

1. The serious epidemic of fractures in the steel structure of welded merchant vessels has been curbed through the combined effect of the corrective measures taken on the structure of the ships both during construction and after completion, improvements in new designs and improved construction practices in the shipyards.

2. Fractures occur more frequently at lower temperatures.

3. By far the greatest frequency of fracture occurs under a combination of heavy seas and low temperatures.

4. Statistically the age of the vessel has no appreciable influence on the tendency to fracture.

5. The longitudinal distribution of cargo on the Liberty ships which fractured was not abnormal and little would be gained by establishing cargo loading prescriptions designed to reduce the number of casualties.

6. The longitudinal distribution of ballast on the Liberty ships including those which fractured was not abnormal but this was improved by changes in the ballasting prescriptions without interfering with operating conditions.

7. In the case of the tankers, poor distribution of cargo or ballast on the tankers can create high stresses more readily than in Liberty ships. General loading prescriptions for tankers appear feasible and desirable.

8. A tendency for certain ships to incur repeated casualties can be measured but the trend is not great.

9. No marked correlation between the incidence of fracture on the ships and the shipyard construction practices could be found. However, with due allowance for difference in design, the ships constructed in yards utilizing sub-average shipyard construction practices showed a higher than average incidence of fracture.

10. Steel removed from plates which had fractured complied with American Bureau of Shipping physical requirements for hull steel.

11. The hatch corner modifications on the Liberty ships have proved effective.

12. The riveted crack arrestor at the gunwale has been effective. Riveted shell seams have also been responsible for limiting the extent of fracture. No crack has been known to pass an arrestor.

13. More fractures started at notches occasioned by design than at notches resulting from defective workmanship. Although the relative contribution of poor workmanship was less, there were important cases where workmanship was the sole cause.

14. Every fracture investigated could be traced to a starting point at a definite geometrical discontinuity involving design or workmanship.



FIGURE 60.

DPP.

Appendix

UNITED STATES COAST GUARD Merchant Marine Inspection Instructions

Chapter 4, Part 1 Material Inspection: Hulls-Construction

4-1-1 Structural jailures

NAVCG 2752

A. Report structural failures on Form NAVCG-2752 unless the damage is so extensive that advantageous use can be made of the large forms for Liberty ships and Maritime Commission tankers. Supplement the report with photographs and largscale sketches emphasizing the point at which the fracture started. Mark the sketches and photos clearly with ship's name and with reference points such as frame numbers, strake of plate, deck or shell, port or starboard side, etc. See figure 1. Use arrows or lines to point out the fracture and particularly its starting point. No letter of transmittal will be required in submission of the above form. The form shall ve signed by the OCMI in the space provided, and shall be stamped on the back with the date of issue and the issuing office. Any necessary remarks should be typed on the back of the form.

Details of Failures Required

(1) Details regarding the starting point of the failure are the most important part of the report because all contributing factors are assembled at that point. There is a herringbone pattern on the edge of a fractured plate. The apices of the angles of this herringbone point toward the starting point of the fracture. Figures 2 and 3 are typical fractures. They show how it is possible to trace a fracture back to its source, and how it should be marked. Where it is impracticable to obtain a square view as shown in figures 2 and 3, take photographs properly angled to show clearly the herringbone pattern on both sides of the starting point. Each such photograph shall include the starting point. Where accurate data regarding "Circumstances Surrounding Failure" required by NAVCG-2752 are not available, do not leave the spaces blank. Give best available information such as date damage was found or examined, ports of departure and arrival, a statement as to loading, i.e., either "Ballasted" or "Loaded" and weather, temperature, sea condition, and other pertinent data as it is recorded in the ship's log for the voyage. Where it is not obvious that certain of the information is approximate, label it as such.

Samples of Steel Repaired

(2) If steel is removed in repairing the fracture, two pieces about two feet square taken from opposite sides of the fracture and each including one side of the starting point, should be obtained. If sufficient scrap is not available for these sizes or close approximations thereto, obtain such smaller samples including the starting point, as are available. Mark the steel samples with reference points. Indicate these reference points and the sample location on sketches marked in similar fashion to those on figure 1, and then forward both samples and sketches to the Metallurgy Division, National Bureau of Standards, Washington, D. C.

HQ Advised of Failures of Major Importance

B. If a structural failure of major importance occurs on a vessel, HQ should be advised by dispatch immediately in order that a representative can examine the fracture before critical features have been destroyed in commencing repairs.

TABLE XII

CLASS I CASUALTIES

Chronological Order

	Name of vessel	Туре	Yard	Launching date	Moztby Afluat	Crsualty date	Loading and drafts
1	Enders M. Voorhees	Bulk freighter not MC	Great Lakes Engi- neering Works, River Rouge	Del.July 1742	4 approx.	10 Nov. 1942	Ballasted 12'-3"/21'-8!2"
2	Jeremiah Wadsworth	EC2-S-C1	-	7 Sept. 1942	2	11 Nov. 1942	Loaded
3	THOMAS MACDONOUGH	EC2-S-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding C'p.	28 Jan. 1942	9	14 Nov. 1942	Loaded 27'-8"/29'-0"
4	James McNeill Whistler .	EC2-S-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp.	30 Sept. 1942	1	28 Nov. 1942	Ballastcd
5	Alpen Gifford	N3-S-A1	Leathem D. Smith	2 Aug. 1942	2	x Nov. 1942	Ballasted
6	George Chamberlin	EC2-S-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp.	14 Aug. 1942	3	1 Dec. 1942	Unknown
7	Harvey W. Scott	EC2-S-C1	•	19 July 1942	4	5 Dec. 1942	Loaded
8	John C. Ainsworth	EC2-S-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp.	24 July 1942	5	25 Dec. 1942	Ballastcd
9	Henry Baldwin	EC2-S-C1	California Shipbuild- ing Corp.	18 Oct. 1942	2	27 Dec. 1942	Loaded
0	WILLIAM T. SHERMAN	EC2-S-C1		25 Nov. 1942	1	27 Dec. 1942	Loaded
1	Daniel Heister	EC2-S-C1	•	22 Aug. 1942	4	1- 12 Jan. 1943	Unknown
2	Nicholas Gilman	EC2-S-C1	Houston Shipbuild- ing Corp.	25 July 1942	5	3–4 Jan. 1943	Unknown
3	Schenectady	T2-SE-A1	U	24 Oct. 1942	2	16 Jan. 1943	Ballastcd
4	Abraham Baldwin	EC2-S-C1.	Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc.	16 May 1942	8	x Feb. 1943	Ballasted
5.	CHAMPLAIN ** BELLE ISLE	L6-S-B1	American Shipbuild- ing Co., Cleveland	15 Nov. 1942	2	12 Feb. 1943	Incomplete
6	Јони Гітсн	EC2-S-C1	Permanente Metals No. 2	28 Aug. 1942	5	15 Feb. 1943	Loaded
1	Henry Wynkoop	EC2-S-C1	Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc.	26 Nov. 1942	2	16 Feb. 1943	Loaded
8	James Bowie	EC2-S-C1	Houston Shipbuild- ing Corp.	27 Oct. 1942	3	19 Fcb. 1943	Loaded
9	THOMAS SUMTER	EC2-S-C1	North Carolina Shipbuilding Co.	31 May 1942	9	2–4 Mar.1943	Loaded 27'-0"/27'-3"
0	THOMAS HOOKER	EC2-S-C1	New England Ship- building Corp.	13 July 1942	7	5 Mar. 1943	Ballasted

88

. ...

TABLE XII

,

CLASS I CASUALTIES

Chronological Order

	Sea condition and direction	Wind force Beaufort Scale	Ship's speed in knots	Temperature air/water Degrees Fahrenheit	Location of fracture	Origin of fracture	Remarks
• • • •	Heavy	36 mph	80	25°/42°	Sheer and stringer plates, frame 134 starboard and frame 130 port.	Probably at gunwale.	Complete fracture i of strength deck.
••••	Normal Port Qrtr.		•••••	Spring	Sheer strake frames 90-91.	Cut in sheer strake for accommodation ladder.	2
••••	Heavy	•••••	•••••	Autumn	Bulwark, sheer strake and deck to within 6" of No. 4 hatch at forward starboard corner.	Probably at butt weld of bulwark insert plate.	3
	Heavy	9	1-2	32°/42°	Deck at aft port end No. 3 hatch; bulwark, sheer and strake below, frames 81-82; bilge strake frames 74-75.	Probably at deck butt weld 15" from hatch corner; unknown; unknown.	4
• • • •	Normal	• • • • • •	••••	Autumn	Stringer and sheer strake for 2'-0" opposite aft end No. 3 hatch, port.	Unknown	5
• • • •	Heavy	9-10 .	•••••	Autumn	Stringer and adjacent strake at after end of No. 3 hatch, starboard.	Unknown	(
••••	Normal	• • • • • •	•••••	Spring	Stringer, sheer and strake below, frames 90-91 starboard.	Cut in sheer strake for accommodation ladder.	5
• • • •	Heavy cross.	5	3-4	40°/40°46°.	Sheer and stringer plates frames 90-91.	Cut in sheer strake tor accommodation ladder.	1
•••	Нсачу	10	2	70°/	Deck at forward port corner of No. 3 hatch and sheer strake.	Probably at hatch corner.	
•••	Heavy	8°.	• • • • • • •	Winter	Sheer strake and stringer plates about frame 128.	Unknown.	10
	Unknown	• • • • • •		Winter	Sheer and stringer plates frames 90-91.	Cut in sheer strake for accommodation ladder.	1
• • • •	Hcavy	• • • • • •	•••••	40°/	Stringer and adjacent strake, about frame 113, starboard.		1:
•••	Calm	•••••		23°–38°/	Deck, side shell and longitudinal bulkheads in way of No. 5 tank.	Defective weld con- necting starboard fashion plate and sheer strake.	Broke in two in 1 port-repaired.
• • • •	Unknown	•••••	•••••	20°-50°/ 31°-50°	Sheer and stringer plates frames 90-91.	Cut in sheer strake for accommodation ladder.	14
• • • •	Calm	• • • • • •	• • • • • • •	11°-29°/	Sheer, stringer plates and hopper sides, port and starboard frame 100 (No. 9 hatch).	Defective butt welds of hatch facing channels.	Complete fracture 1 of strength deck.
••••	Normal	4.		-10°/33°	Stringer and two inboard strakes, bulwark, sheer and strake below, frames 83-85 port.	Probably at butt weld of bulwark rail.	10
• • • •	Calm	••••	•••••	7°17°/31°	Upper deck from centerline, port, frames 62-64, sheer and strake below.	Unknown.	1
•••	Heavy port Qrtr.	9-10 .		44°/38°	Stringer, sheer and strake below, frame: 91-92.	Cut in sheer strake for accommodation ladder.	1
••••	Hcavy	8.		24°/34°	Sheer and stringer plates frames 90-91, 91-92, and 102-103.	At frames 90-92 cut in sheer strake for accommodation ladder.	1
••••	Heavy	7	9	22°/38°	Deck and shell in way of No. 3 hatch.	Probably at hatch corner.	Complete fracture 2 of strength deck —abandoned.

CLASS I CASUALTIES

Chronological Order

Name of vessel	Туре	Yard	Launching	date	Months Afloat	Casualty date	Loading and drafts
21 J. L. M. CURRY	EC2-S-C1	Alabama Drydock and Shipbuilding Co.	31 Jan.	1942	13	7 Mar. 1943	Ballasted
22 Stephem C. Foster	EC2-S-C1	Houston Shipbuild- ing Corp.	12 Jan.	1943	2	14 Mar. 1943	Loaded
23 JOAQUIN MILLER	EC2-S-C1	Permanente Metals No. 1	22 July	1942	7	15 Mar. 1943	Loaded
24 Lew Wallace	EC2-S-C1	Permanente Metals No. 1	21 July	1942	8	26 Mar. 1943	Ballasted
25 Esso Manhattan	T2-SE-A1	Sun Shipbuilding and Drydock Co.	31 July	1942	7	29 Mar. 1943	Ballasted
26 Christopher Greenup	EC2-S-C1		5 Mar.	1943	1	29 Mar 6 Apr. 1943	Loaded
27 William L. Smith	EC2-S-C1		6 Jan.	1943	2	5 Apr. 1943	Ballasted
28 Тномля Johnson	EC2-S-C1	ing Corp. California Shipbuild-	24 Oct.	1942	5	14 Apr. 1943	Loaded
29 Brockholst Livingston	EC2-S-C1	ing Corp. California Shipbuild- ing Corp.	21 Oct.	1942	6	2 May 1943	Ballasted
30 Andrew Moore	EC2-S-C1	Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc.	7 Sept.	1942	7	5 May 1943	Ballasted
31 WILLIAM H. CRAWFORD'.	EC2-S-C1	-	5 Feb.	1943	3	5 May 1943	Loaded 26'-3"/28'-10"
32 Frederic Remington	EC2-S-C1	Permanente Metals No. 1	6 Dec.	1942	4	5 May 1943	Loaded 24'-11"/27'-0"
33 Markay	Tanker not MC	Sun Shipbuilding and Drydock Co.	Sept.	1942	9	18 June 1943	Loaded
34 John Gorrie			27 Mar.	1943	6	13 Oct. 1943	Ballasted
35 Abraham Baldwin	EC2-S-C1 .	Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc.	16 May	1942	19	13 Oct. 1943	Ballasted
36 S. M. Вавсоск	EC2-S-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp.	1 Nov.	1942	11	14 Oct. 1943	Ballasted, 16 mean
37 RICHARD J. REISS	L6-S-B1	Great Lakes Engi- ncering Works, River Rouge	19 Sept.	1942	12	17 Oct. 1943	Loaded
38 ROBERT C. STANLEY	. L6-S-B1	-	19 June	1943	4	10 Nov. 1943	Light
39 John P. Gaines	EC2-S-Ci	-	11 July	1943	4	24 Nov. 1943	Ballasted
40 Theodore Sedgwick	. EC2-S-C'	Houston Shipbuild- ing Corp.	19 Aug.	1942	15	28 Nov. 1943	

¹ Speed indicated in revolutions per minute.

The states when might a

and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

N.

.

CLASS I CASUALTIES

Chronological Order

	Sea condition and direction	Wind force Beaufort Scale	Ship's speed in knots	Temperature air/water Degrees Fahrenheit	Location of fracture	Origin of fracture	Remarks
• • • ,	Heavy	10	5	31°-40°/	Deck and shell at forward corners No. 3 and No. 4 hatch starboard, after corners No. 3 and No. 4 hatch port.	Probably at hatch corner.	Complete fracture 21 of strength deck —abandoned.
	Calm			32°/30°	Deck at forward port corner No. 3 hatch and sheer strake; aft star- board corners No. 3 hatch for two strakes.	Exactly at hatch corners.	. 22
• • • •	Heavy	9	• • • • • • • • •	30°/34°	Deck at forward port corner No. 3 hatch, sheer and two strakes below.	Exactly at hatch corner.	23
• • • •	Heavy	9	• • • • •	17°-20°/37°	Stringer, sheer and strake below, frames 91-92 port.	Probably at cut in sheer strake for accommodation ladder.	24
	Normal	2	14	30°–42°/	Complete section of hull frames 55-56 (No. 6 tank).	Defective butt weld of centerline strake main deck.	Broke in two at sea 25 salvaged.
••••	Normal	••••	••••••	16°/	Sheer and stringer plates in way of half round moulding.	Butt weld of half round moulding.	. 20
•••	Heavy	• • • • •		33°/48°	Deck and sheer strake at forward starboard corner of No. 3 hatch.	Exactly at hatch corner.	27
•••	Heavy	• • • • •	. 6-11	Unknown	Stringer and sheer strake, frames 112-113 starboard.		28
	Heavy	8	¹ 65	32°-41°/ 42°-44°	Deck except centerline strake, bul- wark, sheer and strake below, frames 112-113.	Unknown.	Complete fracture 29 of strength deck.
••••	Heavy	8-10	• • • • • •	Spring	Bilge keel and bilge strakes, frames 64-65.	Defective butt weld of bilge keel.	30
• • • •	Heavy	8	1 66	Autumn Australian area	Deck and sheer strake at forward starboard corner and after port corner No. 3 hatch.		Complete fracture 31 of strength deck.
••••	Heavy	9			Sheer and stringer plates frames 90-91.	Cut in sheer strake for accommodation ladder.	32
•••	Heavy	• •••	16	Unknown	Bilge strakes in way of No. 5 port tank.	Defective butt weld of shell plating.	3:
	Heavy	8	· •	43°/	Deck, sheer and strake below forward port and after starboard corner No. 3 hatch; sheer and strake be- low, frames 134-135 starboard.		Complete fracture 34 of strength deck.
	Heavy head.	7		36°-42°/ 45°-47°	Sheer, stringer and adjacent strake about frame 90 port.	Probably at cut in sheer strake for accommodation ladder.	3:
	Heavy	10	• •••	38°/46°	Deck from ventilator to gunwale, sheer and strake below, frames 113-115 starboard.		30
	Heavy		• • • • • • •	Autumn	Stringer and hopper side at frame 100, port.	Frobably at corner of access opening.	3'
••	Heavy	•••••			Stringer and hopper side between No. 9 and No. 10 hatches, star- board.	of insert plate of access opening.	30
•••	Normal head	5-6	9	40° - 45°/	Complete cross section in way of forward end No. 3 hatch.	Near forward corners of hatch.	Broke in two at sea
• • • •	Heavy head	6	4.7	55°/	Deck, sheer and strake below at forward s.arboard corner No. 3 hatch; deck from ventilator to gunwaic and sheer strake frames 82-83 port.	Exactly at hatch cor- ner; probably ven- tilation opening in deck.	4

÷.

CLASS I CASUALTIES

Chronological Order

Name of vessel	of vessel Type Yard			Launching date		Casualty date		Loading and drafts	
41 George B. Selden	EC2-S-C1	Permanente Metals No. 2	4 Nov	1942	Afloat Afloat	29 Nov	1943	Ballasted	
12 Lambert Cadwalader	EC2-S-C1	Houston Shipbuild- ing Corp.	16 Nov	1942	12	x Dec	1943	Loaded	
43 Laura Keene	EC2-S-C1	Kaiser Co., Inc. Vancouver	1 Feb	1943	10	11 Dec	1943	Ballasted	
44 Phineas Banning	EC2-S-C1	California Shipbuild- ing Corp.	9 Feb	1943	10	11 Dec	1943	Ballasted 11'-4"/21'-7"	
45 Chief Washakie	EC2-S-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp.	24 Dec	1942	11	11 Dec	1943	Ballasted 11'-6"/19'-6"	
46 Valeri Chkalov	EC2-S-C1	Permanente Metals No. 2	4 Apr	1943	7	11 Dec	1943	Eallasted	
47 Hat Creek	T2-SE-A1	Alabama Drydock and Shipbuilding Co.	30 Apr	1943	7	11 Dec	1943	Loaded	
48 Hat Creek	T2-SE-A1		30 Apr	1943	7	13 Dec	1943	Light	
49 Joaquin Miller	EC2-S-C1	Permanente Metals No. 1	22 July	1942	16	15 Dcc	1943	Loaded	
50 Askold	EC2-S-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp.	24 June	1943	5	15 Dec	1943	Unknown.	
51 James Gordon Bennett	EC2-S-C1		13 Sept	1942	15	18 Dec	1943	Unknown	
52 CHARLES CROCKER	EC2-S-C1	California Shipbuild- ing Corp.	11 May	1943	7	21 Dec	1943	Loaded	
53 Walter Hines Page	EC2-S-C1	North Carolina Ship- building Co.	27 Apr	1943	7	23 Dec	1943	Ballasted	
54 Alexander Nevsky	EC2-S-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp.	29 Mar	1943	8	24 Dec	1943	Ballasted	
55 William Black Yates	EC2-S-C1	Southeastern Ship- building Corp.	27 Sept	1943	3	28 Dec	1943	Ballasted	
56 Abiel Foster	EC2-S-C1	California Shipbuild- ing Corp.	22 Mar	1942	21	29 Dec	1943	Ballasted	
57 George Chamberlin	EC2-S-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp.	1ª Aug	1942	16	29 Dec	1943	Ballasted	
58 Јонн Vining	EC2-S-C1	Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc.	23 Nov	1942	13	2 Jan	1944	Loaded	
59 Sea Bass	C3-S-A2		2 Aug	1942	17	5 Jan	1944	Loadcd 24'-10"/29'-8"	
60 Emilian Pugachev	EC2-S-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp.	13 Apr	1943	8	5 Jan	1944	Ballasted	
61 Robi rt Newell	EC2-S-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp.	2 May	1943	8	6 Jan	1944	Loaded	

¹ Speed indicated in revolutions per minute.

ł

CLASS I CASUALTIES

Chronological Order

	Sea condition and direction	Wind force Beaufor Scale	Ship's speed in knots	Temperature air/water Degrees Fahrenheit	Location of fracture	Origin of fracture	Remarks		
					Stringer, sheer and strake below, frames 102-103, port.			• • • •	41
• •	Unknown		• • • • • • • • •	42°/	Stringer and sheer strakes frames 91-92 port.	Cut in sheer strake for accommodation ladder.			42
•••	Normal	5	9½	Autumn	Deck, bulwark, sheer and strake below at forward starboard cor- ner No. 3 hatch.	Probably at hatch corner.		••••	43
	Heavy	8-10	2.5-4.0	60°/64°	Deck, bulwark and sheer strake at two starboard corners and aft port corner No. 3 hatch.	Exactly at hatch cor- ners.	Complete fracture of strength deck.	• • • •	44
••••	Heavy Bow.	10	1 45	29°/42°	Deck and sheer strake at forward starboard and aft port corners No. 3 hatch; stringer and 2 in- board strakes, sheer and strake below, frames 85-86 port.	Exactly at hatch cor- nets; unknown.	Complete fracture of strength deck.	••••	45
• • • •	Heavy	11	• • • • • •		Complete cross section in way of forward end No. 3 hatch.	Exactly at hatch cor- ners.	Broke in two at sea —salvaged.	••••	46
••••	Heavy	6	8	32°/45°	Bilge strakes in way of No. 3 port tank for 20'-0".			• • • •	47
	Unknown	• • • • • • •		Autumn	Sheer stringer and strake inboard in way of No. 4 tank; B and D strakes in bottom shell of No. 6 tank and C strake butt weld.	Unknown; probably in butt weld of shell plates.		••••	48
•	Calm		•••••	Autumn	Stringer, sheer and strake below, 1. ames 90-91 port.	Cut in sheer strake for accommodation ladder.		••••	49
	Unknown	•••••			Deck, stringer and strake below, from No. 2 hatch.	Probably at hatch corner.		• • • •	50
••••	Unknown	• • • • • • •	• • • • • • • •	26°-42°/	Stringer, sheer and strake below, frames 43-44.			••••	51
• • •	Normal	4	91⁄2		Stringer and sheer strakes frames 110-112, port.			• • • •	52
• • • •	Heavy	••••	• • • • • •	33°/54°	Deck and sheer strake at forward starboard corner No. 3 hatch.	Probably at hatch corner.		• • • •	52
• • • •	Heavy	9	5-6	Winter	In vicinity of No. 2 hatch in deck and shell.			••••	54
	Heavy	7-8.	••••	34°/35°	Stringer, sheer and bulwark frames 101-102, port.	Probably at forward corner of freeing port.		••••	55
	Heavy	7-8	5		Deck and sheer strake at forward starboard corner; deck at for- ward port corner No. 3 hatch.		Complete fracture of strength deck.	••••	56
• ••	Heavy	11-12 .	• • • • • • • • • •	40°/	Deck, bulwark, sheer and strake below at forward starboard cor- ner No. 4 hatch.	Probably at hatch corner.		• • • •	57
• • •	Calm	i.	• • • • • • • •	13°/38°	Stringer, bulwark, sheer and strake below, frames 109-110 port.			• • • •	58
	Heavy	6.	• • • • • • • • • • •	55°/52°	Deck and sheer strake port, deck starboard, at after corners No. 3 hatch.	Hatch corners.	Complete fracture of strength deck.	••••	59
	Unknown		• • • • • • • •	Winter North Pacific	Deck, sheer strake and strake below at forward port corner and aft starboard corner No. 4 hatch.		Complete fracture of strength deck.	• • • •	60
	Heavy, 2 points on port quarter	7	10		Deck from gunwale to within 2 feet of No. 3 hatch frames 75-76, starboard.	Probably in butt weld of deck.		••••	61

701292-47-7

CLASS I CASUALTIES

Chronological Order

Name of vessel	Турс	Yard	Launchin	g date	Months Afloat	Casual	ity date	Loading and drafts
62 Joseph R. Lamar	EC2-S-C1	J. A. Jones Construc- tion, Brunswick	29 Apr	1943	8	9 Jan	1944	Ballasted
63 Јозерн Ѕмітн	EC2-S-C1	•	22 May	1943	7	9 Jan	1944	
64 Theodore Parker	EC2-S-C1	California Shipbuild- ing Corp.	24 Fcb	1943	10	9 Jan	1944	Ballasted
65 William L. Marcy	EC2-S-C1	California Shipbuild- ing Corp.	28 Dec	1942	12	12 Jan	1944	Ballasted
66 Roger Griswold	EC2-S-C1	Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc.	1 Mar	1943	10	12 Jan	1944	Ballasted
67 Јозерн N. Nicollet	EC2-S-C1	Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc.	24 May	1943	7	14–16 a 27 Jan	nd 1944	Loaded
68 Esso Washington	T2-SE-A1	Sun Shipbuilding and Drydock Co.	10 Nov	1942	12	16 Jan	1944	Loaded
69 Jefferson Davis	EC2-S-C1	•	12 July	1942	18	16 Jan	1944	Loaded
70 Lorenzo De Zavala	EC2-S-C1	•	29 May	1943	7	20 Jan	1944	Ballasted 13'-6"/20'-6"
71 George Gale	EC2-S-C1	Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc.	15 July	1942	18	21 Jan	1944	Ballasted
72 Samuel Dexter	EC2-S-C1		29 Mar	1943	9	21 Jan	1944	Ballasted
73 JANE LONG	EC2-S-C1	Houston Shipbuild- ing Corp.	14 May	1943	8	22 Jan	1944	Ballasted
74 James Gordon Bennett	EC2-S-C1		13 Sept	1942	16	22 Jan	1944	Ballasted
75 JULIEN POYDRAS	EC2-S-C1	Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc.	17 May	1943	8	24 Jan	1944	Loaded
76 George A. Custer	EC2-S-C1		23 Sept	1942	16	25 Jan	1944	Ballasted 14'-1"/20'-1"
77 RICHARD J. CLEVELAND	Z-ET1-S-C3		15 Sept	1943	4	28 Jan	1944	Loaded 25'-0"/28'-4"
78 Dekadrist	EC2-S-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp.	27 Feb	1943	11	29 Jan	1944	Loaded
79 Abraham Baldwin	EC2-S-C1	-	16 May	1942	20	29 Jan	1944	Ballasted
80 William H. Prescott	EC2-S-C1		21 July	1942	18	1 Feb	1944	Ballasted 12'-10"/21'-6"
81 Amelia Earhart	EC2-S-C1	Houston Shipbuild- ing Corp.	18 Dec	1942	13	2 Feb	1944	Ballasted 11'-10"/21'-2"
82 John L. Sullivan	EC2-S-C1	Permanente Metals No. 2	26 May	1943	8	2 Feb	1944	Ballasted
83 Samuel Adams	_C2-S-C1	California Ship- building Corp.	31 Jan	1942	24	3 Feb	1944	Ballastcd

- ART ALL AND ALL

me

٠.

. .

· · · · · ·

• •

CLASS I CASUALTIES

Chronological Order

	Sea condition and direction	Wind force Beaufor Scale	Ship's speed in knots	Temperature air/water Degrees Fahrenheit	Location of fracture	Origin of fracture	Remarks
	Heavy	8-10	7	50°/68°	Deck from centerline to gunwale, forward No. 4 hatch.		62
	Heavy cross.	6-9	7	34°/50°	Deck and shell near forward end No. 4 hatch; two corners No. 3 hatch.		Complete fracture 63 of strength deck —abandoned.
	Не. 7у	6	6	44°/54°	Deck at forward port corner and one strake at after starboard cor- ner No. 3 hatch.	Exactly at hatch cor- ner.	64
	Heavy head .	8-9	5	38°/51°	Deck, sheer and strake below at after port corner; deck at for- ward starboard corner No. 3 hatch.	Exactly at hatch cor- ners.	Complete fracture 65 of strength deck.
	Heavy head	8	9	38°/58°	Deck, bulwark, sheer and strake below at forward starboard cor- ner No. 3 hatch.	Exactly at hatch cor- ner.	60
	Heavy	10	½ speed	32°/	Deck from ventilator to gunwale, sheer to second deck frames 112- 113.		67
· · · ·	Heavy	58	13	Winter	Three bilge strakes at forward end No. 6 tank, starboard.	Probably butt weld of shell.	68
	Heavy			-	Stringer and two inboard strakes, frames 83-84, starboard.		69
	Heavy		••••••		Deck, sheer, and strake below at forward starboard corner No. 4 hatch.	Probably at hatch corner.	7(
	Неачу	8	••••••	42°/50°	Stringer, sheer and strake below, port side, near amidships.		7:
	Heavy 3 points on star- board bow		1 47	40°/48°	Deck and sheer strake at forward corners No. 3 hatch and forward starboard corner No. 4 hatch.	Probably at hatch corner.	Complete fracture 72 of strength deck —abandoned.
• • • •	Heavy	• • • • • •	6	37°–49°/	Deck, sheer and strake below from port side No. 4 hatch.		7:
	Heavy	7	10		Deck to ventilator, bulwark and sheer strake, frames 83-84 star- board.		74
• • • •	Heavy	5–7	•••••		Deck at forward port corner No. 3 hatch.	ner.	7!
	Heavy head	_	8		Deck at forward port corners No. 3 hatch.	corner.	Complete fracture 76 of strength deck:
	Heavy 2 points on star- board bow	8	•••••	24°/34°	Deck from ventilator to gunwale, sheer and strake below, frames 112 starboard.	Probably at vent opening in deck.	77
••••	Heavy	• • • • • •	• • • • • • • • •	Winter	Deck and shell to tween deck at forward port corner No. 3 hatch.	Probably at hatch corner.	78
	Heavy	•••••	• • • • • • • •	Winter	Deck inboard 16', shell 14' about 5' aft of No. 3 hatch.		79
•	Heavy head	8-10	4-5	52°/50°	Deck and shell in tween deck at forward port and after starboard corners No. 3 hatch.	Probably at hatch corner.	Complete fracture 80 of strength deck.
	Heavy	9	5.2	50°/49°	Deck at forward starboard corner No. 3 hatch; deck from vent. to gunwale frame 83 port.	Probably at hatch corner	81
	Heavy	9–11	3	50°/54°	Deck and shell to tween deck at forward starboard corner No. 3 hatch.	Probably at hatch corner.	8
••••	Calm	2	• • • • • • • • •	32°/34°	Stringer, bulwark and sheer, frames 111-112, starboard.		8:

- 846

. .

10000

÷ ,

-
CLASS I CASUALTIES

Chronological Order

	Name of venel	Туре	- Yard	Launching date	Mor "he affoe	Casualty date	Loading and drafts
84	Sam Houston II	EC2-S-C1	Houston Shipbuild- ing Corp.	30 June 194	3 7	4 Feb 1944	Loaded
85	Vernon L. Kellogg	EC2-S-C1	California Ship- building Corp.	15 July 194	36	5 Feb 1944	Loaded
86	Cyrus H. McCormack	EC2-S-C1		2 Oct 194	2 16	12 Feb 1944	Ballasted
87	CHAMP CLARK	EC2-S-C1	Houston Shipbuild- ing Corp.	30 Dec 194	2 13	20 Feb 1944	Ballasted
88	CHARLES TREADWELL	N3-S-A1		7 Nov. 194	2 15	x Mar 1944	Ballasted
	GEORGE P. GARRISON			12 July 194	37	2 Mar 1944	Loaded
90	McClellan Creek	T2-SE-A1		4 Apr 194	3 10	2 Mar 1944	Ballasted 4'-7"/15'-11"
91	Elisha Graves Otis	EC2-S-C1	Permanente Metal No. 2	5 May 194	13 9	3 Mar 1944	Ballasted
92	JANE A. DELANO	EC2-S-C1	Permanente Metals No. 2	9 Mar 194	3 11	4 Mar 1944	Loaded 20'-5"/27'-5"
93	JOEL R. POINSETT	EC2-S-C1	Houston Shipbuild- ing Corp.	19 Feb 194	3 12	4 Mar 1944	Ballasted
94	James Iredell	EC2-S-C1	North Carolina Shipbuilding Co.	29 Nov 194	2 15	4 Mar 1944	Loaded
95	William M. Meredith	EC2-\$-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp.	5 Feb 194	3 13	5 Mar 1944	Loaded 19'-4"/24'-6"
96	CHARLES CROCKER	EC2-S-C1	California Ship- building Corp.	11 May 194	13 10	15 Mar 1944	Loaded 28'-7"/28'-7"
97	White Oak	T2-SE-A1	v .	25 Sept 194	35	13–20 Mar 1944	Unknown
98	Suchan	EC2-S-C1	California Ship- building Corp.	2 May 194	13 12	16 May 1944	Unknown
99	JOHN P. ALTGELD	Z-ETI-S-C3	• •	18 Oct 194	3 11	9 Oct 1944	Loaded
100	FERDINANDO GORGES	EC2-S-C1	New England Ship- building Corp.	12 Aug 194	3 16	16 Dec 1944	Loaded
101	LEEANON	C1-M-AV1		14 Oct 194	4 2	9 Jan 1945	Light 1'11"/14'-0"
102	John Sergeant	EC2-S-C1	Bethlehem-Fairfield Shipyard, Inc.	21 Aug 194	2 29	25 Jan -11 Feb 1945	Loaded
103	WARRIOR	C2-S-E1	Gulf Shipbuilding Corp.	14 Mar 194	3 22	27 Jan 1945	Loaded
104	Walter Forward	EC2-S-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp.	22 Jan 194	3 24	29 Jan 1945	Loaded

Contraction of the second second

.



۲

Speed indicated in revolutions per minute.

- -

CLASS I CASUALTIES

Chronological Order

	Sea condition and direction	Wind force Beaufor Scale	Ship's speed in knots	Temperature air/water Degrees Fahrenheit	Location of fracture	Origin of fracture	Remarks	
	Heavy Port . Beam	6	¹ 63	38°/42°	Deck and shell to two n deck at forward starboard end No. 3 hatch and at gangway.	Exactly at hatch cor- ner; unknown.		84
• • • •	Heavy	7–8	8.5	52°/63°	Deck inboard from gunwale for 8'-0" and sheer strake for 3'-0".			8!
• • • •	Heavy 3 Pts. on star- board bow	8	5.5	50°/54°	Stringer and sheer, strake frames 90–91 statboard.	Cut in sheer strake for accommodation ladder.		80
••••	Heavy	6	9	20°/	Deck and shell to tween deck at forward port corner No. 4 hatch.	Exactly at hatch cor- ner.		87
•••	Heavy				Stringer and sheer strake starboard.			88
	Heavy		4.4		Stringer and two inboard strakes and sheer frames 134 port.			89
					Deck from cargo hatch to gunwale, sheer and two strakes below, frames 53-54 starboard.			90
•••	H c avy	•••••			Deck and shell to tween deck after port and deck for 10'-0" at forward starboard corner No. 3 hatch.	Probably at hatch corner.		91
	Heavy For- ward port beam		6		Deck from center line to gunwale, sheer and strake below. Frames 83-84 starboard.			92
	Heavy 3 pts. on star- board bow		5		Complete cross section between No. 3 hatch and deckhouse.		Broke in two-stern part salvaged.	
•••	Heavy	• • • • • • •			Deck at after port corner No. 2 hatch for 12'; deck from center line and bulwark, frames 60-62 port.	ner; unknown.		94
• • • •	Calm	• • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • •	34°/35°	Stringer, sheer and strake below, frames 137-138 port.	Butt weld of half round gunwale moulding.		95
••	Normal	4	7.5	50°/70°	Deck and sheer strake at forward starboard corner No. 3 hatch.	Exactly at hatch cor- ner.		96
••	Unknown	• • • • • • •	•••••	Spring	Bilge and bottom shell for about 14' frame 61 starboard.	Defective welding in adjacent shell butts.		97
•••	Unknown		••••	Spring	Sheer and stringer plates frame 111 starboard.			98
•••	Heavy	9.	• • • • • • • • •	45°/50°	Sheer, stringer and strake inboard, frames 113-114 starboard.	End of slotted freeing port in bulwark.		99
•••	Normal beam	3	7	39°-47°/ 48°-52°	Deck, sheer, and strake below, frames 81-82 port.	Defective butt weld of stringer plates.		100
•••	Calm	• • • • • •		16°/32°	Deck from coaining No. 3 hatch to rivet in gunwale, frames 81-82 starboard.	Probably in hatch coaming.	Crack stopped at riveted gunwale angle.	101
•••	Heavy	6-7.	• • • • • • • •	22°-32°/42°	Frame 96-97 accommodation lad- der upper deck continued down through sheer strake.		Crack on port side stopped at riveted seam and deck house.	102
	Normal port qtr.	4	14	32°/47°	Deck and side shell in middle of No. 3 hatch P. & S.; deck and coaming port side No. 3 hatch. deck forward of house for 7'-0" starboard.	Butt welds of bulwark rail; vicinity of stringer; deck doubler.	Complete fracture of strength deck.	103
•••	Normal			51°-60°/ 66°-69°	Upper deck stringer plate frames 104–105.	•••••	Crack ran inboard for 20" and down sheer strake, stop- ping at crack arrestor.	104

CLASS I CASUALTIES

Chronological Order

Name of vessel	Туре	Yard	Launching date	Months aficat	Casualt	y date	Loading and drafts
105 McClellan Creek	T2-SE-A1	Alabama Drydock and Shipbuilding Co.	4 Apr 1943	_	30 Jan	1945	Loaded 29'-10"/31'-0"
106 Esso Paterson	T2-SE-A1		11 Nov 1942	26	x Jan	1945	Lo. ded 28'-10"/30'-4"
107 J. D. Yeager	EC2-S-C1	Houston Shipbuild- ing Corp.	6 Oct 1944	4	19 Feb	1945	Ballasted
108 Esso Little Rock	Tanker Not. M. C.	Sun Shipbuilding and Drydock Co.	Del. Jan 41	50 Ipprox		1945	Loaded
109 LELAND STANFORD	. EC2-S-C1	California Shipbuild- ing Corp.	4 Aug 1942	18	x Mar	1945	Unknown
110 Atlantic States	Tanker Not M.C.	Sun Shipbuilding and Drydock Co.	Del. Mar 43	24 100100		1945	Loaded
111 HILARY A. HERBERT	EC2-S-C1	North Carolina Ship- building Co.	27 June 1943	21	x Mar	1945	Unknown
112 Esso Pittsburgh	Tanker Not M.C.	Sun Shipbuilding and Drydock Co.		27 approx		1945	Loaded
113 SAMUEL CHASE	. EC2-S-C1	Bethlehem - Fairfield Shipyard, Inc.	22 Feb 1942	40	4 June	1945	Unknown
114 CAPE ISABEL	. C-1B	Consolidated Steel Corp. Ltd.	28 May 1943	25	27 June	1945	Loaded 26'-3"/27'-0"
115 Henry C. Wallace	Z-ET1-S-C3	California Shipbuild- ing Corp.	15 Aug 1943	25	18 Sept	1945	Loaded 28'-9"/28'-10"
116 William W. Mayo	EC2-S-C1	Permanente Metals No. 2	10 June 1943	28	24 Oct	1945	Loaded
117 Јелн Вівлі т	. EC2-S-C1	J. A. Jones Construc- tion, Panama	5 May 1944	18	8 Nov	1945	Loaded
118 Мелснам	. T2-SE-A1	Kaiser Co., Inc., Swan Island	30 Dec 1943	23	12 Nov	1945	Loaded
119 Слир Намани	. T2-SE-A1	Kaiser Co., Inc., Swan Island	25 Apr 1944	19	18 Nov	1945	Light 1'-0"/19"-10"
120 Joseph Hooker	EC2-S-C1	Permanente Metals No. 1	20 June 1942	41	12 Dec	1945	Ballast 12'-6"/20'-0"
121 John C. Spincer	EC2-S-C1	Houston Shipbuild- ing Corp.	5 Mar 1943	21	21 Dec	1945	Ballasted

......

٠

. ...

2.4

¹ Speed indicated in revolutions per minute.

98

.

CLASS I CASUALTIES

Chronological Order

	Sea condition and direction	Wind force Beaufort Scale	Ship's speed in knots	Temperature air/water Degrees Fahrenheit	Location of fracture	Origin of fracture	Remarks
	Heavy		179	·	Shell plate at bulknead 53-47 port side vertical crack from G12 to B13.		105
• • • •	Unknown	• • • • • •	• • • • • • • •	37°/38°	No. 4 tank starboard vertical from "F" strake to "B" strake.	28" above scam con- necting "E" and "F" strakes.	106
• •	Heavy	9-10		40°	Upper deck cracked from starboard gunwale to ventilator opening at frame 113	Possibly deck house corner at upper deck.	Crack stopped at107 vent. and riveted gunwale angle.
•••	Normal	5	14.5	30°/47°	Shell plate at No. 3 starboard wing tank. Crack 21' vertical from seam at top E5 to within 18' bot- tom of C4.	Bilge keel weld.	108
•••	Unknown	•••••	• • • • • • • •	49°-58°/ 62°-64°	Stringer plate between frames 113- 114 starboard.		109
•••	Normal	3	14		Shell plate, port side in way cf.No. 7 tank. Across bottom strakes A and B.		110
•••	Unknown	••••	• • • • • • • • •	Unknown	Shell butt in starboard "D" strake in No. 4 hold extending 6" in "E" strake.		111
•	Hcavy	5-6	8	43°/42°	No. 4 and No. 5 cargo tanks, frames 28-32. Shell cracked from 2' be- low upper deck to 4' below upper deck around bottom.	Defective butt weld in port bilge strake. 2nd crack appears to start at fatigue crack in shell at end of longitudinal.	Bottom completely112 fractured.
•••	Unknown		• • • • • • • • •	••••	Shell plate cracked at butt weld frame 96 between D-9 and D-10 starboard for 14".	·	113
•••	Normal N.W.	5	13	57°/53°	Cut for accommodation ladder starboard crack went down and stopped at riveted seam.	Probably at corner of cut in sheer plate.	114
• 3 、	Heavy	9	158	50°/52°	Deck plate at frame 113 starboard proceed down shell plate 1" into plate H-11, deck plate E-11 deck.	After starboard cor- ner of deck house at frame 113 on upper deck.	115
, 	Heavy Aft	7–10	9.6	58°/61°	Sheer strake plate between frames 89-90 port side fractured down to seam, stringer plate fractured inboard 1'.	Top of sheer strake plate.	116
•••	Heavy	7–8	9	37°/42°	Upper deck frame 83 starboard stringer plate E8 to B7.	Probably at dbl. at point where deck house meets deck plate.	Stopped outboard at117 crack arrestor.
•••	Heavy Swell	4–5	13.3	50°/53°	Frame 56-57 port zhell plate strake "A" to "H" rupturing 20 long'ls also frame 60.	Plates E-13 and E-14 occurred near end oflong'lsweld.S.H.	118
•••	Calm	. 1	0	55°/60°	30" forward frame 54, No. 7 wing. deck plate from sheer strake in- board for 16'.	At sheer strake.	119
•••	Исачу		9	48°/62°	Shell plate between frames 74 and 75 from "D" strake to 24" in- board B-C seam	s'aulty weld at butt in bilge keel. Ser- rated holes not tangent to shell.	120
	Heavy	6-7	4.08	54°/63°	Frame 112 starboard sheer strake, to forward corner No. 4 hatch. Also aft deck cracked for 3' out- board from winch.		121

**

•

.

.

.

.

.

. .

••

• •

CLASS I CASUALTIES

Chronological Order

	Name of venel	Туре	Yard	Launchin	g date	Months	Carualt	y date	Loading and drafts
122	WILLIAM A. HENRY	EC2-S-C1	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp.	14 Dec	1943	25	3-4 Jar	1946	Vessel Loading
123	Quaker Hill	T2-SE-A1	Alabama Drydock and Shipbuilding Co.	7 Oct	194 4	15	8 Jan	1946	Loaded (at dock) 25'-0"/27'-0"
124	CANYON CREEK	T2-SE-A1	Alabama Drydock and Shipbuilding Co.	28 Feb	1943	35	14 Jan	1946	Loaded
125	HENRY BALDWIN	EC2-S-C1		18 Oct	1942	39	15 Jan	1946	Ballasted
126	Robert Lowery	EC2-S-C1	Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc.	10 May	1943	32	19 Jan	1946	Loaded
127	FREDERICK C. HICKS	EC2-S-C1	California Shipbuild- ing Corp.	4 Mar	1944	22	21 Jan	1946	Unknown
128	AMIENS	T2-SE-A1	Sun Shipbuilding and Drydock Co.	17 Mar	1945	10	22 Jan	1946	Loaded
129 	DONBASS III	T2-SE-A1	Kaiser Co., Inc., Swan Island	8 Aug	1944	18	17 Feb	1946	Loaded
130	CHRISTOPHER GALE	EC2-S-C1	North Carolina Ship- building Co.	21 Mar	1943	35	26 Feb	1946	Ballast cargo
131	SACKETT'S HARBOR	T2-SE-A1	Kaiser Co., Inc., Swan Island	5 July	1943	33	1 Mar	1946	Ballast
	MIKHAIL KUTUZOV (Lend leased to Russia.) Indicated in revolutions per minute.	EC2-3-C1		21 Mar	1943	36	17 Mar	1946	Unknown

100

-

.

•

CLASS I CASUALTIES

Chronological Order

- ---

	Sea condition and direction	Wind force Beaufort Seale	Ship's speed in knots	Temperature air/water Degrees Fahrenheit	l ocation of fracture	Origin of fracture	Remarks
	Calm	••••	0	50°/42°	Frame 60-61 starboard shell plates cracked vertically 11' from E6 to C11. Seam at frame 62 slugged.	Faulty weld in butt between D6-D7.	122
· ·	Calm	•••••	••••	25°/45°	Shell plate at No. 7 starboard wing and center tanks from plate F12-B-13.	At butt weld in bilge keel.	123
	Calm	3-4	• • • • • • • • •	8°/36°	Shell plate No. 5 starboard wing tank. 18" inboard of seam D-E starboard to 1/2 of F-9.	Probably at bilge keel butt.	124
• •	Heavy	10	3	30°/42°	Frame 138-139 forward starboard corner No. 5 hatch to rivet hole of frame 135 at J-13.	Probably in "D" strake on deck in way of padeyes.	125
••••	Calm		• • • • • • • •	30°/43°	Upper deck cracked. Starboard side of No. 5 hatch to gunwale frame 141-2.		126
••••	Hcavy	• • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • •	Unknown	Frame 83-84 upper deck cracked from ventilator to gunwale, and into sheer strake and strake below.		127
· · · · ·	Calm	. 3–4	13.3	36°/36°	Frame 59, No. 5 and No. 6 tank shell plate C-10, E-13, but head at frame 59 cracked ?".		128
	Heavy		• • • • • • • •	37°/41°-43°	No. 5 tank at frame 6' ? To sel had additional stre	Crack indicates it probably originated below water line, presumably at bulkhead.	Vessel broke in two129 15 lives lost on bow section.
••••	Heavy	. 6-7	3.8	48°/68°	Frame 90 crack in upper deck ex- tended into deck house and 61" down sheer stake to stop at rivet.	Sheer strake plate where bul. is re- cessed for accom- modation ladder.	130
· · · ·	Heavy		• • • • • • • •	•••••	Vessel cracked at No. 5 tank, aft of deck house.	Unknown	Vessel broke in two131
••••	Unknown			Unknown	Unknown.		132

		A	Alphabetical List o Serious Structural	ictural	r allure	n		
Name of Ship	Casualy date	date	Name of :p	Casualty	date	Name of Ship	Casualty d	date
ABILL FOSTER (1)	29 Dec	1943	HARVEY W. SCOTT	5 Dec	1942	MCCLELLAN CREEK (1)	2 Mar	1944
ABAHAN BALDWIN (2)	XFeb	1943	HAT CREEK (1)	11 Dec	1943	MCCLELLAN CREEK (2)	28 Jan	1945
	13 Oct	1933	HAT CREEK (2)	13 Dec	1943	Меаснам	12 Nov	1945
ADDALLAR RAIDING (2)		1044	HENRY RAIDWIN (1)	27 Dec	1942	MIKHAIL KUTUZOV	17 Mar	1946
At hen Greenen (1)	Nov X	1942	HERRY BALDWIN (3)	15 Jan	1946	NICHOLAS GILMAN (1)	3 Jan	1943
ATEXANDED NEVSKY	24 Dec	1943	HENRY C. WALLACE.	18 Sept	1945	PHINEAS BANNING (2)	11 Dec	1943
AMELIA EARHART	2 Feb	1944	HENRY WYNKOOP (1)	16 Fcb	1943	QUAKER HILL.	8 Jan	1946
Autons	22 Ian	1946	HILARY A. HERBERT.	X Mar	1945	RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (1)	28 Jan	1944
		1943	I. D. YEAGER	19 Jan	1945	RICHARD J. RIESS.	17 Oct	1943
	15 Dec	1043	I M Cheby	1 252	1943	ROBERT C. STANLEY	10 Nov	1943
	17 Mar	1045	J. L. M. OOMIN	10 Feb	1943	Samer (OWRY (2)	19 Ian	1945
ATLANTIC STATES	1/ Mar	1945		10 1)-1	6707	Down Munut (2)	acl y	1044
BROCKHOLT LIVINGETON (1)	2 May	1945		10 100	C+/1		12 Ion	1044
Самр Манали (2)	18 Nov	1945	JAMES GORDON BENNETT (2)	22 Jan	1944	KOGER GRISWOLD (1)	12 Jan	4441
CANYON CREEK (2)	14 Jan	1946	JAMES IREDELL	4 Mar	1944	S. M. BABCOCK (1)	14 Oct	1945
CAPE Isabel.	27 Jan	1945	JAMES MCNEILL WHISTLFR	28 Nov	1942	Sackett's Harbor	1 Mar	1946
CHAMP CLARK	20 Feb	1944	ANE A. DELANO (3)	4 Mar	1944	SAM HOUSTON II (1)	4 Feb	1944
CHANGELAIN	12 Feb	1943	IANE LONG.	22 Jan	1944	SAMUEL ADAMS	3 Fcb	1944
	21 Dec	1042	Team Province	Nov S	1945	SAMUEL CHASE (3)	X lune	1945
CHARLES CROCKER (1)				16 Ion	TOAA	Similar Device (2)	21 Ian	1944
CHARLES CPOCKER (2)	IS Mar	1944	JEFFERSON LAVIS	10 Jan	++ 47	SAMUEL DEALER (4)	47 T	
CHARLES 'I'READWELL (2)	X Mar	1944		NOV 11	1942	DCHENECTADY (I)	10 Jan	1940
CHIEF W'ASHAKIE (2)	11 Dec	1943	JOAQUIN MILLER (1)	15 Mar	1943		d Jan	1944
CH., IST CPHER GALE	26 Feb	1946	Joaquin Miller (3).	15 Dec	1943	STEPHEN C. FOSTER (1).	14 Mar	1943
CHRISTOPHER GREENUP (1)	29 Mar	1943	JOEL R. POINSETT	4 Mar	1944	SUCHAN	16 May	1944
CVPIR H. MCCORMACK (2)	12 Feb	1944	JOHN C. AINSWORTH (1)	25 Dec	1942	THEODORE PARKER (1)	9 Jan	1944
DANIEL HIESTER	1 Ian	1943	IOHN C. SPENCER (3)	21 Dec	1945	THEODORE SEDGWICK	28 Nov	1943
[]BY A BDIST	29 Ian	1944	Tohn Firch (2)	15 Fcb	1943	THOMAS HOOKER	5 Mar	1943
	17 Feb	1946	TOHN GORBUR (1)	13 Oct	1943	THOMAS TOHNSON (2)	14 Apr	1943
	a Mar	1044	TOUR I SUITIVAN (2)	2 Feb	1944	THOMAS MCDONOLIGH	14 Nov	1942
ELERA UKAVEN ULB (J)	E Tem	1044	D Armonia		1944	THOMAS SUMTER (1)	2 Mar	1943
EMILIAN FUOACHEV (2)	ubl c	++/1	JUAN F. ALIGELL (2)	27 Mou	1043	Vitent Curator	11 Dec	1043
LUDERS M. VOORHEES	ACK1 01	21.45	JUIN I. CAMARS		1045	Variou I Variono	L Tob	1044
Esso LITTLE ROCK	8 Mar	C441	JOHN DERGEANT	upf c7		VERNON L. DELLOUG		
ESSO MANHATTAN (1)	29 Mar	1443	JOHN VINING (2)	z Jan	1944	WALTER FORWARD	A Jan C 22	0471
ESSO PATERSON (4)	X Jan	1945	Joseph Ноокек	12 Dcc	1945	WALTER HINES FAGE (I)	23 700	1945
Eso Pittisburgh	11 May	1945	JOSEPH N. NICOLLET	14 Jan	1944	WARRIOR (2)	2/ Jan	1945
ESSO WASHINGTON (2)	16 Jan	1944	JOSEPH R. LAMAR (1)	9 Jan	1944	WHITE OAK.	22 Mar	1944
FERDINANDO GORGES	16 Dcc	1944	Joseph Smith	9 Jan	1944	WILLIAM A. HENRY (3)	3 Jan	1946
FREDERIC REMINOTON (1)	5 May	1943	JULIEN POYDRAS.	24 Jan	1944	WILLIAM BLACK YATES (1)	28 Dec	1943
FREDERICK C. HICKS	21 Jan	1946	LAMBERT CADWALADER	X Dec	1943	WILLIAM H. CRAWFORD	5 May	1943
GEORGE A. CUSTER	25 Jan	1944	LAURA KEENE	11 Dec	1943	WILLIAM H. PRESCOTT.	1 Fcb	1944
GEORGE B. SELDEN	29 Nov	1943	LEBANON	9 Jan	1945	WILLIAM L. MARCY (3)	12 Jan	1944
GEORGE CHAMBERLAIN (1)	1 Dec	1942	Leland Stanford (2).	X Mar	1945	WILLIAM L. SMITH (2)	5 Apr	1943
GF0 10E CHAMBERLAIN (2).	29 Dcc	1943	LEW WALLACE	26 Mar	1942		5 Mar	1944
Groige Gale (2)	21 Jan	1944	LORENZO DE ZAVAIA	20 Jan	1944	WILLIAM T. SHERMAN.	27 Dec	1942
GEOFCE P. GARREON	2 Mar	1944	Markay.	18 June	1943	WILLIAN W. MAYO (1)	24 Oct	1945

Alphabetical List o Serious Structural Failures

ر

102

ł

Abbreviations used in Tables XIII and XIV

Abbreviated name used in index

.

Full	пати	and	location

Alabama	Alabama Dry Dock and Shipbuilding Co., Mobile, Ala.
American-Cleveland	American Shipbuilding Co., Cleveland, Ohio
American-Lorain	American Shipbuilding Co., Lorain, Ohio
Barnes-Duluth	Barnes-Duluth Shipbuilding Co., (Later Walter Butler), Duluth, Minn.
Bethlehem-Fairfield	Bethlehem-Fairfield Shipyard, Inc., Fairfield, Baltimore, Md.
Bethlehem-Fore River	Bethlehem Steel Co., Shipbuilding Division, Fore River Yard, Quincy, Mass.
Bethlehem-San Francisco	Bethlehem Steel Co., Shipbuilding Division, San Francisco, Calif.
Bethlehem-Sparrows	Bethlehem-Sparrows Point Shipyard, Inc., Sparrows Point, Md.
Calship	California Shipbuilding Corp., Wilmington, Calif.
Chicago	Chicago Shipbuilding Co., Chicago, Ill.
Consolidated-Long Beach	Consolidated Steel Corp., Ltd., Long Beach, Calif.
Consolidated-Wilmington	Consolidated Steel Corp., Ltd., Wilmington, Calif.
Delta	Delta Shipbuilding Co., Inc., New Orleans, La.
Detroit	Detroit Shipbuilding Co., Wyandotte, Mich.
Federal	Federal Shipbuilding & Dry Dock Co., Kearny, N. J.
Globe	Globe Shipbuilding Co., Superior, Wis.
Great Lakes-Ashtabula	Great Lakes Engineering Works, Ashtabula, Ohio
Great Lakes-River Rouge	Great Lakes Engineering Works, River Rouge, Mich.
Gulf	Gulf Shipbuilding Corp., Chickasaw, Ala.
Houston	Houston Shipbuilding Corp., (Later Todd-Houston), Houston, Tex.
Ingalls	Ingalls Shipbuilding Corp., Pascagoula, Miss.
Jones-Brunswick	J. A. Jones Construction Co., Inc., Brunswick Yard, Brunswick, Ga.
Jones-Panama	J. A. Jones Construction Co., Inc., Wainright Yard, Panama City, Fla.
Kaiser-Swan	Kaiser Co., Inc., Swan Island, Portland, Ore.
Kaiser-Vancouver	Kaiser Co., Inc., Vancouver, Wash.
Leathern D. Smith	Leathern D. Smith Ship' ulding Co., Sturgeon Bay, Wis.
Marinship	Marinship Corp., Sausa to, Calif.
Moore	Moore Dry Dock Co., Cakland, Calif.
New England	New England Shipbuilding Corp., South Portland, Me.
Newport News	Newport News Shipbuilding & Dry Dock Co., Newport News, Va.
North Carolina	North Carolina Shipbuilding Co., Sunset Park, Wilmington, N. C.
Odenbach	Odenbach Shipbuilding Corp., Rochester, N. Y.
Oregon	Oregon Shipbuilding Corp., St. John Station, Portland, Ore.
Pacific Bridge	Pacific Bridge Co., Alameda, Calif.
Pennsylvania	Pennsylvania Shipyards, Inc., Beaumont, Tex.
Permanente	Permanente Metals Corp., Richmond, Calif.
Puscy and Jones	Pusey and Jones Corp., Wilmington, Del.
Rheem	Rheem Manufacturing Co., (Later Walsh-Kaiser), Providence, R. I.
St. Johns.	St. Johns River Shipbuilding Co., Jacksonville, Fla.
Scattle-Tacoma	Scattle-Tacoma Shipbuilding Corp., Tacoma, Wash.
	South Portland Shipbuilding Corp., (Later New England), South Portland, Me.
South Portland	South rothand Shipbuilding Corp., Savannah, Ga.
Southeastern	Sun Shipbuilding and Dry Dock Co., Chester, Pa.
Todd-Houston	Todd-Houston Shipbuilding Co., Houston, Tex.
	U. S. Shipbuilding Corp., Yonkers, N. Y.
U. S. Shipbuilding	Walsh-Kaiser Co., Inc., Providence, R. I.
Walsh-Kaiser	Walter Butler Shipbuilders, Inc., Riverside Yard, Duluth, Minn.
Walter Butler	Welding Shipyards Inc., Norfolk, Va.
Welding Shipyard	Western Pipe & Steel Co., San Francisco, Calif.
Western Pipe	mestern ripe & otter co., ban rianeweby Cana

Sea conditions:

- C Calm N Normal H High

ĸ

TABLE XIII

Casualties Reported from 1 August 1945 to 1 April 1946

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey,	Builder and bull po.	Sea condition	Temper Degr Fahrer	.ccs
	or Report			Air	Water
ABIEL FOSTER (3)	11-27-45	Calship, 15	3	?	?
AFRICAN DAWN	8-23-45	Federal, 237		56	61
AMIENS	1-22-46	Sun, 464	c	36	36
ANGUS MCDONALD (2)	8-45	Todd-Houston, 49			?
ANTIOCH VICTORY	12-22-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2469		?	?
ARTHUR RIGGE (3)	12-10-45	Oregon, 634		54	49
Benjamin Goodhue	11-20-45	Calship, 16		?	?
BOWDOIN VICTORY.	12-11-45	Permanente, 588	2	2	?
BROWN VICTORY	2-21-46	Oregon, 1225	c	20	?
Самр Намани (2)	11-18-45	Kaiser-Swan, 64		55	60
CANYON CREEK (2)	1-14-46	Alabama, 249		8	36
CAPE CONSTANTINE (1)	8-45	Pennsylvania, 271		?	?
CAPE CONSTANTINE (2)	12-2-45	Pennsylvania, 271		?	?
CAPE ELIZABETH	9-45	Consolidated-Wilmington, 248		?	?
CHARLES CROCKER (3)	1-45	Calship, 186		?	?
CHARLESTOWN (2)	8-45	Sun, 317		?	?
CHRISTOPHER GALE	2-26-46	North Carolina, 78		48	68
Colina (2)	11-45	Sun, 251		?	?
Costa Riga Victory	12-26-45	Permanente, 529		39	42
CROSBY S. NOYES	11-27-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2168		?	?
DANIEL WILLARD (2)	11-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2075		?	?
DONBASS III.	2-17-46	Kaiser-Swan, 84		37	41-43
EDGAR E. CLARK (2)	8-45	Jones-Panama, 23		?	?
ELIAS REISBERG (3)	845	New England, 3110		?	?
ELIHU THOMSON	12-45	Permanente, 427		?	?
Fort George	12-21-45	Kaiser-Swan, 19		?	?
FRANCIS DRAKE (2)	11-45	Calship, 54		?	?
FRANCIS VIGO	8-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2237		?	?
FRANKLIN K. LANE (2)	1-46	Calship, 196	. ?	?	?
FREDERICK C. HICKS	1-21-46	Calship, 302	н	?	?
George Gipp	12-16-45	Permanente, 1116	н	47	53
George Ross	1-25-46	Permanente, 52		45	45
George W. Brown	1-25-46	Walter Butler, 25	. н	56	70
GRINNELL VICTORY	8-45	Permanente, 729	. ?	?	?
HALL J. KELLEY (3)	1-1-46	Oregon, 637		56	60
HANNIS TAYLOR (2)	12-24-45	North Carolina, 1t2		60	61
HARRY PERCY	2-20-46	Todd-Houston, 105	. ?	?	2
HENRY BALDWIN (3)	1-15-46	Calship, 82		30	42
HENRY C. WALLACE	9-18-45	Caiship, T-2		50	52
Henry Failing (2)	1-8-46	Oregon, 662.		41	39
HENRY W'. LONGFELLOW (2)	1-18-46	Oregon, 188	-	32	34
HORACE H. HARVEY (1)	1-16-46	Delta, 85		37	46
Horace H. Harvey (2)	3-2-46	Delta, 85		69	72
JACOB THOMPSON (4)	1-3-46	Delta, 68		7	?
JAMES B. RICHARDSON (3)	12-16-45	North Carolina, 35	1	50	60
JEAN BAPTISTE LE MOYNE	11-45	Delta, 81.		?	?
JEAN RIBAUT.	11-8-45	Jones-Panama, 41.		37	42
JOHN C. SPENCER (3).		Todd-Houston, 45		54	63
JOHN P. ALTOELD (5)	8-9-45	Calship, T-17.		?	1
JOHN STAGG				?	i
Joseph Hooker				48	62
JOSEPH M. TERRELL				50	58
Joshua Seney				49	53
Lehigh Victory	8-18-45	Calship, V-59	. C	84	63

R)

Temperature Degrees Fahrenheit Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report Sea condition Builder and hull no. Vessel Air Water LEWISTON VICTORY (1) 12-17-45 Oregon, 1202..... ? H 2 LEWISTON VICTORY (2) 1-23-46 Oregon, 1202..... ? ? ? LIMON 10-28-45 Gulf, 20..... ? 2 ? Lost Hills. 12-20-45 Marinship, 58..... 2 ? ? Louis Kossuth (2)..... Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2286.... 2 - 1 - 46н 56-59 54 - 62Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2451.... MAHANOY CITY VICTORY 1-24-46 н 52 58 MANDON VICTORY 12-6-45 Oregon, 1025..... H 63 60 MARIE M. MELONEY(2)..... Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2226..... 11-17-45 57 Η 59 MARINE LYNX..... 12-30-45 Kaiser-Vancouver, 510..... H 52 58 MARY ASHLEY TOWNSEND 9-12-45 Delta, 65..... ? 2 ? MARY M. DODGE..... 9-22-45 Permanente, 2138.... Н 60 60 Меаснам Kaiser-Swan, 46..... 11-12-45 H 50 53 Meredith Victory..... 10-45 Calship, V-83..... ? ? ş MERIDIAN VICTORY 1-21-24-46 Calship, V-24..... Ħ 46 45 MICHAEL J. STONE 11-45 Todd-Houston, 5..... Н ? 2 MIDLAND VICTORY..... 12-26-45 Oregon, 1252..... ? ? 2 3-17-46 Oregon, 652..... 'n ? ? MOLINO DEL REY (3) 9-21-45 Sun, 283.... ? ? ? MORTON PRINCE. Calship, T-14.... ? 2 2 11-6-45 Oregon, 1005..... NORWAY VICTORY 2-6-46 Н ? ? Calship, V-96..... PETERSBURG VICTORY..... 12-25-45 N 83 82 PLYMOUTH VICTORY..... Oregon, 1015..... 1-12-46 H 52 64 Alabama, 310..... OUAKER HILL 1-8-46 25 С 45 QUEMADO LAKE Alabama, 257..... 8-45 ? ? ? Sun, 239..... R. C. STONER (2)..... 12-14-45 ? 2 ? ROBERT LOWRY (2) Delta, 55..... С 30 43 1-19-46 RUFUS W. PECKHAM. 12-13-45 Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2090..... Н 36 60 RUSSELL R. JONES. 12-16-45 Todd-Houston, 195..... н 58 61 Kaiser-Swan, 20.... SACKETTS HARBOR 3-1-46 H 2 ? ST. JOHNS VICTORY..... Permanente, 596..... 1-18-46 N 29 46 SANTA MARIA (2)..... 11-1-45 Federal, 235..... Н 65 66 SEA PARTRIDGE (1).... Western Pipe, 127...... H 10-28-45 44 51 SEA PARTRIDGE (2)..... Western Pipe, 127..... ft H 57 55 11-23-45 Western Pipe, 133..... 2-7-46 **;**;? ? ? STEPHEN W. KEARNEY..... 2-3-46 Permapente, 1729..... Ή 56 50 STONY POINT. Kaiser-Swan, 6..... Þ ? ? 8-45 THOMAS J. LYONS 12-13-45 St. Johns, 42..... C 22 46 Sun, 268..... TICONDEROGA (4)..... 76 70 10-18-45 N WACO VICTORY..... 1-24-46 Calship, V-30..... H ? ? WAYCROSS VICTORY 12-17-45 Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2493..... N 42 56 WILLIAM A. HENRY (3)..... 1-3-4-46 Oregon, 817. C 50 42 WILLIAM BRADFORD (2)..... 12-7-45 South Portland, 208..... Н 70 74 ΎH WILLIAM FEW (2).... 12-10-45 Bethiehem-Fairfield, 2059..... ? ? 1 H WILLIAM W. MAYO (1) 10-24-45 Permanente, 1572..... 58 61 WILLIAM W. MAYO (2) 12-19-45 Permanente, 1572.... 31 H 51 WOOD ISLAND 8-45 Globe, 106.... ? ? ?

Casualties Reported from 1 August 1945 to 1 April 1946

TABLE XIV

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull no.	Sea condition	Tempe Degi Fahre	rees
	or Report		Condition	Air	Water
A. J. Cermak	12-21-43/2-24-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2284	?	21-62	30-60
Abel Stearns	10-9-14-43	Calship, 99	н	36-47	53
Abiel Foster (1)	12-29-43	Calship, 15.	н	42	50
Abiel Foster (2)	3-3-44	Calship, 15	?	25-37	36
ABIGAIL GIBBONS.	11-20-44	Jones-Brunswick, 164	н	23 37	20
Abner Doubleday	1-31-44/2-2-44	Oregon, 598		?	2
ABRAHAM BALDWIN (1)	1-31-43	Delta, 4		?	2
ABRAHAM BALDWIN (2)	2-43	Delta, 4	?	26-50	31-50
ABRAHAM BALDWIN (2)	10-13-43	Delta, 4	H	36-42	45-47
ABRAHAM BALDWIN (3)	1-29-44	Delta, 4	H	?	2 2
ABRAHAM CLARK	1-44	Calship, 18.		?	
Adolph Sutro	2-44	Permanente, 1560		?	2
Aedanus Burke (1)	4-21-44/5-8-44	Delta, 46		76	61
AEDANUS BURKE (2)	5-27-44/6-15-44	Delta, 46	N	65	59
AFRICAN SUN.	2-5-8-44	Federal, 238	н	?	27
Agwimonte	5-1-43	Consolidated-Long Beach, 156	н	?	2
Agwiprince	7-44	Consolicated-Long Beach, 157		?	
Albert Gallatin	8-43	Calship, 8	2	?	2
Albert J. Berres	3-14-17-45	Calship, T-3.	н	?	. ?
Alcoa Pilgrim	12-43	Consolidated-Long Beach, 234	н	?	2
Alcoa Pointer	3-45	Consolidated-Long Beach, 236	N	?	2
Alden Gifford (1)	11-42	Leathern D. Smith, 269	N	ŕ	2
Alden Gifford (2)		Leathern D. Smith, 269	-	?	?
Alden Gifford (3)	3-27-44	Leathern D. Smith, 269		2	2
ALEXANDER GRAHAM BELL (1)	1-27-44	Oregon, 583	2	40	55
ALEXANDER GRAHAM BELL (1)	2-10-44	Oregon, 583	?	?	23
ALEXANDER GRARAM DELL (2)	2-10-44	Oregon, 180	N	38	46
Alexander J. Dallas	3-27-44	Oregon, 620	?	48–50	56
Alexander Lillington		North Carolina, 47		40-JU ?	20
Alexander Nevsky	12-24-43	Oregon, 657		2	2
ALEXANDER WHITE (1)	1-12-44	Delta, 20	C I	45	49
Alexander White (2)	4-12-45	Delta, 20.	N	56-73	49
ALEXANDER WILSON	4-12-45	Permanente, 2706	2	30-73	رہ ?
Alexandr Suvorov	3-44	Oregon, 651		?	2
Auelia Earhart		Todd-Houston, 23	Н	50	49
American Builder	2-12-44	Western Pipe, 59	2	?	2
American Manufacturer (1)	9-16-43	Western Pipe, 57	?	2	2
American Manufacturer (2)	3-23-44	Western Pipe, 57	н	?	?
American Packer	3-10-42	Western Pipe, 61	2	2	?
American Sun .		Sun, 196		?	2
AM-MER-MAR (1)		Delta, 134		?	, ,
Ам-мег-мак (2).		Delta, 134	N	21	43
Амоз G. Тикоор (1)	2-29-44	Calship, 101	?	?	?
Амоз G. Тнгоор (2)			?	20-38	35
Ancil F. Haines.			н	20 20	?
ANDREW A. HUMPHREYS (1)		Delta, 77		?	?
ANDREW A. HUMPHREYS (2)		Delta, 77	?	?	?
ANDREW BRISCOE	3-44	Todd-Houston, 108	н	?	?
ANDREW CARNEGIE (1)	7-43	Oregon, 566.	?	2	?
ANDREW CARNEGIE (2)	2-21-44	Oregon, 566.	?	52-76	36
ANDREW MOORE		Delta, 12		2	?
ANDREW PICKENS.		Southeastern, 17	?	?	. ?
ANDREW TURNBULL (1)		St. Johns, 30	н	2	?
ANDREW TURNBULL (2)	2-45		?	?	?
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			land and the second		

0

-

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

٠

Casualties	Reported	Up to	1	August	1945
------------	----------	-------	---	--------	------

Vessei	Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull 20.	Sea condition	Tempe Deg Fahre	rees
	or Report			Air	Water
ANDREW TURNBULL (3)	4-6-45	St. Johns, 30	н	?	?
ANGUS MCDONALD (1)	4-21-45/8-13-45	Todd-Houston, 149		38-70	42-75
ANNA H. BRANCH.	3-44	Todd-Houston, 118		?	?
ANNA HOWARD SHAW (1)	10-18-23-43	New England, 240		2	?
ANNA HOWARD SHAW (2)	1-44	New England, 240		?	?
ANSON P. K. SAFFORD	1-24-44	Calship, 216		44	53
ANTHONY WAYNE (1)	1-3-44	Permanente, 45		65	?
ANTHONY WAYNE (2)	2-45	Permanente, 45.		?	?
ANTINOUS (1)	3-1-28-45	Gulf, 26	N	59	66
Antinous (2)	5-7-45	Gulf, 26	?	?	?
Арроматтох	6-45	Sun, 289	?	?	?
Archbishop Lamy	2-18-43	Calship, 107	Н	85	80
Arlie Clark	4-45	Southeastern, 87	?	?	?
ARTHUR L. PERRY (1)	3-44	New England, 233	?	?	?
ARTHUR L. PERRY (2)	1-4-45	New England, 233	3	5	?
ARTHUR P. DAVIS	10-15-43	Calship, 229		?	?
ARTHUR RIGGS (1)	4-44	Oregon, 634		?	?
Arthur Ricos (2)	4-10-45	Oregon, 634		63	<u> 67</u>
Arthur Sewall (1)	3-7-44	New England, 3006		29	?
Arthur Sewall (2)	4-44	New England, 3006		?	?
A3K0LD	12-15-43	Oregon. 714	4	?	2
Atchison Victory	6-17-44	Calship, V-11	2	3	?
Atlantic States		Sun, 230		40	37
Atlantic Sun	8-11-43	Sun, 212		?	?
B. F. Shaw		Oregon, 663		?	?
BALD EAGLE (1)	5-28-43	Moore, 217	1	?	?
BALD EAGLE (2)	9-27-43	Moore, 217	C	76	82
BALD EAGLE (3)	1-7-44	Moore, 217		?	?
BARTHOLOMEW GOSNOLD	2-14-44	New England, 237		3	
Belva Lockwood (1)	1-29-44/2-16-44	Oregon, 646		2	· ·
Belva Lockwood (2)	444	Oregon, 646	Н	?	2
Belva Lockwood (3)	9-6-44	Oregon, 646		r ?	1 2
Belva Lockwood (4)	1-45	Oregon, 646		?	
Bemis Heights	3-28-45 6-9-44	Alabama, 303 Todd-Houston, 7		2	64
BENJAMIN BOURN		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2045		2	2
Benjamin Chew Benjamin D. Wilson	•	Calship, 179	•	2	, ,
Benjamin Franklin (1)	3-18-43/4-3-43	Calship, 3		40	50
Benjamin Franklin (2)	4-17-43/5-5-43	Calship, 3		42	40
BENJAMIN H. BRISTOW	9-44	Permanente, 515		?	70
Benjamin H. Grierson	1-6-44	Oregon, 650		56	52
BPNJAMIN H. HILL	12-44	Jones-Brunswick, 130		?	?
BENJAMIN H. LATROBE (1)	2-43	Alabama, 283		?	2
Benjamin H. Latrobe (2)	1-9-12-44	Alabama, 283.	I	56	2
Benjamin H. Latrobe (3)	3-0-44	Alabama, 283		50	50
BENJAMIN HOLT	3-44	Permanente, 1108		?	?
BENJAMIN LUNDY	10-43	Calship, 141		36-39	46
BENJAMIN R. MILAM	6-45	Todd-Houston, 65		?	?
BENJAMIN SCHLESINGER	5-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2315		?	?
BENJAMIN WILLIAMS (1)	2-15-43	North Carolina, 21		70	?
BENJAMIN WILLIAMS (2)	1-1-45	North Carolina, 21	?	68-69	68
BEN ROBERTSON	2-14-41/4-1-44	Southeastern, 37	н	?	2
Bennington (1)	10-43	Sun, 269		?	2
BENNINGTON (2)	1-10-11-44	Sun, 269.		?	9

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Veseci	Date of Carualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull no.	Sea condition	Tempe Degi Fahre	NOC8
	or Report			Air	Water
Bennington (3)	2-23-44	Sun, 269	н	66	65
Bennington (4)	4-8-44	Sun, 269		45	?
Bennington (5)	7-20-44	Sun, 269	н	2	?
Bernard Carter	9-28-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2042		2	2
BETTY ZANE (1)	2-26-43	North Carolina, 51	2	66-76	71
BETTY ZANE (2)	52644	North Carolina, 51		66	72
BIENVILLE	2-9-45	Gulf, 9		2	?
BIGFOOT WALLACE	4-44	Todd-Houston, 22	н	?	2
BILLY MITCHELL	6-29-44	Calship, 200	?	?	2
BINGER HERMAN	3-44	Oregon, 717.	н	60	58
Blue Jacket	7-17-19-44	Moore, 214	N	73-80	75-78
BOUNDBROOK	6-44	Sun, 335	н	?	?
BRANDYWINE	9-1-15-44	Sun, 323		?	?
BROAD RIVER	12-2-44	Kaiser-Swan, 25	?	?	?
BROCKHOLST LIVINGSTON (1)	5-2-43	Calship, 83.	н	32-41	4244
BROCKHOLST LIVINGSTON (2)	3-11-44	Calship, 83	?	27-47	39
BROOKFIELD	2-44	Kaiser-Swan	?	?	?
BUENA VISTA (1)	2 23-44	Sun, 280	н	?	?
BUENA VISTA (2)	3-12-44	Sun, 280		32	39
BUFFALO WALLOW	1044	Alabama, 247	?	?	?
BULKCRUDE	7-22-44	Welding Shipyard, 10	?	?	?
BULKFUEL (1)	2-10-45	Welding Shipyard, 15	н	?	?
BULKFUEL (2)	5-11-45	Welding Shipyard, 15	н	51	56
BULKLUBE	9-15-44	Welding Shipyard, 4		?	?
BULL RUN.	11-1-7-44	Sun, 287		?	?
BUNKER HILL (1)	9-22-43	Sun, 242	?	?	?
BUNKER HILL (2)	4-4-16-44	Sun, 242	Н	5590	51-79
BUNKER HILL (3)	10-1-27-44	Sun, 242	2	?	?
CADILLAC	3-14-43	Great Lakes-River Rouge, 291	С	?	?
Самр Намани (1)	1-1-11-45	Kaiser-Swan, 6	?	?	?
CANYON CREEK (1)	3-45	Alabama, 249	?	?	?
CAPE BLANCO (1)	1-20-43	Pennsylvania, 270	С	28	32
CAPE BLANCO (2)	5-20-44	Pennsylvania, 270		?	?
CAPE BORDA	3-45	Pusey and Jones, 1100	?	?	?
CAPE CATOCHE	3-13-45	Consolidated-Wilmington, 537	Н	?	?
CAPE CHALMERS	2-21-45	Consolidated-Wilmington, 344		54	52
Cape Corwin (1)	1-1-2-45	Pusey and Jones, 1087	2	?	2
CAPE CORWIN (2)	11-17-43	Pusey and Jones, 1087		?	?
Cape Corwin (3)	3-2-44	Pusey and Jones, 1087		?	?
CAPE FAIRWEATHER	8-25-44	Seattle-Tacoma, 4	l	80	83
Cape Henlopen (1)		Pusey and Jones, 1084		?	?
Cape Henlopen (2)	7-18-44	Puscy and Jones, 1084		?	?
CAPE ISABEL	6-2745	Consolidated-Wilmington, 342	N	57	53
Cape Lookout	4-10-45	Pennsylvania, 366	N	?	2
CAPE MEARES	5-13-44	Consolidated-Wilmington, 250		?	?
CAPE MEREDITH (1)		Consolidated-Wilmington, 279		7	5
CAPE MEREDITH (2)		Consolidated-Wilmington, 279		2	2
CAPE POSSESSION		CONSOLIDATED-Wilmington, 754		?	?
Саре Race	4-45	Puscy and Jones, 1098	?	?	3
CAPE ROMAIN	4-25-28-44	Consolidated-Wilmington, 240		?	2
CAPE ST. GEORGE		Pennsylvania, 257		?	5
CARIBBEAN		Sun, 273		?	?
CARL SCHURZ (1)		Oregon, 602	?	39-45	49
CARL SCHURZ (2)	9-4-43	Oregon, 602	?	55-59	52

Carualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull no.	Sca condition	Temperature Degrees Fahrenheit	
	or Report		Condition	Air	Water
CARL SCHURZ (3)	10-1-19-43	Oregon, 6 ⁽²	?	?	2
CARL SCHURZ (4)	1-24-44	Oregon, 602		45	47
CARL SCHURZ (5)		Oregon, 602	ċ	70	58
CARL SCHURZ (6)	8-3-44	Oregon, 602		54	56
CARL ZACHARY WEBB.	2-10-45	Deita, 159		?	?
CARLETON ELLIS	6-45	Calship, T-12.	?	2	2
CARLOS CARRILLO	1-17-44	Calship, 123	Ċ	47	50
CASIMIR PULASKI (1)	8-43	Southeastern, 15.		?	?
CASIMIR PULASKI (2)	3-17-44	Southeastern, 15		2	
CASIMIR PULASKI (3)	4-44	Southeastern, 15		. ?	2
CECIL N. BEAN	6-45	Delta, 106		. ?	2
CHAMP CLARK	2-20-44	Todd-Houston, 24		20	?
CHAMPION'S HILL	1-7-18-45	Sun, 451		?	2
Champlain	2-12-43	American-Cleveland, 1009		11-29	2
Снамроед (1)	11-3-43	Kaiser-Swan, 33		38	45
Снлмроед (2)	5-1-12-45	Kaiser-Swan, 33		?	?
CHANCELLORSVILLE	2-45	Sun, 295		?	?
CHARLES A. MCALLISTER	6-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2135		?	2
CHARLES BRANTLEY AYCOCK	2-29-44	Delta, 26	. ?	?	?
CHARLES BULFINCH (1)	1-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2149	н	?	2
CHARLES BULFINCH (2)	12-16-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2149	?	?	?
CHARLES CROCKER (1)	12-21-43	Calship, 186	N	76	75
CHARLES CROCKER (2)	3-15-44	Calship, 186	N	50	70
CHARLES D. POSTON	3-44	Calship, 194	н	?	?
CHARLES DAURAY	7-17-45	New England, 3013	С	32	63
Charles H. Herty	1-31-44	Southeastern, 31	н	55	45
CHARLES L. MCNARY	5-45	Todd-Houston, 179	н	?	?
CHARLES M. SCHWAB (1)	5-10-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2114	?	?	?
CHARLES M. SCHWAB (2)	11-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2114	н	?	?
CHARLES M. SCHWAB (3)	3-20-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2114	?	?	?
CHARLES M. SCHWAB (4)	7-2-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2114	N	68	59
CHARLES ROBINSON	4-10-44	Permanente, 1583	Ŷ	?	?
CHARLES SCRIBNER (1)	1-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2266	н	3	?
CHARLES SCRIBNER (2)	5-19-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2266	н	?	?
CHARLES TREADWELL (1)	6-10-11-43	Pacific Bridge, 8	N	?	?
CHARLES TREADWELL (2)	3-44	Pacific Bridge, 8	н	?	?
CHARLES WILLSON PEALE	~ -445	Oregon, 605	N	31-45	56
CHARLESTOWN (1)	1-45	Sun, 317	5	?	?
CHARLOTTE P. GILMAN (1)	5-1-44	Calship, T-13	?	5	?
CHARLOTTE P. GILMAN (2)	5-29-44	Calship, T.13	?	?	?
CHERRY VALLEY	8-1-24-44	Sun, 249	?	5	?
Сніскамаида	9-44	Sun, 260	?	?	?
Chief Washakie (1)	6-10-43/7-15-43	Oregon, 613	?	5	;
CHIEF WASHARIE (2)	12-11-43	Oregon, 613	H	29	42
CHIEF WASHARIE (3)	7-24-44	Oregon, 613	7	55-57	54
CHIEF WASHAKIE (4)	5-45	Oregon, 613	?	?	?
CHINA MAIL (1)	6-26-43	Sun, 201	?	?	?
CHINA MAIL (2)	2-5-44	Sun, 201	?	?	?
CHINA MAIL (3)	2-44	Sun, 201	Н	?	?
China Mail (4)	9-1-18-44	Sun, 201	н	5	?
CHRISTOPHER GADSDEN (1)	2-43	North Carolina, 50	Н	47-60	66-72
CHRISTOPHER GADSDEN (2)	11-9-18-44	North Carolina, 50	H	56	56
CHRISTOPHER GREENUP (1)	3-29-43/4-6-43	Oregon, 644	N	16	?
CHRISTOPHER GREENUP (2)	1-24-44	Oregon, 644	?	3	?

-

-

701292-47-8

109

.

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Veneel	Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull no.	Ses condition	Tempe Degi Fahre	rees
	or Report		condition	Air	Water
CHRISTOPHER GREENUP (3)	4-26-45	Oregon, 644	?	?	<u> </u>
CHRISTOPHER GREENOF (3)	4-20-43	Calship, T-8.		?	2
CHRISTOPHER L. SHOLES (1)	4-44	Calship, T-8		?	
CHURUBUSCO (1)	6-5-44	Sun, 254		?	
CHURUBUSCO (2)	6-45	Sun, 254		2	
CIMARRON	12-17-42	Sun, 172		?	
CLARA BARTON (1)	12-11-28-43	Calship, 61		28-34	36-40
CLARA BARTON (2)	1-45	Calship, 61	2	20 51	20 10
CLARA BARTON (3)	3-30-44	Calship, 61		2	33
CLARENCE B. RANDALL	4-2-43	Great Lakes-Ashtabula, 523		?	?
CLEVELAND ABBE	3-43	Oregon, 565		?	2
Colin P. Kelly, Jr.	11445	Alabama, 285		54	58
Colina (1)	12-5-44	Sun, 251		?	?
Collis P. Huntingdon	1-5-43	North Carolina, 38		28	?
COLOMBIA VICTORY	9-18-44	Calship, V-10		53-75	53-65
Conastoj a (1)	3-2-43	Sun, 277		?	?
Сонаятова (2)	9-43	Sun, 277		?	?
Сонаятоса (3)	2-28-44	Sun, 277		44	47
Conastoga (4)	3-18-44	Sun, 277		52	37
Сонавтода (5)	4-13-44	Sun, 277		56	57
Conastoga (6)	9-1-22-44	Sun, 277		?	?
Conastoga (7)	4-5-45	Sun, 27 ⁷		?	?
Conastoga (8)	6-45	Sun, 277		?	?
Contreras	4-3-44	Sun, 282	?	?	?
Coquille (1)	10-1-18-44	Kaiser-Swan, 44	2	?	?
Coquille (2)	3-45	Kaiser-Swan, 44	?	?	?
CORINTH	12-1-18-44	Sun, 305		?	?
CORVALLIS (1)	2-1-9-45	Kaiser-Swan, 35		?	?
CORVALLIS (2)	2-26-45/3-13-45	Kaiser-Swan, 35		49-98	54-80
CRATER LAKE	7-9-44	Kaiser-Swan, 51		?	2
CROWN POINT (1)	8-15-44	Sun, 321		?	
CROWN POINT (2)	1-1-29-45	Sun, 321		5	
CUSHMAN K. DAVIS	1-10-44	Oregon, 681		?	?
CYRUS H. MCCORMICK (1)	7-19-43	Permanente, 76		72-84	85 54
Cyrus H. McCormick (2) Cyrus W. Field	2-12-44 8-8-45	Permanente, 76		50	24
DAN BEARD (1)	12-11-12-43	Permanente, 1105		56	64
DAN BEARD (1) DAN BEARD (2)	3-44	Permanente, 464		?	?
DANIEL CARROLL	11-3-43	Todd-Houston, 6		2	2
DANIEL CARROLL		Calship, 140			2
DANIEL DRAKE (1) DANIEL DRAKE (2)		Calship, 140		33-50	40
DANIEL HIESTER.	1-1-12-43	Todd-Houston, 12		22.20	?
DANIEL H. LOWNSDALE	9-22-43	Oregon, 557		?	2
DANIEL S. LAMONT (1)	11-25-43	Oregon, 619		31–44	48
DANIEL S. LAMONT (2)		Orcgon, 619		?	?
DANIEL S. LAMONT (3)		Oregon, 619		?	52
DANIEL WILLARD (1)	7-31-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2075.		84	89
DAVID C. SHANKS	12-20-22-44	Ingalls, 298		?	?
DAVID GAILLARD	12-26-43	Permanente, 441		55	53
DAVID J. BREWER	3-30-44	Permanente, 506		42-47	46
DAVID R. FRANCIS	2-3-44	Calship, 238	?	?	?
DAVID R. LECRAW	1-10-44	Walter Butler, 20		17–20	32.
DAVID STARR JORDAN	1-13-44	Permanente, 472		?	?
DAVID WILMOT (1)	10-15-43	Todd-Houston, 82	2	?	2

ŝ

.

. ...

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull no.	Sea condition	Temperature Degrees Fahrenheit	
				Air	Water
David Wilmot (2)	12-43	Todd-Houston, 82	?	?	i
DEKABRIST.	1-29-44	Oregon, 641		2	
DELAWARE.	8-44	Sun, 325	?	2	
DELAZON SMITH	1-9-44	Oregon, 721	-	2	
Dolly Madison		Jones-Panama, 12		2	
DONALD MACLEAY	7-15-43	Oregon, 718	ċ	2	
DUNCAN U. FLETCHER	4-17-44	Jones-Panama, 11	2	2	2
DURHAM VICTORY	7-17-44	Calship, V–19.	c	?	. ?
DWIGHT L. MOODY.	6-5-44	Jones-Panama, 8	?	?	7
Е. Н. ВLUM	6-5-44	Sun, 211	?	?	
Edgar E. Clark (1)	1-24-45	Jones-Panama, 23	· F	47–54	62
Edmund Fanning.	10-24-43/1-26-44	Calship, 135	н	35-40	50
Edmund G. Ross	10 21 15/1 28 44	Oregon, 787	2	22 40	?
Edward D. Baker.	7-18-44	Oregon, 735	· ?	2	>
Edward H. Crockett	5-2-44	New England, 2211	?	,	2
Edward Kavanagh	12-30-43	New England, 2207	N	10	2
Edward N. Hurley	5-17-27-43	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2113	2	2	?
Edward N. Westcott	9-19-43	Oregon, 750	?		?
Edward Rutledge (1)	6-23-43	North Carolina, 29.	?	70-89	75
EDWARD RUTLEDGE (2)	4-1144	North Carolina, 29		/0-07 5	?
Edward Sparrow.	10-18-20-43	Delta, 62	н	?	, ,
Edward W. Scripps.	10-10-20-45	Calship, 178	н	52	?
Edwin Booth.	9-5-44	Oregon, 606	N	90	69
Edwin M. Stanton	5-31-44	Oregon, 564	?	68-81	77
Edwin Markham.	5-43	Calship, 25	?	45-50	50
Edwin W. Moore	2-15-44	Todd-Houston, 80	н	45-50	?
Egg Harbor.	4-5-43	Kaiser-Swan, 5.	ĉ	53	50
Elbert H. Gary	11-17-43	Chicago, 66	2	2	ş
Elbridge Gerry	3-8-44	Calship, 12	ċ		56
Elias Howe (1)	2-10-43	Kaiser-Vancouver, 2.	c	37-44	45
Elias Howe (2)	3-8-43	Kaiser-Vancouver, 2.	н	75	2
ELIAS REISBERG (1)	5-45	New England, 3110	н	?	?
ELIAS REISBERG (2).	7-45	New England, 3110.	?	2	?
Elihu Root	2-44	Jones-Panama, 6	н	2	. ?
Eliphalet Nott	5-8-44	South Portland, 261	?	?	?
Elisha Graves Otis (1)	12-11-43	Permanente, 1110	н	?	. ?
Elisha Graves Otis (2)	1-25-44	Permanente, 1110	н	?	?
Elisha Graves Otis (3)	3-3-44	Permanente, 1110	н	?	?
ELIZA JANE NICHOLSON	12-22-44	Delta, 83	н	45	53
Elk Hills	1-1-26-45	Marinship, 57	?	2	?
Elmer A. Sperry (1)	12-17-43/1-1-44	Oregon, 588	н	2	?
Elmer A. Sperry (2)	3-29-44	Oregon, 588	?	34-74	39
ELMIRA VICTORY.	7-6-44	Oregon, 1021	ċ	82	75
ELOY ALFARO (1)	3-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2311	н	?	?
ELOY ALFARO (2)	1-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2311	н	2	?
EMILIAN PUGACHEV (1)	10-19-43	Oregon, 665	2	2	?
EMILIAN PUGACHEV (2)	1-5-44	Oregon, 665	?	2	?
EMMA WILLARD.	4-15-43	New England, 267	ċ	34	39
Enders M. Voorhees.	11-10-42	Great Lakes-River Rouge, 288.	н	25	42
ENOS A. MILLS (1)	2-5-44	Oregon, 812	c	?	?
ENOS A. MILLS (2)	7-18-45	Oregon, 812	?	2	?
EPHRAIM W. BAUGHMAN	3-44	Oregon, 706	N	?	?
ERIVAN (1)	11-43	Oregon, 720	?	?	?
Erivan (2)	2-21-44	Oregon, 720	2	?	?

5

?

) ,

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel Casualty, Survey, ~r Report Builder and hull no. Esso BAYWAY 11-43 Federal, 144 Federal, 144 Esso BUFFALO 3-44 Sun, 214 Sun, 214 Esso HARTFORD (1) 1-1-4-45 Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4367 Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4367				rature recs nheit	
Esso Buffalo 3-44 Sun, 214 Esso Hartford (1) 1-1-4-45 Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4367 Esso Hartford (2) 2-1-22-45 Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4367			Air	Water	
Esso Buffalo 3-44 Sun, 214 Esso Hartford (1) 1-1-4-45 Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4367 Esso Hartford (2) 2-1-22-45 Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4367		?	?	?	
Esso HARTFORD (1) 1-1-4-45 Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4367 Esso HARTFORD (2) 2-1-22-45 Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4367		н	?	?	
ESSO HARTFORD (2)		?	?	?	
		?	?	?	
ESSO LITTLE ROCK		N	30	47	
ESSO MANHATTAN (1)		N	30-42	?	
ESSO MANHATTAN (2)		н	?	?	
Esso New Orlaans		?	?	?	
Esso Norfolk		?	?	?	
ESSO PATERSON (1) 12-43 Sun, 272		?	?	?	
ESSO PATERSON (2) 2-15-44 Sun, 272		н	?	?	
Esso Paterson (3)		?	?	?	
ESSO PATERSON (*) 1-45 Sun, 272		?	37	38	
Esso Philadelphia		?	?	?	
ESSO PITTSBURGH 5-11-45 Sun, 220		H	43	42	
Esso Raleich (1) 2-43 Sun, 237		?	?	?	
Esso Raleigh (2) 9-43 Sun, 237		?	?	?	
ESSO RALEIGH (3) 3-21-44 Sun, 237		?	?	?	
ESSO RALEIGH (4)		?	?	?	
Esso Raleigh (5)		?	?	?	
ESSO RICHMOND (1) 10-43 Sun, 215		?	?	?	
Esso Richmond (2) 7-8-44 Sun, 215		?	?	?	
ESSO ROCHESTER (1) 3-9-43 Sun, 213		?	?	?	
Esso Rochester (2) 2-26-44 Sun, 213		N	56	70	
ESSO ROCHESTER (3)		?	?	?	
ESSO SCRANTON		?	?	?	
ESSO WASHINGTON (1)		H	?	?	
ESSO WASHINGTON (2) 1-16-44 Sun, 271		H	?	2	
ESSO WASHINGTON (3)		Н	?	?	
ESSO WILMINGTON (1)		?	?	2	
ESSO WILMINGTON (2)		N	43	56	
ESSO WILMINGTON (3)		H	37	32	
ESSO WILMINGTON (4) 10-16-19-44 Sun, 270		Н		?	
ESSO WILMINGTON (5) 12-29-44 Sun, 270		C	24	?	
Esso WILMINGTON (6)		H	?		
Esso WILMINGTON (7)		H C	· ·		
EUGENE E. O'DONNELL (1) 2-9-44 New England, 2209 Eugene E. O'Donnell (1) 2.44 New England, 2209		C	r ?		
EUGENE E. O'DONNELL (2) 8-44 New England, 2209 EUGENE SKINNER 1-4-43 Oregon, 556		C	r ?	2	
EUGENE SKINNER 1-4-43 Oregon, 556 EVANS CREEK (1) 3-1-8-45 Alabama, 266		?	2	2	
EVANS CREEK (1) 5-1-6-4-5 Alabama, 200 EVANS CREEK (2) 3-11-45 Alabama, 266		?	2	2	
EVANS CREEK (2) 3-11-45 Habana, 200 Exchequer 3-1-44 Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4394	•••••	?	2	2	
EZRA CORNELL 3-21-25-43 South Portland, 264		ċ	42	38	
EZRA CORNELL 5-21-25-45 South Foldalid, 204 EZRA MEEKER (1) 1-22-43 Oregon, 611		c	24	1 2	
EZRA MEEKER (1) 1-22-45 Oregon, 011 BZRA MEEKER (2) 3-43 Oregon, 611		?	, ,		
F. MARION CRAWFORD		2	41-51	42	
F. SCOTT FITZOERALD		H	33-38	52-56	
F. T. FRELINGHUYSEN		N	42	45	
FAIRFAX (1) 4-7-44 Sun, 308		?	?	2	
FAIRFAX (2) $11-1-14-44$ Sun, 308		?		2	
FAIRLAND (1) 7-12-43/8-4-43 Guilf, 3		Н	. ?	?	
FAIRLAND (1) 9–43 Gulf, 3		H	?	2	
FALLEN TIMBERS. 10-15-43 Kaiser-Swan, 11.		?	2		
Felipe De Neve 2-10-44 Calship, 64		?	33-39	41	

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

.

Vessel	Date of Cxs wity, Survey,	Builder and hull no.	Sea condition	Tempe Deg Fahre	rature rees nheit
	or Report			Air	Water
FELIX REISTNBERG	1-30-45	Jones-Brunswick, 176	Н	?	?
FERDINANDO GORGES		New England, 238	N	39-47	48-52
FISHER AMES (1)		Oregon, 190	н	52	50
FISHER AMES (2)		Oregon, 190	?	2	?
FORT ERIE	5-26-44	Kaiser-Swan, 23	?	?	?
FORT HENRY	3-18-44	Kaiser-Swan, 23		?	?
FORT MCHENRY	4-13-44	Kaiser-Swan, 27		?	?
Fort Moultrie	2-1-26-45	Kaiser-Swan, 3	?	?	?
Fort Niagara (1)	4-16-21-44	Sun, 316	н	?	?
Fort Niagara (2)	11-1-20-44	Sun, 316	?	?	?
FORT ORANGE		New England, 241	н	?	?
Fort Schuyler		Sun, 336	?	į ?	?
Fort Stephenson		Kaiser-Swan, 17	`	?	?
Fort Sumter		Kaiser-Swan, 28		80	?
FORT WASHINGTON		Kaiser-Swan, 4	н	57	61
FORT WINNEBAGO.	4-1-8-45	Kaiser-Swan, 74	?	?	2
FRANCIS ASBURY	9-20-44	St. Johns, 3	N	56-73	62–76
FRANCIS DRAKE (1)		Calship, 54	Н	60-65	60
FRANCIS L. LEE		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2013	Н	76	79
FRANCIS MARION (1)	3-143	North Carolina, 6	Н	37	45-50
FRANCIS MARION (2)		North Carolina, 6	?	22-34	35
FRANCIS SCOTT KEY	11-43	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2003	?	2	?
FRANCIS W. PARKER		Oregon, 793	2	2	?
FRANK ARMSTRONG (1)	3-30-43	Great Lakes-Ashtabula, 522	C	?	?
FRANK ARMSTRONG (2)	3-44	Great Lakes-Ashtabula, 522		?	?
FRANK GILBRETH	2-12-45	Walsh Kaiser, 3120	2	2	2
FRANKLIN K. LANE (1)		Calship, 196	C	72	32
FRANKLIN B. MALL	9-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2107	?	?	5
FREDERICK REMINGTON (1)		Permanente, 508		?	5
FREDERICK REMINGTON (2)		Permanente, 508	2	54-73	52-55
FREDERICK W. TAYLOR	7-25-44	New England, 2220		2	?
FREDERICKSBURG	10-1-18-44	Sun, 294	2	?	2
FREMONT OLDER	5-24-44	Permanente, 1576	C	52	49
FRENCHTOWN	3-45	Sun, 391	?	?	2
G. W. GOETHALS (1)		Oregon, 599] ?	?	?
G. W. GOETHALS (2)		Oregon, 599		40	38
G. W. GOETHALS (3)		Oregon, 599		58	60
GABRIEL DUVAL		Calship, 81	?	?	?
GAINES MILE	1-45	Sun, 262	?	5	?
GAUNTLET	1	Moore, 252	H H	2	2
GENERAL FLEISCHER		Permanente, 269		?	?
GENERAL GEORGE W. GOETHALS (1)		Ingalls, 268		?	?
GENERAL GEORGE W GOETHALS (2)		Ingalls, 268		?	2
George A. Custer		Calship, 71		46	47
George A. Sloan (1)		Great Lakes-River Rouge, 292		?	2
George A. Sloan (2)		Great Lakes-River Rouge, 292		?	?
George B. Sfilden		Permanente, 428		45	45
George Berkeley (1)		Permanente, 1568		?	?
George Berkeley (2)		Permanente, 1568		?	?
George Chamberlain (1)		Oregon, 560		?	2
George Chamberlain (2)		Oregon, 560		40	?
GEORGE CHAMBERIAIN (3)		Oregon, 560		?	?
George Crocker (1)		Walter Butler, 26	C	?	33
George Crocker (2)	12-30-43	Walter Butler, 26	C	36	?

7 5.07

.

nggan gan yaan geren i Maring

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull no.	Sea condition	Temper Degr Fahrer	ature ccs sheit
	or Report			Air	Water
George D. Prentice	11-43	Permanente, 536	н	?	?
George Davidson	* 11-25-43	Oregon, 697	?	2	?
George Davis	5-11-45	North Carolina, 54	N	58	50
George Dewey	4-44	St. Johns, 10	Н	?	?
George Durant (1)	2-16-44	North Carolina, 182	Н	40	42
George Durant (2)	2-16-44/3-23-44	North Carolina, 182	н	46	48
George E. Hale (1)	12-12-43	Calship, 125	н	?	?
George E. Hale (2)	3-44	Calship, 125	?	61-64	63-65
George E. Merrick	11-44	St. Johns, 40	?	?	?
George F. Patten	12-23-43	New England, 226	?	?	2
George Flavel (1)		Oregon, 658	N	51	51
George Flavel (2)	4-19-45	Oregon, 658	н	46	44
George Gale (1)	12-19-42/1-10-43	Delta, 7	н	?	2
George Gale (2)	1-21-44	Delta, 7	Н	42	50
George H. Pendleton	4-24-45	Bethleher-Fairfield, 2163	N	52	52
George H. Popham		New Er gland, 2194	?	?	?
George H. Thomas		Oregor, 569	Н	55	51
George H. Williams (1)		Oregoa, 544	?	?	58
GEORGE H. WILLIAMS (2)	1	Oregon, 544	2	68	67
George Kenny		Calship, 237	н	?	?
George L. Baker		Oregon, 655		?	2
George M. Bibb		Oregon, 528		80	84
George P. Garrison		Houston, 73	l	36	45
George Poindexter		Deita, 56	н	62	72
George Rogers Clark (1)		Permanente, 448	N	2	3
George Rogers CLARK (1)		Permanente, 448	н	38-43	46
George Rogers CLARK (2)		Permanente, 448		33-46	40
George Rogers CLARK (4)		Permanente, 448		60	43
George S. Wasson (1)		New England, 2206	1	38	38
George S. Wasson (2)		New England, 2206	č	7	3
George Stel'rs		Houston, 119		50	52
GEORGE W. CAMPBELL		Oregon, 623		42	49
George W. Kendall (1)	1	Delta, 64		2	2
George W. Kendall (2)		Delta, 64	1	2	
GEORGE W. KENDALL (2)	1	Delta, 64		2	2
George W. Kendall (3)	£	Delta, 64		2	
George Walton	11-43	Southeastern, 4	н	2	
George Whitefield (1)	1 .	Southeastern, 19		47-56	54
George Whitefield (2)		Southeastern, 19		18-20	40-42
George Wythe (1)		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2011		2	2
George Wythe (2)		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2011		2	
George Wythe (3)		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2011		2	
George Wythe (4)	•	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2011			
GEORGE WYTHE (4)		Permanente, 1122		1 2	
Gervais.	-	Kaiser-Swan, 36.		2	
GIDEON WELLES		Oregon, 563		47-52	64-70
GRACE ABBOTT	-	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2069		58	57
GRACE R. HEBARD.		Oregon, 813		35	39
GRACE N. HEBARD		Kaiser-Swan, 43.		2	
GRANDE RONDE	•	· ·			
GREAT MEADOWS (1) GREAT MEADOWS (2)				2	1
GREAT MEADOWS (2) GREEN BAY VICTORY	-			52	54
				2	
GROVER C. HUTCHERSON	1				
GUADALOUPE	· <u> </u>		· <u>I</u>	<u> </u>	

67 - F

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull no.	Sea condition	Tempe Deg Fahre	rees
	or Report			Air	Water
Gulf Caribbean	11-44	Sur., 240	?	?	2
GUTZON BORGLUM (1)	11-28-43/1-17-44	Calship, 240	1	65	53
GUTZON BORGLUM (2)	2-7-44	Calship, 240		2	2
Hadley F. Brown	6-45	New England, 3023		?	2
HALL J. KELLEY (1)		Oregon, 637		?	2
HALL J. KELLEY (2)	4-25-44	Oregon, 637	7	2	2
HAMLIN GARLANI ⁵ (1)	12-10-13-43	Southeastern, 16	н	59	66
HAMLIN GAR (1)	12-10-19-44	Southcastern, 16	н	60	56
HANGING ROCK (1)	6-2-4	Sun, 390	2	?	?
Hanging Rock (2)	4-45	Sun, 390	?	?	?
HANNIBAL HAMLIN	3-28-4	South Portland, 213	2	?	?
HANNIS TAYLOR	12-19-44	North Carolina, 162	N	17	52
HARALD TORSVIK (1)	11-44	St. Johns, 66	н	5	5
HARALD TORSVIK (2)	2-5-45	St. Johns, 66	?	18-52	[·] 40
HARPERS FERRY (1)	9-1-8-44	Sun, 300	?	?	?
HARPERS FERRY (2)	11-44	Sun, 300	?	?	?
HARRIET TUBMAN.	8-44	New England, 3032	н	86	79
HARRINGTON EMERSON	4-4-44	Oregon, 823	?	?	?
HARRY L. GLUCKSMAN	3-16-45	Southeastern, 50	N	76	40
HARRY LANE (1)	8-43	Oregon, 559	î	2	5
HARRY LANE (2)	3-16-44	Oregon, 559	?	51-77	49
HARRY LANE (3)	6-21-44	Oregon, 559	?	5	?
HART CRANE	10-5-44	Calship, 276	?	?	?
Harvey W. Scoft	12-5-42	Oregon, 552	N	?	?
HASTINGS	1-45	Gulf, 28	н	5	?
HAT CREEK (1)	12-11-43	Alabama, 251	н	32	45
Hat Creek (2)		Alabama, 251	?	?	?
Hat Creek (3)		Alabama, 251	н	?	?
Helen Hunt Jackson (1)		Calship, 98	?	28-34	48
Helen Hunt Jackson (2)	6-28-44	Calship, 98	N	74-85	71
Henderson Luelling (1)		Oregon, 640	?	?	?
Henderson Luelling (2)		Oregon, 640	Н	30	40
HENRY AUSTIN		Houston, 100		?	r S
HENRY BACON.		North Carolina, 40	C	?	r 2
HENRY BALDWIN (1)		Calship, 82	H H	70 56	70
HENRY BALDWIN (2)	3-44 2-8-43	Calship, 82 Oregon, 603	2	42-47	51
HENRY BARNARD		Alabama, 233	à	42-47	?
Henry Clay Henry D. Thoreau	(I	Oregon, 197	2	47-54	51
HENRY GEORGE		Oregon, 574	2	66-68	69-81
HENRY GLORGE	(Ingalls, 297	н	?	2
HENRY FAILING (1)	(· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Oregon, 662	?	?	2
HENRY H. RICHARDSON		Permanente, 528	н	?	2
HENRY H. SIBLEY		Calship, 153	?	2	?
HENRY J. RAYMOND	6	Permanente, 442		?	?
HENRY L. ELLSWORTH		Delta, 74		?	2
Henry M. Rice (1)	•	Calship, 154		45	45
HENRY M. RICE (2)		Calship, 154		46	52
HENRY S. LANE (1)		Oregon, 692		?	2
Henry S. Lane (2)		Oregon, 692		?	2
HENRY S. LANE (3)		Oregon, 692		3	?
HENRY LOMB	•	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2232		?	?
Henry W. Grady		Jones-Brunswick, 117		38	51
HENRY W. LONGFELLOW (1)	8-25-42	Oregon, 188	H	2	2

115

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull no.	Sea condition	Temper Degr Fahrer	rees
	or Report			Air	Water
HENRY WARD BEECHER	2-44	Calship, 67	Н	62-68	66-67
HENRY WILSON (1)	5-1-8-43	New England, 272	С	40	40
HENRY WILSON (2)	1-31-44	New England, 272	?	?	?
HENRY WYNKOOP (1)	2-16-43	Delta, 21	Ċ	7-17	2
HENRY WYNKOOP (2)	3-2-11-44	Delta, 21	н	?	2
HENRY WYNKOOP (3)	3-6-45	Delta, 21	?	?	?
HERMAN MELVILLE (1)	12-22-42	South Portland, 218	?	?	?
HERMAN MELVILLE (2)	3-44	South Portland, 218	н	19	27
HERMAN MELVILLE (3).	4-44	South Portland, 218	Н	?	?
HIDALGO (1)	12-26-44	Walter Butler, 38		-12	?
HIDALGO (2)	1-5-45	Walter Butler, 38		-1	25
HILARY A. HERBERT	3-45	North Carolina, 170	?	2	?
HINTON R. HELPER	12-27-43/1-2-44	Calship, 49	н	?	?
HIRAM S. MAXIM	5-43	Permanente, 408	Н	?	?
HOBKIRK'S HILL	12-1-14-44	Sun, 418		?	?
HORACE BUSHNELL.	3-4-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2243	Н	?	?
Horace See (1)	11-19-43	Calship, T-11	Н	?	?
Horace See (2)	4-25-44	Calship, T-11	?	?	?
HORACE SEE (3)	7-22-44	Calship, T-11	н	?	?
HORACE SEE (4)	1-45	Calship, T-11		?	2
HORACE SEE (5)	2-22-45	Calship, T-11		35	30
HORACE SEE (6)	3-8-45	Calship, T-11	Н	?	?
HORACE SEE (7)	4-18-45	Calship, T-11		34	38
HORATIO ALLEN	3-45	Calship, 296	?	?	?
HOWARD E. COFFIN (1)	3-16-44	Jones-Brunswick, 128		?	?
HOWARD E. COFFIN (2)	2-27-45	Jones-Brunswick, 128	Н	?	?
HOWARD T. RICKETS (1)	1-12-44	Calship, 225	?	?	?
HOWARD T. RICKETS (2)	9-6-44	Calship, 225	H	52	58
HUBERT HOWE BANCROFT (1)	1-25-45	Calship, 94	Н	20-28	40
HUBERT HOWE BANCROFT (2)	5-45	Calship, 94	Н	69-75	68-75
HUGH WILLIAMSON	3-19-43	North Carolina, 13	H	41	53
INA COOLBRITH	6-23-44	Calship, 227	?	?	?
Iran Victory	6-22-44	Oregon, 1010		2	?
IRVIN S. COBB	11-29-44	St. Johns, 55		2	?
IRWIN RUSSELL	3-29-44/4-4-44	Delta, 73	H	46	48
Isaac I. Stevens	1-22-30-44	Oregon, 820	H H	?	?
ISAAC COLES	2-22-44	Calship, 33	H	36-47	42
Island Mail	5-30-45	Sun, 200		43	33
IBRAEL PUTNAM (1)	12-21-42	Alaban a, 242		21	?
ISRAEL PUINAM (2)	1-22-44	Alabama, 242		28-48	1
ISRAEL PUTNAM (3)	1-17-45/2-1-45	Alabama, 242		54	66
J. D. Ross (1)	3-2-44	Orego1, 727		?	?
J. D. Ross (2)	6-5-44	Oregon, 727		3	?
J. D. YEAGER		Todd-Houston, 169		40	
J. E. B. STUART (1)		Houston, 20		70	
J. E. B. STUART (2)		Houston, 169		?	i
J. II. HILLMAN, JR				?	
J. H. KINKAID		Permanente, 480	1	?	
J. H. TUTTLE.		Sun, 238		?	1
J. L M. CURRY		Alabama, 231		14-30	
J. RUFINO BARRIOS.		Delta, 140		3	
J. WARREN KEIFER.		Oregon, 789		1	1
JACOB S. HAUSFELD				?	1
JACOB THOMPSON (1)	2-1-2-44	Delta, 68	H	?	[

-

1000

22

457

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull po.	Sea condition	Temper Degr Fahrer	ies 🛛
				Air	Water
Ј асов Тномрзон (2)	5-29-44	Delta, 68	?	?	?
Јасов Тномряон (3)	3-10-45	Delta, 68	н	62	54
JACQUES CARTIER (1)	6-43	Calship, 162	Н	?	2
JACQUES CARTIER (2)	8-17-43	Calship, 162.	?	. ,	· ·
JACQUES CARTIER (3)	10-19-43	Calship, 162.	H	,	
JAMES A. WETMORE (1)	12-7-43	Jones-Brunswick, 118	н	40	, ,
James A. Wetmore (2)	1-17-44	Jones-Brunswick, 118	н	39	. ?
JAMES A. WETMORE (3)	2-16-44	Jones-Brunswick, 118	?	?	
JAMES A. WETMORE (4)	3-44	Jones-Brunswick, 118	?	,	
JAMES B. RICHARDSON (1)	2-18-44	North Carolina, 35.	N	47	56
JAMES B. RICHARDSON (2)	4-28-44	North Carolina, 35	?	45-52	48
JAMES B. WEAVER (1)	12-12-23-43	Calship, 157	· H	37-61	54
JAMES B. WBAVER (2)	3-16-44	Calship, 157	?	97-07 2	
JAMES BARBOUR.	3-23-43	Houston, 41	H	?	
JAMES BOWIE (1)	2-19-43	Houston, 32.	H	44	38
JAMES BOWIE (2).	8-43	Houston, 32	?	75-88	84
JAMES DOWNE (2).	3-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2065	r ?	t _	
JAMES COOK	3-12-44/4-3-44		ı •	?	
JAMES DEVEREUX (1)	5-12-44/4-5-44	Calship, T-7		?	
JAMES DEVEREUX (1)	7-10-44	Permanente, 2745		· · ·	
JAMES DEVEREUX (2)		Permanente, 2745		?	
JAMES FENIMORE COOPER (1)	1-21-44	Oregon, 235		?	
JAMES FENIMORE COOPER (2)	3-44	Oregon, 235		?	
	12-28-44	Permanente, 2183		?	
JAMES GORDON BENNETT (1)	12-18-43	Calship, 68		26-42	
JAMES GORDON BENNETT (2)	1-22-44	Calship, 68		?	
JAMES HARROD	6-43	Oregon, 643		?	
JAMES HOBAN	1-43	Alabama, 281		?	
JAMES I. MCKAY		North Carolina, 180		?	
JAMES IREDELL		North Carolina, 45		?	
Jамеs Ives (1)	1-21-44	Permanente, 530		?	
JAMES IVES (2)	4-27-44	Permanente, 530		41-48	4
JAMES LONGSTREET.	8-43	Houston, 18		?	
JAMES LYKES (1)		Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4344		?	
JAMES LYKES (2)		Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4344		?	
JAMES M. WAYNE (1)	6-43	Jones-Brunswick, 105		?	
JAMES M. WAYNE (2)	1-5-44	Jones-Brunswick, 105		?	1 1
JAMES MANNING (1)	144	New England, 2198		?	
JAMES MANNING (2)		New England, 2198		?	
JAMES MCNEILL WHISTLER		Oregon, 576		32	42
JAMES SCHUREMAN	11-42	Calship, 30		?	
JAMES SHIELDS.	12-43	Calship, 201		?	1
JAMES SMITH (1)	12-17-43	Permanente, 53		37	1
JAMES SMITH (2)	12-26-43	Permanente, 53		37	4!
James Smith (3)		Permanente, 53		?	1
JAMES W. FANNIN		Houston, 59		?	
JAMES W. NESMITH		Oregon, 553		44-62	62-6
JAYES WHITCOMB RILEY (1)	2-28-43	Oregon, 199		40	4
James Whitcomb Riley (2)	1-30-44	Oregon, 199		34	
James Woodrow	2-8-43/3-31-43	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2079	H	47-60	66-7
Jan Jores (1)		Calship, 126		?	
JAN JORES (2)	11-1444	Calship, 126		2	
JAN PIETERSZOON COEN		Permanente, 2263		48	5
JANE A. DELANO (1)		Permanente, 465		2	1
JANE A. DELANO (2)	1-20-44/2-4-44	Permanente, 465		42	5

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull no.	Sea condition	Temper Degr Fahrer	ees
	or Report			Air	Water
	3-4-44	Permanente, 465	н	20	
JANE A. DELANO (3)	1-22-44	Houston, 57	н	37	49
JANE LONG	1-22-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2157	н	?	?
JANET LORD ROPER	4-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2047	?	?	
JARED INGERSOLL	4-45 10-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2020	H	?	2
JASMINE	7-4-45	Consolidated-Wilmington, 229	H	80	
JEAN LYKES	1-16-44	Alabama, 238	H	41	42
JEFFF RSON DAVIS	3-28-44	New England, 230	21	?	<u>۲</u> ۲ ۲
JEREMIAH O'BRIEN	11-11-42	Houston, 31	N	?	2
JEREMIAH WADSWORTH	8-44	Oregon, 549	2	2	2
JESSE APPLEGATE	3-44	Houston, 79	H	?	2
JESSE BILLINGSLEY	6-17-44	Walter Butler, 8	?	?	?
JESSE G. COTTING	3-15-43	Permanente, 484	H	30	. 34
JOAQUIN MILLER (1)	9-43	Permanente, 484	?	?	?
JOAQUIN MILLER (2)	12-15-43	Permanente, 484	ċ	?	
JOAQUIN MILLER (3)	5-18-45	Alabama, 240	c	?	
JOEL CHANDLER HARRIS	3-4-44	Houston, 43	н	20	40
JOEL R. POPASETT.	1-45	Jones-Brunswick, 112	?	20	40 ?
JOHN A. CAMPBELL.	1-16-44	Delta, 57	H	40	40
JOHN A. QUITMAN	6-45	•	?	?	?
JOHN ARMSTRONG	12-24-43	Houston, 39 Jones-Brunswick, 120	н	?	
JOHN B. GORDON	7-25-43	Oregon, 174	H	55	53
JOHN BARRY (1)	6-44		H	74-80	77-81
JOHN BARRY (2)		Oregon, 174	2	24-00	//-01 2
JOHN BURKE (1)	1-4-43/5-14-43 3-3-44	Oregon, 609	N	42	38
JOHN BURKE (2)	4-21-44		H	38	39
JOHN BURKE (3)	4-21-44	Oregon, 609	H	40	40-46
JOHN C. AINSWORTH (1)	9-9-43	Oregon, 554	-	40	40-40
JOHN C. AINSWORTH (2)	1-8-44	Oregon, 554	C	45	39
JOHN C. AINSWORTH (3)	12-25-43	Houston, 45	н	2	
JOHN C. SPENCER (1)	3-5-44	Houston, 45	н	54	57
JOHN C. SPENCER (2)	6-1-15-43	South Portland, 207	?	68	70
JOHN CARVER (1)	0-1-13-43 9-44	South Portland, 207	?	2	,0
JOHN CARVER (2)	2-44	Walsh Kaiser, 2	?	?	
JOHN CLARKE (1)	3-12-44	Walsh-Kaiser, 2	N	64	66
JOHN CLARKE (2) JOHN CROPPER (1)	3-44	North Carolina, 8	H	63-65	68-70
JOHN CROPPER (1)	10-20-44	North Carolina, 8	?	70	70
0	1-45	North Carolina, 8	?	?	2
John Cropper (3) John D. Whidden	1-12-44	Walter Butler, 24		12	32
JOHN D. WHIDDEN	6-26-43	South Portland, 207	H	2	2
JOHN DAVENPORT	6-43	Calship, 122	?	48	60
JOHN DRAKE SLOAT (1)	10-43	Calship, 122	?	58-69	7077
	1045 544	Calship, 122	н	20-09	2
JOHN DREW	· 3-45	Southeastern, 43	н ?	1	r 2
JOHN E. SWEET	5-45 5-45	Permanente, 1712		64	r 2
John Evans John F. Appleby (1)	5-45	Permanente, 421	H	04 50-51	47
	10-11-43	Permanente, 421	л Н	40-44	47
JOHN F. APPLEBY (2)	3-16-44	Permanente, 421	2	40-44	38
JOHN F. APPLEBY (3)	5-10-44 4-44	Permanente, 421	г Н	51-11	
JOHN F. APPLEBY (4)	4-44 12-18-43	-	_	ר כ	2
JOHN F. STEFFEN	1-6-43/2-13-43	Oregon, 709		r ?	Г Э
JOHN FITCH (1)	2-15-43	Permanente, 72			20
JOHN FITCH (2)		Permanente, 72	N 2	-10	33
JOHN G. CARLISLE	5-44 4-10-44	Permanente, 519	?	42.52	۲ مد
JOHN G. WHITTIER (1).	4-10-44	Oregon, 194	<u> </u>	42-52	44

2

1.8

Casualtics Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey,	Builder and bull po.	Sea condition	Tempe Deg Fahre	rees
	or Report			Air	Water
John G. Whittier (2)	1-45	Oregon, 194	?	40-65	57-74
JOHN G. WHITTHER (2)	4-45	Oregon, 194	?	?	
OHN GOODE	3-20-44	Calship, T-1	·H	43	53
OHN GORRIE (1)	10-13-43	St. Johns, 2	н	43	
John Gorrie (2)	11-9-43/12-5-43	St. Johns, 2	?	2	
	2-44	St. Johns, 2	н	, ,	
JOHN GORRIE (3)	3-44	St. Johns, 2	H		
JOHN GORRIE (4)	245	Jones-Brunswick, 170	?	,	
JOHN H. HAMMOND (1) Ionn H. Hammond (2)	3-45	Jones-Brunswick, 170		: 2	
OHN H. HAMMOND (2)	4-14-44		?		
JOHN H. MARION (1)		Calship, T-16	r ?	2	
JOHN H. MARION (2)	10-44 3-17-45	Calship, T-16	r C	31	5
JOHN H. MARION (3)		Calship, T-16	?	21	
JOHN H. MAPION (4)	6-45	Calship, T-16.		r S	
JOHN H. MURPHY	2-21-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2346	H	50 (2	
OHN HARVEY	3-16-43	North Carolina, 56	?	50-63	6
OHN HATHORN (1)	2-15-44	Calship, 24	Н	r	
OHN HATHORN (2)	4-45	Calship, 24	?	3	5
OHN HAY	3-30-44	Jones-Panama, 7	H	r r	
OHN HENRY (1)	9-42	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2032	H	?	
OHN HENRY (2)	1-25-44/2-4-44	Bethlehem-Fr rfield, 2032	Н	37	5
OHN HOLMES	4-18-44	New England, 216	?	2	
OHN IRELAND	3-45	Houston, 125	?	?	
OHN J. CRITTENDEN	6-5-44	St. Johns, 4	?	2	
OHN L. MCCARLEY	3-45	Jones-Panama, 83	?	2	
OHN L. SULLIVAN (1)	12-26-43	Permanente, 1121	H	?	
JOHN L. SULLIVAN (2)	2-2-44	Permanente, 1121		50	5
JOHN L. SULLIVAN (3)	6-11-28-44	Permanente, 1121	Н	?	
OHN M. SCHOFIELD	2-15-45	Permanente, 433	C	30-33	3
OHN MARY ODIN (1)	9-43	Houston, 67	н	?	
John Mary Odin (2)	2-9-44	Houston, 67	?	2	
John Mason	3-16-44	New England, 239	?	?	
JOHN MERRICK (1)	11-44	North Carolina, 174	?	?	
OHN MERRICK (2)	5-25-45/6-18-45	North Carolina, 174		?	
JOHN McLoughlin (1)	2-44	Oregon, 548	н	4048	53-5
JOHN McLoughlin (2)	3-12-44	Oregon, 548	N	48	4
JOHN MITCHELL	1-24-44/2-2-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2061	H	50	4
OHN MORTON	2-43	Permanente, 58	?	32	5
OHN MURRAY FOPBES (1)	1-1-43	South Portland, 254	C	30	3
OHN MURRAY FORDES (2)	4–43	South Portland, 254	3	43	
OHN P. ALTGELD (1)	9-1-25-44	Calship, T–17	?	?	
OHN P. ALTOELD (2)	10-9-44	Calship, T-17	H	45	5
JOHN P. ALFOELD (3)	12-14-15-44	Calship, T–17	H	?	
OHN P. ALTOELD (4)	2-26-45	Calship, T-17	N	38	3
OHN P. GAINES	11-24-43	Oregon, 723	N	40-45	
OHN P. HOLLAND	6-5-43	Oregon, 589	C	41	
onn Page	3 22 45	Calship, 29	7	47-52	5
OHN PAUL JONES (1)	9-3-43	Calship, 4	5	72-88	8
JOHN PAUL JONES (2)	12-43	Calship, 4	N	3	l
OHN PAUL JONES (3)	5-14-45	Calship, 4		?	1
JOHN RINGLING	2-21-45	St. Johns, 58		43	3
JOIN S. CASEMENT (1)	7-22-43	Calship, 187		41	5
John S. Casement (2)	4-20-44	Calship, 187		?	
JOHN SERGEANT	1-25-45/2-11-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2050	н	22-32	4
JOHN SHARP WILLIAMS	2-26-44	Delta, 58	н	15	3

. ,

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vexel	Pate of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull no.	Sca condition	Temper Degr Fahrer	CC3
	or Report			Air	Water
John Straub (1)	1-12-44	Oregon, 808	н	26-38	37-38
JOHN STRAUB (2)	3-22-44	Oregon, 808	c	45	42
JOHN T. HOLT.	3-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2206	н	?	?
JOHN VINING (1)	2-43	Delta, 19	н	?	?
JOHN VINING (2)	1-2-44	Delta, 19	C	13	38
JOHN VINING (3)	4-44	Delta, 19		?	?
Ĵohn Vining (4)	7-26-44	Delta, 19		76-88	73
JOHN W. CULLEN	1-15-44	Oregon, 638	?	?	?
JOHN W. WL 7KS (1)	5-18-43	Oregon, 617.	2	?	2
JOHN W. WEEKS (2)	1-18-44	Oregon, 617	?	?	?
JOHN W. WEEKS (3)		Oregon, 617	-	54	42
JOHN W. WEEKS (4)	8-14-44	Oregon, 617		?	?
John Whiteaker.	2-20-23-43	Oregon, 631	N	56	55
JONATHAN HARRINGTON	3-7-44	Oregon, 561	H	40	41
Jonathan Trumbull	7-8-43	Delta, 18	?	66-75	60
Jose G. Benitez	4-27-44	Houston, 115	N	47	55
Joseph C. Lincoln	5-45	New England, 3035	Н	?	?
Joseph Francis	10-11-12-43	Calship, 246		48	49
Joseph G. Cannon	10-44	Permanente, 447		?	?
Joseph Gale	5-43	Oregon, 594		74	?
Joseph Goldberger	11-43	Delta, 78		2	?
Joseph H. Hollister	3-43	Calship, 118		2	?
Joseph Habersham		Southcastern, 26		56	56
Joseph Henry (1)	2-43	Kaiser-Vancouver, 45		?	2
JOSEPH HENRY (2)	4-19-20-43	Kaiser-Vancouver, 45	Н	42	46
JOSEPH HENRY (3)	7-1-20-43	Kaiser-Vancouver, 45		?	?
Joseph Henry (4)	5-4-44	Kaiser-Vancovver, 45		60	40
Joseph Hewes	10-31-44/11-4-44	North Carolina, 26	N	68	70
Јозерн Ногт		Permanente, 432		66	68
Јозерн L. Меек (1)	4-1-44	Oregon, 596	Н	0	17
Јозерн L. Меек (2)		Oregon, 596	N	45	44
Joseph M. Medill		Jones-Panama, 5	?	?	?
Joseph McKenna		Calship, 35	?	?	?
Joseph N. Nicollet		Delta, 61	H	32	?
JOSEPH N. TEAL (1)		Oregon, 581		?	.?
Joseph N. Teal (2)		Orcgon, 581	C	?	?
Joseph R. Lamar (1)	1-9-44	Jones-Brunswick, 107		50	68
Јозерн R. Lamar (2)		Jones-Brunswick, 107.		38	41
JOSEPH R. LAMAR (3)		Jones-Brunswick, 107		34	?
JOSEPH R. LAMAR (4)	, .	Jones-Brunswick, 107		45-46	52-71
Joseph R. Lamar (5)	10-16-18-44	Jones-Brunswick, 107		55-68	62-65
Joseph Reynolds	2-25-44/4-22-44	Calship, 241		62	21
Joseph Smith		Permanente, 1119		34	50
Joseph Squires		New England, 3028		?	?
Joseph Story		Calship, 80.		31-34	37
Joseph Warren		New England, 266	1	46	39
JOSHUA B. LIPPINCOTT (1)		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2289	Н	?	?
JOSHUA B. LIPPINCOTT (2)		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2289		2	?
JOSHUA L. CHAMBERLAIN		N w England, 229		?	?
Joshua W. Alexander (1)		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2154		?	2
JOSHUA W. ALEXANDER (2)		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2154	1	2	2
JOSIAH G. HOLLAND (1)		Calship, T-5		?	?
JOSIAH G. HOLLAND (2)		Calship, T–5	1	?	?
Josiah Parker	3-44	Delta, 13	?	?	?

÷

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel	Date of C sualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull no.	Sea condition	Temper Degr Fahrer	ccs
	or Report			Air	Water
Joyce Kilmer	6-7-44	Bethlchem-Fairfield, 2244	?	?	
JUAN DE FUCA	8-11-44	Kaiser-Vancouver, 41		?	
JUAN FLACO BROWN	4-44	Calship, 167	н	?	
JUDAH P. ELNJAMIN	9-13-44	Alabama, 237		· · ?	8
JULESBURG	9-12-44	Alabama, 252		?	0
JULIA L. DUMONT.	3-2-44	Permanente, 2718		2	
JULIA P. SHAW	1-45	New England, 3083	н	; p	
JULIA I BRAW	1-24-44	Delta, 59		47	5
JULIUS OLSEN	5-45	Houston, 128		?	
JUNIUS SMITH	12-44	St. Johns, 69		?	
JUSTIN S. MORRILL.	5-23-44	Permanente, 461		?	
KA3KASKIA.	3-12-43	Newport News, 370.		?	
KEITH PALMER	<u>3-12-45</u> 10-44	Houston, 117	2	?	
KEMP P. BATTLE	2-21-44	North Carolina, 157		2	
KENESAW MOUNTAIN (1)	5-25-44			2	
KENESAW MOUNTAIN (1) KENESAW MOUNTAIN (2)	5-25-44 8-1-14-44	Sun, 306 Sun, 306		r 2	
KENYON (1)				?	
$Kenyon (2) \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots \dots$	4-44	Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4388		?	
Kernstown	12-1-26-44	Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4388			
	2-13-29-44	Sun, 333		?	
KITTANNING.	4-16-44	Sun, 322		?	
KLAMATH FALLS (1)	2-29-44	Kaiser-Swan, 38		?	
KLAMATH FALLS (2)	10-44	Kaiser-Swan, 38		?	
KNUTE NELSON	3-44	Calship, 156		?	
KNUTE ROCKNE (1)	3-44	Permanente, 1111		?	
KNUTE ROCKNE (2)	6-12-44	Permanente, 1111		?	
Kolkhoznik (1)	2-27-44	Permanente, 460		?	
Коlкноznik (2)	3-19-44	Permanente, 460		?	
KUBAN	1-2-44	Oregon, 686		?	
LAMBERT CADWALADER	12-43	Houston, 34		42	
LANGDON CHEVES	5-26-44	Southeastern, 13		?	
LAURA KEENE	12-11-43	Kaiser-Vancouver, 46		?	
LAWRENCE J. BRENGLE	2-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2348		?	
LAWTON B. EVANS (1)	3-3-10-43	Alabama, 287		?	
LAWTON B. EVANS (2)		Alabama, 287		54	
LE BARON RUSSELL BRIGGS	2-19-45	Jones-Panama, 42		36	
LEBANON	1-9-45	Walter Butler, 40		-16	
LEIV EIRIKSSON	3-1-16-44			?	
LELAND STANFORD (1)	1-11-43	Calship, 53		?	
LELAND STANFORD (2)		Calship, 53.		49-58	62-0
Lewis Emery, Jr.	12-19-22-43	Bethlchem-Fairfield, 2254		33	
LEW WALLACE	3-26-43	Permanente, 485		17-20	1
LIGHTNING (1)	11-23-42	Sun, 202		?	
LIGHTNING (2)	1-15-43	Sun, 202		?	
LIGHTNING (3)	2-23-43	Sun, 202		?	
LIGHTNING (4)	4-23-30-43	Sun, 202		?	
LIGHTNING (5)	7-14-43	Sun, 202		?	
LIGHTNING (6)	8-1-9-43	Sun, 202		2	
LIGHTNING (7)	11-12-43	Sun, 202		?	
LIGHTNING (8)	1-5-44	Sun, 202		?	ļ
LINCOLN STEFFENS	1-44	Calship, 93	H	?	l
LINDLEY M. GARRISON (1)	5-17-43	Oregon, 616		48-55	}
LINDLEY M. GARRISON (2)	12-43	Oregon, 616		48	
LINDLEY M. GARRISON (3)	2-10-44	Oregon, 616		?	!
LINN BOYD.	6-28-44			2	i

121

Γ.

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vetsel	Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Bailder and hull no.	Sea condition	Tempe Degr Fahrer	ccs
	or Report			Air	Water
Lorenzo de Zavala	1-20-44	Houston, 64	Н	56	47
Lou Gehrig	2-44	South Portland, 210	н	39	55
Louis Bamberger	2-21-45	St. Johns, 72	н	40	67
Louis Kossuth (1).	4-4-7-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2286	н	39	50
Louis McLane	10-43	Calship, 109		45-50	50
LUCIUS FAIRCHILD.	4-17-44	Oregon, 796	N	80-90	80
LUCY STONE	1-16-31-44	Permanente, 474	н	?	?
LUNDY'S LANE (1)	4-1-44	Kaiser-Swan, 22	?	?	,
LUNDY'S LANE (2)	8-44	Kaiser-Swan, 22.	2	?	?
LUNSFORD RICHARDSON	10-16-20-44	Jones-Brunswick, 159	н	?	2
Lyman Abbott	5-7-45	Walsh-Kaiser, 5	2	2	2
Lyman Beecher	3-3-44	Marinship, 7	2	63	56
LYMAN HALL.	9-43	Southeastern, 5	н	?	?
Lyon's Creek	3-45	Sun, 393	?	?	?
M. E. LOMBARDI.	1-21-45	Sun, 193	Н	?	?
М. М. Guhin	2-3-44	Oregon, 615	?	?	2
MAHLON PITNEY	9-43	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2092	?	?	2
Maiden Creek	2-5-44	Gulf, 16	?	?	?
MANNINGTON	5-43	Barnes-Duluth, 3	?	?	?
Marengo	1-22-45	Walter Butler, 43	С	?	?
MARIE M. MELONEY (1)		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2226	н	?	?
Marina		Pusey and Jones, 1075	н	?	?
MARINE EAGLE (1)	12-18-43	Sun, 340		?	?
MARINE EAGLE (2)	4-26-44	Sun, 340	?	?	?
Mark Twain (1)	2-13-20-43	Oregon, 233	н	?	?
Mark Twain (2)	5-24-44	Oregon, 233	?	72	65
Макклу	6-18-43	Sun, 232	н	?	?
Mark Hopkins	4-24-44	Marinship, 9	С	72	59
MARY WILKINS FREEMAN (1)	5-13-44	New England, 2192	?	?	?
MARY MILTINS FREEMAN (2)	9-23-44	New England, 2192	?	?	2
MATTHEW B. BRADY	1-14-45	Permanente, 1117	N	22	44
MATTHEW P. DEADY	3-43	Oregon, 545	?	54-59	62-68
McClelian Creek (1)	3-2-44	Alabama, 254	N	16	35
McClellan Creek (2)	1-30-45	Alabama, 254	н	32	38
Mechanicsville (1)	10-44	Kaiser-Swan, 32	?	?	?
Mechanicsville (2)	2–45	Kaiser-Swan, 32	?	?	?
Melville Jacoby	3-20-44	Walsh-Kaiser, 3119	C	22	24
Midwest Farmer (1)	5-29-44	Oregon, 760	C	64	2
Midwest Farmer (2)	11-30-44	Oregon, 760	?	?	?
MINOT VICTORY	12-11-44	Oregon, 1203	C	39	44
MISSION SANTA CRUZ (1)	3-4-44	Marinship, 26	?	?	?
MISSION SANTA CRUZ (2)	4-17-44	Marinship, 26	?	?	?
MOLINO DEL REY (1)	3-44	Sun, 283	?	?	\$
MOLINO DEL REY (2)	8-1-25-44	Sun, 283	?	?	?
Молмоитн		Sun, 248		?	?
MONOCACY	2-20-44	Sun, 290	?	?	?
Montana (1)	12-13-26-42	Sun, 225	?	?	?
Montana (2)	1-14-44	Sun, 225	C	30	?
Могмасмоом (1)	8-20-42	Ingalls, 253	H	57	80
Могмасиоом (2)		Ingalls, 253		56	51
MORMACSWAN (1)	7-21-43	Federal, 158		66	56
MORMACSWAN (2)	10-43	Federal, 158	N	47-70	50-70
Могиасзwan (3)	3-27-30-44	Federal, 158	H	51	54
Mormacswan (4)	12-44	Federal, 158	H	?	<u>۲</u>

100

22

- Santista

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vesser	Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull no.	соћ пол	Tempe Degi Fahre	rature rees nheit
	or Report			Air	Water
MORMACTERN	3-44	Consolidated-Wilmington, 227	5	?	
MORRISON R. WAITE	5-8-44	Permanente, 503	2	50-63	53
Moses Brown	2-7-44/3-29-44	Walsh-Kaiser, 6	н	2	:
Moses Cleaveland	5-5-43	Kaiser-Vancouver, 44	н	39	34
Moses Rogers	6-43	Permanente, 492	н	?	;
Mount Katmai	1-17-45	North Carolina, 195	С	28	;
NAHODKA	12-44	Oregon, 712	?	2	;
NASHBULK	4-1-2-45	Welding Shipyard, 19	?	?	
NATHAN TOWSON	3-27-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2158	Н	42	41
NATHANIEL BACON (1)	3-43	Alabama, 241	?	54-69	62-68
NATHANIEL BACON (2)	1-22-44	Alabama, 241	N	?	
NATHANIEL BACON (3)	8-44	Alabama, 241	?	?	
NATHANIEL CROSBY	4-44	Oregon, 756	?	?	1 1
NATHANIEL J. WYETH		Oregon, 639	?	?	
Neches	4-29-43	Sun, 221	?	?	
NEGLEY D. COCHRAN (1)	12-15-44	St. Johns, 56	?	?	1
NEGLEY D. COCHRAN (2)	3-45	St. Johns, 56	?	?	i
NEHALEM (1)	8-44	Kaiser-Swan, 47	?	?	
Nehalem (2)		Kaiser-Swan, 47	N	?	
New London (1)		Kaiser-Swan, 7	N	?	50-91
New London (2)		Kaiser-Swan, 7	N	?	54-92
New London (3)	9-9-43/10-43	Kaiser-Swan, 7	N	?	54-90
New London (4)	2-17-44	Kaiser-Swan, 7	?	?	
New London (5)	5-26-44	Kaise. Swan, 7	?	?	2
Newberg (1)	12-10-44/1-10-45	Kaiser-Swan, 52	?	2	2
Newberg (2)		Kaiser-Swan, 52	?	?	2
Nicholas Gilman (1)	1-3-4-43	Houston, 9	Н	40	2
Nicholas Gilman (2)	1-44	Houston, 9	H	55-60	54-60
Nicholas Gilman (3)		Houston, 9	?	?	2.00
Nicholas Herkimer (1)	12-20-43/2-4-44	Southeastern, 14	H	5055	45
Nicholas Herkimer (2)	2-19-24-44	Southeastern, 14	N	20 23	2
Northfield	9-12-43	Kaiser-Swan, 9	н	?	2
Norwich Victory	5245	Calship, V-53	н	58	2
Novorosiisk		Orcgon, 688	?	?	2
O. B. MARTIN		Todd-Houston, 131	?	2	2
Oberon		Federal, 184	-	2	2
CCEAN MAIL (1)		Sun, 199	н	?	2
Ocean Mail (2)	3-43/4-43	Sun, 199	н	?	2
Ocean Mail (3)	10-43	Sun, 199	н	2	2
Ocean Mail (4)	2-28-44	Sun, 199	?	2	2
Oliver Evans.	2-17-44	Permanente, 1109	?	?	?
OKLAHOMA	8-28-44	Sun, 198	2	?	?
Opequon	1-20-44	Sun, 312	?	?	?
Oran M. Roberts	10-17-44	Houston, 74	H	?	2
OREGON TRAIL (1)	2-12-44	Kaiser-Swan, 34	?	?	7
OREGON TRAIL (2)		Kaiser-Swan, 34	?	?	?
OSCAR S. STRAUS	12-12-44	Delta, 79	н	?	?
Р. Т. Вах. им.	8-43	Calship, 188	н	?	?
Рацо А.то (1)	10-9-43	Sun, 279	?	?	7
PALO ALTO (2)	4-18-44	Sun, 279	?	?	. ?
PAN-MAINE	4-44	Federal, 141	н	?	2
PAN-PENNSYLVANIA	3-17-28-44	Welding Shipyard, 13	н	?	2
PAN-RHODE ISLAND		Federal, 189	H	?	2
A MITAXIIUMA ABAMIND · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	3-28-44	New England, 3008	Ċ	25	?

123

10

-

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

or Report Air Air Air With With With With With With With With	Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey,	Builder and hull no.	Sea condition	Temper Degr Fahrer	ces .	
PERSONNE WITTE (1) 1-25-44 New England, 248. H 40 PERSONNE WITTE (2) 10-44 New England, 248. H ? PERSONNE WITTE (2) 10-44 New England, 248. H ? PERSONNE WITTE (2) 10-26-44 New England, 248. H ? PETRE J.MCGURE 12-22-44 Calship, 85. ? ? ? PETRE J.MCGURE 12-30-44/1-24 Fernanence, 6. H ? ? ? PETRE J.MCGURE 11-120-44 Sun, 266. ? ? ? ? PULLP F. TNOMAS. 11-120-44 Sun, 266. ? ? ? ? PULLP F. ANDOUR. 11-420-44 Sun, 266. ? ? ? ? ? PULLP F. ANDOUR. 12-44 Calship, 156. H ? </th <th></th> <th>or Report</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>Air</th> <th>Water</th>		or Report			Air	Water	
PERSORNE WITTE (1)	PRUDO MENENDEZ	4-45	Jones-Panama 54	н		,	
PERSORNE WITTE (2) 10-44 New England, 248. H ? PERSOR 11-44 Sun, 263 ? ? PERSOR 10-26-44 Sun, 263 ? ? PERE ROARWROHT 2-23-24-44 Marinality, 12. H ? PETER DOAMNUE 2-23-24-44 Marinality, 12. H ? PETER DOAMNUE 12-30-44/1-2-45 Permanente, 6. H ? PETER DOAMNUE 12-30-44/1-2-45 Calahip, 86. H ? PHULP F. THOMAS. 4-45/5-45 Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2229. H ? PHULP F. BARBOUR. 1-44 Calahip, 85. H ? PHULP F. BARBOUR. 1-44 Oragon, 184. N 86 PHULP KEARANY. 12-44 Oragon, 184. N 86 PHULP KEARANY. 12-21-44 Oragon, 184. H ? PHULP SE MANNINO (1) 8-44 Sun, 121. H ? PHACK BEANNINO (2) 12-21-44 Calahip, 150. H ?						45	
PEROTE. 11-44 Sun, 286. ? ? ? PERAVILLE. 10-26-44 Sun, 263. ? ? ? PETRE J.MCGURE 2-22-44 Marinslip, 12. H 65 PETRE J.MCGURE 12-30-44/1-2-44 Permanere, 6. H ? PETRE J.MCGURE 12-30-44/1-2-44 Sun, 296. ? ? PETRE J.MCGURE 11-120-44/1-2-44 Sun, 296. ? ? PULLP F. THOMAS. 4-45/5-45 Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2229. H ? PULLP F. SARSOUR. 12-44 Marinship, 55. H ? ? PULLP KARNY. 12-44 Marinship, 56. H ? ? PULLP KARNY. 12-45 Oragon, 576. G B ? ? PULLP SCHUTER. 6-12-44 Oragon, 576. G B ? ? ? PULLP SCHUTER. 12-24-45 Oraghip, 120. H ? ? ? ? POATE -24-40 Oragon, 576. G B ? ? ? ? ?						?	
PERRYULLE 10-26-44 Sun, 263 ? ? ? PETRE AGREWROUT 2-23-24-44 Calibing, 57	1					. ?	
PETER CARTWRIGHT. 2-22-44 Calhip, 57. H ? PETER DAMUE. 2-23-24-44 Marinabip, 12. H 65 PETER DAMUE. 12-30-44/1-2-45 Permanente, 6. H ? PETER DAMUE. 12-15-43 Calhip, 86. H ? PETER DAMEDO 11-1-20-44 Sun, 296. ? ? ? PHILP F. THOMAS. 4-45/5-45 Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2229. H ? ? PHILP F. THOMAS. 4-45/5-45 Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2229. H ? ? PHILP F. SHARDOU. 1-44 Calhip, 85. H ? ? PHILP F. SHARDOU. 8-43 Calahip, 136. H ? PHILP S. BARNING (1) 8-43 Calahip, 136. H ? PHILAR S. BANNING (2) 12-21-43 Calahip, 136. H ? ? PATER 4-7-43 Bethlehem-Sparrowr, 4329. ? ? ? ? PLATTSUDO. 5-11-44 Kaiser-Swan, 24. ? ? ? ? ? ? ? POC						2	
PETER DOSATUE 2-23-24-44 Marimslip, 12					- 1	?	
PETER J. MCGUIRE 12-30-44/1-2-45 Permanone, 6,, H ? PETER V. DANIEL 12-15-43 Calship, 86					- 1	62	
PETER V. DANIEL. 12-15-43 Caliship, 86. H ? PATERENURG 11-1-20-44 Sun, 296. ? ? ? PHILP F. THOMAS. 1-445/5-45 Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2229. H ? ? PHILP F. BARBOUR. 1-44 Caliship, 85. H ? ? ? PHILP SCHUVLER. 6-12-44 Oregon, 184. N 86 PHINES SERANNO (2). 12-11-43 Caliship, 136. H ? PINCAS BANNNO (2). 12-11-43 Caliship, 136. H ? ? PINCAS BANNNO (2). 12-11-43 Caliship, 136. H ? ? ? PLACAS BANNNO (2). 12-14-43 Caliship, 136. H ? ? ? ? PLACAS BANNNO (2). 12-14-44 Caliship, 136. H ?			Permanente 6			?	
PETERSBURG 11-1-20-44 Sun, 296 ? ? ? PITLEP F. THOMAS. 4-45/5-45 Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2229 H ? PITLEP F. THOMAS. 1-44 Calship, 55 H ? PITLEP SEARNOR. 1-44 Calship, 55 H ? PITLEP SEARNOR. 12-44 Marinship, 5 H ? PITLEP SEARNOR. 6-12-44 Oregon, 184. N 86 PITLEP SEARNOR. 1-26-45 Oregon, 576. C R 3 PO PRO. 1-12-28-45 Calship, 121. H ? ? PLATTSBURO. 5-11-44 Kaiker-Swan, 24. ? ? ? PCOCINOTAS (1) 8-21-43 North Carolina, 49. H 55 POLAND VICTORY (2) 12-31-44 Oregon, 1003. ? ? ? POLAND VICTORY (2) 12-31-44 Oregon, 1003. ? ? ? POLAND VICTORY (2) 12-31-44 Oregon, 1003. ? ? ? PURED C. 2-44 North Carolina, 49. H ? ?	-				2	,	
PHILP F. THOMAS. 4-45/5-45 Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2229. H ? PHILP F. BARBOUR. 1-44 Calship, 85. H ? PHILP KARABV. 12-44 Marinship, 5. H ? PHILP SCRUVLER 6-12-44 Oregon, 184. N 86 PHINES SCRUVLER 6-12-44 Oregon, 184. H ? PHINES SCRUVLER 6-12-44 Oregon, 576. C 8 PONCAS BANNING (2). 12-11-43 Calship, 136. H 60 PINERS S. DUPONT 1-22-45 Calship, 136. H 60 PLATTBBURG 5-11-44 Kaiser-Swan, 24. ? ? ? PLATTSBURG 5-11-44 Kaiser-Swan, 24. ? ? ? POCONONTAS (1). 7-44 Oregon, 1003. ? ? ? PONCAD VICTORY (2). 12-31-44 Oregon, 695. ? ? ? PONCAD DE LEON 2-44 Nath Carolina, 49. PO ? ? ? <	1				2	?	
PHILIP P. BARBOUR. 1-44 Calship, 85. H ? PHILIP SCUVIER. 12-44 Marinship, 5. H ? PHILIP SCUVIER. 6-12-44 Oregon, 184. N 86 PHINES BANNING (1). 8-43 Calship, 136. H ? PHINES BANNING (2). 12-11-43 Calship, 136. H ? PHINES BANNING (2). 12-11-43 Calship, 136. H ? PHINES BANNING (2). 12-12-28-45 Calship, 136. H ? PLATTE. 4-7-43 Bethelheam-Sparrows, 4329. ? ? PLATTE. 4-7-43 Bethelheam-Sparrows, 4329. ? ? PLATTE. 4-7-43 North Carolina, 49. H 55 POCONONTAS (2). 2.44 North Carolina, 49. H ? ? POLAND VICTORY (1). 7-44 Oregon, 1003. ? ? ? POLAND VICTORY (1). 2.44 North Carolina, 49. H ? ? POLAND VICTORY (1). <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>?</td></t<>						?	
PHILIP KEARNY. 12-44 Marinship, 5. H ? PHILIP SCHUYLER. 6-12-44 Oregon, 184. N 86 PHILPS CHUYLER. 6-12-44 Oregon, 184. N 86 PHINEAS BANNING (2). 12-11-43 Calship, 136. H 60 POPCO. 1-12-28-45 Oregon, 576. C 8 3 PO PICO. 1-12-28-45 Calship, 121. H ? ? ? PLATTE . 4-7-43 Betblehen-Sparrow, 4329. ? ? ? ? POCOHONTAS (1). 8-21-43 North Carolina, 49. H 55 ? ? ? ? POCAND VICTORY (1). 7-44 Oregon, 1003. ? ? ? ? ? POLAND VICTORY (2). 12-31-44 Oregon, 1003. H ?<					2	?	
PHILE SCHUYLER. 6-12-44 Oregon, 184. N 86 PHINAS BANNING (1). 8-43 Calkhip, 136. H 7 PHINAS BANNING (2). 12-11-43 Calkhip, 136. H 60 PIERZE S. DUPONT 1-26-45 Oregon, 576. C 8 3 PID PICO. 1-12-28-45 Calkhip, 121. H ? ? PLATTE. 4-7-43 Bethlehem-Sparrow, 4329. ? ? ? PLATTE. 4-7-44 Kaiser-Swan, 24. ? ? ? ? POCONONTAS (1). 8-21-43 North Carolina, 49. H 55 ? ? ? POLAND VICTORY (1). 7-44 Oregon, 1003. ? </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>2</td>						2	
PHINEAS BANNING (1). 8-43 Calabir, 136. H ? PHINEAS BANNING (2). 12-11-43 Calabir, 136. H 60 PRERE S. DUPORT. 1-26-45 Calabir, 121. H 60 PID PICO. 1-12-28-45 Calabir, 121. H ? ? PLATTE 4-7-43 Behlehem-Sparrows, 4329. ? ? ? PLATTSBURO. 5-11-44 Kaiser-Swan, 24. ? ? ? POCOHONTAS (1). 8-21-43 North Carolina, 49. H 55 POCONOTAS (2). 2-44 North Carolina, 49. H ? ? POLAND VICTORY (1). 7-44 Oregon, 1003. ? ? ? PINCE L. CAMPBELL. 2-18-44 Oregon, 771. H ? ? QUEBEC (1). 2-34 Kaiser-Swan, 2. C 72 ? ? QUEBEC (2). 5-31-44 Suiger, 305. N ? ? ? ? ? R. C. BRENNAN (3).						67	
PHINZ 45 BANNING (2). 12-11-43 Calship, 136. H 60 PIERRE S. DUPONT 1-26-45 Oregon, 576. C 8 3 PIO PICO. 1-12-28-45 Calship, 132. H ? ? PLATTE 4-7-43 Bethlehem-Sparrowr, 4329. ? ? ? PCCOHONTAS (1). 8-21-43 North Carolina, 49. H 55 POCOHONTAS (2). 2-44 North Carolina, 49. H 55 POLAND VICTORY (1). 7-44 Oregon, 1003. ? ? PONCE DE LEON<.						?	
PIRERE S. DUPONT. 1-26-45 Oregon, 576. C 8 3 PTO PROD. 1-12-28-45 Calship, 121. H ? PLATTE. 4-7-43 Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4329. ? ? PLATTE. 4-7-43 Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4329. ? ? PCOCHONTAS (1) 8-21-43 North Carolina, 49. C 67-70 PCOCHONTAS (2) 2-44 North Carolina, 49. H 55 POLAND VICTORY (1) 7-44 Oregon, 1003. ? ? ? POLAND VICTORY (2) 12-31-44 Oregon, 701. H ? ? ? PUEBLO. 9-44 St. Johns, 1. ? ? ? ? ? QUEBEC (1) 2-43 Oregon, 695. ? ? ? ? ? ? ? QUEBEC (2) 5-31-44 Kaiser-Swan, 2. C ? <t< td=""><td>.,</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>64</td></t<>	.,					64	
Pro Proo. 1-12-28-45 Calship, 121. H ? PLATTEBURG. 5-11-44 Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4329. ? ? POCOHONTAS (1) 5-11-44 North Carolina, 49. C 67-70 POCOHONTAS (2) 2-44 North Carolina, 49. H 55 POLAND VICTORY (1) 7-44 Oregon, 1003. ? ? ? POLAND VICTORY (2) 12-31-44 Oregon, 1003. H ? ? ? POILAND VICTORY (2) 12-31-44 Oregon, 1003. H ? ? ? POILAND VICTORY (2) 12-31-44 Oregon, 1003. H ? ? ? PUINCE L. CAMPBELL 2-18-44 Oregon, 711. H ? ? ? QUEBEC (2) 5-31-44 Kaiser-Swan, 2. C C 7 ? R. C. BRENNAN (2) 7-22-43/8-7-43 Oregon, 695 N ? ? ? R. C. BRENNAN (3) 11-11-43 Oregon, 695 ? ? ? ? ? ? R. C. BRENNAN (5) ? ?						30-32	
PLATTE 4-7-43 Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4329					?	?	
PLATTSBURG. 5-11-44 Kaiser-Swan, 24. ? ? ? POCODHONTAS (1) 8-21-43 North Carolina, 49. C 67-70 POCODHONTAS (2) 2-44 North Carolina, 49. C 67-70 POCODHONTAS (2) 12-31-44 Oregon, 1003. ? ? ? POLAND VICTORY (2) 12-31-44 Oregon, 1003. . ? ? ? PONCE DE LEON 9-44 St. Johns, 1. ?					?	?	
POCOHONTAS (1)	-				?	?	
POCOHONTAS (2)					67-70	29	
POLAND VICTORY (1)				(I	55	62	
POLAND VIGTORY (2)	• •				?	?	
PONCE DE LEON	POLAND VICTORY (2)	12-31-44			?	?	
PRINCE L. CAMPBELL. $2-18-44$ Oregon, 771 H ? PUEDLO. $8-44$ Sun, 256 ? ? QUEBEC (1). $2-43$ Kaiser-Swan, 2 ? ? QUEBEC (2). $5-31-44$ Kaiser-Swan, 2 C 7 R. C. BRENNAN (1). $6-15-43$ Oregon, 695 N ? R. C. BRENNAN (2). $7-22-43/8-7-43$ Oregon, 695 N ? R. C. BRENNAN (3). 11-11-43 Oregon, 695 C 54 R. C. BRENNAN (4). $5-22-44$ Oregon, 695 C 54 R. C. BRENNAN (5). 12-19-44 Oregon, 695 N 36 R. C. STONER (1). $9-44$ Sun, 239 H ? R. J. REYNOLDS $2-17-45$ Houston, 78 H ? R. M. WILLIAMSON $2-17-45$ Houston, 78 H ? RAINER $9-44$ Oregon, 815 ? ? ? RAINER $9-44$ Oregon, 815 ? ? ? RAINER $9-44$ Oregon, 8					?	?	
PUEBLO					?	?	
QUEBEC (1)		8-44			?	?	
QUEBEC (2) $5-31-44$ Kaiser-Swan, 2.C72R. C. BRENNAN (1) $6-15-43$ Oregon, 695N?R. C. BRENNAN (2) $7-22-43/8-7-43$ Oregon, 695N?R. C. BRENNAN (3) $11-11-43$ Oregon, 695??R. C. BRENNAN (3) $11-11-43$ Oregon, 695?R. C. BRENNAN (4) $5-23-44$ Oregon, 695.C54R. C. BRENNAN (5) $12-19-44$ Oregon, 695N36R. C. STONER (1) $9-44$ Sun, 239N36R. C. STONER (1) $2-47-45$ Jones-Brunswick, 162??R. J. REYNOLDS $1-3-45$ Jones-Brunswick, 162??R. M. WILLIAMSON $2-17-45$ Houston, 78RALPH BARNES $9-44$ Oregon, 815???RALPH BARNES $9-44$ Oregon, 815.??RALPH BARNES $9-44$ Oregon, 815.??RALPH BARNES $9-44$ Oregon, 815.??REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (2) $1-45$ Delta, 75?REGINALD FENALD $10-44$ New England, 2215C48REUBEN SNOW $1-12-44$ Pacific Bridge, 5???RICHARD FEANALD $6-43$ North Carolina, 48.H?RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (1) $1-28-44$ Calship, T-4.H24RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (1) $1-28-44$ Calship	QUEBEC (1)	2-43			?	?	
R. C. BRENNAN (1)					72	66	
R. C. BRENNAN (2)	R. C. BRENNAN (1)	6-15-43			?	?	
R. C. BRENNAN (3)					?	?	
R. C. BRENNAN (5). $12-19-44$ Oregon, 695. N 36 R. C. STONER (1). $9-44$ Sun, 239. H ? R. J. REYNOLDS. $1-3-45$ Jones-Brunswick, 162. ? ? R. M. WILLIAMSON. $2-17-45$ Houston, 78. H ? RAIPH BARNES. $2-17-45$ Houston, 78. H ? RAIPH BARNES. $9-44$ Oregon, 815. ? ? REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (1). $4-10-44$ Delta, 75. H 52 REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (2). $1-45$ Delta, 75. ? ? REUBEN SNOW. $10-44$ New England, 2215. C 48 REUBEN SNOW. $1-12-44$ Pacific Bridge, 5. ? ? RICHARD CASWELL. $6-43$ North Carolina, 48. H ? RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (1). $1-28-44$ Calship, T-4. H ? RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (2). $3-23-44$ Calship, T-4. H ? RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (2). $3-23-44$ Calship, T-4. ? ? ? RICHARD J. CLEVE	R. C. Brennan (3)	11-11-43			?	?	
R. C. BRENNAN (5). $12-19-44$ Oregon, 695. N 36 R. C. STONER (1). $9-44$ Sun, 239. H ? R. J. REYNOLDS. $1-3-45$ Jones-Brunswick, 162. ? ? R. M. WILLIAMSON. $2-17-45$ Houston, 78. H ? RALPH BARNES. $2-17-45$ Houston, 78. H ? RALPH BARNES. $9-44$ Oregon, 815. ? ? REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (1). $4-10-44$ Delta, 75. H 52 REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (2). $1-45$ Delta, 75. ? ? REDIAL D FERNALD. $10-44$ New England, 2215. C 48 REUBEN SNOW. $1-12-44$ Pacific Bridge, 5. ? ? RICHARD D. SNOW. $1-16-23-44$ Retilehem-Fairfield, 2040. H ? RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (1). $8-1-44$ Oregon, 671. ? ? RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (2). $3-23-44$ Calship, T-4. H 24 RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (2). $3-23-44$ Calship, T-4. ? ? ? <td< td=""><td>R. C. Brennan (4)</td><td>5-23-44</td><td>Oregon, 695</td><td>C</td><td>54</td><td>?</td></td<>	R. C. Brennan (4)	5-23-44	Oregon, 695	C	54	?	
R. J. REYNOLDS 1-3-45 Jones-Brunswick, 162	R. C. Brennan (5)	12-19-44	Oregon, 695	N	36	60	
R. M. WILLIAMSON $2-17-45$ Houston, 78 H ? RAINIER $6-21-44$ Kaiser-Swan, 54 ? ? RALPH BARNES $9-44$ Oregon, 815 ? ? REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (1) $4-10-44$ Delta, 75 H 52 REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (2) $1-45$ Delta, 75 ? ? REGINALD FERNALD $10-44$ New England, 2215 C 48 REUBEN SNOW $10-44$ New England, 2215 C 48 REUBEN SNOW $1-12-44$ Pacific Bridge, 5 ? ? RICHARD CASWELL $6-43$ North Carolina, 48 H ? RICHARD H. ALVEY $1-16-23-44$ Betblehem-Fairfield, 2040 H ? RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (1) $1-28-44$ Calship, T-4 H ? RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (2) $3-23-44$ Calship, T-4 H ? RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (2) $7-31-45$ Permanente, 419 N 81 RICHARD M. JOHNSON (1) $3-17-44$ Delta, 60 H ?	R. C. STONER (1)	9-44	Sun, 239	H	?	?	
RAINIER						?	
RALPH BARNES 9-44 Oregon, 815 ? ? REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (1) 4-10-44 Delta, 75 H 52 REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (2) 1-45 Delta, 75 H 52 REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (2) 1-45 Delta, 75 ? ? REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (2) 1-45 Delta, 75 ? ? REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (2) 1-44 New England, 2215 C 48 REUBEN SNOW 10-44 New England, 2215 C 48 RICHARD CASWELL 6-43 North Carolina, 48 H ? RICHARD H. ALVEY 1-16-23-44 Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2040 H ? RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (1) 1-28-44 Calship, T-4 H 24 RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (2) 3-23-44 Calship, T-4 H 24 RICHARD J. REISS 10-17-43 Great Lakes-River Rouge, 290 H ? RICHARD M. JOHNSON (1) 3-17-44 Delta, 60 H ?	R. M. WILLIAMSON	2-17-45	Houston, 78	Н	?	?	
REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (1). $4-10-44$ Delta, 75 H 52 REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (2). $1-45$ Delta, 75 ? ? REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (2). $1-45$ Delta, 75 ? ? REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (2). $1-45$ Delta, 75 ? ? REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (2). $10-44$ New England, 2215 C 48 REUBEN SNOW. $10-44$ New England, 2215 C 48 RICHARD CASWELL. $6-43$ North Carolina, 48 H ? RICHARD H. ALVEY. $1-16-23-44$ Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2040					?	?	
REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (2). 1-45 Delta, 75				1		3	
RENALD FERNALD. 10-44 New England, 2215						54	
REUBEN SNOW	REGINALD A. FESSENDEN (2).	1-45			-	?	
RICHARD CASWELL						60	
RICHARD H. ALVEY 1-16-23-44 Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2040. H ? RICHARD HARDING DAVIS 8-1-44 Oregon, 671 ? ? RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (1) 1-28-44 Calship, T-4. H 24 RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (2) 3-23-44 Calship, T-4. ? ? RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (2) 3-23-44 Calship, T-4. ? ? RICHARD J. REISS 10-17-43 Great Lakes-River Rouge, 290. H ? RICHARD JORDAN GATLING 7-31-45 Permanente, 419 N 81 RICHARD M. JOHNSON (1) 3-17-44 Delta, 60 H ?					F	?	
RICHARD HARDING DAVIS 8-1-44 Oregon, 671 ? RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (1) 1-28-44 Calship, T-4 H RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (2) 3-23-44 Calship, T-4 ? RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (2) 3-23-44 Calship, T-4 ? RICHARD J. REIS3 10-17-43 Great Lakes-River Rouge, 290 H ? RICHARD JORDAN GATLING 7-31-45 Permanente, 419 N 81 RICHARD M. JOHNSON (1) 3-17-44 Delta, 60 H ?		1			2	?	
RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (1) 1-28-44 Calship, T-4 H 24 RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (2) 3-23-44 Calship, T-4 ? ? RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (2) 10-17-43 Great Lakes-River Rouge, 290 ? ? RICHARD J. REIS3 10-17-43 Great Lakes-River Rouge, 290 H ? RICHARD JORDAN GATLING 7-31-45 Permanente, 419 N 81 RICHARD M. JOHNSON (1) 3-17-44 Delta, 60 H ?					?	2	
RICHARD J. CLEVELAND (2) 3-23-44 Calship, T-4 ? ? RICHARD J. REISS 10-17-43 Great Lakes-River Rouge, 290 H ? RICHARD JORDAN GATLING 7-31-45 Permanente, 419 N 81 RICHARD M. JOHNSON (1) 3-17-44 Delta, 60 H ?					?	2	
RICHARD J. REISS 10-17-43 Great Lakes-River Rouge, 290 H ? RICHARD JORDAN GATLING 7-31-45 Permanente, 419 N 81 RICHARD M. JOHNSON (1) 3-17-44 Delta, 60 H ?					•	34	
RICHARD JORDAN GATLING 7-31-45 Permanente, 419 N 81 RICHARD M. JOHNSON (1) 3-17-44 Delta, 60 H ?						2	
RICHARD M. JOHNSON (1) 3-17-44 Delta, 60 H ?					i .	2	
					1 .	60	
KICHARD M. JOHNSON (2) 9–44 Delta, 60 ? <th ?="" t<="" td="" <=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>1</td><td></td></th>	<td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1</td> <td></td>					1	
Richard M. Johnson (3) 12-13-44 Delta, 60 C 36 Richard Mansfield 3-31-44 Oregon, 608 ? ? ?						42	

and the second of the second o

7

-

124

-

ł

Ĭ

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull no.	Sea condition	Temper Degr F .hrei	ees
	or Report			Air	Water
RICHMOND MUMFORD PEARSON (1)	3-31-43	Delta, 29	?	?	~~~~?
RICHMOND MUMFORD PEARSON (2)	4-23-43/5-14-43	Delta, 29	Н	30-39	40-42
RICHARD OLNEY (1)	3-43	Delta, 37	?	?	?
RICHARD OLNEY (2)	3-43	Delta, 37	2	66-73	66-70
RICHARD RUSH	1-24-45/2-5-45	Oregon, 621	N	60-65	66-68
RIVER RAISIN (1)	10-31-43	Kaiser-Swan, 15	?	?	?
RIVER RAISIN (2)	7-7-44	Kaiser-Swan, 15	?	?	?
ROBERT C. STANLEY	11-10-43	Great Lakes-River Rouge, 294	н	?	?
Robert C. Tuttle	6-4-43	Sun, 194	c	9	?
ROBERT E. CLARKSON (1)	1-25-45	Todd-Houston, 161	?	13	?
ROBERT E. CLARKSON (2)	6-13-45	Todd-Houston, 161	N	55	48
Rofert Eden	5-30-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2165.	?	?	?
ROBERT ERSKINE	10-20-43	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2159.	н	?	?
ROBERT G. INGERSOLL (1)	10-11-43	Calship, 226	?	?	?
Robert G. Ingersoll (2)	1-29-44	Calship, 226	2	?	?
Robert Howe	743	North Carolina, 57	?	?	?
ROBERT LOWRY (1)	4-11-4-	Delta, 55	?	?	?
ROBERT LUCAS	4-22-44	Permanente, 1560	?	?	?
Robert Morris	8-1-44	Calship, 7	?	?	85
ROBERT NEWALL (1)	10-10-20-43	Oregon, 684		?	?
Robert Newall (2)	12-43	Oregon, 684	?	?	?
Robert Newall (3)	1-6-44	Oregon, 684	н	?	?
Robert Newall (4)	4-44	Oregon, 684	?	?	?
ROBERT ROCERS	2-25-44	New England, 281	н	52-62	5758
ROBERT S. LOVETT	2–45	Todd-Houston, 155	Н	?	?
ROBERT STUART	10-44	Calship, 131	?	?	?
ROBERT TOOMES	6-45	Southeastern, 7	Н	?	
ROBERT TREAT.	5-16-44	New England, 276	?	?	10 64
ROBERT TREAT PAINE	4-44	Bethlehem, Fairfield, 2019	H	54-58	6364
ROBERT TRIMBLE	5-2-44	Jones-Brunswick, 109	?	?	r
ROCKLAND VICTORY	3-18-20-45	Oregon, 1017	H	?	58
ROGER GRISWOLD (1)	1-12-44	Delta, 43	H N	38 25-45	36-49
Roger Griswold (2) Roger Griswold (3)	2-8-25-44 5-29-45	Delta, 43 Delta, 43	N N	25-45 60	52
ROGER GRISWOLD (5)	3-4-44	North Carolina, 81	H	2	22
KOUGER MIOURE	12-44	Alabama, 316	H	5363	64–65
RoseBud (1)	6-44	Alabama, 258	H	20-05	2
RoseBud (2)	12-44	Alabama, 258	?	2	2
RUFUS C. DAWES	10-43	St. Johns, 12	H	?	?
RUSSELL H. CHITTENDEN.	10-2-4-44	Calship, 297	н	79	75
S. M. Вавсоск (1)	10-14-43	Oregon, 590		38	46
S. M. Власоск (2)	1-7-27-44	Oregon, 590		38	46
SABINE SUN	1-23-45	Sun, 234		?	?
Sacajawea (1)	4-18-44	Oregon, 612		?	?
SACAJAWFA (2)	5-43	Oregon, 612		?	?
SACAJAWEA (3)	2-44	Oregon, 612	N	48-52	52
SAG HARBOR	10-1-25-44	Sun, 337	?	?	?
Saguaro	4-1-22-45	Kaiser-Swan, 119	?	?	2
SALAMONIE	12-5-41	Newport News, 372	?	?	?
SALVADOR BRAU	3-1-44	Jones-Panama, 25	?	?	?
SAMARINDA (1)	11-27-43	Calship, 249		?	?
Samarinda (2)	4-44	Calship, 249		?	?
Samarovsk	4-44	Calship, 236		?	?
SAM BUFF	8-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2269	?	?	?

701292-47-9

125

-72

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey,	Builder and hull ro.	Sea condition	Tempe Degi Fahre	rees
	or Report		condition	Air	Water
SAMBUR	12-4-43	Calship, 247	?	?	<u> </u>
SAMBLADE	9-43	Calship, 230		2	2
SAMCALIA (1)	12-13-43	Calship, 252		2	2
SAMCALIA (2)		Calship, 252		2	2
SAMDON	12-28-43	New England, 2210	Ċ	16	34
SAM HOLT	10-43	Calship, 218.		20	2
SAM HOUSTON II (1)	2-4-44	Houston, 70		38	42
SAM HOUSTON II (2)	5-31-44	Houston, 70		20	742
SAM JACKSON		Oregon, 632		2	
SAMMONT	4-45	Calship, 255		2	2
SAMPAN		Calship, 234.		2	2
Sамрер		Calship, 242			
SAMPFORD		Permanente, 2099		2	2
SAMSON (1)		Calship, 219		2	2
SAMSON (2)		Calship, 219		2	
SAMTREDY (1)		Calship, 251		2	
SAMTREDY (2).		Calship, 251			7
SANTROY		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2282		2	
SAMTYNE		New England, 2222			
SAMUEL ADAMS		Calship, 8		?	
SAMUEL ASHE				32	34
SAMUEL ASHE		North Carolina, 20.		?	?
SAMUEL CHASE (1)		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2010.		?	5
		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2010.		?	?
SAMUEL CHASE (3) SAMUEL CHASE (4)		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2010		2	?
SAMUEL COLT.		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2010	?	?	?
SAMUEL COLT		Oregon, 585		38-43	42
SAMUEL D. INGHAM (1)	5-43	Oregon, 622		?	?
SAMUEL D. INGHAM (2)	i1-7-43 1-12-44	Oregon, 622		40	42
SAMUEL D. INGHAM (3)		Oregon, 622			?
SAMUEL D. INGHAM (4)		Oregon, 622		12-20	38
SAMUEL DEXTER (1)		Delta, 42		?	?
SAMUEL DEXTER (2)		Delta, 42		40	48
SAMUEL GRIPFIN		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2379		52-66	50-51
SAMUEL J. TILDEN		Houston, 10	I _	42-52	39
SAMUEL J. TILDEN		Oregon, 597		70-62	70
SAMUEL JOHNSTON	7-2-43	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2033.	C	55-64	50-66
SAMUEL MCINTYRE		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2150			
SAMUEL NELSON (1)	1	Calship, 87		36	34
SAMUEL NELSON (2)		Calship, 87		38	41
SAMUEL NELSON (5)		Calship, 87		49	51
SAMUEL FARKER	2-44	Oregon, 593.		?	?
SAMUEL SAMUELS (1)	12-21-43	Walter Butler, 22	C	7	?
SAMUEL SAMUELS (2)	1-11-44	Walter Butler, 22	?	?	2
SAMUEL SEABURY		Oregon, 572		?	?
		New England, 2212		18	2
Samzona		Oregon, 761		?	?
	12-1-16-44	Sun, 255	7	?	?
SANTA BARBARA		Federal, 239	?	?	?
SANTA CECIJA		Federal, 233		5	2
SANTA CRUZ		Bethlehem-San Francisco, 5360		?	?
SANTA ISABEL		Newport News, 373		?	?
SANTA MARIA (1)		Federal, 235		?	?
SANTA MONICA		Federal, 155		?	2
Schenectady (1)	1-16-43	Kaiser-Swan, 1	C	23	38

357

THE REAL

.

126

ł

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey,	Builder and hull no.	Sca condition	Deg	rature rees nheit
	or Report	۱ ۱ <u>ـــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ</u>		Air	Water
SCHENECTADY (2)	8-43	Kaiser-Swan, 1	?	?	?
SCHENECTADY 3)	9-43	Kaiser-Swan, 1	?	2	?
SCHUYLER COLFAX (1)	2-24-44	Calship, T-20	Н	30	60
SCHUYLER COLFAX (2)	3-25-44	Calship, T–20	н	53	54
SCHUYLER COLFAX (3)	6-11-44	Calship, T-20.	N	56	?
SCHUYLER COLFAX (4)	2-2-45	Calship, T-20	С	38	40
Schuyler Colfax (5)	2-10-45	Calship, T-20	N	38-40	40
SCHUYLER COLFAX (6)	4-45	Calship, T-20	?	?	?
Sea Angler	2-9-11-44	Western Pipe, 121	N	?	2
Sea Bass	1-5-44	Western Pipe, 80	н	55	52
Sea Kay	1-44	Sun, 231	?	?	?
SEA PORPOISE (1)	4-6-44	Ingails, 332	н	50-67	37-67
Sea Porpoise (2)	7-3-45	Ingalls, 332	N	65	65
Sea Serpent (1)	12-31-42	Sun, 206	?	?	?
SEA SERPENT (2)	5-15-43	Sun, 206	?	?	?
Sea Serpent (3)	6-21-43	Sun, 206	?	2	?
Sea Serpent (4)	7-18-43	Sun, 206	?	?	?
Sea Serpent (5)	8-9-43	Sun, 206	?	?	?
Sea Serpent (6)	9-20-43	Sun, 206	?	?	?
SEA SERPENT (7)	10-2-44	Sun, 206	?	2	?
Sea Tiger	12-7-44	Ingalls, 409	H	65	?
SEAMOBILE (1)	7-44	U. S. Shipbuilding , 5	H	?	?
Sebastain Cermeno	3-43	Marinship, 11	?	?	?
Sebastian Vizcaino.	3-23-44	Calship, 105	н	?	?
Sedalia Victory	3-18-24-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2441	н	?	2
Sevastopol	1-7-44	Oregon, 670	С	?	?
Seven Pines	6-27-44	Sun, 259	?	?	?
Sewell Avery (1)	5-21-43	American-Lorain, 827	N	?	?
Sewell Avery (2)	12-44	American-Lorain, 227		5	?
Shabonee	9-1-5-44	Bethichem-Sparrow, 4386	5	2	?
Shooting Star (1)	8-14-42	Sun, 205	?	?	?
Shooting Star (2)	2-23-43	Sun, 205	?	?	?
Shooting Star (3)	4-43	Sun, 205	?	?	?
Shooting Star (4)	5-22-43	Sun, 205	?	?	?
SHOOTING STAR (5)	8-13-43	Sun, 205	?	?	?
Shooting Star (6)	8-31-43/9-9-43	Sun, 205		?	?
SHOOTING STAR (7)	10-4-43	Sun, 205	?	?	?
SHOOTING STAR (8)	3-14-44	Sun, 205	?	34-38	45-52
SIDNEY EDGERTON	5-23-44	Oregon, 754	?	?	?
SIDNEY SHERMAN	3-25-44	Houston, 66	?	?	?
SILAS WEIR MITCHELL (1)	2-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2125	?	?	?
SILAS WEIR MITCHELL (2)	5-31-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2125	C	49	59
Silverbow Victory	10-9-44	Oregon, 1024	?	?	?
SIMON NEWCOMB	3-4-44	Calship, 158	N	54	52
Sinon Willard	4-18-44	Alabama, 284	?	50-52	57
SRAGWAY VICTORY	10-1-28-44	Oregon, 1032	ž I	2	?
SKULL BAR	1-1-8-45	Alabama, 267	?	3	2
SMORY HILL	12-44	Kaiser-Swan, 38	2	2	2
SOLON TURMAN	5-43	Consolidated-Wilmington, 231	?	5	2
SOLME	5-15-45	Sun, 434	<u> </u>	?	2
South Mountain	12-44	Sun, 303	<u></u>	?	
SOVETSKAYA GAVAN	2-44	Oregon, 708	r I	?	2
SPOTTSYLVANIA.	4-1-44	Sun, 297		?	
Stag Hound (1)	9-42	Sun, 204	?	?	<u>ب</u>

h where

127

-- -10

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Strae Hours (2) 11-25-42 Str. 204 2 2 Strae Hours (3) 1-19-43 Sun, 204 2 2 Strae Hours (4) 2 2-9-43 Sun, 204 2 2 Strae Hours (6) 2-9-43 Sun, 204 2 2 2 Straven Neuter. 3-8-44 Lethichem-Fore River, 1486. H 5 Strature A. Douolas. 4-14-45 Oregon, 618 H 5 Strature A. Douolas. 4-14-45 Oregon, 618 H 2 Strature A. Douolas. 4-14-44 Oregon, 618 H 2 Strature N. Costra (1) 3-14-44 Houtton, 37 H 38 Strature N. Austing (2) 1-17-744 Houtton, 26 N 52 Strature N. Austing (2) 1-17-44 Houtton, 77 H 38 Strature N. Matlowy 1-11-44 Houtton, 77 H 38 Strature N. Matlowy 1-11-44 Houtton, 77 H 38 Strature N. Matlowy 1-16-44 <	Veuel	Date of Casualty, Survey, or Report	Builder and hull no.	Sea condition	Temperature Degrees Fahrenheit	
STAD HOUND (3). 1-19-43 Sur, 204. 11 12 STAD HOUND (4). 2-9-43 Sur, 204. 2 2 STADE DOOD CANTERN. 5-45 Eethlehem-Furfield, 2252. 2 2 STANFORD NEWEL. 3-8-44 Oregon, 685. 2 2 STENERD A. DOUOLAS. 4-14-45 Great Lakes-Ashtabula, 525. 2 2 STEPHEN A. DOUOLAS. 4-114-14 Oregon, 618. 11 2 STEPHEN A. DOUOLAS. 4-114-14 Oregon, 618. 11 2 STEPHEN A. DOUOLAS. 4-114-14 Oregon, 618. 11 2 STEPHEN C. FOSTER (1). 12-7-43 Houston, 37. H 38 STEPHEN C. FOSTER (2). 12-7-44 Houston, 37. H 38 STEPHEN F. AUSTIN. 3-20-44 Paramente, 228.3 H 2 STEPHEN HORKINS. 5-20-43 Permanente, 228.3 H 2		or Report			Air	Water
STAD HOUND (3)	STAG HOUND (2)	11-25-42	Sup 204	2	2	?
Strade Doox CATTERE. 2-9-43 Sun, 204				1		2
STADE DOOR CANTERN 5-45 Setthelem-Fairfield, 2252, 2 ? ? STANFORD WEEL. 3-8-44 Oregon, 695, 2 ? ? ? STANFORD WEEL. 2-16-43 Great Lakes-Ashtabua, 525, ? ? ? STEPHEN A. DOUOLAS. 4-11413 Oregon, 618, H 54 STEPHEN B. ELKINN (1). 1-1518-44 Oregon, 618, H ? STEPHEN D. FLINN (2). 4-11413 Oregon, 618, H ? STEPHEN D. FLINN (2). 1-17-44 Houston, 37, H 32 STEPHEN T. F. AUSTIN. 3-22-44 Houston, 26, N 52 STEPHEN F. AUSTIN. 3-20-44 Calship, 215, ? 86 STEPHEN H. FLONO 7-21-43 Jones-Fanama, 22, C 3-4-50 STEPHEN M. RALLONV. 1-11-44 Jones-Fanama, 22, C 3-4-50 STEPHEN M. RALLONV. 1-11-44 Jones-Fanama, 22, C 3-4-50 SURANGO. 3-4-54 Houston, 127, 2 ? ? SURANGO. 3-4-54 Sun, 203, 2 ? ?					1	
STANFORD NEWEL. 3-8-44 Oregon, 685					· ·	,
STANNA CAPE TOWN. 7-5-42 Brüchkem-Fore River, 1486. H 54 STEPLTON. 2-16-43 Great Lake-Ashtabula, 525. ? ? STEPLTON. 1-15-18-44 Gregon, 178. N 44-70 STEPLIN B. ELKINS (1). 1-15-18-44 Oregon, 618. 11 ? STEPLIN C. FORTER (2). 14-471-14-44 Oregon, 618. H ? STEPLIN F. CORTER (2). 12-7-43 Houston, 37. C 32 STEPLIN F. FORTER (2). 12-7-43 Houston, 26. N 52 STEPHEN H. FORTER (2). 11-14 Jones-Panama, 22. C 34-50 STEPHEN H. HORKINS. 5-20-43 Permanente, 2233 H ? STEPHEN H. HORKINS. 5-16-44 Calship, 34. H ? STEPHEN M. MALLONV. 1-11-44 Jones-Panama, 22. C 34-50 SURRORE (1). 7-4-42 Sun, 203. ? ? ? SULERANS (3). 8-12-43 Sun, 203. ? ? ? ? SURPRUE (6). 10-10-43 Sun, 203. ? ? ?				•		
STEPHEN A. DOVOLAS. 2-16-43 Great Lakes-Ashtabula, 525. ? ? STEPHEN B. ELKINS (1). 1-15-18-44 Oregon, 178. N 44-70 STEPHEN B. ELKINS (2). 4-11-14-44 Oregon, 618. H1 ? STEPHEN C. FORTER (1). 3-14-44 Houston, 37. H 38 STEPHEN C. FORTER (2). 12-7-43 Houston, 37. H 38 STEPHEN H. CORTER (2). 3-20-44 Houston, 26. N 52 STEPHEN H. LONO 7-21-43 Calabip, 21.5. ? 86 STEPHEN H. MANDAN 3-20-44 Calabip, 24. H1 ? STEPHEN H. MALLORY. 1-11-44 Jones-Fanama, 22. C 34-50 STERMEN MALLORY. 1-11-44 Kaiter-Swan, 21. ? ? ? SULRASS 3-16-44 Calabip, 180. ? ? ? ? ? SULRASS 5-30-43 Sun, 203. ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ?				-	· ·	44
STEPHEN A. DOUGLAL						?
STEPHUR B. ELKINS (1)						44
STEPHEN B. ELKINS (2)				1	2	רי . ?
STEPHEN C. FORTER (1). 3-14-43 Houston, 37. C 32 STEPHEN C. FORTER (2). 12-7-43 Houston, 37. H 38 STEPHEN F. AUSTIN. 3-22-44 Houston, 26. N 52 STEPHEN H. LONO 7-21-43 Calship, 215 ? 86 STEPHEN HORMIN. 5-20-44 Calship, 34. H ? STEPHEN HORMIN. 5-20-45 Permanente, 2283 H ? ? STEPHEN MORINSON FIELD. 3-20-44 Calship, 34. H ?<		• •• ••			2	. ?
STEPHEN C. FOTER (2)						.30
STEPHEN F. AUSTIN. 3-22-44 Houston, 26. N 52 STEPHEN H. LONO 7-21-43 Calship, 215. ? 86 STEPHEN HORKINA 5-20-43 Permanente, 2283 H ? STEPHEN KORKINA 3-20-44 Calship, 34. H ? STEPHEN K. MALLORY. 1-11-44 Jones-Panama, 22. C 34-50 SURAN 5-16-44 Calship, 180. ? ? SULROSS 3-3-54 Houston, 127. ? ? SURPRISE (1) 7-4-42 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (3) 5-30-43 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (5) 8-12-43 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (6) 80-10-10-43 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (6)<						47
STEPHEN H. LONG 7-21-43 Calship, 215					-	54
STEPHEN HORKINS. $5-20-43$ Permanente, 2283 H ? STEPHEN R. MALLORV. $1-11-44$ Calship, 34. H ? STONEY CREEK. $12-1-21-44$ Kaiser-Swan, 21. ? ? SUL ROS $5-16-44$ Calship, 180. ? ? SUL ROS $3-45$ Houston, 127. ? ? SUL ROS $3-45$ Houston, 127. ? ? SURPRISE (2) $10-27-42$ Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (3) $6-30-43$ Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (4) $6-30-43$ Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (5) $8-12-43$ Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (7) $4-444$ New England, 2213. ? ? SUNANEE. $1-18-44$ New England, 2213. ? ? SUNANEE. $12-4-41$ Federal, 151 ? ? SUNANEE. $2-5-43/11-13-43$ Sun, 226. N ? SUNANEE. $2-5-43/11-13-43$ R ? ? ? <		-			ļ	70
STEPHEN R. MALLORY. 3-20-44 Calship, 34. H ? STEPHEN R. MALLORY. 1-11-44 Jones-Panama, 22. C 34-50 STONBY CREEK. 12-1-21-44 Kaiser-Swan, 21. ? ? SUCRAN. 5-16-44 Calship, 180. ? ? SURPRISE (1). 7-4-42 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (3). 5-30-43 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (3). 6-30-43 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (6). 10-27-42 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (6). 10-12-43 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (6). 10-10-43 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (7). 4-444 Sun, 203. ? ? SURANE COLDY 1-18-44 Federal, 151. ? ? SUWANEE. 12-441 Federal, 151. ? ? ? SWAN BLAND. 4-54-54 Kaiser-Swan, 86. N ? ? ? STEAM COLDY 1-24-441 Koiser-Swan, 81. ? ? </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>, , , ,</td>						, , , ,
STEPLEN R. MALLORY. 1-11-44 Jones-Panama, 22. C $34-50$ STONEY CREEK. 12-1-21-44 Kaiser-Swan, 21. ? ? SUGRAN. 5-16-44 Calship, 180. ? ? SURANS. $3-45$ Houston, 127. ? ? SURPRISE (1) 7-4-42 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (2) 10-27-42 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (3) 8-12-43 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (5) 8-12-43 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (6) 10-10-43 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (7) 4-44 New 203. ? ? SURANEE (6) 10-10-43 Sun, 203. ? ? SURANEE (7) 4-444 New England, 2213. ? 3 SURANE (6) 12-444 Kaiser-Swan, 86. N ? SURANE (2) 1-18-44 New England, 2213. ? ? SWAN ISLAND. 4-5-54 Kaiser-Swan, 86. N ? ? TAPEDATANCOCK					2	• •
					34-50	53
SUCRAN 5-16-44 Calship, 180. ? ? SUL ROSS 3-45 Houston, 127 ? ? SURPRISE (1) 7-4-42 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (2) 10-27-42 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (3) 5-30-43 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (4) 6-30-43 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (5) 8-12-43 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (7) 4-44 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (7) 4-44 New England, 2213 ? ? SUNAN COLBY 1-18-44 New England, 2213 ? ? SUNANEE 12-441 Federal, 151 ? ? SUNANEE 2-5-43/11-13-43 Sun, 226 N ? TAELE ROCK 2-5-43/11-13-43 Sun, 226 N ? THEDODORE DWORT WELD 3-13-43 Calship, 143 H 44 THEDODORE DROKER (1) 1-24-44 Sulphip, 143 C 43 THEDORE SEDOWICK 1-128-43 <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>21 20</td><td>33</td></td<>					21 20	33
SUL Ross 3-45 Houston, 127. ? ? SURPRISE (1) 7-4-42 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (2) 10-27-42 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (3) 5-30-43 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (5) 8-12-43 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (6) 10-10-43 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (7) 4-44 Sun, 203. ? ? SURPRISE (7) 4-444 Sun, 203. ? ? SUAR Collay 1-18-44 New England, 2213. ? 3 SUWAREE 12-4-41 Federal, 151. ? ? SWAN ISLAND 4-5-45 Kaiser-Swan, 86. N ? Table Rock. 2-5-43/11-13-43 Sun, 226. N ? ? Table Rock. 2-5-43/11-14-44 St. John's, 71. ? ? ? TheoDore Daviont Weld. 3-13-43 Calship, 143. H 44 TheoDore Parker (1). 1-9-44 Calship, 143. H 44				,		2
SURPRISE (1)				, ,	· ·	
SURPRISE (2) 10-27-42 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (3) 6-30-43 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (4) 6-30-43 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (5) 8-12-43 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (6) 10-10-43 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (7) 4-44 Sun, 203 ? ? SURANCE (7) 4-44 Sun, 203					r -	,
SURPRISE (3) 5-30-43 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (4) 6-30-43 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (5) 8-12-43 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (6) 10-10-43 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (7) 4-44 Sun, 203 ? ? SURAN SILAND 1-18-44 New England, 2213 ? ? SUNAN SILAND 4-5-45 Kaiser-Swan, 86 N ? TABLE ROCK 2-5-43/11-13-43 Sun, 226 N ? ? TELPAIR STOCKTON (1) 12-44 St. John's, 71 ? ? ? ? THEODORE PARKER (1) 1-9-44 Calship, 143 C 43 ? ? THEODORE PARKER (2) 3-30-44 Calship, 143 C 43 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1 1</td> <td>2</td>					1 1	2
SURPRISE (4) 6-30-43 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (5) 8-12-43 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (6) 10-10-43 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (7) 4-44 Sun, 203 ? ? SURPRISE (7) 4-44 Sun, 203 ? ? SURAN COLEY 1-18-44 New England, 2213 ? 3 SUWANEL 12-4-41 Federal, 151 ? ? ? TABLE ROCK 4-545 Kaiser-Swan, 86 N ? ? TABLE ROCK 2-5-43/11-13-43 Sun, 226 N ? ? TLELPAIR STOCKTON (1) 12-44 St. John's, 71 ? ? ? THEODORE DWIOHT WELD 3-13-43 Calship, 142 C 53-58 ? THEODORE PARKER (1) 1-9-44 Calship, 143 H 44 THEODORE PARKER (2) 3-30-44 Calship, 143 C 43 THEODORE PARKER (2) 3-30-44 Calship, 143 H 44 THEODORE PARKER (2) 3-45 Jones-Br					4 -	
					1 .	
SURPRISE (6)				,	-	. ,
SURPRISE (7)					i .	
SUBAN COLBY 1-18-44 New England, 2213 ? 3 SUWANNEE 12-441 Federal, 151 ? ? SWAN ISLAND 4-5-45 Kaiser-Swan, 86 N ? TABLE ROCK 4-2-44 Kaiser-Swan, 86 N ? TAPPAHANNOCK 2-5-43/11-13-43 Sun, 226 N ? TELFAIR STOCKTON (1) 12-44 St. John's, 71 ? ? TELFAIR STOCKTON (2) 12-44 St. John's, 71 ? ? THEODORE DWIGHT WELD 3-13-43 Calship, 143 C 53-58 THEODORE DWIGHT WELD 3-13-43 Calship, 143 H 44 THEODORE DARKER (2) 3-30-44 Calship, 143 H 44 THEODORE SEDWICK 11-28-43 Houston, 29 H 55 THOMAS B. KINO 5-26-44 Delta, 47 ? ? ? THOMAS FITZSIMONS (2) 2-4-45 Delta, 47 N 34 THOMAS HOWELL (1) 3-1-4-44 Oregon, 769 H ? THOMAS HOWELL (2) 8-15-44 Delta, 47 N <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>						
SUWANEE. 12-4-41 Federal, 151 ? ? SWAN ISLAND. 4-5-45 Kaiser-Swan, 86. N ? TABLE ROCK. 4-22-44 Kaiser-Swan, 86. N ? TAPPAHANNOCK. 2-5-43/11-13-43 Sun, 226. N ? TAPPAHANNOCK. 2-5-43/11-13-43 Sun, 226. N ? TELFAIR STOCKTON (1) 12-44 St. John's, 71. ? ? TELFAIR STOCKTON (2) 12-44 St. John's, 71. ? ? THEODORE DWIOHT WELD. 3-13-43 Calship, 142. C 53-58 THEODORE PARKER (1) 1-9-44 Calship, 143. H 44 THEODORE PARKER (2) 3-044 Calship, 143. C 43 THEODORE SEDGWICK. 11-28-43 Houston, 29. H 55 THOMAS A. HENDRICKS 6-30-43/7-12-43 Oregen, 689. H ? THOMAS FITZSIMONS (1) 5-26-44 Delta, 47 N 34 THOMAS FITZSIMONS (2) 2-4-45 Delta, 47 N 34 THOMAS HOWEL (1) 3-1-4-44 Oregon, 769. </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>						
Swan Island $4-5-45$ Kaiser-Swan, 86 N?TABLE ROCK. $4-22-44$ Kaiser-Swan, 41 ??TAPPAHANNOCK. $2-5-43/11-13-43$ Sun, 226 N?TelfAIR STOCKTON (1) $12-44$ St. John's, 71 ??TelfAIR STOCKTON (2) $12-44$ St. John's, 71 ??Theodore Dwight Weld $3-13-43$ Calship, 142 C $53-58$ Theodore PARKER (1) $1-9-44$ Calship, 143 H 44 Theodore PARKER (2) $3-30-44$ Calship, 143 H 44 Theodore Sebowtick. $11-28-43$ Houston, 29 H 55 Thomas A. Hendricks $6-30-43/7-12-43$ Oregon, 689 H?Thomas B. Kino $3-45$ Jones-Brunswick, 154 ??Thomas Firzsinons (1) $5-26-44$ Delta, 47 N 34 Thomas Hoker $3-5-43$ New England, 203 H 22 Thomas Hoker $3-5-43$ New England, 203 H 22 Thomas Johnson (1) $2-5-43$ Calship, 84 ??Thomas Johnson (2) $4-14-44$ Oregon, 769 H?Thomas Johnson (3) $5-43$ Calship, 84 ??Thomas Johnson (4) $6-45$ Calship, 84 ??Thomas Johnson (4) $6-29-43$ North Carolina, 86 H 43 Thomas Lonkon (4) $6-29-43$ North Carolina, 86 H 43 <t< td=""><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td>-</td><td>-</td><td>· ·</td></t<>		-		-	-	· ·
TABLE ROCK. $4-22-44$ Kaiser-Swap, 41					-	
Тарраналиоск					1 .	. ,
TELFAIR STOCKTON (1) 12-44 St. John's, 71 ? ? TELFAIR STOCKTON (2) 12-44 St. John's, 71 ? ? THEODORE DWIGHT WELD 3-13-43 Calship, 142 C 53-58 THEODORE DARKER (1) 1-9-44 Calship, 143 H 44 THEODORE PARKER (2) 3-0-44 Calship, 143 H 44 THEODORE SEDGWICK 11-28-43 Houston, 29 H 2 THOMAS A. HENDRICKS 6-30-43/7-12-43 Oregon, 69 H ? THOMAS B. KINO 3-45 Jones-Brunswick, 154 ? ? THOMAS FITZSIMONS (1) 5-26-44 Delta, 47 N 34 THOMAS HOKER 1-30-45/2-1-45 Calship, 177 N ? THOMAS HOWERL (1) 3-14-44 Oregon, 769 H ? THOMAS HOWERL (1) 3-14-44 Oregon, 769 ? ? THOMAS HOWERL (2) 8-15-44 Oregon, 769 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (1) 2-5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (2) 4-14-43			-	,	1 ·	
TELFAIR STOCKTON (2) 12-44 St. John's, 71		-			1 .	2
THEODORE DWIOHT WELD. 3-13-43 Calship, 142. C 53-58 THEODORE PARKER (1). 1-9-44 Calship, 143. H 44 THEODORE PARKER (2). 3-30-44 Calship, 143. H 44 THEODORE PARKER (2). 3-30-44 Calship, 143. C 43 THEODORE SEDOWICK. 11-28-43 Houston, 29. H 55 THOMAS A. HENDRICKS 6-30-43/7-12-43 Oregcn, 689. H ? THOMAS B. KINO. 3-45 Jones-Brunswick, 154. ? ? THOMAS FITZSIMONS (1). 5-26-44 Delta, 47. N 34 THOMAS FITZSIMONS (2). 2-4-45 Delta, 47. N 34 THOMAS HULL 1-30-45/2-1-45 Calship, 177. N ? THOMAS HOWELL (1). 3-14-44 Oregon, 769. H ? THOMAS HOWELL (2). 8-15-44 Oregon, 769. P ? THOMAS JOHNSON (1). 2-5-43 Calship, 84. ? ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (3). 5-43 Calship, 84. ? ? ? ? ? <		· ·			1 .	
THEODORE PARKER (1). $1-9-44$ Calship, 143.H44THEODORE PARKER (2). $3-30-44$ Calship, 143.C43THEODORE SEDOWICK. $11-28-43$ Houston, 29.H55THOMAS A. HENDRICKS $6-30-43/7-12-43$ Oregon, 689.H?THOMAS B. KING. $3-45$ Jones-Brunswick, 154.??THOMAS FITZSIMONS (1). $5-26-44$ Delta, 47.N34THOMAS FITZSIMONS (2). $2-4-45$ Delta, 47.N34THOMAS HILL. $1-30-45/2-1-45$ Calship, 177.N?THOMAS HOKER $3-5-43$ New England, 203.H22THOMAS HOKER $3-14-44$ Oregon, 769.??THOMAS JOHNSON (1). $2-5-43$ Calship, 84.??THOMAS JOHNSON (2). $4-14-43$ Calship, 84.??THOMAS JOHNSON (4). $6-455$ Calship, 84.??THOMAS KEARNS. $5-18-44$ Permanente, 462.??THOMAS L. CLINGMAN $6-29-43$ North Carolina, 86.H43THOMAS LYNCH (1). $12-42$ Alabama, 239.??					· ·	59
THEODORE PARKER (2) 3-30-44 Calship, 143 C 43 THEODORE SEDOWICK 11-28-43 Houston, 29 H 55 THOMAS A. HENDRICKS 6-30-43/7-12-43 Oregon, 689 H ? THOMAS B. KINO 3-45 Jones-Brunswick, 154 ? ? THOMAS FITZSIMONS (1) 5-26-44 Delta, 47				1		54
THEODORE SEDOWICK					•	41
THOMAS A. HENDRICKS 6-30-43/7-12-43 Oregon, 689 H ? THOMAS B. KINO 3-45 Jones-Brunswick, 154 ? ? THOMAS FITZSIMONS (1) 5-26-44 Delta, 47 ? ? THOMAS FITZSIMONS (2) 2-4-45 Delta, 47 N 34 THOMAS HILL 1-30-45/2-1-45 Calship, 177 N ? THOMAS HOOKER 3-5-43 New England, 203 H ? THOMAS HOWELL (1) 3-1-4-44 Oregon, 769 H ? THOMAS JOHNSON (1) 2-5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (2) 4-14-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (2) 4-14-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (3) 5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (4) 6-45 Calship, 84 ? ? ? THOMAS LORING (4) 6-45 Calship, 84 ? ? ? THOMAS LORING (4) 6-45 Calship, 84 ? ? ? THOMAS LORING (4) <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td>?</td></t<>				-		?
THOMAS B. KINO			Oregon, 689			2
THOMAS FITZSIMONS (1) 5-26-44 Delta, 47 ? ? THOMAS FITZSIMONS (2) 2-4-45 Delta, 47 N 34 THOMAS HILL 1-30-45/2-1-45 Calship, 177 N ? THOMAS HONRER 3-5-43 New England, 203 H 22 THOMAS HOWELL (1) 3-1-4-44 Oregon, 769 H ? THOMAS JOHNSON (1) 2-5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (2) 4-14-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (3) 5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (4) 6-45 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS LORNSON (4) 6-45 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS LUNCON (4) 6-45 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS LUNCAN 6-45 Calship, 84 ? ? ? THOMAS LUNCANN 6-29-43 North Carolina, 86 H 43 THOMAS LYNCH (1) 12-42 Alabama, 239 ? ? ?		•				?
THOMAS FITZSIMONS (2) 2-4-45 Delta, 47 N 34 THOMAS HILL 1-30-45/2-1-45 Calship, 177 N ? THOMAS HORER 3-5-43 New England, 203 H 22 THOMAS HOWELL (1) 3-1-4-44 Oregon, 769 H ? THOMAS JOHNSON (1) 2-5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (2) 4-14-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (3) 5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (4) 6-45 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS LUBER 5-18-44 Permanente, 462 ? ? THOMAS LUBER 6-29-43 North Carolina, 86 H 43 THOMAS LYNCH (1) 12-42 Alabama, 239 ? ?				1	1	?
THOMAS HILL 1-30-45/2-1-45 Calship, 177 N ? THOMAS HOORER 3-5-43 New England, 203 H 22 THOMAS HOWELL (1) 3-1-4-44 Oregon, 769 H ? THOMAS HOWELL (2) 8-15-44 Oregon, 769 H ? THOMAS JOHNSON (1) 2-5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (2) 4-14-43 Calship, 84 H ? THOMAS JOHNSON (3) 5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (4) 6-45 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS L. CLINOMAN 5-18-44 Permanente, 462 ? ? THOMAS L. CLINOMAN 6-29-43 North Carolina, 86 H 43 THOMAS L.YNCH (1) 12-42 Alabama, 239 ? ?		· ·	Delta, 47			40
THOMAS HOOKER 3-5-43 New England, 203 H 22 THOMAS HOWELL (1) 3-1-4-44 Oregon, 769 H ? THOMAS HOWELL (2) 8-15-44 Oregon, 769 P ? THOMAS JOHNSON (1) 2-5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (2) 4-14-43 Calship, 84 P ? THOMAS JOHNSON (3) 5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (4) 6-45 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS KEARNS. 5-18-44 Permanente, 462 ? ? THOMAS L. CLINOMAN 6-29-43 North Carolina, 86 H 43 THOMAS LYNCH (1). 12-42 Alabama, 239 ? ?						?
THOMAS HOWELL (1) 3-1-4-44 Oregon, 769. H ? THOMAS HOWELL (2) 8-15-44 Oregon, 769. ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (1) 2-5-43 Calship, 84. ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (2) 4-14-43 Calship, 84. H ? THOMAS JOHNSON (3) 5-43 Calship, 84. ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (4) 6-45 Calship, 84. ? ? THOMAS KEARNS. 5-18-44 Permanente, 462. ? ? THOMAS L. CLINOMAN 6-29-43 North Carolina, 86. H 43 THOMAS LYNCH (1). 12-42 Alabama, 239. ? ?		•				38
THOMAS HOWELL (2)					1	?
THOMAS JOHNSON (1) 2-5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (2) 4-14-43 Calship, 84 H ? THOMAS JOHNSON (3) 5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (3) 5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (4) 6-45 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS KEARNS 5-18-44 Permanente, 462 ? ? THOMAS L. CLINOMAN 6-29-43 North Carolina, 86 H 43 THOMAS LYNCH (1) 12-42 Alabama, 239 ? ?				1	i -	. ?
THOMAS JOHNSON (2) 4-14-43 Calship, 84 H ? THOMAS JOHNSON (3) 5-43 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (4) 6-45 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS JOHNSON (4) 6-45 Calship, 84 ? ? THOMAS KEARNS 5-18-44 Permanente, 462 ? ? THOMAS L. CLINOMAN 6-29-43 North Carolina, 86 H 43 THOMAS LYNCH (1) 12-42 Alabama, 239 ? ?				1	1	. ?
THOMAS JOHNSON (3)			Calship, 84	1		, ,
THOMAS JOHNSON (4)	THOMAS JOHNSON (3)					
THOMAS KEARNS. 5-18-44 Permanente, 462			Calship. 84.		1	2
THOMAS L. CLINGMAN 6-29-43 North Carolina, 86 Н 43 THOMAS LYNCH (1) 12-42 Alabama, 239 ? ?			Permanente, 462		· ·	2
Тномаз Lynch (1)? 12-42 Alabama, 239????					1 -	70
						2
12^{-4} Alabama, 259	Тномая Lynch (2).	12-43	Alabama, 239.	?	65	68

A.,

.....

.

۲

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey,	Builder and hull no.	Sea condition		rature rees nheit
	or Report			Air	Water
THOMA. MACDONOUGH	11-14-42	Orcgon, 182	Н	?	2
THOMAS PAINE.	6-8-44	Calship, 2	?	34	61
THOMAS PINCKNEY	5-5-44	North Carolina, 32	?	64-81	65
THOMAS R. MARSHALL (1).	2-18-43/3-5-43	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2083	н	?	?
THOMAS R. MARSHALL (2)	2-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2083.	N	67-68	66-67
Тномая Scoti (1)	12-21-42	Delta, 14	н	62	70
Тномая Scott (2)	3-44	Delta, 14	?	2	?
THOMAS SIM LEE (1)	8-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2071	?	?) >
THOMAS SIM LEE (2)	1-45	Bethlchem-Fairfield, 2071.	?	?	?
THOMAS SIM LEE (3)	3-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2071	N	?	>
THOMAS SIM LEC (4)	4-15-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2071	N	48	34
THOMAS STONE	3-30-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2014.	?	?	58
Тномая Sumter (1)	3-2-4-43	North Carolina, 10	Н	24	34
THOMAS SUMTER (2)	2-19-44	North Carolina, 10	N	11-36	34
THOMAS W. GREGORY	3-13-44	Houston, 89	Н	?	?
THOMAS W. OWEN	1-44	North Carolina, 177	?	?	?
Тномряон Lykes (1)	5-11-44	Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4346	?	?	?
Тномрзон Lykes (2)	6-44	Bethlchem-Sparrows, 4346.	Н	?	?
TICONDEROGA (1)	3-5-44	Sun, 268	н	42	34
TICONDEROGA (2)	6-16-44	Sun, 268	?	?	?
TICONDEROGA (3)	11-1-21-44	Sun, 268	?	?	?
Тиламоок (1)	6-15-44	Kaiser-Swan, 48	?	86	85
Тиламоок (2)	9-1-21-44	Kaiser-Swan, 48	?	?	?
TOBIAS E. STANSBURY	8-20-45	Delta, 69	?	?	?
Tomas Guardia	12-27-44	Todd-Houston, 147	N	23	36
TRADE WIND (1)	4-28-43	Moore, 216	?	58	?
TRADE WIND (2)	2-3-44	Moore, 216	N	?	?
TUMACACORI	3-45	Kaiser-Swan, 68	?	?	?
TURKEY ISLAND	12-44	Sun, 420	н	?	?
Valeri Chkalov	12-11-43	Permanente, 481	Н	29-36	?
VAN LEAR BLACK	2-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2313	Н	?	?
Vera Cruz (1)	3-23-44	Sun, 253	?	?	?
Vera Cruz (2)	6-45	Sun, 253	?	?	?
VERNON L. KELLOGG	2-5-44	Calship, 224	Н	52	63
VICTOR HERBERT (1)	1-30-44	Jones-Panama, 14	н	20	?
VICTOR HERBERT (2)	5-5-44	Jones-Panama, 14	?	?	?
VIRGINIA (1)	6-3-43	Welding Shipyard, 11	5	2	?
VIRGINIA (2)	4-44/6-44	Welding-Shipyard, 11	н	?	?
VIRGINIA DARE.	12-42	North Carolina, 3	?	?	?
VITUS BERING	4-20-44	Permanente, 463	?	?	?
W. P. Few	6-1-45	Jones-Brunswick, 148	?	?	?
W. R. GRACE	9-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2245	?	?	?
W. W. Atterbury	8-30-43	Detroit, 179	н	47	50
WAGON BOX	3-1-8-45	Alabama, 262	?	?	?
WALKER D. HINES	12 11-15-44	Delta, 122	н	55	74
WALLACE E. PRATT	2-43	Sun, 161	?	?	?
WALLOWA	3-45	Kaiser-Swan, 42	?	?	?
WALT WHITMAN	11-43	Oregon, 232	?	47	60
WALTER E. RANGER	6-5-45	South Portland, 259	С	68	61
WALTER FORWARD	1-45	Oregon, 626	N	51-60	66-69
WALTER HINES PAGE (1)	12-23-43	North Carolina, 90	H	33	54
WALTER HINES PAGE (2).	4-44	North Carolina, 90	н	?	?
WALTER RALEIGH (1)	3-10-44	North Carolina, 55	?	2038	39
WALTER RALLIGH (2)	6-13-44	North Carolina, 55	?	71-91	76

22 K

20

129

-

- -

.

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vesici	Date of Casualty, Survey	Builder and hull no.	Sea condition	Tempe Degi Farhe	rees .
	or Report		condition	Air	Water
WARRIOR (1)	4-12-14-44	Gulf, 10	Н	61	56
WARRIOR (2)	1-27-45	Gulf, 10	1	32	47
WASHINGTON ALLSTON	3-7-8-44	New England, 2217		?	2
WAYNE MACVEAGH.	12-16-44	Permanente, 2142		?	2
WEBB MILLER	2-17-44	New England, 2205		?	2
Wellesley	5-13-44/6-1-44	Bethlehem-Sparrows, 4389	N	50-75	54-76
WHITE OAK (1)	3-13-20-44	Kaiser-Swan, 31		?	?
WHITE OAK (2)	6-20-44	F.aiser-Swan, 31		?	2
WHITE PLAINS.	8-43	Sun, 265		?	2
WHITE RIVER	8-44	Alabama, 274		?	2
WILBUR WRIGHT.	5-25-44	Permanente, 1101		?	2
WILLIAM A. GRAHAM.	2-21-43	North Carolina, 16		2	
WILLIAM A. HENRY (1)	6-1-23-44	Oregon, 817		?	2
WII LIAM A. HENRY (2)	9-25-44	Oregon, 817		76	66
WILLIAM BLACK YATES (1)	12-28-43	Southeastern, 24		34	35
WILLIAM BLACK YATES (2)	2-28-44	Southeastern, 24		?	?
WILLIAM BLACK YATES (3)	3-30-44/4-10-44	Southeastern, 24		?	
WILLIAM BLOUNT	5-43	Delta, 27		79	79
WILLIAM BRADFORD (1)	1-5-6-43	South Portland, 208		?	2
WILLIAM BREWSTER (1)	12-30-42	South Portland, 209		30	
WILLIAM BREWSTER (2)	1-21-43	South Portland, 209		?	
WILLIAM BYRD	10-43	St. John's, 11		?	
WILLIAM CARSON (1)	12-13-43	Calship, 165	н	2	
WILLIAM CARSON (2)	4-10-15-44	Calship, 165.		?	
WILLIAM CODDINGTON	4-12-44	Rheem, 1		2	
WILLIAM CUSHING.	3-29-45	Permanente, 496		47	51
WILLIAM D. MOSELEY	1-28-45	North Carolina, 73	1	11-20	9-25
WILLIAM D. PENDER (1)	3-15-43	North Carolina, 72.	ĉ	?	
WILLIAM D. PENDER (2)	1-20-45	North Carolina, 72	-		
WILLIAM DEAN HOWELLS.	2-45	Permanente, 489		2	
WILLIAM E. BORAH.	1-28-44	Orcgon, 614		2	
WILLIAM E. PENDLETON (1)	10-5-43	Delta, 72		2	2
WILLIAM E. PENDLETON (2)	2-16-44	Delta, 72		2	
WILLIAM E. PENDLETON (3)	6-2-45	Delta, 72	N	62	73
WILLIAM F. CODY.	2-44	Calship, 50		?	?
WILLIAM FEW (1)		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2059	?	42	
WILLIAM G. FARGO (1)	11-43	Calship, 160	2	2	
WILLIAM G. FARGO (2)	4-20-44	Calship, 160	?	?	
WILLIAM H. ASPINWALL.	7-6-44	Permanente, 521	н	2	. ?
WILLIAM H. CRAWFORD	5-5-43	Houston, 40	1	?	?
WILLIAM H. GRAY		Oregon, 687		?	
WILLIAM H. McGuffey		Oregon, 672		49	52
WILLIAM H. PRESCOTT (1)		Calship, 48	?	?	?
WILLIAM H. PRESCOTT (2)	2-1-44	Calship, 48		52	50
WILLIAM H. SEWARD	3-20-43	Oregon, 562	N	84	81
WILLIAM II. WILMER		Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2109.	H	2	2
WILLIAM HARPER		Delta, 32		62	56
WILLIAM HAWKINS (1)		North Carolina, 31	н Н	202	50
WILLIAM HAWKINS (2)	3-8-9-44	North Carolina, 31		?	
WILLIAM ITAWKINS (2)		Calship, 161	л ?	2	
WILLIAM JAMES (1)			4	2	
WILLIAM JAMES (2)		Calship, 161 Todd-Houston, 192	H	, r ,	
WILLIAM K. KAMAKA					1 .
- ************************************	10-31-43	Calship, 113		50	56 54

· • • •

...

Casualties Reported Up to 1 August 1945

Vessel	Date of Casualty, Survey or Report	Builder and bull no.	Sca condition	Temperature Degrees Fabrenbeit	
				Air	Water
WILLIAM L. MARGY (3)	1-12-44	Calship, 113	H	38	51
WILLIAM L. MARCY (4)	3-4-44	Calship, 113	?	5	?
WILLIAM L. MARCY (5)	4-44	Calship, 113	н	?	7
WILLIAM L. SMITH (1)	3–43	Houston, 36	н	?	2
WILLIAM L. SMITH (2)	4-5-43	Houston, 36	н	33	48
WILLIAM M. EASTLAND (1)	3-44	Houston, 109	н	?	} ?
WILLIAM M. EASTLAND (2)	11-44	Houston, 109	2	?	?
WILLIAM M. MEREDITH	3-5-44	Oregon, 630	C	34	35
WILLIAM M. RAYBURN	9-44	Houston, 91	?	?	2
WILLIAM MACLAY	2-43	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2034	н	47-60	66-72
WILLIAM MOULTRIB (1)	4-43	North Carolina, 9	?	55-65	68-74
WILLIAM MOULTRIE (2)	i-14-27-44	North Carolina, 9	н	40-50	40
WILLIAM MULHOLLAND (1)	5-7-9-43	Calship, 102	н	?	?
WILLIAM MULHOLLAND (2)	3-10-44	Calship, 102	?	64-68	69-71
WILLIAM MULHOLLAND (3)	5-29-44	Calship, 102	C	62	66
WILLIAM P. DUVAL	5-45	Jones-Panama, 60	?	?	5
WILLIAM PATTERSON (1)	3-30-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2035	N	35	42
WILLIAM PATTERSON (2)	4-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2035	?	?	58
WILLIAM PEPPER.	10-44	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2124		?	2
WILLIAM PHIPS	3-3-44	New England, 268	?	?	?
WILLIAM R. DAY	1-45	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2091	?	?	} ?
WILLIAM S. ROSECRANS	4-17-43	Oregon, 570		43-51	42
WILLIAM T. BARRY	6-8-14-45	North Carolina, 164	C	67-79	58-59
WILLIAM T. COLEMAN (1)	4-44	Marinship, 2	н	?	?
WILLIAM T. COLEMAN (2)	8-1-44	Marinship, 2	?	?	?
WILLIAM T. SHERMAN	12-27-42	Oregon, 600	н	?	5
WILLIAM W. LORING	444	Jones-Panama, 28	H	?	?
VILLIAM WILKINS	3-44	Houston, 47	?	?	?
WILLIAM WIRT	3-12-43	Bethlehem-Fairfield, 2037	н	?] ?
Wilson P. Hunt (1)	12-43	Oregon, 701	?	?	2
WILSON P. Hunt (2)	1-14-44	Oregon, 701	н	34	7
WINFIELD SCOTT.	1-3-44	Houston, 4	Н	?	47
WINSLOW HOMER	8-43	South Portland, 253	?	71-84	84
WOOD LAKE	8-1-17-44	Alabama, 275	?	?	2
WYOMING VALLEY	12-1-8-44	Alabama, 271	?	?	?
Y 38	7-44	Odenbach, 13	?	?] ?
Y 42	7-44	Odenbach, 17		?	} ?
ZANE GREY	4-45	Sun, 120		?	?
ZONA GALE.	1-29-44	Calship, 222	н	?	2

**

- -

*
FINAL REPORT

١

Board to Investigate the Design and Methods of Construction of Welded Steel Merchant Vessels.

EXHIBIT II

Summary of Research Investigations

1 May 1946

--- -

Report RESEARCH ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Introduction

As a result of structural failures in welded ships, numerous research investigations were started at the instigation of the Board convened 20 April 1943 by the Secretary of the Navy to investigate the design and methods of construction of welded steel merchant vessels, and by other governmental and private agencies to determine the relative importance of the various factors thought to contribute to these failures.

The several research investigations which have been undertaken to determine the cause, or causes, of failure in welded steel ships may be classified as follows:

- 1. DESIGN
- 2. FABRICATION
- 3. MATERIALS

The Board appointed a Research Advisory Committee to take cognizance of, coordinate and evaluate all research work which was considered to have a bearing on the problem. The following report presents the results of the Committee's activity.

1. Design

a. GENERAL

Although static structural tests made on riveted ships prior to the advent of welding in shipbuilding had confirmed the general validity of the basic analytical methods used in calculating the stresses in the main hull girder, there were several factors involved which were considered sufficiently significant to justify making similar experiments on welded ships. These factors included: the possibility that there might be a difference in the overall behavior between riveted and welded construction as affected particularly by the differences in rigidity and geometry of riveted and welded joints; the fact that photoelectric studies showed appreciable stress concentration at hatch corners where so many cracks occurred on Liberty ships; and the further fact that modern developments of strain gages made possible the measurement of highly localized strains and the determination of unusual stress distributions that might not have been discovered in previous experiments.

The desirability of subjecting welded ships to the static structural test received further impetus from the large number of hull structural failures recorded particularly during the winters of 1942-43 and 1943-44. These failures were not limited to any one type of vessel, but occurred in ore carriers and tankers, as well as dry cargo vessels, particularly Liberty ships.

b. STRENGTH OF THE MAIN HULL GIRDER

Outstanding examples of the static structural tests carried out on rivited ships were those of the $Wolf^{a,1}$, $Cuyama,^2$ Preston and Bruce.³ These ships were all of the naval destroyer type with the exception of the Cuyama which was a Navy tanker. None of these vessels had a structure comparable to that of the usual merchant cargo vessel, and all except the Cuyama were of relatively light scantlings with thin plating. No similar data appeared to be available for vessels of the merchant type.

In the investigation to determine the structural behavior of welded ships, at least a dozen vessels of several types have been subjected to the static structural test. Among the vessels thus tested were the Great Lakes ore carriers Cadillac, John Hutchinson, Champlain, Frank Purnell,⁴ the Liberty ship Philip Schuyler⁵ and the T2 tanker Shiloh.⁶

These static structural tests of welded ships under known bending loads, particularly that of the *Philip Schuyler*,⁵ have yielded the following important results:

- i. The internal resisting moment computed from measured strains agreed with the applied bending moment.
- ii. The longitudinal stresses in the side shell were proportional to the distance from the neu ral axis.

•Reference number listed in Bibliography.

- iii. The longitudinal stresses in the deck and bottom shell were not uniform but the mean value closely approximated the theoretical nominal stress. The causes of these nonuniformities were variations in restraint and shirking of load caused by buckling of the plating.
- iv. A torsional moment applied to a Liberty ship produced only negligible stresses. The applied torque was approximately twice the value believed to be encountered at sea⁷.
- v. Tests on ore carriers where a welded and a riveted structure were present in each ship indicated a similar stress distribution in the two types of structure.
- vi. A test showed that the Liberty ship deck house contributed very little to the overall hull strength.

c. HULL STRUCTURAL DETAILS

For operational reasons, it is necessary to introduce into the ship's hull numerous openings, erections, foundations and so on. At every point where such a structural discontinuity is introduced, uniform straining of the material under a bending load is interrupted and concentrations result.

Until the short base length (less than 1 inch) strain gage became available, experimental measurements of strain concentrations in ships were not possible. The need for accurate determination of concentrations was not as great in the riveted ship as in the welded ship. The monolithic character of the welded ship resulting from the method of fabrication can produce joints, particularly at structural discontinuities, that have high stress concentrations and severe restraint, thereby tending to inhibit plastic flow. This condition did not exist generally in the riveted ship. The danger of high corcentrations at points of structural liscontinuities in the welded ship is further aggravated by welding usually present at such points. Welding produces a complex metallurgical condition hich is supplemented by the existence of locked-in stresses and this is frequently further aggravated by additional discontinuities in the form of defects ir the weld. That stress concentrations of dangerous magnitude actually exist at structural discontinuities in welded ships has been amply demonstrated by the numerous fractures that started at such points, e.g., hatch corners, sheer strake cut-outs, defective welds, etc., and frequently propagated through the hull structure, thereby endangering the ship. Based on these considerations, the need for determining experimentally the magnitude of concentrations at structural discontinuities in welded ships and studying how these concentrations might be reduced became increasingly apparent.

The static structural tests of the Liberty ship *Philip Schuyler⁵* and the T2 Talkers Ventura Hills,⁸ Fort Mifflin⁹ and Antelope Hills²⁵ included measurements to evaluate concentrations. Most of the data on concentrations were obtained through the use of short base length electric strain gages at almost the very point of maximum concentration. Some important results regarding concentrations were as follows:

- i. Stress measurements made in the plane of the deck 2 inches forward or aft and 2 inches outboard on the Liberty ship square hatch corner gave arcss concentration factors not exceeding 2.0 with transverse stresses equal to about onequarter of the principal value. Stress concentration factors on the fillet weld inside the square hatch corner at deck level were approximately 3.0.
- ii. Stress concentration factors at the inside radius of the rounded hatch corners of a Liberty ship at deck level were of the order of 2.0. (A stress concentration of 3.4 was found in a similar corner at sea under dynamic conditions.)
- iii. Under an alternating bending moment of low amplitude, the elastic strain concentration factors at the inside of the Liberty ship hatch openings at deck level were practically independent of the type of corner reinforcement and were of the order of 2.5. Approximately the same strain concentration was recorded when the maximum hogging bending moment was relaxed in the static test.
- iv. The concentration factors given in paragraphs i, ii, and iii, above refer to elastic conditions. Stress concentration factors are used except in cases where the transverse strains were not measured, thus making it impossible to convert strain to stress, in which cases strain concentrations are used. When plastic deformations occur, the ratio of peak to average strain

may have quite a different value. The behavior of typical structural details under plastic conditions needs much more extended study, but it appears that the main superiority of rounded over square hatch corners lies in their capacity for distributing the plastic action over a greater extent of metal, thereby reducing the local peak values of strain. (The rounded corners also have a similar distributing action in the elastic range.)

- v. Measurements made at a point 3¼ inches away from the round hatch openings in the deck of a T2 tanker, gave a stress concentration factor of approximately 2.0.
- vi. Appreciable stresses have been found in the material not normally considered part of the main hull strength girder such as the plating between hatches, hatch coamings and deck houses. These stresses reached values equal to those in the main hull girder immediately adjacent to the line of attachment.
- vii. In the case of the superstructure of the T2 tankers, the stresses at various points in the fashion plate at the after end of the mid-ship deck house were comparable in magnitude to the stresses in the main deck amidships.
- viii. Longitudinal stresses in the hatch coaming of the order of those in the strength deck were found near the ends of the hatch coaming on a Liberty ship and on an ore carrier.
- ix. On the longitudinal bulkheads of the T2 tankers points of stress concentration existed where the center portion of the sloping faces of the corrugated bulkheads crossed the web of their vertical T-bars. Strains were measured 2 inches away from the intersection in question. A stress concentration factor of 2.0 was found, relative to the stress computed by analytical methods. Reinforcing brackets tried on one installation to relieve this condition indicated that the brackets reduced the stress intensity by approximately 40 percent. Transition plates tapering the bottom corrugation into the line of the web reduced the stress intensity at the lowest point of concentration by approximately 25 percent.

2. Fabrication

a. RESIDUAL WELDING STRESSES

Residual welding stresses are defined as the welding stresses produced in unrestrained members.

It was the considered opinion of the majority of technical shipbuilding personnel in the spring of 1943 that a prime factor causing the failure of welded ships was the existence of stresses locked in the hull structure, particularly in the welds and adjacent material. This opinion was based on the occurrence of cracks in welds made under high restraint and when the proper sequence had not been followed. The cause of these cracks was believed to be high residual stresses resulting from the welding operation. It was also believed that such high residual stresses were present to a degree in all welds and when they were combined with the working stresses of the ship, hull fractures resulted. For this reason, it was considered highly important that a prescribed welding sequence be followed in order to avoid, or at least minimize, residual stresses. In consequence, when this research program was started, emphasis was placed on a study of welding stresses.

In the investigation to determine the magnitude and distribution of residual stresses in typical ship weldments and actual ship subassemblies, a method of relaxing steel plugs, with and without welds, to which were affixed resistance wire strain gages was developed. Weldments consisting of 1 inch thick ship plates ranging in size from panels 4 feet x 6 feet to ship subassemblies 27 feet x 57 feet were investigated^{12,13}. The magnitude and distribution of residual stresses were determined as a function of such variables as: manual and submerged melt welding;14 welding sequences12,13,14,15; electrode13,16,17,18,19,20; restraint (1/4 inch and 1/2 inch plates were also investigated)^{14,15,19,29,21,22}; preheat^{14,15}; peening^{13,15}; mechanical loading along a butt weld;13 and controlled low temperature st.ess relief^{13,15}. Some salient results from these investigations were:

> i. The magnitude and general pattern of the residual welding stresses existing in very large weldments (up to 27 feet x 57 feet) can be obtained in panels as small as 4 feet x 6 feet. These stresses were sufficiently reproducible either in Unionmelt or manual welding to enable significant effects of different controlled variables to be determined. In butt welds of free sub

assemblies, the longitudinal residual stresses along the center line of the weld reached a magnitude of approximately 47,000 p. s. i. in tension throughout the length of the weld except in the 9 inches adjacent to each end where they decreased to zerc at the ends. The transverse residual stresses were low tension (usually less than 10,000 p. s. i.) except near the ends of the weld where they changed to compression, reaching values of from 20,000 to 30,000 p. s. i. at the very ends.

- ii. Residual stresses in the welds of *free* subassemblies were generally not affected by the welding procedure or assembly sequence used. The above must not be construed to mean that proper welding and erection sequences are not important in fabrication as serious difficulties with weld cracking and distortion may occur if these are disregarded.
- iii. It has been found that residual welding stresses can be relieved by the application of external load causing plastic flow of the weld metal and adjacent area. The same effect may be obtained in simple buttwelded joints with the plastic flow produced by thermal rather than mechanical methods; the effectiveness of this process in reducing the stress in complex joints has not so far been demonstrated.
- iv. Peening the last pass of the welds will materially reduce the magnitude of residual welding stresses. On the basis of investigations performed, it does not appear that peening other passes than the last will effect reductions of final residual stresses. However, general experience has shown that peening intermediate and root passes is helpful in preventing weld cracking and in controlling distortion.
- v. Preheating ship steel up to 375°F. does not reduce residual welding stresses significantly.
- **b. LOCKED-IN STRESSES**

Locked-in stresses include residual welding stresses and the stresses resulting from other fabrication and assembly processes.

As a result of the fabrication of ships by welding, it was believed that high stresses could be locked into the structure generally. It was suggested that this was due to temperature differences existing when subassemblies were joined to the hull structure and/or to abnormal assembly sequences. The occasional ship containing such high locked-in stresses was then thought to present a case of potential structural failure. Accordingly, a research program was initiated to investigate locked-in stresses in the decks of a large number of ships.

The above program included. stress determinations in the decks of recently completed Liberty ships and several that had been in service^{23a,23b,23c}; the history of the changes of the locked-in stresses starting from completed deck subassemblies and tracing these stresses through construction, launching, outfitting, loading, as well as during the first voyage of two Liberty ships;²⁴ the effect of the static structural test on the locked-in stresses in three type T2 tankers^{25,26}; the stress effects due to temperature gradients through the hull structure;²⁷ the magnitude and distribution of locked-in stresses in the decks of 21 Victory ships constructed in three Pacific Coast yards;²⁸ the stresses produced by welding a large hot deck subassembly into a cooler hull structure;²⁹ and the use of X-ray diffraction measurements for determining stresses in hot rolled plate^{30,31}. Some important results of these studies were:

> i. Stresses at selected points in the deck welds of completed Liberty ships^b were determined.^c Longitudinally along the welds, these stresses were tensile and ranged from 20,000 to 50,000 p.s.i. with an average value of 36,000 p.s. i. Stresses transverse to the welds reached a maximum value of 11,000 p.s. i. in tension with an average value very close to zero. It was also determined that the stresses were not reduced appreciably in service. Therefore, it was concluded that high locked-in stresses were present in all welded ships. It was also concluded that locked-in stresses did not contribute materially to the failure of welded ships.

ii. The locked-in stresses in the fore and aft ^bThe computed tensile deck stresses resulting from the existing bending moments were essentially the same in all tests and ranged from 2,200 p. s. i. to 4,700 p. s. i. with an average value of 3,400 p. s. i.

"It should be noted that it is impossible with present strain gage techniques to determine locked-in stresses at structural discontinuities, e.g. hatch corners.

138

direction at selected points (away from welds) in the deck area abreast of No. 3 hatch of completed Liberty and Victory ships were found to be generally compressive. The ship: having riveted gunwales had higher compressive stresses than those having welded gunwales. In the Victory ships these locked-in stresses ranged from 8,800 p. s. i. in tension to 16,600 p. s. i. in compression. Locked-in stresses near the gunwale of completed Victory ships were generally tensile and reached a maximum value of 5,900 p. s i. Higher values of locked-in tensile stresses were observed at other locations in the deck.

iii. Welding a large section (14 feet x 55 feet) into the deck of a Liberty ship with no temperature difference between the section and the deck resulted in a general increase in stress of about 5,000 p.s.i. Welding a large section (14 feet x 55 feet) into the deck of a Liberty ship with the section approximately $75^{\circ}\Gamma$. warmer than the deck resulted in a maximum increase of 15,000 p. s. i. These experiments were conducted using an unorthodox welding sequence selected to produce high stresses. The initial locked-in deck stresses (based on an estimated tensile deck stress resulting from the bending moment) determined at selected points abreast of No. 3 hatch ranged from 700 p. s. i. in tension to 6,700 p. s. i. in compression.

c. ADDITIONAL ASPECTS OF WELDING

Large welded structures have been fabricated and tested, and the effect of such variables as electrodes, preheat and postheat was studied. A detailed discussion is included in the section covering "materials."

An investigation of the cracking tendency of commercial E-6010 electrodes deposited under high restraint disclosed considerable variation within the applicable specifications.²⁰

3. Materials

a. FUNDAMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING STEEL BEHAVIOR

The incidence of serious failures of large welded steel structures both during service and in construction has resulted in the need for a better understanding of the fundamental factors affecting steel performance. Lack of reliable information in this field has led designers to over-design in the interest of safety, a procedure which in many cases enhances the possibility of failure.

At the present time the mechanism of metal fracture is not well understood^{32,32}. Since some plastic deformation, even though highly localized, usually precedes fracture even in the case of cleavage or socalled "brittle" fractures of structures, a full understanding of the phenomenon of flow is essential in considering the fracture problem. Perhaps the best theory yet formulated involves the concepts of resistance to flow and resistance to fracture;³⁴ the theory postulates that if the stress required for fracture is greater than that required for flow, plastic deformation will occur; conversely, if the stress required for flow is greater than that required for fracture, rupture will take place. Flow may terminate in either shear or cleavage separation with the former characterized by high ductility, a fibrous or silky appearing fracture generally at 45° to the direction of applied load, and high energy absorption; and the latter by relatively low ductility, a granular or crystalline appearing fracture generally normal to the direction of applied load and in most cases low energy absorption. Cleavage fracture may occur, and often does, after appreciable flow; the term refers to a mode of separation and is not intended to apply only to completely brittle fracture without measurable deformation, although this case is obviously included.

It is to be emphasized that resistance to flow and resistance to fracture are extremely complex quantities influenced by a number of factors, the interrelationship of which is at present unknown.

The principal factors which must be considered in attempts to explain the low ductility (notch sensitivity) of structures fabricated from medium steel of the type used in ship construction may be conveniently listed as follows:

State of Stress-Constraint

Temperature

Velocity-Strain Rate

Metallurgy

Factors influencing the state of stress are.

- (1) Configuration of the structure;
- (2) Size of the structure;
- (3) The presence of discontinuities, i.e., notches incidental to the structure;
- (4) Locked-in stresses;
- (5) System of applied loads-static or dynamic.

Combinations of these factors which produce a high degree of restraint are usually associated with low ductility. Lo. ering the temperature for a given set of conditions increases the probability for brittle fracture. Increasing the strain rate for a given set of conditions has been found to increase the tendency for brittle fracture. Recent studies have indicated a probable relationship between temperature and strain rate^{35,36}.

The phenomena listed above may be classified under the general heading "mechanical."

The following factors may be considered under the general heading "metallurgy":

- (1) Prior deformation and resulting stress and strain anisotropy;
- (2) Cyclic loading-fatigue;
- (3) Composition:
 - a. Structure-grain size and the distribution and size of disperse phases;
 - b. Solid solution effects-including those produced by gases;
- (4) Precipitation phenomena such as strain aging;
- (5) Corrosion effects.

The metallurgical and mechanical factors must be considered together in attempting to explain the sudden failure of large struc "res. The complexity of the situation becomes evident when all of the above variables are considered in combination.

b. EXPERIMENTAL INVESTIGATIONS AND RESULTS

Based in part on the results of the investigations lealing with welding stresses, it became apparent that these stresses well not the important factors contributing to structural failures. In consequence, it was evident that the research investigations should cover other phases of the problem.

A random selection of a substantial number of steel samples was made from the stock and scrap piles of shipyards constructing merchant vessels. In addition numerous samples were submitted by steel mills from heats rolled to ABS and USN specifications. 1,588 tensile tests from these samples showed that the physical properties of practically all the steel tested fell within the permissible range set forth in the specification standards. These tests, however, do not take cognizance of the selection methods set forth in the specification and all of the steel may therefore be considered to be in satisfactory compliance with the specification standards. Upon review of the brittle characteristics of the fractured material removed from ships that had failed, questions regarding the stress conditions to which this material has been subjected were raised. It was felt that the hull steel must have been subjected to a complex multiaxial state of stress since shear flow had been inhibited as manifested by the low degree of ductility in way of the fracture. When steel samples removed from areas close to these fractures were subjected to the standard tensile tests, they exhibited satisfactory strength and ductility.

Large welded and unwelded medium steel flat plates and welded joints simulating the gunwale connection of ships have been tested in tension. Such specimens have exhibited tensile strengths equal to or slightly higher than coupon values for the same steels with moderate reductions in ductility^{37,38,39}. These tests also indicated that cleavage fractures could be preceded by considerable plastic deformation.

As a result of the above investigations, it became apparent that it was not possible to reproduce ship failures by uniaxially loading large welded tensile specimens free from stress raisers. Therefore, an experimental program involving uniform biaxial loading was initiated. Tubes with and without welds were subjected to biaxial tensile loads at various temperatures^{40,41,42,43,44}. These tubes contained no mechanical notches. Two sizes of tubes made from the same heat of semi-killed steel were tested and the following results have been obtained:

- i. At room temperature it was found that the smaller tubes (3½ inches diameter x ¼ inch wall) predicted generally the behavior of larger tubes (20 inches in diameter x ¾ inch wall), but at low temperature (-40°F) this was not the case.
- ii. The larger tubes (all of which were welded) tested at low temperature showed great reduction in strength and ductility when compared with results from the standard tensile test. This lack of ductility at -40° F was comparable to that found in fractured ships.
- iii. A large tube, furnace treated at $1,100^{\circ}$ F after welding and tested at -40° F, showed a significant increase in strength and ductility over a similar tube tested at the same stress ratio and temperature but *not* heat treated after welding.

Supplementing the investigation on the large tubes and, in part, to explain certain experimental difficulties of this investigation, a test program was started involving the static bending of flat plates at various temperatures with and without longitudinal weld bead deposits^{41,45,46}. These plates were approximately 10 inches square and ³/₄ inch thick. Identical steel plates having various types of electrode deposits were tested. In all cases a comparison between welded and unwelded plates tested at low temperature showed that the ductility of welded specimens was decreased significantly.

When additional information became available through the cumulative record, particularly from the serious structural failures of welded ships, it became increasingly evident that the common origin of the fractures was in defective welds and structural discontinuities in the hull, such as hatch corners, sheer strake cut-outs, etc. These fractures propagated rapidly through the plates of the hull structure with little or no evidence of ductility. The fractures were of the cleavage type. Deck failures have occurred when the computed nominal stresses were well below the yield point of the material as determined by the usual tensile test.

It was therefore decided to investigate factors contributing to the brittle cleavage failure of large structures that contained stress raisers. This was accomplished through a study of the load-carrying capacity and ductility of large plates (3/4 inch thick x 72 inches wide) containing a central transverse notch, when tested to failure at various temperatures^{47,48,49}. A number of different medium carbon steels, including rimmed, semi-killed and fully killed types, falling within present ship steel specifications (USN and ABS) were investigated. Through the use of such large specimens it was expected that the type of fracture obtained in ships could be reproduced in the laboratory. Furthermore, it was desired to determine the differences in behavior of the several steels when tested in large specimens and to relate this behavior to smaller specimens (such as notched bar impact tests) of the same steel. In addition, it was expected that these investigations would produce results that could be applied toward modifying present ship steel specifications to insure material best suited for welded fabrication and safe ship operation. At the present writing, these investigations are still in progress. Based on the work completed, the following results appear significant:

701292-47-10

- i. Wide (72 inch, centrally notched specimens of $\frac{9}{4}$ inch ship plate tested statically at temperatures ranging from -40° F to $+110^{\circ}$ F have failed at nominal stresses on the net section approximating the yield point of these steels as determined from the standard tensile test. These stresses were essentially the same whether the fracture occurred by shear or cleavage. The cleavage fractures, particularly those at the lower temperatures, exhibited low ductility comparable to that observed in ship failures.
- ii. The transition temperature at which the mode of fracture changed from shear to cleavage in these speciments $(+20^{\circ}F)$ to $+110^{\circ}F$) was determined to be within the temperature range in which ships operate. The change from shear to cleavage was associated with a very large reduction in the ability of the specimen to absorb energy.
- iii. Generally the types of steel were discriminated as to transition temperature in the same order in the large internally notched plate tests as predicted by the notched bar impact tests; however, the transition for the large plates occurred at much higher temperatures.

In conjunction with the tests of centrally notched flat plates, a related study of a large welded structural specimen closely patterned after a ship hatch corner was made 50,51. Due to its geometry, this specimen had a high degree of restraint and a severe notch condition.

The purpose of this test was to investigate the behavior of a welded structure containing a structural discontinuity and also to study the effects of variations in steel and welding procedure. In this manner it was expected that the structural behavior of a welded component constituting an important part of the ship's hull could be evaluated. It was also proposed to compare similar hatch corners fabricated by riveting as well as by welding.

Although this investigation is still incomplete, at the present writing the following results have been obtained and appear significant:

> i. It has been possible to load these hatch corner specimens in tension so as to produce an elastic stress distribution closely

approximating that found in a Liberty ship.

- ii. On the basis of a single specimen design which has a high degree of restraint and a severe notch condition, the type of steel, testing temperature (32°F to 120°F) and type of welding electrode (E6020, HTS, Austenitic 25Cr-20Ni) had little effect on the nominal breaking strength of the specimen (23,000 p.s.i. to 27,800 p.s.i.). The energy absorbed by a specimen failing with shear fracture was greater than that for a specimen failing by cleavage.
- iii. All hatch corner specimens tested at 32°F failed by cleavage. Rimmed, semi-killed and fully killed medium carbon steels were included in these tests.
- iv. Two hatch corner specimens welded with a 400°F preheat have been tested. One failed at a nominal breaking stress of 32,600 p. s. i., while the other failed at nominal stress of 32,800 p. s. i. An identical specimen but welded without preheat failed at a nominal breaking stress of 24,000 p. s. i. All specimens failed by cleavage when tested at 70°F. The energy absorbed by the preheated specimens was very much greater than that absorbed by the specimen that was not preheated. This confirmed data obtained on small specimen tests.⁴⁶
- v. Two riveted specimens, fabricated using semikilled steel and having the same basic design as the welded specimens, have been tested at 70°F. One failed at a nominal breaking stress of 20,900 p. s. i. while the other failed at a nominal stress of 20,600 p. s. i. Both specimens failed with cleavage fractures. The energy absorption of these specimens was very much less than that of a welded hatch corner specimen fabricated from the same steel and tested at the same temperature.

A research project has been initiated to correlate the results of the large centrally notched plate investigation and the hatch corner studies with small laboratory tests^{52,53}. This investigation was initiated with the expectation that it could be demonstrated that such tests could be used to predict the behavior of large fabricated structures. It should be pointed out that the development of a laboratory test for this purpose may be of significance in the establishment of improved specifications for ship steel. So far this investigation has yielded the following important results:

- i. The discrimination of the steels on the basis of transition temperature using the standard notched bar impact tests has approximated that obtained in the large internally notched flat plate tests, but at much lower temperatures for the small specimens.
- ii. Notched bar impact tests on rimmed, semikilled and fully killed types of ship steel have shown that the transition from ductile to brittle behavior occurs at a relatively low temperature for fully killed steel, at a temperature as high as 90°F. for some heats of rimmed steel, and at intermediate temperatures for semi-killed types. However, some semi-killed steels also had high transition temperatures and correspondingly greater notch sensitivity. (Notch sensitivity may be defined as the property of a material which reflects its reluctance to absorb energy in the presence of notches and other strain inhibitors, such as low temperature and high rates of strain.)

An additional study, involving the steels mentioned above in which an explosive was statically detonated in direct contact with welded or unwelded plates, has provided a method for determining the behavior of specimens under high strain rates and a complex state of stress.⁵⁴ Preliminary results from this test were as follows:

- i. Explosion tests have discriminated unwelded shipbuilding and high tensile steels in the same general order as predicted by the notched bar impact tests and large internally notched flat plate specimens.
- ii. Welded joints have shown a significantly lower energy absorption and extent of deformation when compared to unwelded plates of the same steel. It should be noted that these results correlate with the results obtained in the static weld bead bend tests at low temperatures referred to previously.

Other investigations of welded structures include a study of a highly restrained fabricated box girder and that of butt welded I-beams. These structures are being tested in flexure. The box girders made

1.2.2



from $1\frac{1}{2}$ inch thick plates are being investigated to determine the effect of high restraint and residual stresses on the physical behavior of such structures. The butt welded I-beams are being tested to determine differences in performance when tested under dynamic and static conditions. No broad observations can be drawn from these investigations as yet.

On a number of ships, hairline cracks have been observed in the vicinity of the hatch corners. Due to the stress concentration occasioned by the hatch corner discontinuity, it appeared reasonable that these could have been fatigue cracks caused by the cyclic loads to which a ship had been subjected in service. Upon subsequent loadings having higher stress ar plitudes and increased strain rates occasioned by rough seas, it was expected that such a hairline crack might act as a trigger to start a fracture propagating through the structure particularly at low temperature. Welded ships have suffered structural failures after only a short period of sea service or with no service at all. However, it appeared that fatigue might in some cases be a contributing factor to failure.

A research project was initiated to determine the effect of cyclic loading on the behavior of ship steel specimens containing longitudinal welds and cut-outs with and without welded reinforcement plates and doublers.⁵⁵ As yet no significant conclusions can be drawn from this work.

In order to verify the hypothesis stated above relative to the propagation through the ship structure of fractures that originate in fatigue cracks, it was decided to initiate an investigation involving a study of the fatigue behavior of specimens containing severe stress raisers.⁵⁶ These specimens were 12 inches wide x 34 inch thick and were made from rimmed steel and normalized fully killed steel. The specimens were centrally notched in a direction transverse to loading. The configuration of the notch was identical to that used in the large static tension test previously mentioned. Specimens were tested at various temperatures ranging from -40° F to $+120^{\circ}$ F. As an index of performance, it was decided to use the number of cycles required to propagate a crack beyond the root of the initial notch approximately 0.6 inch in each direction. All specimens were subjected to an alternating load giving a nominal stress of 16.000 p.s. i. in tension to 16,000 p. s. i. in compression on the net section. The following results from this investigation appeared significant:

- i. The testing temperature had no appreciable effect upon the fatigue life of any of the steels tested.
- ii. The fatigue life was approximately twice as long for the normalized plates of killed steel as for the rimmed as-rolled steel specimens.

Other cyclic loading tests involving combined stresses have yielded results which do not appear conclusive.

4. Conclusions

The following conclusions have been drawn on the basis of the available data. Additional data which are expected from research still continuing may necessitate revision or modification of some of these conclusions:

- 1. The brittle fractures in welded ships result from a combination of the following causes: stress raisers occasioned by poor design or workmanship; steel susceptible to low ductility fracture when subjected to conditions involving three dimensional constraint, particularly at low temperature; i.e. notch sensitive steel. Neither factor is alone responsible for all failures, but when an adverse combination of the two occurs, the ship may be unable to resist the bending moments of normal service.
- 2. Fractures in large welded and unwelded ship plate specimens containing stress raisers comparable to those found in ships have occurred at *nominal* stress values as low as 20,000 p. s. i. The *nominal* breaking stress has been found to be essentially the same irrespective as to whether failure occurred with high or low ductility.
- 3. Tests of large welded and unwelded ship plate specimens containing stress raisers comparable to those found in ships have failed in a brittle manner within the temperature range in which ships operate. These specimens were made of rimmed, semi-killed and fully killed medium carbon steels, furnished to meet existing ship plate specifications. The ductilities obtained in the laboratory tests were of the same order of magnitude as those measured in fractured ships.

- 4. Existing ship plate specifications are not sufficiently selective to provide material that reasonably precludes the occurrence of brittle fracture on welded structures. The material supplied in ship construction during this program complies with the existing specifications for ship steel.
- 5. Evidence exists which indicates that the structural performance of welded joints in ship steel, particularly under conditions involving three dimensional restraint and low temperature is greatly improved by forms of heat treatment.
- 6. Static structural tests of welded ships of various designs have corroborated carlier experiments with riveted ships and confirmed the validity of the basic analytical method used in calculating nominal stresses under a known bending load in the main hull girder.
- 7. In discontinuities like hatch corners, rounded details are superior to those showing acute notching. This is mainly attributed to the wider distribution of plastic deformation which occurs in rounded corners in the early stages of heavy loading.
- 8. Considerable accumulated evidence and test data indicate that locked-in stresses do not contribute materially to failure of welded structures.
- 9. Locked-in stresses in the decks of completed vessels are not appreciably reduced by service.
- 10. Welding sequence in general has no effect upon the magnitude of residual stresses in free subassemblies.

5. Recommendations for Proposed Future Work

The Research Advisory Committee recommends the following further investigations:

a. THE STUDY OF SHIPBUILDING MATERIALS

- The work in this field may be divided into groups as follows:
 - i. Further studies of the effect of welding on the structural performance of ship steel. It is proposed to study the behavior of welded joints; such as butt welded flat plates, double fillet welded tee specimens, etc., under multiaxial stress at various tempera-

tures and strain rates. This investigation is proposed since plates containing a welded joint have shown a decided reduction of energy absorption and extent of deformation when compared to unwelded plates of the same steel. By means of these tests, it is expected to study such variables as steels; electrodes; heat treatment and mechanical stress relieving. It is anticipated that a considerable amount of effort must be expended in developing satisfactory specimens and testing procedures which must show correlation with the performance of full scale structures. (See section b (ii.), below.)

- ii. Further studies of the fundamental factors affecting flow and fracture of metals. It appears highly desirable that more information be made available relative to the conditions that obtain when cleavage and shear fractures occur in metals, particularly the conditions necessary to cause a change in the mode of fracture from shear to cleavage. (See 3a. above.) This work will assist in the understanding of the basic phenomena underlying the failure of materials in structures and will aid in their intelligent utilization.
- ii. Further study to obtain practical tests which can be used to procure material satisfactory for the fabrication of welded structures. Present tests for evaluating the notch sensitivity of the materials are capable of selecting satisfactory steel and electrodes but not for procurement in commercial quantities.

b. THE STUDY OF THE SHIP'S STRUCTURE

The work in this field may be divided into groups as follows:

- i. A study of ships at sea. Here is envisaged a research program to determine particularly the loads to which a ship's structure is subjected among waves. It is anticipated that active work under this project will not begin until a thorough study has been made of the results obtained from the present British investigation on the Ocean Vulcan.
 - In addition to the above study, in which a research crew would be stationed on

board ship to operate and maintain the equipment, it is also contemplated that strain counters be installed at various locatiens on a large number of ships of many types. These counters would be unattended except for periodic checkups and recording of accumulated data. These counters would record the number of times a given strain has been reached at a selected point in the ship. By this procedure, it is an icipated that the maximum strains to which a ship's structure is subjected, including selected points of concentration, could be obtained.

ii. A further study of the design and fabrication of ship components (e.g. hatch corners, gunwale connections, etc.). It is proposed to study typical structural discontinuities in ships to determine magnitude of stress concentrations, areas affected by the discontinuities, and how the design can be modified to reduce such concentrations, thereby increasing the factor of safety. This investigation would be made through use of large welded full scale specimens, models, and photoelastic studies.

ł

1 e 7

h n

- iii. A study of the structural performance of the ship girder incorporating improved structural details developed in (ii) above, tested statically to failure. The vessel will be subjected to the static structural test, preferably continuing to failure.
- iv. A study of the effects of riveted longitudinal joints on the performance of welded ships. The generally satisfactory performance of the Liberty ships with riveted seams has raised questions as to how the riveting influenced this performance.
- v. Studies of the relative merits of various structural design details when subjected to cyclic loading.

c. SUPPLEMENTAL STUDIES

Shrinkage, distortion and cracking of welded structures during assembly are effects which must be studied. The methods of obtaining sound welding practice are generally developed on the job; however, the elements of good practice need continued reconsideration and manuals need revision, even though laboratory research can make little contribution to this result.

FINAL REPORT

Board to Investigate the Design av Construction of Welded Steel Merc

ods of 'essels.

EXHIBIT III Survey of Shipyard Welding Practices 1 May 1945



-

•

Summary Report WELDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE

A Welding Advisory Committee was appointed by the Board to survey conditions pertaining to the design and methods of construction of welded steel merchant vessels as employed by shipyards in the United States. Thirty-three representative yards, Government and commercial, on the East, Gulf and West coasts were visited during 1944-45. The following report is a summary of data collected.

A. Welder Training and Advancement

1. AVERAGE NUMBER OF HOURS IN WELDING SCHOOL.

The system of welder training in use and standard of performance required prior to graduation is not uniform. Some schools train to produce tackers only, acting on the premise that no school can produce a journeyman welder; therefore, from 3 to 6 months' work on the ship should be required before the trainee becomes a production welder. An average of 185 hours schooling for production welders exists for the East Coast schools reported. The shortest average training period was 10 hours and the longest average training period was 320 hours.

2. TRAINING EQUIPMENT AND METHODS.

Most shipyard schools did not have enough training equipment, operating up to three shifts, with two trainces per booth in one or two instances. It was generally agreed that 10 students was the maximum that could be efficiently trained under one instructor. However, some schools assigned up to 20 students per instructor. The smaller schools are not well organized and usually are operated only as welder test booths, or for priming welders to take the production welder's test. In only one school were trainees required to weld in cramped positions and on joint assemblies similar to those encountered on ship board. 701292-47-11

3. SPECIAL MEANS FOR IDENTIFYING WELDERS BY RATING.

		I aras
Special Means		 . 1
Partial Means		 . 7
No Means		

After qualifying by test for all positions one yard grouped the welders for restricted work in accordance with the foremen's opinions and each group was identified by colored electrode buckets and helmets. In several yards, however, tackers could be identified from welders by group nur 1ber on badges.

Nearly all yards interviewed agreed that whether qualified by test or not, a welder fresh from the training school should be allowed to work only on unimportant parts of the ship's structure, preferably in the flat position. The secondary structure on the building ways should be welded by more experienced or second grade welders and strength decks and the hull plating should be allocated to the most experienced or first grade welders under yard classification. In actual practice, however, this ideal is seldom attained due either to "hot ships" or disregard of this principle in placing welders.

4. TYPE OF WELDERS PRODUCED BY SCHOOL.

	Yards
Tackers	10
Welders only	4
Tackers and welders	9
Flat or restricted position	5
None	5

Only 5 yards had restricted welder qualification other than tack welder. The majority of the yards consider the all-position welder qualification test easy to pass and the training necessary to qualify preferred to the restrictions imposed when welders are only partially qualified.

5. MINIMUM EXPERIENCE BETWEEN ADVANCEMENTS.

No yard claimed to enforce any minimum period between advancement except in two instances, one where advancement was automatic due to agreement with Union, and one where the yard required a 3-month period between advancements.

6. ENCOURAGEMENT FOR IMPROVEMENT.

There is very little encouragement for improvement in workmanship particularly in piecework yards where emphasis is placed on production. Only two yards made any attempt to keep a record of the actual quality of work of the individual welder.

7. PERCENTAGE OF WELDER TURN-OVER ANNUALLY.

	Percent
Maximum	212
Average	85
Minimum	12

8. ARE QUALIFICATION TESTS RECORDED? Qualification tests are recorded in all yards except two. The consensus of opinion of the various yards indicated that qualification tests are not sufficient evidence that a welder is capable of welding important structural joints and that welders on such structure should be picked after experience indicates they can produce welds satisfactorily.

9. ARE RECORDS SYSTEMATICALLY FILED?

Recorded qualification tests were satisfactorily filed in yard or inspection office when such qualification tests were made except in one yard. However, the system is rather cumbersome in that if a welder's work is unsatisfactory it requires a check in the files to ascertain his qualifications.

B. Incentive for Good Workmanship After Graduation

1. ANY MONETARY INCENTIVE FOR GOOD WORKMANSHIP?

	Yards
Yes	12
Yes, in theory	11
No	 10

Nearly all piecework systems nullified any incentive for good workmanship since the emphasis was placed upon either poundage of electrodes burned or footage produced. Charges are seldom made against the welder for repairing work and advancement is based upon the ability to produce enough welds to make a wage equal to that of the next higher basic hourly rate. In yards where all welders get the same pay there can be little (and sometimes a negative) incentive for improvement as the difficult work is given to the best welders.

. ANY PIECEWORK SYSTEM?

2.	ANY PIECEWORK SYSTEM?	
		Yards
	Yes	18
	No	15
3.	IS ADVANCEMENT BASED ON GOOD WORKMANSHIP?)
		Yards
	Supervisor's opinion	23
	Based on daily and weekly	
	records of workmanship	2
	No	8
4	WHAT SYSTEM IS SET UP FOR THI	\$2
4.	WHAT STSTEM IS SET OF FOR TH	Yards
	Efficiency rating	
	Union agreement	
	Cramped position test	1
	Daily and quarterly records	2
	· · ·	22
	None	44
С	Supervision	
	NUMBER OF HULLS FOR EACH WE	LDING
	UBFOREMAN.	Yards
	1	10
	1	-
	2	8 3
	3	3
	Varies but lies between 1	-
	and 10 .	7
	Indefinite	1
	No report	1
2.	NUMBER OF QUARTERMEN TO ON FOREMAN.	E
		Yards
	None	2
	Average, 1–5	16
	Average, 6-10	9
	Average, 11–15	4
	No report	2
3.	NUMBER OF LEADINGMEN TO ON QUARTERMAN	E
		Yards
	None	i
	Average, 1–5	19
	Average, 6–10	9
	Average, 11–20	3
	No report	. 1
	•	

4. NUMBER OF WELDERS TO ONE LEADING MAN.

	Yards
Average, 10-15	12
Average, 16-20	12
Average, 21-30	8
31 and over	1

5 IS A WELDING ENGINEER EMPLOYED?

	Yards
Yes	21
No	12

Only a few of the men employed as welding engineers for the various yards can be considered welding engineers when analyzed in the light of their technical training. Their title is neither indicative of their exact status in the yard organization nor does it correspond to the duties to which they are assigned.

6.	WHAT	IS	HIS	ORCANIZATIONAL RATING?

......

		Yards
Advisory		16
Consultant		3
Directive		2
No engineer	 	12

It is doubtful that any of the welding engineers have authority to enforce regulations governing quality of welds, sequence, etc., if such regulations interfere with production.

7a. WHO HAS FINAL SAY ON WELDING MATTERS?

	Xards
Hull superintendent	21
Shipfitters	3
Welding engineer	4
Welding foreman	1
Inspection agencies	2
Production manager or	
assistant works manager	2

Any controversial matters pertaining to welding were usually settled by the welding inspectors of the inspecting agency if such were called to their attention.

25.	WHO	ESTABLISHES	THE	WELDING
	TE(HNIQUE?		

A MINIQUE:	
Welding supervisors and	Yards
foremen	21
Welding supervisors and fore-	
men with welding engineer	2
Welding engineer	4
School instructors and coaches	4
Individual welder	1
own for words valied when the	

Very few yards relied upon their welding engineers to establish the welding technique.

7c. HAS WELDING DEPARTMENT POWER TO REJECT FAULTY FITTING?

		Yards
Yes		 13
No		 5
Doubtful or	problematic	15

77 1

It is doubtful that where welding departments have the authority to reject faulty fitting that such authority is ever exercised.

8. CONNECTION BETWEEN DRAWING ROOM AND WELDING DEPARTMENT.

In only nine yards did the welding engineer have direct contact with the drawing room.

- 9. WHO SEES THAT SEQUENCE IS CARRIED OUT? Only seven yards had inspection departments set up for checking the sequence, the remainder leaving this work entirely to the welding supervision.
- 10. WHO HAS AUTHORITY TO CHANGE WELDING SEQUENCE?

Only eight yards of the 19 employing welding engineers gave the welding engineer the authority to change welding sequence. However, three yards had a sequence man in addition to the welding engineer who developed the sequence and made the necessary changes.

11. DOES HE SEE THAT THE CHANGE IS

APPROVED?	
Yes	21
Doubtful	4
Sometimes	4
No	3
Made no changes	1

It was noted that the general practice in the yards was to make numerous sequence violations on the hull structure rather than to correct the welding sequence or revise it to agree.

D. Inspection

1. IS RADIOGRAPHY DONE ON HULL STRUCTURE?

	Yards
Yes	 3
No	 30
2. IS TREPANNING DONE?	
	Yards
Yes	9
Yes, but not polished	9 4

Plugs taken but not polished which were examined by the Committee were considered incomplete evidence of sound welds due to their extreme roughness. In one yard, where probing was a regular practice, it was stated that originally 30 percent of plugs taken showed defective welds, but since workmen have been shown defective probes, the quality has improved until defective plugs have been reduced to 6 percent.

3. WHO REQUESTS RADIOGRAPHY AND TREPANNING?

1	aras
Welding engineer or welding	
laboratory	4
Inspection agencies	9
Yard welding inspectors	í
Made no subsurface inspections	19

Of the yards making subsurface inspections only four performed this service without the request of an inspection agency.

4. HAS YARD ANY INSPECTION DEPARTMENT OF ITS OWN?

				Yards
Yes			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	16
No	•	•••	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	17

Some yards stated that a separate inspection department would result in divided authority and would therefore be objectionable. Apparently, it was for this reason that some inspection departments answered to the production department instead of the welding engineer.

5. TO WHOM ARE THE WELDING INSPECTORS RESPONSIBLE?

	Yards
Welding engineer	2
Yard inspection department	5
Welding supervisors	4
Production department	5
No inspection department	17
HAS YARD ANY WELDING LABOR	RATORY? Yards
Yes	. 11
No	22
Welding laboratories of any cons	equence were
usually incorporated in a well-equ	

usually incorporated in a well-equipped metallurgical laboratory. 7. HULL INSPECTION

44	INSPECTION.	Yards
	Inspected by Navy	15
	Inspected by ABS surveyors	16
	Inspected by U.S.M.C.	14
	Inspected by U.S.C.G. marine	
	inspectors .	11
	Inspected by Army	2
	Inspected by commercial	
	companies	3

8. CAN YARD TRACE WORK TO INDIVIDUAL WELDER?

	J.	ards
Yes .		11
Sometimes .	 	5
Doubtful		2
No	 	15

Identification of the weld and welder is of little value where there is no subsurface inspection. Most methods of identification are rather cumbersome, their primary purposes being to control piecework systems and not for the identification of welders at some future date. Some union agreements will not permit identification of weld with welder.

9. HOW ARE LEAKY WELDS REPAIRED IN WATERTIGHT AND OILTIGHT STRUCTURE?

Leaky welds are usually caulked unless found by the inspection agency first, or when they are of such a serious nature that caulking would not stop the leak. Several yards made the claim that all leaky welds were chipped out and rewelded but the reaction of the inspectors as well as personal observation, casts considerable doubt on the accuracy of these statements.

10. HOW ARE FAULTY WELDS REPAIRED IN NON-WATERTIGHT STRUCTURE?

Faulty welds are repaired by rewelding in way of undercutting and insufficient reinforcement when marked by inspectors. Judging from observation of welds marked for repair, additional welds are run without further preparation for almost any kind of defect except a known crack.

E. Production

1a. IS THERE AN ERECTION SEQUENCE?

Yes Yes Most crection sequences consist of material schedules.

1b. WHO PREPARES ERECTION SEQUENCE?

Yards
2
7
3
6
2
3
10

152

6.

2. IS IT BEING FOLLOWED?

		Yards
Yes		17
Generally .		13
Partially		3

Most erection sequences consist of material schedules and are violated or modified where necessary to use material in order of receipt, regardless of the condition of welding. A few of these schedules were incorporated with the welding sequence.

3a. IS THERE A WELDING SEQUENCE?

												Yards
r es												30
No										,		3

3b. WHO PREPARES THE WELDING SEQUENCE? Yards

Engineering department	2
Supervisor committee	5
Hull superintendent	2
Welding engineers	6
Shipfitting department	1
Chief hull planner	i
Welding foreman	2
Design agent or leading	
shipyard	2
Not prepared	2
Not reported	10

3c. HAS THE WELDING SEQUENCE BEEN

APPROVED BY NAVY, AMERICAN BUREAU OF SHIPPING, UNITED STATES MARITIME COMMISSION OR UNITED STATES COAST GUARD?

							2	ards	
Yes								16	
No								10	
No	rep	or	ts.		•••	•••••		7	

The sequence in use in a number of yards was very general without any detail.

4. IS IT BEING FOLLOWED?

		Yards
No	 	. 14
Yes	 	7
Generally .	 	. 9
No sequence	 	3

None of the complicated sequences developed for welding are rigorously held to by the welders on the job. However, in two shipyards where the hull was subdivided into standard uniform panels or sections similar to subassemblies although built in place on the ways they were able to reduce the instructions to workmen to an apparent minimum. It was noted that two yards laid out the sequence on the steel structure for the guidance of the welders, thereby eliminating excuses for sequence violations.

5. HOW ARE ELECTRODES STORED AND DISTRIBUTED?

Nearly all yards stored and distributed electrodes in reasonably dry spaces, heated in the winter for the comfort of the personnel. However, 3 shipyards made a determined attempt to dehumidify certain classes of electrodes.

6. ARE CHECK TESTS MADE ON QUALITY OF ELECTRODES?

	ز	ards
No		23
Yes		10

Only one yard ran a torture test on mild steel electrodes and this was done by a special port hole test devised by that yard. The majority of tests consisted of standard welder qualification test for each new shipment of electrodes. However, one yard made an attempt to check the moisture content of the coating.

7. TYPES OF ELECTRODES USED.

Some yards have substituted E-6020 for horizontal work for which E-6012 has been eliminated. Judging from the record, however, this practice should be extended.

8. ARE SPECIAL PROCESSES USED?

		Yards
Union-melt		21
Lincoln weld		3
General electric		1
Unamatic		2
Flame gouging		3
Carbon arc		7
Twin arc		1
Deep fillet		2
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	c .1	

Apparently any furtherance of these special processes would depend upon the supplying of concrete information to the various yards.

9. ARE RESTRICTIONS ON MACHINE WELDING BEING FOLLOWED?

Several of the yards visited complained of lack of information on the control of machine welding and only in the yards that had done considerable experimentation could machine welding be considered excellent. The manufacturers' claims on the possibilities of this equipment appear to be somewhat exaggerated when

compared with production results. In addition it was noted that very wide variations in joint design existed in yards doing identical work; the efficiency of some being open to question.

10. PERCENTAGE OF MACHINE WELDING.

	Yards
No machine welding	10
Below 10 percent	11
10-20 percent	8
20-7.5 percent .	4

11. HOW MUCH DEEP FILLET WELDING IS DONE? Used by 6 yards.

Most yards interviewed who had experimented with this process considered it not applicable to ship construction. One shipyard, however, seemed to be enjoying considerable success with this process and this yard considered that control of the moisture content of the electrode was absolutely essential for its success in production. 12. HAS E-6012 ELECTRODE BEEN ELIMINATED

ON IMPORTANT BUTT JOINTS?

Two yards were found where E-6012 electrode was being used on important hull butts although one yard reported that this electrode had been eliminated for these joints. The general consensus of opinion among the other yards was that this class of electrode was only suitable for horizontal fillet welds. Several yard: were also found to be using certain brands of E-6011 and E-6013 electrodes on all types of joints to increase production resulting in large oversize convex welds with the appearance of deposits made by E-6012 electrodes.

13. IS PEENING BEING DONE?

	Yards
Generally employed	2
Used to some extent, as in re-	•
strained butts or insert plates	26
No peening used	5
	•

Sh yyards need information pertaining to this process since most of them subscribed to only very light peening.

14. ARE VERTICAL BUTT WELDS WEAVED OR STRINGER BEADED?

	Yards
Both	6
Weaved	19
Stringer beaded	5
Weaved with final layer	
stringer beaded	2
Stringer beaded with final	
laver weaved	1

In view of the differences of opinion among the various yards as to the relative merits of these two techniques, more information is apparently needed in the field.

15. PLATE EDGE PREPARATION USED WITH MACHINE WELDING,

	Yards
Ground top surface	4
Wire brushed	5
Paint remover	2
Not cleaned	6
Not machine welded	18
Not reported	6

It was noted that two yards producing the best machine welds paid very little attention to cleanliness of surface aside from wire brushing, placing more than average emphasis upon proper machine settings.

16. METHOD USED FOR BACKING UP MACHINE WELDING.

	Yards
Tight fit	4
Copper backing strip	1
Steel backing strip	7
Flux backing	3
Manual welding backing	13

It was noted that two did not strive for a tight fit, working flux in any opening and under the tack welds, with remarkably good results.

17. MAXIMUM PLATE THICKNESS USED IN

MANUAL WELDING SQUARE EDGE PLATING. Not over 1/4 inch square edge preparation was used for manual welding in any yard. 3/16 inch was the maximum square edge joints manually welded without back chipping.

18. IS PREHEATING BEING DONE FOR MANUAL AND MACHINE WELDING?

	Yards
No preheating on mild steel	. 29
Some on mild steel .	4

More information apparently is needed in the field on the requirements of preheating. Very few yards are carrying out the letter of instructions now in existence.

19. ARE TRACKS USED FOR AUTOMATIC WELD-ING MACHINES?

in the star

Tracks are generally used with Union-melt and General Electric machines on the East and Gulf coasts. Tracks are seldom used on the West coast. Tracks are not used with Lincoln welding machines.

154

1. S. C.

20. QUALITY OF EDGE PREPARATION USED FOR MANUAL WELDING.

					s aras
Excellent	• •				3
Good					14
Fair					12
Poor					4

In a good many yards edge preparation is ruined by an excessive amount of square flame cuts in fitting on the ship after erection. The use of innumerable large tacks to compensate for inadequate strongbacking and warping make it impossible to more than partially bevel the edges prior to welding.

21. METHOD USED FOR CLEANING OUT BACK OF WELDS.

	Yards
Chipping	32
Flame gouging	1

Back chipping in restricted places and on secondary structure is very superficial in most yards. It was noted that in some yards welding procedures required back chipping in very cramped spaces and overhead positions not conducive to good workmanship.

A. Type of chisel used.

	Yards
Cape chisels at times	2
Diamond point at times	15
Round nose only	8
Not checked	10
Cape chisels resulted in a	s sharp corners
in the grooves as those	made by dia-

B. Is flame gouging used?

One yard used flame gouging generally. C. Is groove cleaned to sound metal?

mond pointed chisels.

G. 13 groove clestnea to sound metal.

	1 (67 (65
Yes	7
Fair	. 1
Not always	9
No	. 6
Not reported	. 10

In one yard it was noticed that the main girth butts of the vessel had been superficially chipped and then caulked to simulate a condition of sound metal.

Varde

D. Does groove follow center of weld?

			x aras
Ycs	••••	 	15
Not	always	 	4
No		 	4
Not	reported	 	10

E. Is a sharp V left in root of groove	
--	--

	Yards
Yes	7
No .	8
Sometimes .	8
Not reported	. 10
The standard of back	chipping in most
of the yards inspec	cted could be im-
proved.	

22. IS RIVETING USED IN CONJUNCTION WITH WELDING?

												Yards
Yes												14
No												9
Not	rep	orl	ted	l								10

Some yards used riveting to retain gangs already employed in the yards while others used riveting to get away from welded longitudinal seams and welded longitudinals.

23. DOES RIVETING PROGRESS BEYOND THE WELDING?

						raras
No						7
Yes	· • · ·					7
	riveted				 	9
Not	reported	ł	• •			10

One yard held back on riveting until main hull structural welding was completed. The majority of the remaining yards using riveting in connection with welding removed a few rivets adjacent to the weld when riveting advanced ahead of the welding.

F. Workmanship

1. QUALITY OF FITTING.

	A (4/ 44)
Very good	2
Good	
Fair	. 16
Poor	6

Yarde

Fitting was generally poor enough to be considered responsible for some of the poor welding reported. Preparation of the butts in secondary structure including framing butts never received proper attention in most yards.

2. QUALITY OF MANUAL WELDING.

	Yards
Good	 17
Fair	 13
Poor	 3

The quality of shell welds is problematical in all yards where poor fit-up exists and there is no subsurface inspection since incomplete penetration of weld metal would break the continuity

of the joint. Welds of the secondary structure (including bulwarks, framing, hatch coamings, etc.) in most yards showed bad workmanship.

3. QUALITY OF MACHINE WELDING.

	Yards
Very good	4
Good	
Fair	8
No machine welding	

The fit-up for machine welding varies somewhat in different yards and where no probes are taken there is no way of checking the final quality of the welds.

4. IS WELDING PROPERLY CLEANED OF SLAG? Yards

Yes,	for	inspection		15
		inspection	 	18

When the final passes of the manual welds are not cleaned it was observed that there was always a possibility of undercutting, porosities and incomplete reinforcement getting by.

It is to be noted that the majority of the yards did not clean welds for inspection purposes.

5. IS UNDERCUTTING OF WELDS EXCESSIVE?

	Yards
Yes .	15
No	17
Yes, on one type of vessel and	

No, on another type 1 Undercutting was rather extensive in most yards but corrected in some by additional beads. One yard suggested that 3/16 inch electrodes may cause undercutting on plating below 3/16 inch thickness and it is possible that smaller electrodes, if used, would stop this undercutting.

6. ARE STARTING AND RUN-OFF TABS USED FOR MACHINE WELDING?

			Yards
Yes			13
No			10
No machine	welding		10

Many yards using run-off tabs failed to obtain the desired results as the craters carried back within the trim lines. Where short unfinished joints were left to assist in fairing and the erection of the structure, the resulting manual welds used to complete the joints were sometimes saddles, causing notch effects in these butts.

7. IS COMPLETED STRUCTURE REASONABLY FAIR?

					Yards	
Yes				 	. 27	
No				 	. 6	
		•	c . •	 	1. 1.	1.

In order to obtain fairness on light welded structure it was usually necessary to resort to excessive flame shrinking, a large number of rigid stror gbacks or drumheadings, with the latter apparently the least objectionable practice. On heavier plating, sequence and technique when used to advantage seemed capable of maintaining the fairness of the structure.

G. Structural Details

1. ARE SNIPES USED WHENEVER POSSIBLE?

			Yards
Ycs			. 12
No 21

With the present use of prefabricated members and subassemblies, it is imperative that snipes be indicated on the detail structural plans to get them on the finished ships.

2. IS UPPER EDGE OF SHEERSTRAKE FREE FROM CUTS AND NOTCHES?

					Yards
Yes					24
No					6
No	structural	sheer	strake	s.	3

Although most of the sheerstrakes were free from cuts and notches, only 3 yards were found that removed all connections, including chocks and pads.

3. ARE BULWARK DETAILS IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPROVED PLANS?

Yes, in yards where bulwarks are fitted.

4. IS BULWARK WORKMANSHIP SATISFACTORY?

	Yards
Yes, generally	10
No	. 2
No bulwarks	

Most yards treat the bulwarks as secondary structure and consequently these members are not welded with the same care and workmanship as the shell plating. Most naval vessels and tankers are designed without bulwarks.

5. TYPE OF HATCH CORNER REINFORCEMENT FITTED.

	Yards
Navy standard or expansion	
trunks	12
Insert in deck, not slotted	
through coaming	2
Insert in deck, slotted through	
coaming .	8
Doub'er for deck, not slotted	
through coaming	4
Doubler for deck, slotted	
through coaming	2
No reinforcement	5

Many of the inserts and doublers used to reinforce the hatch corners were rectangular with square exterior corners.

6.	ARE	RIVETED	GUNW	'ALE	BARS	FITTED?
						Yards
		Yes				14
		No	• •			16
		No gunv	vales .		<i>.</i>	3

7. ARE ARRESTER STRAPS FITTED (LIBERTIES ONLY)?

	Yards
Yes	 2
No	4
Not Liberties	 30

8. ARE BILGE KEELS PROPERLY SCALLOPED?

		Yards
Yes		. 13
No		. 12
Riveted		. 3
No bilge keel		1
Not observed	•	. 4
	••	

If bilge keel snipes are not indicated on the plans, there is little possibility of the requirements being carried out by the fitters on the job.

H. Erection Methods

1. ARE TACK WELDERS QUALIFIED?

				Yards
Yes		 		 19
No				 14

There is considerable confusion among inspectors as to the actual qualification for a tack welder, especially in yar's doing both naval and commercial work. Most of the schools turned out tack welders on the appearance of the finished weld, rather than any test.

2. (a) WHAT REGULATIONS GOVERN TACKS?

									Yards
Navy									18
ABS									15

2. (b) WHAT TYPE TACKS ARE USED?

	X ards
Large	5
Large and close	
Rough and close	2
Few and small	5
Varying in size and shape	2
Good	7
Fair	2

Tacks were not being made as specified or recommended and seldom are they chipped out when made in a beveled joint. The use of a large number of strongbacks and saddles in some yards eliminated tacks to a minimum whereby the entire joint was welded by a production welder without breaking continuity. 3. QUANTITY AND TYPE OF STRONGBACKS AND BRACES USED.

							Ya	rds	
Few								16	
Norma	Ι.							8	
Large :	amoun	t						8	
None								1	
							•		

20 of these yards used strongbacks of the rigid type without apparent difficulties.

4. ARE TACK SCARS REPAIRED?

Fair	22
Imperfect	10
No scars	1

V ... J.

No yard was repairing tack scars to the extent that the outlines could not be traced except in a few instances where deep grinding was resorted to. In some yards it was noted that a great number of scars were present in the hull plating due to dragging of the welder's electrode when striking the arc and starting some distance away from the joint.

5. IS PREHEATING USED ON H.T.S.?

				 ards
Yes			 	 10
No				 4
No H	.T.S. us	sed	 	19

The practice of preheating on H.T.S. varies in all yards depending upon the failures experienced or the attitude of the inspecting agency. In some instances preheating being dependent upon atmospheric conditions or the weight of plating involved (this weight factor not being uniform) or upon rough tests peculiar to the yard, intended to identify high chemistry plates.

6. TYPE OF WELDING EQUIPMENT AT THE WET SLIP.

		<u>x aras</u>
Isolated -		13
Not isolated	. 	16
Not observed .	· · · · · · · · · ·	4

Several yards do not consider isolation of welding equipment at the wet basin necessary, one having taken voltage readings between hulls and between hulls and water for check purposes, arriving at the conclusion that adequate grounding is all that is necessary.

I. Reception of the Welding Advisory Committee

In general, the committee was well received.

FINAL REPORT

Board to Investigate the Design and Methods of Construction of Welded Steel Merchant Vessels.

•

BIBLIOGRAPHY



. ..

BIBLIOGRAPHY

DESIGN-Strength of Main Hull Girder

DESIGN—Hull Structural Details

_	DESIGN-Strength	of Main Hull Girder		DESIGN—Hull	Structural Details
Reference number	Authors	Title or designation	Reference number	Authors	Title or designation
1	J. H. Biles	"Strength of Ships, Experi- ments and I Calculations made for H.M.S. Wolf." In- stitution of Naval Archi- tects, 1905.	8 9		U. S. Maritime Commission- Unpublished report on the Static Structural Tests of the T-2 Tanker Ventura Hills. U. S. Maritime Commission-
	G. H. Hoffman	"Analysis of Sir John Biles Ex- periments on H.M.S. Wolf, Considered in the Light of Pietzker's Theory." Institu- tion of Naval Architects, 1925.	10		Unpublished reports on the Static Structural Tests of the T-2 Tanker Fort Miffln. U. S. Coast Guard; Sun Shipbuilding & Dry Dock Co.; Linde Air Products Co.
	G. H. Hoffman	"The Effective 'I' of H.M.S. Wolf." Institution of Naval Architects, 1928.			
2	W. P. Roop	"Elastic Characteristics of a Naval Tank Vessel." The Society of Naval Architects and Marine Engineers, 1932.	11	1'. B. Bull P. B. Shepheard JamesTurnbull	"Structural Investigation in Still Water on the Welded Tanker Neverita." Institu- tion of Naval Architects, 1946.
3	G. O. Kell .	"Investigation of Structural		FABRICATION-Re	sidual Welding Stresses
		Characteristics of Destroy- ers Preston and Bruce." The Society of Naval Architects and Marine Engineers, 1931.	12	E. Paul DeGarmo Finn Johassen J. L. Meriam	Residual Stresses in Ship Welding-OSRD No. 3698, Serial No. M-266, 5/24/44, NRC-64, Progress Report.
4		U. S. Maritime Commission; U. S. Coast Guard—Un- published report on the Static Structural Tests of	13	E. Paul DeGarmo J. L. Meriam Finn Johnassen	Residual Stresses in Ship Welding-OSRD No. 4388, Serial No. M-370, 11/13/44, NRC-64, Progress Report.
		the Great Lakes Ore Car- riers, Cadillac, John Hutchin- son, Champlain and the Frank Purnell. A summary & this	14 .	E. Paul DeGarmo Finn Jonassen J. L. Meriam	Residual Stresses in Ship Welding-OSRD No. 3176, Serial No. M-190, 1/14/44, NRC-64, Progress Report.
		report is included in F hibit III of the second in- terim report of the Board—	15	E. Paul DeCarmo. J. L. Meriam	Residual Stresses in Ship Welding-OSRD No. 4867, Serial No. M-463, 3/19/45, NRC-64, Final Report.
5		May 1945. U. S. Maritime Commission— Unpublished report on the Static Structural Tests of the Liberty Ship <i>Philip</i> Schuyler.	16	J. T. Notton D. Rosenthal S. B. Maloof	Effect of Locked-Up Stresses on Ballistic Performance of Welded Armor (OD-106) OSRD No. 4395, Serial No. M-392, 11/24/44, NRC-53, Progress Report.
6		U. S. Maritime Commission- Unpublished report of the Static Structural Tests of the T-2 Tanker Shiloh. A sum- mary of this report is in- cluded in Exhibit III of the	17	D. Rosenthal J. R. Clark S. B. Maloof J. T. Norton	Effect of Locked-Up Stresses on Ballistic Performance of Welded Armor (OD-106)— OSRD No. 3580, Serial No. M-244, 4/18/44, NRC-53, Final Report—Part I.
		second interim report of the Board—May 1945.	18	J. T. Norton D. Rosenthal S. B. Maloof	Effect of Locked-Up Stresses on Ballistic Performance of Welded Armor-(OD-106)
7	G. Vedeler	"The Torsion of Ships." Insti- tution of Naval Architects, 1924.			OSRD No. 4396, Serial No. M-421, 11/24/44, NRC-53, Final Report- Part II.

161

-

FABRICATION Residual Welding Stresses—(Cont'd)

	BRICATION Residual	Welding Stresses—(Cont'd)		FABRICATION_Lock	ked-in Stresses-(Cont'd)
Reference number	Authors	Title or designation	Reference number	Authors	Fitle or designation
19	G. E. Doan L. J. McGeady R. D. Stout S. S. Tor	Methods of Testing Weld- ability of Steel Plates and Shapes-OSRD No. 3702, Serial No. M-243, 5/25/44, NRC-66, Final Report- Part J.	27	E. D. Howe A. Boodberg M. P. O'Brien	History of Residual Stresses in Welded Ships—OSRD No 6590, Serial No. M-630 2 '25/46, NRC-74, Fina Report—Part VIII.
20	R. D. Stout S. S. Tor L. J. McGeady G. E. Doan	Methods of Testing Weld- ability of Steel Plates and Shapes-OSRD No. 4529, Serial No. M-398, 1/2/45, NRC-66, Final Report- Part II.	28	E. D. Howe. A. Boodberg M. P. O'Brien	History of Residual Stresses in Welded Ships—OSRD No 65.9, Serial No. M-625 2/25,46, NRC-74, Fina Report—Part VII.
21	W. F. Hess E. F. Nippes, Jr. A. P. Bunk R. B. Manning L. L. Merrill R. A. Wyant	Evaluation of Factors Affect- ing Crack Sensitivity of Welded JointsOSRD No. 4383, Serial No. M-352, 11/13/44, NRC-65, Final Report-Part I.	29	E. D. Howe A. Boodberg M. P. O'Brien	History of Residual Stresses in Welded Ships—OSRD No 6588, Serial No. M-624 2/25/46, NRC-74, Fina Report—Part VI.
22	E. F. Nippes, Jr A. P. Bunk	Evaluation of Factors Affect- ing Crack Sensitivity of Welded Joints-OSRD No. 4900, Serial No. M-455, 4/5/45, NRC-65, Final Re-	30	D. Rosenthal R. Hultgren	History of Residual Stresses in Welded Ships—OSRD No 5060, Serial No. M-484 5/15/45, NRL-74, Progress Report.
	FABRICATION-	port—Part II.	31	E. D. Howe B. York M. P. O'Bilen	History of Residual Stresses in Welded Ships—OSRD No 6388, Scrial No. M-609 12/5/45, NRC-74, Finc
23a	E. D. Howe A. Boodberg M. P. O'Brien	History of Residual Stresses in Welded Ships—OSRD No. 4866, Serial No. M-455, 3/19/45, NRC-74, Final Report—Part I.	 	ERIALS—Fundamental	Report—Part V. Factors Affecting Steel Behavior
23b .	Bethlehem Steel Co., Shipbuilding Div., Cent. Tech. Dept.	Investigation of Weldinge Stresses in Bethlehem-Fair- field Liberty and Victory Ships-Research Report No. 17, Vols. I and II,	32	M. Gensamer, et al.	"Fracture of Metals"—Sur- vey conducted for United States Navy, Burcau of Ship July 1945.
23c	Todd Houston Shipbldg. Corp.	March 1945. Residual Welding Stresses- Summary Report, May	33	C S. Barrett	"The Structure of Metals"- McGraw Hill, New York 1943.
24	E. D. Howe A. Boodberg B. York M. P. O'Brien	1945. History of Residual Stresses in Welded Ships—OSRD No. 6359, Serial No. M-586, 11/28/45, Final Report—	34	M. Gensamer	"Strength of Metals Un- der Combined Stresses"— American Society for Met als, Cleveland, 1940.
25	E. D. Howe A. Boodberg M. P. O'Brien	Part III. History of Residual Stresses in Welded Ships—OGRD No. 5262, Serial No. M-494, 7 2/45, NRC-74, Final Re- port—Part II.	?5	A. V. DeForest	Investigation of Factors Re ducing Effective Ductility of Welded Steel Members- OSRD No. 4674, Serial No M-432, 2/6/45, NRC-72 Final Report.
26	E. D. Howe A. Boodberg M. P. O'Brien	History of Residual Stresses in Welded Ships—OSRD No. 6587, Serial No. M-623, 2/25/46, NRC-74, Final Report—Part IV.	36	J. H. H. lloman C. Zener	"Plastic Flow and Rupture of Metals"—Extended Series of Reports published by Watertown Arsenal, 1943- 1945.

- এব্যান্য

~

· · · · · · · · · · ·

**

,

. .

•--•

* • **

162

• •

MATERIALSExperimental	Incestigations	and Results

£ .

1. 5 8.04

250

 -

-

MATERIALS-Experimental Investigations and Results-(Cont'd)

Reference number	Authors	Title or designation	Reference number	Authors	Title or designation
37	A. G. Bissell	"A Test of Longitudinal Welded Joints in Medium and High Tensile Steel"— Journal of the American Welding Society, April 1944.	45	G. E. Doan	Weldability of Steel for Hull Construction—OSRD No. 6263, Serial No. M-612, 10/30/45, NRC-86, Final Report.
38	L. C. Bibber	"A Study of the Tensile Prop- erties of Heavy, Longitudi- nally Welded Plate Speci- mens Simulating Deck and Shell Joints"-Journal of the	46	H. E. Davis, et al	Report on Static Bend Tests of Welded Specimens, to be issued under Bureau of Ships Contract NObs-31222.
39	W. M. Wilson	American Welding Society, April 1945. "Test of Plates with Longi- tudinal Welds"	47	W. M. Wilson	"Flat Plate Tests Contain- ing Central Transverse Notches," for United States Coast Guard-1944.
40 .	H. E. Davis G. E. Troxell E. R. Parker M. P. O'Brien	lished Report. Behavior of Steel Under Con- ditions of Multiaxial Stresses and Effect of Welding and Temperature on this Be- havior-OSRD No. 4553, Serial No. M-405, 1/3/45, NRC-75, Progress Report.	48	H. E. Davis G. E. Troxell E. R. Parker M. P. O'Brien	Cleavage Fracture of Ship Plate as Influenced by De- sign and Metallungical Fac tors: Part II-Flat Plate Tests-OSRD No. 6452, Scrial No. M-608, 1/10/46, NRC-92, Final Report.
41 .	H. E. Davis, et al	Behavior of Steel Under Con- ditions of Multiaxial Stresses and Effect of Welding and Temperature on this Be- havior—OSRD No. 6365,	49	W. M. Wilson R. A. Hechtman W. H. Bruckner	Cleavage Fracture of Ship Plate as Influenced by Size Effects—CSRD No. 6457, Serial No. M-614, 1/15/46, NRC-93, Final Report.
42	Levan Griffis G. H. Morikawa	Serial No. M-542, 12-6-45, NRC-75, Final Report. Behavior of Steel Under Con- ditions of Multiaxial Stress and the Effect on this Be- havior of Metallographic Structure and Chemical Composition-OSRD No.	50	E. P. DeGarmo J. L. Meriam R. C. Grassi M. P. O'Brien	Cleavage Fracture of Ship Plate as Influenced by De- sign and Metallurgical Fac- tors: Hatch Corner Speci- men Tests-OSRD No. 5352, Serial No M-512, 7/21/45, NRC Progress Report.
43.	Levan Griffis G. H. Morikawa	4793, Serial No. M-444, 2/22/45, NRC-77, Progress Report. Behavior of Steel Under Con- ditions of Multiaxial Stress and the Effect on this Be- havior of Metallographic	51	E. P. DcGarmo J. L. Meriam R. C. Grassi M. P. O'Brien	Cleavage Fracture of Ship Plates as Influenced by De- sign and Metallurgical Fac- tors: Part I—Hatch Corner Specimen Tests—OSRD No. 6387, Serial No. M-607, 12/4/45, NRC-92, Final
		Structure and Chemical Composition—OSRD No. 5346, Scrial No. M-490, 7/17/45, NRC-77, Progress Report.	52	M. Gensamer W. T. Lankford, Jr. T. A. Prater John Vajda	Correlation of Laboratory Tests with Full Scale Ship Plate Fracture Tests- OSRD No. 5380, Sc.ial No.
14	Albert Hess Carl Goodkind Levan Griffis	Behavior of Steel Under Con- ditions of Multiaxial Stress and the Effect on this Be- havior of Metallographic Structure and Chemical	53	M. Gensamer W. T. Lankford, Jr.	M-526, 7/26/45, NRC-94, Final Report. Correlation of Laboratory Tests with Full Scale Ship
		Composition—OSRD No. 6593, Serial No. M-644, 2/14/46, NRC-77, Final Report.		T. A. Prater E. P. Klier J. T. Ransom John Vajda	Plate Fracture Tests – OSRD No. 6204, Serial No. M-613, 10/24/45, NRC-96, Final Report.

163

.

MATERIALS-Experimental Investigations and Results-(Cont'd)

WELDING INSTRUCTIONS

Reference number	Authors	Title or designation	Reference	Authors	Title or designation
			65		Welding Instructions for use
54	W. A. Snelling W. O. Snelling	Direct Explosion Test for Welded Armor and Ship Plate: Part IIPrime and Welded PlateOSRD No. 6382, Serial No. M-622, 12/5/45, NRC-25, Final Percet	63		Welding Instructions for use by Welding Supervisors, Leadermen, etc., of all Crafts Concerned with Ship- yard Welding—U. S. Mari- time Commission, 17 July 1943; Revised April 1944.
55	S. C. Hollister J. Garcia W. M. Wilson	Report. Fatigue Tests of Ship Welds- OSRD No. 6544, Serial No. M-606, 1/17/46, NRC-89, Final Report. "Fatigue Tests of 1. x¾" Steel	66		Instructions to Surveyors- Supervision of Welding in Shipbuilding-May 1943- American Bureau of Ship- ping.
57		Plates with Severe Stress Raisers," for United States Coast Guard—August 1945. National Bureau of Standards Report of the Investigation	67		Supervision of Welding in Shipbuilding — September 1944—American Bureau of Shipping.
58	G. A. Ellinger	of Strip Mill and Sheared Mill Plates, 20 April 1944 (VIII-3/IMW-686c). National Bureau of Standards	68		Marine Inspection Memoran- dum No. 45, U. S. Coast Guard-5 July 1943.
59	M. L. Williams N. A. Kahn	Report on Examination of Fractures (In Steel Plate) from 25 Vessels, submitted by U. S. Coast Guard-15 Feb- ruary 1945 (IMW-686c). New York Naval Shipyard, Material Laboratory, Un-	59		Shipyard Welding Workman- ship (NAVCG-137)—U. S. Coast Guard; Bureau of Ships, U. S. Navy; U. S. Maritime Commission; American Bureau of Ship- ping.
	CASU2	published Report on Tests of 397 Steel Plates From Mills and Shipyards—June 1946. ALTIES	70.		Shipyard Management for Welding (CG-180)—U. S. Coast Guard; Burcau of Ships, U. S. Navy; U. S.
60.	• • • • • •	Report of American Bureau of Shipping Special Sub- Committee to Investigate the Structural Failure of			Maritime Commission American Bureau of Ship- ping.
61	S. H. Graf.	the Tanker SS Schenectady- 11 March 1943. Report on Metallurgical As- pects of Tanker Schenectady	71.		Notes on Inspection of Weld- ments — September 1943, Navy Department, Bureau of Ships.
60	One H. Harry	Failure for the American Burcau of Shipping – 27 February 1943.	72 .		Typical Welding Sequence for "DE" and Similar Vessels —September 1944 — Navy
62	Otto H. Henry	Report on Physical and Met- allurgical Characteristics of the Hull Steel of the Lsso Manhattan for the American Burcau of Shipping-Sep-	 		Department, Bureau of Ships.
63	E. Ellsberg Commander (CC)USN	tember 1943. "SS Majestic (Ex-Imperator)",		MISCEI	LANEOUS
34	J. Lyell Wilson	"The SS Leviathan; Damage, Repair and Strength Analy- sis." Society of Naval Archi- tects and Marine Engineers, 1930.	73	Sir Amos L. Ayre G. M. Boyd	"The Work of the Admiralty Ship-Welding Committee." Institution of Naval Archi tects, 1946.

and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

164

1

☆ U. S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE 1947-701-92

DOCUMENT CONT			
Security (las afreation of title, body of abstract and indexing) 1. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY (Corporate author)	annotation must be e	The second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second s	overall report is classified) ECURITY CLASSIFICATION
Board to Investigate the Design and Method Construction of Welded Steel Merchant Vess	ls of sels		NCIASSIFIED
3 REPORT TITLE		<u> </u>	
The Design and Methods of Construction of	Welded Stee	1 Merchant	. Ve ss els
4 DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)		<u></u>	
Final Report 5 AUTHOR(S) (First name, middle initial, last name)			
6 REPORT DATE	70. TOTAL NO O	FPAGES	7b. NO OF RF 'S
JULY 15, 1946 BB CONTRACT OF GRANT NO	16/1	S REPORT NUM	73 BER(S)
b. PROJECT NO			
6. PROJECT NO			
c.	9b. OTHER REPOR	RT NO(S) (Any o	ther numbers that may be assigned
d.	<u> </u>	····	
10 DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT			
Unlimited			
11 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	12 SPONSORING	ALLITARY ACT	VITY
	Dept. of Washingto	P	
Early in WW II, welded merchant ve of fractures which cculd not be explained. themselves with explosive suddenness and e not ordinarily associated with the behavio ship steel. In April 1943, the Secretary o gation. This is the third and final report of the Board's activity during the entire results are discussed, findings listed and Part I - Structural Failure History Part II - Analysis of Factors Contributing Part III - Susceptibility to Fracture of D Part IV - Effectiveness of Certain Structur Part V - Steel Quality At the end of the report recommendations a necessary or desirable in the solution of	The fracture whibited a construction of a normal f the Navy e of the Boar period of it conclusions to Structure ifferent Shi ral Alteration	res, in ma quality of ally ducti establishe id intende is existen a drawn. ral Failur ip Designs ions future wo	ny cases, manifested brittleness which was le material such as d a Board of Investi- d to cover all phases ce. All salient es and Structural Details rk which appears to be
DD FORM (FAGE 1)		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	NONE

.

S/N 0101-807-6801

-

l

-

.

1-> 14 an - 4₀₀ ann an an

	e ture ps s		LINKA LINKB				LINKC		
	KEY WORDS	ROLE		ROLE	к в wт	ROLE	K C W		
O									
Ships									
Ship Structures		1	1				ŀ		
Tankers							l I		
Welding							ì		
Hull Fracture							i i		
Brittle Fracture							ł		
Steel									
							1		
Shipbuilding						Ì			
Merchant Ships									
Liberty Ships									
Victory Ships									
							ļ		
				ļ					
				l	ł		l		
				ľ			1		
				[[
							j		
						!			
			ļ						
	•								
		•							
			1			l.			
			1			·			
	•								
			1						
			1						
				i					
•									
			ļ						
			1	ı					

Martin

. .

Ŧ

1. P. 1.

ر ایر-